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C3 RE: Hess Small Business Services, LLC - to 
Application For Certification as a Competitive Retail Electric 
Service (CRES) Provider 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-24 ofthe Ohio Administrative Code, enclosed please 
fmd one original and 10 full copies of Hess Small Business Services, LLC's Application 
for Certification as a Competitive Retail Electric Service (CRES) Provider in the State of 
Ohio. 

In order to assist in our record keeping, please file stamp the additional copy of this 
cover letter/application form and return it to me in the enclosed self-addressed attempted 
envelope provided for that purpose. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate 
to contact me on my direct extension at (732) 750-7048. Thank you very much in advance 
for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Jay L. Kooper 
Director of Regulatory Affairs 

Enclosures 

T t l* I s t o ea r t l fy chat tba loHi-jeu ai^^vaz^ug «r« fts 
Aoourat* and coB^lato reproduction of « cas« flX* 
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H-I^B-EL-CHS 

The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
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Date Received Case Number 

-EL-CRS 

Versio]] 

August 2004 

CERTIFICATION APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION 
PROVIDERS AND POWER MARKETERS 

Please print or type all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and 
titie (Example: Exhibit A-13 Company History). All attachments should bear the legal name of 
the Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related correspondence with 
the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division; 180 East Broad Street, Columbus, 
Ohio 43215-3793. 

This PDF form is designed so that you may input information directly onto the form. 
You may also download the form, by saving it to your local disk, for later use. 

A, A P P L I C A N T I N F O R M A T I O N 

A-l Applicant intends to be certified as: (check all that apply) 

• Retail Generation Provider 
• Power Marketer 

D Power Broker 
n Aggregator 

A-2 Applicant's legal name, address, telephone number and web site address 

L e g a l N a m e Hess Small Business Services. LLC 

A d d r e s s one Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Telephone #1732)750-6779 Web site address (if any) www.hsssamaiibusin6ss.com 

A-3 List name, address, telephone number and web site address under which Applicant 
will do business in Ohio 

L e g a l N a m e ^^^^ Small Business Services, LLC 

A d d r e s s '^"^ ^^^^ Piaza, woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Telephone #(732)750^779 W e b site a d d r e s s ( i f a n y ) www.hesssmgiibiisiness.CQm 

A-4 List all names under which the applicant does business in North America 
Hess Small Business Services, LLC 

Piease see Exiiibit A-13 for names under which 

Hess Corporation does business in N. America 

http://www.hsssamaiibusin6ss.com
http://www.hesssmgiibiisiness.CQm


A-5 Contac t person for regulatory or emergency mat te r s 

N a m e Jay L. Kooper 

T i t i e Director of Regulatory Affairs 

B u s i n e s s add ress one Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Telephone # (732)750-7048 Fax # (732) 750-6670 
E-mail address (if any) ji<ooper@hess,com 

A-6 Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints 

NameJay L. Kooper _ ^ _ ^ 

T i t l e l3irector of Regulatory Affairs 

B u s i n e s s address one Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Telephone # (732) 750-7043 FaX# (732)750-6670 
E-mail address ( i f any) ikooper@hess.com 

A-7 Applicant 's address and toll-free n u m b e r for customer service and complaints 

C u s t o m e r S e r v i c e address ^ ^ ^ ^"^^'l Business services, LLC, One Hess Plaza, Woodbridge, NJ 07095 

Toll-free Telephone # (BBB) 494-4377 FaX# (716)742-2253 
E-mail address (if any) smaiibusines5@he5s.com 

A-8 Applicant 's federal employer identification n u m b e r # 133981937 

A-9 Appl icant ' s form of ownership (check one) 

n Sole Proprietorship n Partnership 
n Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) a Limited Liability Company (LLC) 
a Corporation n Other 

A-10 (Check all tha t apply) Identify each electric distribution utility certified territory in 
which the applicant intends to provide service, including identification of each customer 
class that the applicant intends to serve, for example, residential, small commercial, 
mercantile commercial, and industrial. (A mercantile customer, as defined in (A) (19) of Section 
4928.01 ofthe Revised Code, is a commercial customer who consumes more than 700,000 kWh/year or is 
part of a national account in one or more states). 

a First Energy 
Gi Ohio Edison 
a Toledo Edison 
B Cleveland EUctric Illuminating 

Bl Cincinnati Gas & Electric 
a Monongahela Power 
B American Electric Power 

a Ohio Power 

D Residential 
El Residential 
a Residential 
a Residential 
D Residential 

a Commercial 
a Commercial 
a Commercial 
a Commercial 
a Commercial 

a Mercantile 
a Mercantile 
a Mercantile 
a Mercantile 
B Mercantile 

o Industrial 
Q Industrial 
B Industrial 
a Industrial 
a Industrial 

a Residential a Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 

mailto:ikooper@hess.com
mailto:smaiibusines5@he5s.com


a Columbus Southern Power a Residential • Commercial a Mercantile a Industrial 
a Dayton Power and Light a Residential a Commercial a Mercantile D Industrial 

A-11 Provide the approximate start date that the applicant proposes to begin delivering services 

November 1, 2012 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

A-12 Exhibit A-12 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners" provide the names, titles, 
addresses and telephone numbers ofthe applicant's principal officers, directors, partners, 
or other similar officials. 

A-13 Exhibit A-13 ^'Corporate Structure," provide a description ofthe applicant's corporate 
structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and 
subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural gas to 
customers in North America. 

A-14 Exhibit A-14 "Company History," provide a concise description of the applicant's 
company history and principal business interests. 

A-15 Exhibit A-15 "Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws," if applicable provide the 
articles of incorporation filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the applicant is 
incorporated and any amendments thereto. 

A-16 Exhibit A-16 "Secretary of State," provide evidence that the applicant has registered 
with the Ohio Secretary ofthe State. 

B. APPLICANT MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

B-1 Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation," provide a list of all jurisdictions in which 
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the 
application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or 
wholesale electric services. 

B-2 Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans," provide a description of the applicant's experience 
and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing 
statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with 
Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised Code. 



B-3 Exhibit B-3 "Summary of Experience," provide a concise summary of the applicant's 
experience in providing the service(s) it is seeking to be certified to provide (e.g. number 
and types of customers served, ufility service areas, amount of load, etc.). 

B-4 Exhibit B-4 "Environmental Disclosure." provide a detailed description of how the 
applicant Intends to determine its (a) generation resource mix, and (b) environmental 
characteristics, including air emissions and radioactive waste. This information shall 
include sufficient discussion so as to detail both the annual projection methodology and 
the proposed approach to compiling the quarterly actual environmental disclosure data. 
Additional details on this requirement may be obtained by referring to 4901:1-21-09. 

B-5 Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all 
existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the 
applicant's financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to 
be certified to provide. 

B-6 Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor ofthe applicant, or any principal officer of 
the applicant have ever been convicted or held liable for fraud or for violation of any 
consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years. 
D No D Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-6 "Disclosure of Consumer 
Protection Violations" detailing such violation(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

B-7 Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor ofthe applicant has had any certification, 
license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed^ 
suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years. 
• No n Yes 

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-7 "Disclosure of 
Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation" detailing such 
action(s) and providing all relevant documents. 

C. APPLICANT FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

C-1 Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports," provide the two most recent Annual Reports to 
Shareholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide 
similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit C-1 is not applicable and why. 



c-2 Exhibit C-2 "SEC Filings," provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If 
applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the 
applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 that 
the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why. 

C-3 Exhibit C-3 "Financial Statements." provide copies ofthe applicant's two most recent 
years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow 
statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide officer certified 
financial statements. Ifthe applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this 
requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial statements covering the life 
of the business. 

C-4 Exhibit C-4 "Financial Arrangements," provide copies of the applicant's financial 
arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity (e.g., guarantees, bank 
commitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,). 

C-5 Exhibit C-5 "Forecasted Financial Statements," provide two years of forecasted 
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the 
applicant's CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, e-
mail address, and telephone number ofthe preparer. 

C-6 Exhibit C-6 "Credit Rating," provide a statement disclosing the applicant's credit rating 
as reported by two of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet 
Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a 
similar organizafion. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings, 
it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, provided the 
applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant's parent or 
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligafions ofthe applicant. 

C-7 Exhibit C-7 "Credit Report," provide a copy of the applicant's credit report from 
Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization. 

C-8 Exhibit C-8 "Bankruptcy Information." provide a list and description of any 
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptcy filings made 
by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the 
applicant or any officer ofthe applicant in the current year or within the two most recent 
years preceding the application. 



C-9 Exhibit C-9 "Merger Information," provide a statement describing any dissolution or 
merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the 
application. 

D. APPLICANT TECHNICAL CAPABILITY 

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: 

D-1 Exhibit D-1 "Operations" provide a written description ofthe operafional nature ofthe 
applicant's business. Please include whether the applicant's operations will include the 
generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail power for transmission and 
delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange 
for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail customers. 

D-2 Exhibit D-2 "Operations Expertise," given the operational nature of the applicant's 
business, provide evidence of the applicant's experience and technical expertise in 
jiXniDH 17-z "vjperations iLxpertise, given me operational nature or ine appiican 
business, provide evidence of the applicant's experience and technical expertise 
performing such operations. 

D-3 Exhibit D-3 "Key Technical Personnel." provide the names, titles, e-mail addresses, 
telephone numbers, and the background of key personnel involved in the operational 
aspects ofthe applicant's business. 

D-4 Exhibit D-4 *'FERC Power Marketer License Number," provide a statement 
disclosing the applicant's FERC Power Marketer License number. (Power Marketers 
only) 

ignature of Applicant and Title 

Sworn and subscribed before me this j ^x day o f ^ / u / ^ j s 2 Q l ^ \ 
Month Year 

Signature of official administering oath 

My commission expires on 

Print Name and Title 
COLLEEN M.FROST 

ID No. 2298543 
NOTARY PUBUCOF NEW JERSEY 
My Conmission Expires Apr. 1,2013 



state of Mi} t^^J^ r^ t±_ : 

County of M^^j/jl^^llV : 

AFFIDAVIT 

Wc^JhriJ i^ss . 

lO-V^A Sv[X\ \ ' f f \^ '^ ' , Affiant, being duly swom/affirmed according to law, deposes and says that: 

He/she is the h u ? r A c r (Office of Affiant) of Nf 5 ^ 5^t(c| H Sw5.1̂ ĝ ^ (Name of Applicant); 

That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant, 

1. The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false statement that all statements made in the 
application for certification are true and complete and that it will amend its application while the 
application is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the information provided in the 
application. 

2. The Apphcant herein, attests it will timely file an annual report with the Public Utilities Commission 
of Ohio of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowatt-hours of electricity 
pursuant to Division (A) of Section 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 4911.18, and Division (F) of 
Section 4928.06 ofthe Revised Code. 

3. The Applicant herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant to Sections 
4905.10, 4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 ofthe Revised Code. 

4. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Commission of Ohio rules or 
orders as adopted pursuant to Chapter 4928 ofthe Revised Code. 

5. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer complaint regarding any 
service offered or provided by the Applicant. 

6. The Applicant herein, attests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of the Revised Code 
regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Ohio Courts and the service of process. 

7. The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal rules and regulations 
concerning consumer protection, the environment, and advertising/promotions. 

8. The Applicant herein, attests that it will use its best efforts to verify that any entity with whom it has a 
contractual relafionship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable licensing requirements 
ofthe Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. 

^. The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, 
the electric distribution companies, the regional transmission entities, and other electric suppliers in the 
event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and reliability ofthe electric service in 
accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures as may be determined appropriate by the 
Commission. 

10. Ifapplicabletothe service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Applicant herein, attests that it will adhere 
to the reliability standards of (1) the North American Electric Reliability Council (NERC), (2) the 
appropriate regional reliability council(s), and (3J the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. (Only 
applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering) 



11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the 
information supplied in the application within 30 days of such material change, including any change 
in contact person for regulatory purposes or contact person for Saff use in invesdgating customer 
complaints. 

That the facts a b o ^ set fo^b^£ l rue and conect to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief and that 
hg/ahe exaectsjwid ApaJwanTti^^e able to prove the same at any hearing hereof 

c i ^ / ^ i ^ J ' - U - - * ^ ^ ' t / * ^ ^ j uOt^c^fiT Cc^C-' 

Sworn and subscribed before me this 2 , 
J 

signature of official administering oath 

day of J [4 ' V 
Month 

. 2C/2_ 
Year 

stenng • 

My commission expires on 

Print Name and Title 
_ COLLEEN M.FROST 

ID N a 2298543 
NOTARY PUBUC OF NEW JERSEY 
My Cowmlssion Bcpires Apr. 1,2013 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit A-12 

Principal Officers, Directors and Partners 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-12 

Exhibit A-12 "Principal Officers, Directors and Partners; Provide the names, titles, 
addresses and telephone numbers ofthe applicant's principal officers, directors and 
other similar officials. 

Response: Please see below for the list of tlie Principal Ofticers for Hess Small 
Business Services, LLC ("HSBS") and the enclosed excerpt page from Hess 
Corporation's 2011 Annual Report (also contained in Exhibit C-1) for the Principal 
Officers and Directors of HSBS's corporate parent, Hess Corporation. 

Hess' Electric Marketing Department and the enclosed excerpt page from Hess' 
2010 Annual Report (also contained in Exhibit C-1) for the Principal Officers and 
Directors of Hess Corporation. 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
PRINCIPAL OFFICERS 

John Schultz 
President 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6000 
Fax:(732)750-7165 

Thomas Chamberiin 
Vice President 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone:(732)750-6000 
Fax:(732)750-7165 

Steve Haugenes 
Vice President 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6000 
Fax: (732) 750-7165 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit A-12 

Principal Officers, Directors and Partners 

Ted Korth 
Secretary 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6000 
Fax: (732) 750-7165 

Christopher Molinaro 
Treasurer 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6000 
Fax: (732) 750-7165 

Melody Brown 
Assistant Treasurer 
One Hess Plaza 
Woodbridge, NJ 07095 
Phone: (732) 750-6000 
Fax:(732)750-7165 



HESS 
CORPORATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

J o h n B. Hess<' i 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

S a m u e l W . B o d m a n i ^ " " ' 
Former Secretary of the United States 
Department of Energy; 
Former Deputy Secretary of the United 
States Department of the Treasury 

Nicholas F. Brady'̂ '̂ '̂™ 
Chairman, Choptank Partners, Inc.; 
Former Secretary of the United States 
Department of the Treasury; 
Former Chairman, 
Dillon. Read & Co., Inc. 

G r e g o r y P. H i l l 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Worldwide 
Exploration & Production 

Edith E. Holiday !̂ iw 
Corporate Director and Trustee; 
Former Assistant to the President and 
Secretary of the Cabinet; 
Former General Counsel of the United 
States Department of the Treasury 

T h o m a s H. Keani^)!^" ' ! 
President, THK Consulting, LLC; 
Former President, Drew University; 
Former Governor, State of New Jersey 

R i s a L a v i z z o - M o u r e y ' ^ ' 
President and Chief Executive Officer, 
The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation 

C r a i g G. M a t t h e w s " ' 
Former Vice Chairman 
and Chief Operating Officer, 
KeySpan Corporation; 
Former Chief Executive Officer 
and President, NUI, Inc. 

J o h n H. M u l l l n III ' " 
Chairman, RIdgeway Farm LLC; 
Former t\/lanaglng Director, 
Dillon. Read & Co.. Inc. 

F r a n k A . O l s o n ^^n '̂ 
Former Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer, 
The Hertz Corporation 

E r n s t H. v o n M e t z s c h ' ^ ' 
Managing Member, 
Cambrian Capital. L P . ; 
Former Senior Vice President 
and Partner. Wellington 
Management Company 

F. B o r d e n W a l k e r 
Executive Vice President; 
President. Marketing & Refining 

R o b e r t N. W i l s o n ' ^ " ^ " ^ 
Chairman, Mevion Medical Systems; 
Former Vice Chairman 
of the Board of Directors. 
Johnson & Johnson 

(1) Member of Executî re Committee 

(2) Member of Audit Committee 

(3) Member of Compensation and 

Management Development Committee 

(4) Member of Corporate Governance 

and Nominating Committee 

CORPORATE OFFICERS 

J o h n B. H e s s 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

G r e g o r y P. H i l l 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Worldwide 
Exploration & Production 

F. B o r d e n W a l k e r 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Marketing S Refining 

SENIOR VICE PRESIDENTS VICE PRESIDENTS 

Chr is topher J . Ba ldw in 

Gary A. Boube l 

John A. Gar tman 

T imo thy B. Goode l l 
General Counsel 

Sco t t M. Heck 

Lawrence H. Ornste in 

H o w a r d Paver 

J o h n P. Rielly 
Chief Financial Officer 

J o h n J . Sce l fo 

R. G o r d o n Shearer 

J o h n V. S imon 

Darius Sweet 

Michael R. Turner 

Myke l J . Z io lo 

Geo rge C. Barry 
Secretary 

Rober t M. Bigl in 
Treasurer 

C. Mar t in Dunag in 

R ichard J . Lawlor 

J o n a t h o n L. Pepper 

Haro ld I. Smal l 

J o n a t h a n C. Stein 

Jeffery L. Ste inhorn 

Kevin B. Wi l cox 
Controller 

Jay R. Wi lson 

20 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit A-13 

Corporate Structure 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-13 

Exhibit A-13 "Corporate Structure"; Provide a description ofthe applicant's 
corporate structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all 
affiliate and subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale electricity or natural 
gas to customers in North America 

Response: Please see the attached flow chart and list detailing Hess Corporation's 
corporate structure and Hess Small Business Services, LLC's ("HSBS") placement 
within this structure. HSBS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hess Corporation that 
is operated from within Hess Energy Marketing, which is the division that contains 
Hess' retail and wholesale electric and gas marketing operations (including Hess' 
licensed retail electric and gas operations in Ohio). 

HSBS is a licensed retail gas supplier in Ohio under Certificate Number 12-138G(1) 

Hess Corporation is a licensed retail electric and gas supplier in Ohio under 
Certificate Numbers 10-208E(2) and 04-080G(5). 



Hess Small Business Services 
Organizational Chart 

Hess Corporation 

V 
Hess Energy Marketing 

(Division of Hess Corporation) 

\7 
Hess Small Business Services 

(Wholly-owned Subsidiary of Hess 
Corporation) 



LIST OF HESS CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES 
(Updated June 5, 2012) 

Air Hangar, Inc. 

Allied Petroleum Company 

Allied Petroleum Limited 

Allpet (Antilles) N.Y. 

Amerada Hess Nigeria Limited 

Amerada Petroleum Corporation 

Amerada Petroleum Corporation of Libya 

Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan Pipeline Finance B.V. 

Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan Pipeline Holding B.V. 

Balcu-Tibilisi-Ceyhan International Investment 
Company 

Baku-Tibilisi-Ceyhan Pipeline Company 

Ballylongford Electricity Company Limited 

Bayonne Energy Center, LLC 

Bittern and Triton (UK) Limited 

Brendan Company 

Carigali Hess Operating Company Sdn. Bhd. 

CH Mutiara Petroleum 

Crown Landing LLC 

Cul de Sac Agencies, Limited 

Fisher Hess St. Lucia Limited 

Hess (ACG) Finance Company Limited 

Hess (ACG) Limited 

Hess (Agreb) Limited 

Hess (Algeria New Ventures) Limited 

Hess (Bahamas) Limited 

Hess (Borneo Block CAl) Limited 

Hess (BTC) Limited 

Hess (Egypt) Limited 

Hess (Faroes) Limited 

Hess (GEA) Limited 

Hess (Ghana) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Deepwater) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-I) Holdings Limited 

Hess (lndonesia-1) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-11) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-II) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Ill) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Ill) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-IV) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-IV) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-IX) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-IX) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Pangkah) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Semai V) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Semai V) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-South Sesulu) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Tanjung Aru) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-Tatihu) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-V) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-V) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-VI) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-VI) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-VII) Holdings Limited 

S \MSOFnCE\JA\JA\SUBS[DIARIES\LIST OF HESS CORF COMPANIES - KOOPER'S REQUEST doc 



Hess (Indonesia-VII) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-VII I) Holdings Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-VIII) Limited 

Hess (Indonesia-West Timor) Limited 

Hess (Kazakhstan) Limited 

Hess (Luxembourg) Exploration and Production 
Holding S.a.r.l. 

Hess (Malaysia-SB 302) Limited 

Hess (Malaysia-SK 306) Limited 

Hess (Netherlands) Exploration and Production 
Holding B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) Investments B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) Oil and Gas B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) Oil and Gas Holdings C.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) U.S. GOM Ventures B.V. 

Hess (Netherlands) U.S. Oil and Gas Holdings B.V. 

Hess (Oil & Gas) Limited 

Hess (Rhourde el Rouni) Limited 

Hess (Thailand) Limited 

Hess (Vietnam-Block 16/1) Limited 

Hess Algeria Holdings Limited 

Hess Algeria Limited 

Hess Asia Holdings Inc. 

Hess Australia (Beetaloo) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia (Dampier) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia (North West Shelf) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia (Offshore) Pty Limited 

Hess Australia Exploration (New Ventures) Pty 
Limited 

Hess Australia New Ventures Limited 

Hess Bakken Holdings Corporation 

Hess Bakken Investments I Corporation 

Hess Bakken Investments II, LLC 

Hess Bayonne LLC 

Hess Biofuels, LLC 

Hess Borneo (CAl) Holdings Limited 

Hess Brasil (BM-S-22) Limited 

Hess Brasil Petroleo Ltda. 

Hess Brazil Holdings Limited 

Hess Canada Exploration and Production ULC 

Hess Canada Gas Ltd. 

Hess Canada Holdings B.V. 

Hess Capital Corporation S.a.r.l. 

Hess Capital Limited 

Hess Capital Services Corporation 

Hess China Oil and Gas Limited 

Hess Colombia Holdings Limited 

Hess Colombia Limited 

Hess Communications Corporation 

Hess Corporation 

Hess Corporation of Nevada 

Hess Denmark ApS 

Hess Egypt Exploration Limited 

Hess Egypt West Mediterranean Limited 

Hess Energi ApS 

Hess Energy Exploration Limited 

Hess Energy Inc. 

Hess Energy Incentives, LLC 

Hess Energy New York Corporation 

Hess Energy Power & Gas Company (UK) Limited 

Hess Energy Power & Gas Company, LLC 

Hess Energy Services Company, LLC 



Hess Energy Trading Company, LLC 

Hess Energy Trading Company (UK) Limited 

Hess Energy Trading Company International, LLC 

Hess Energy Trading Company Singapore Pte. Ltd. 

Hess Equatorial Guinea Holdings Limited 

Hess Equatorial Guinea Inc. 

Hess Equatorial Guinea Investments Limited 

Hess Exploration (Bravo) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Briseis) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Carnarvon) Pty Limited 

Hess Exploration (Chester) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Glencoe) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Glenloth) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Lightfinger) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Makybe Diva) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Mentorc) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Moyet) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Nimblefoot) Limited 

Hess Exploration (Thailand) Co. Ltd. 

Hess Exploration (Toporoa) Limited 

Hess Exploration and Production Malaysia, B.V. 

Hess Exploration Australia Pty Limited 

Hess Exploration Ireland Limited 

Hess Exploration Services Inc. 

Hess Finance 

Hess Gabon Investments Limited 

Hess Ghana (Paradise) Limited 

Hess Ghana Exploration Limited 

Hess Global Trading Limited 

Hess Holdings Algeria Limited 

Hess Holdings Indonesia West Timor Limited 

Hess Holdings UK Limited 

Hess Indonesia (North Masela) Limited 

Hess Indonesia New Ventures Limited 

Hess International Holdings Corporation 

Hess International Holdings Limited 

Hess International Limited 

Hess International Oil Corporation 

Hess International Petroleum, Inc. 

Hess Libya (Waha) Limited 

Hess Libya Exploration Limited 

Hess Libya Holdings Limited 

Hess Libya Limited 

Hess Lietuva Exploration, UAB 

Hess Limited 

Hess LLC of St. Lucia 

Hess LNG Crown Landing LLC 

Hess LNG Holdings LLC 

Hess LNG Limited 

Hess LNG LLC 

Hess LNG Trading LLC 

Hess Magreb Exploration Limited 

Hess Mart, Inc. 

Hess Mart of Cape Cod, LLC 

Hess Mart of Massachusetts, LLC 

Hess Microgen LLC 

Hess Microgen Services, Inc. 

Hess Middle East Holdings Limited 

Hess Middle East New Ventures Limited 

Hess Namibia Corporation 



Hess NEC, LLC 

Hess Netherlands Partnership Holdings, LLC 

Hess New Business Limited 

Hess New Ventures Exploration Limited 

Hess New Ventures Limited 

Hess Newark, LLC 

Hess Newark Plant Holdings, LLC 

Hess Nigeria Holdings Limited 

Hess Nominees Limited 

Hess Norge A/S 

Hess Norway Holdings Limited 

Hess NRS Holdings Limited 

Hess NWE Holdings 

Hess Offshore Response Company, LLC 

Hess Ohio Developments, LLC 

Hess Ohio Resources, LLC 

Hess Oil & Gas Sdn Bhd 

Hess Oil and Gas Holdings Inc. 

Hess Oil Company of Thailand (JDA) Limited 

Hess Oil Company of Thailand Ltd. Co. 

Hess Oil France 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Holdings, L.P. 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Limited 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Limited Partnership 

Hess Oil St. Lucia Terminal Holdings Limited 

Hess Oil Trading (UK) Limited 

Hess Oil Trading Limited 

Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp. 

Hess Pangkah LLC 

Hess Peru, Inc. 

Hess Peru Holdings Limited 

Hess Pine Needle Company 

Hess Pipeline Corporation 

Hess Production (Australia) Pty Limited 

Hess Property Services Limited 

Hess Qatar Exploration Limited 

Hess Qatar Holdings Limited 

Hess Receivables LLC 

Hess Retail Services, Inc. 

Hess Services UK Limited 

Hess Shipping Guaranty Corporation 

Hess Shipping LLC 

Hess Small Business Services, LLC 

Hess Trading Limited 

Hess UK Investments Limited 

Hess UK Limited 

Hess Venezuela Limited 

Hess Ventures, Inc. 

Hess West Africa Holdings Limited 

Hetco Advisory Services U.K. Limited 

HOVENSA, LLC 

HOVIC Marketing Corp. 

Ira S, Bushey & Sons Inc. 

Jamestown Insurance Company Limited 

Kingsway Oil Limited 

Merit Oil of Connecticut, Inc. 

Merit Oil of Delaware, Inc. 

Merit Oil of Delaware, LP 

Mill River Pipeline, LLC 

Minos y Petroleos del Ecuador 



Natuna2B.V. 

New Zealand Exploration Limited 

New Zealand Petroleum Company Ltd. 

Nova Technology Fund 

Nuvera Fuel Cells, Inc. 

Nuvera Fuel Cells Europe, S.r.l. 

Oil Casualty Insurance Limited 

Oil Insurance Limited 

Ontario Terminals Inc. 

OOO Kondurchaneft 

OOO Samarskaya Oil Company 

Overseas Services Corporation 

Petroleos Yasuni CA. 

Pine Needle LNG Company, LLC 

Red Star Towing and Transportation Company 

Samara Capital Corporation S.a.r.l. 

Samara-Nafta Holdings Limited 

Samara Holdings Limited 

Samara Investments Limited 

Schiehallion Oil & Gas Limited 

Shannon LNG Limited 

Sheridan Transportation Co. 

Solar Gas Inc. 

Somerset Holdings, LLC 

Southland Energy Resources Ltd. 

Spentonbush/Redstar Companies, Inc. 

St. Croix Petrochemical Corp. 

St. Lucia International Petrol Company Limited 

Tioga Gas Plant, Inc. 

Tower American Corporation 

Trabant Holding International Ltd. 

Triton Italy, Inc. 

Weaver's Cove Energy, LLC 

Weaver's Cove Energy Holdings T, LLC 

Wilco Food Services LLC 

WilcoHess LLC 

Wilco Transportation 

ZAO Samara-Nafta 
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HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-14 

Exhibit A-14 "Company History"; Provide a concise description ofthe applicant's 
company history and principal business interests. 

Response: Hess Corporation ("Hess*) is organized and existing under the General 
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware. It was incorporated under the name 
Amerada Hess Corporation in 1920 and was certified to do business within Ohio on 
October 29,1962. Hess' name was changed to Hess Corporation as of its Annual 
Shareholder's meeting held May 3, 2006. 

Hess has delivered energy products since 1933, when its founder Leon Hess created 
one of the Northeast's most successful fuel oil businesses. Today, Hess is a leading 
total energy provider in the Eastern United States. In addition to being the largest 
supplier of fuel oil to commercial and industrial customers within its footprint, Hess 
is a leading supplier of natural gas and electricity to commercial and industrial 
customers in restructured states throughout the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regions. 
Hess - through its Energy Marketing Department - sells natural gas, fuel oil, 
gasoline and electricity to tens of thousands of customers. Today, Hess is a $42 
billion energy company. 

Along with Hess' many years of experience, strength and growth, it is an innoyative 
leader in providing a successful range of electric products and services including 
fixed-price and variable-price offerings, and a "green suite" of products that 
includes Hess Renewable (renewable energy), Hess Demand Response (demand 
response) and Hess C-Neutral (carbon reduction) products. 

Hess Small Business Services, LLC ("HSBS"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hess 
Corporation, was formerly Stuyvesant Energy, LLC prior to its acquisition by Hess 
Corporation on November 1,2008. At the time of its acquisition by Hess, 
Stuyvesant was a licensed gas suppher in New York and New Jersey. 

HSBS is currently a licensed electric supplier in New York, New Jersey and 
Pennsylvania and a licensed gas supplier in New York, New Jersey Ohio with a 
license application pending in Pennsylvania, serving approximately 3,000 customers 
within this geographic footprint. 
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Exhibit A-15 

Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT A-15 

Exhibit A-15 "Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws"; If applicable, provide the 
articles of incorporation filed with the state or jurisdiction in which the applicant is 
incorporated and any amendments thereto. 

Response: Please see Hess Small Business Services, LLC's (formerly Stuyvesant 
Energy, LLC's) ("HSBS") Articles of Organization and HSBS's corporate parent 
Hess Corporation's ("Hess") Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws, including all 
amendments thereto, all Hied in the State of Delaware, which is the state in which 
Hess is incorporated. 
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AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

RESTATED CERTIHCATE 
OF 

INCORPORATION 

AMERADA HESSCORPORATION. a corpomioTi organized and existing under and by virtue of 
the General Corporation Law of ihe Smie of JDelawajE, was incoipoxated under the name 
Amerada CoTporation. Its original Certificate of Incorporation was filed with the Secretary of 
Stale of Delaware on February 7, 1920. 

This Restated Certificate of Incorporaiion was duly adopted by the Corporation's Board of 
Direcior^ in accordance with the provisioiis of Section 245 of the General Corporatioti Law of 
tht Stale of Dataware and oiviy restates and integrates and docs not fuithw amend the provisions 
of the Corporation's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as heretofore amended or supple­
mented, and there is no discrepancy between those provisions and the provisions of this 
Restated Ccrtificate-of Incorporation. 

The text of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation as heretofore amended or supple­
mented is hereby restated without farther amendments or changes to read as herein set forth in 
full: 

FIRST: The name of the Corporation is 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION, 

SECOND: The Corporation's registered office in the State of Delaware is located al No. 
1209 Orange Street, in the City of Wihnington, County of New Castle. The name of its regis-
lered agent at such address is The Corporation Trust Company. 

THIRD: The purpose for which the Corporation is formed is to engage in any lawful aci or 
activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Coiporaiion Law of 
Delaware, 

FOURTH: The total number of shares of all classes of stock which the Corporation shall 
have amhority to issue is 220.000,000 shares, of which 20,000,000 shares shall be shares of 
Preferred Stock, of the par value of SI per share ("Preferred Stocic'% and 200,000,000 shares 
shall be shares of Common Stock, ofthe par value of Si per share ("Common Stock"). 

The designations and the powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifications, limitations 
or resiriciions thereof, of each class of stock of the Corporation which are fixed by this Restated 
Cenificaie of Incorporation, and the express grant of authority to the Board of Directors of the 
Corponiion vo fix by resoluiion or resolutions the designations and the powers, preferences and 
rights of each such class, and the qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, are as follows: 



SEcnoNi 

PREFERRED STOCK 

A. THE PREFERRED STOCK AS A CLASS. 

1. General. Shares of Preferred. Stock may be issued from lime to time in one or more 
series, provided for herein orby the Board ofI>irectoi^aspfinmtted hereby. Each series shall be 
so designated as to distinguish ihc shares thereof from the shares of all other series. Al! shares of 
Preferred Stock shall be identical, except in respect ofthe pantcolars fixed herein for the series 
provided for herein and the panicuiars fixad by the Board of Dirtctors for series provided for by 
the Board of Director? as permitted hereby. All shares of any one scries shall be identical in all 
rcspccis with all the other shares of such-series, except that if iht shares of such series are enticed 
to cumtitetive dividends, such shares issued at different times may differ as to the dates fram 
which dividends shall be cumulative. 

2. Dividends. The Mders of the PrefeiTtd Stock of each series shall be emilled to receive, 
when and as declared by the Board of Directors, out of funds legally available for that purpose, 
dividends (if any) at such rates as shall be fixed for such scries herein or by the Board of 
Direclors as permitted hereby, as the case may be, payable al such time or times as shall be fixed 
for such series hereic or by the Board of Directors as permitted hereby to stockholders of record 
on the respective record dates, not more than sixty nor less than ten days preceding such time or 
times, fixed for that purpose by the Board of Direaort. Accumulations of dividends shall not 
bear interest. 

3. Redemption. 

(a) Right to Redeem and Price. The Corporation at the option ofthe Board of Directors 
may redeem the whole or any part of the shares of Preferred Stock of any series at such time or 
limes (if any) and al such price or prices (if any) as arc provided for herran or by the Board of 
Dirtctors as permitted hereby, as the case may be, for such series plus, in each case, an amouni 
equal to all dividends (if any) accrued and unpaid on the shares of such series so to be redeemed 
10 and including the date fixed for redemption (the total sum so payable per share on any such 
redemption being herein referred to as the "Redemption Price*" and the date fixed for redemp­
tion being herein referred to as the "Redcmpribn Date*'), provided, however, that the foregoing 
option to redeem a part of the shares of Preferred Stock of any series, otherwise than by a 
redemption pro rata among the holders of all shares of such scries, may be exercised only if 
dividends payable for all past quarterly dividend periods on all outstonding shares of such series 
have been paid, or declared and set apart for payment, ia full. If fewer than all outstanding 
^ares of any series of Preferred Stock are to be redeemed, the shares of such series to be 
redeemed shall be chosen by lot or pro rata in sudt manner as the Board of Directois may 
determine. 

(b) Notice and Effect of Deposit of Redemption Funds, Notice of every such redemption 
shall be mailed to the holders of record of the shares of Prefctrtd Stock so to be redeemed al 
their respective addresses as tht same shall appear on the books of Ihc Corporation. Such notice 
shall be mailed nol less than thirty nor more than sixty days in advance ofthe Redemption Date 
to the holders of record of shares so lo be redeemed. 

If. on the Redemption Dale, the funds necessary for such redemption shall have been set 
aside by the Corporation, separate and apart from its other funds, in trust for the pro rata bcnc&t 
of the holders of the shares so called for redemption, then, notwithstanding that any certificates 
for shares of Preferred Slock so called for redemption shall not have been surrendered for 
cancellation, after the Redemption Date the right to receive dividends-thereon shall cease to 
accrue and all rights of the holders of the shares of Preferred Stock so called for redcrnpiioti shall 
forthwith, after the Redemption Date, cease and terminate, excepting only the right of such 

'1 



holders to receive the Redemption Price for such shares but without interest, and such shares 
shall no longer be deemed outstanding. Any fund^ so set aside by the Corporation and 
unclaimed at the end of six years from the Redemption Date shall reven to the general funds of 
the Corporation, afier which reversion the holders of sudn shares so called for redemption shatt 
look only to Ihe Corporation for payment of the Redemption Price. 

If. on or after the giving of such notice but before the Redemptioji I>ate. the Cprporation 
shall deposit with any transfer agent for such shares of Preferred Stock:, in- trust to be applied to 
ihe redemption ofthe shares of Preferred Stock so called for redemption, the funds liecessary for 
such redemprion. then, after the date of such deposit, all rights ofthe holders ofthe shares of 
Preferred Stock so called for redemption shall forthwith, after the date of sudi deposit, cease and 
terminate (excepting only the right of such holders to receive the Redemption Price therefor but 
without interest and the right to exercise on or before the close of business on the third business 
day prior to the Redemption Date any conversion privilege not theretofore expired), and such 
shares will not. after the date of such deposit, be deemed outsuinding. Any funds so deposited 
which shall nol be required for such redemption because of the cxerdse of any such right of 
conversion subsequent to the making of such deposit shall be returned to the Corporation. In 
case the holders of shares of Preferred Stock so called for redemption shall not. at the end of six 
years from the Redemption Date, have claimed any funds so deposited, such transfer agem shall 
thereupon pay over to the Corporation such unclaimed funds, and such transfer agent shall 
thereafter be relieved of all responsibility in respect thereof to such holders and such holders 
shall look only to the Corporation for payment ofthe Redemption Price. 

(c) Status of Reacquired Shares, Shares of any scries of Preferred Stod: which have been 
redeemed (whether through the operation of a sinldug fund or otherwise) or purchased by tht 
Corporation, or which, if convertible, have been converted into shares of stock ofthe Corpora­
tion of any other class or classes, shall, upon appropriate filing and recording to the exteni 
required by law, have the status of authorized and unissued shares of Preferred Stock and may be 
reissued as a part of any scries of Preferred Stock provided for herein or by Uie Board of 
Directors as permitted hereby. 

B. PREFERRED STOCK, S3.50 CUMUUTTVE C^KVERTIBLE SERIES. 

There is hereby treated a scries of the Preferred Stock the designation, the number of shares 
and the terms and provisions of which (except as heretofore set forth herein) are as follows; 

1. Designation of Series and Numt>er of Shares, This series of the Preferred Stock shall be 
designated "Preferred Slock, S3.50 Cumulative Convertible Series" (the "S3.50 Cumulative Pre' 
ferred'\ to consist of 12,000,000 shares. The Board of Directors is hereby authorized by resolu­
tion, to increase or decrease"(but not below the number of shares thereof then outstanding) the 
number of shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred. 

2. Dividends. The holders of shares of the £3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be entitled to 
receive cumulaiive dividends at the rate of S3.50 per share per annum in cash, and no more, 
except to the extent otherwise permitted by Paragraph 7 of this Subsection B, payable quarteriy 
on the last days of January, April, July and October in each year. Such dividends shall accrue 
and become cumulative, whether or not earned ordedared, as to all shar^ ofthe S3.50 Cumula­
tive Preferred issued on the date of the filing under the laws of Delaware ofthe Agreement and 
Plan of Merger dated as of January 15, 1969 between the Corporation and HeK Oil & Chemical 
Corporation, from June 20,1969, and, as to each share ofthe S3.50 Cumulative Preferred issued 
thercafier. from such date as shall make the dividend rights of such share the same as the 
dividend rights per share ofthe then outstanding shares ofthe S3.50 Cumulative Preferred. 

Except as to dividends permitted by Paragraph 7 of this Subseaion B, in case divideads for 
any quarterly dividend period on all shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and all shares of 



all other scries of the Preferred Stock ranking on a parity with the S3v50 Cumulative Preferred as 
to dividends are nol paid in full all shares of the S3.5D Cumulative Preferred and of all such 
other scries shall participate raubly in the payment of dividends for such period in proportion ID 
the full amounts of dividends for such period to which they arc respenively entitled, provided, 
however, that no dividend shall be paid on any such other series for any dividend period until 
dividends payable on the S3.50 (lumulative Preferred for all dividend periods prior to the first 
dividend period of any such other series shall have been paid, or declared and set apart ior 
payment, in full. 

So long as any shares of the £3.50 Cumulative Preferred are outstanding,.the Corporation 
shall not declare and pay or set apart for payment any dividends or make any other distribution 
on junior stock (being Common Stock or other stock of the Corporation ranking junior to the 
Preferred Stock as to dividends) and shall not redeem (whe^er through the operation of a 
sinking fund or otherwise), purchase or otherwise acquire, or permit any subsidiary xo purchase 
or olherwise acquire, any shares of such junior stock, if at the time of making such declaration, 
payment, disiribuiion, redemption, purchase or acquisition the Corporation shall be in default 
with respect to any dividend payable on, or any obligation to retire, shares of the S3.50 Cumula-
live Preferred (provided, however, that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation may at 
any lime redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire shares of such junior stock in exchange for. or 
out of the net proceeds from the substantially concurrent sale or other issue of, other shares of 
such junior slock), and the Corporation shall not redeem (whether through the operation of a 
sinking fund or otherwise), purchase or otherwise acquire, or pcnml any subsidiary to purchase 
or olherwise acquire, any shares of any series of the Preferred Siock, or any other class of stock of 
the Corporation, ranking as to dividends on a parity with the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred, if at 
the lime of making such redemption, purchase or acquisition tbe Corporation shall be in default 
with respect lo any dividend payable on, or any obligation to retire, shares of the S3.50 CurnuU-
tive Preferred (provided,, however, that, notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation may at 
any time redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire shares of such series or class in exchange for, or 
out of the nei proceeds from the substantially concurrent sale or other issue of, other shares of 
such series or class). 

3, Redemption, The shares of the .S3.50 Cumulative Preferred may nol be redeemed 
before June 20. 1974. On and after that date, such shares may be redeemed at E150 per share 
plus an amount equal to all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to and including the Redemp­
tion Date. 

4. Liquidation, In the event of any voluntary or involuntary lUssolutiou, liquidation or 
winding up of the affairs of the Corporaiion. after paymenl or provision for payment of the debts 
and other liabilities ofthe Corporation and all amounts due in such event on any class or series 
of stock ofthe Corporation ranking prior to the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred upon liquidation, 
the holders of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be entitled lo receive, from the net assets of 
the Corporation (a) upon voluntary dissolution, liquidation or windrng up of the affairs of the 
Corporation, 1150 per share; or (b) upon involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of 
the affairs of the Corporation, SiOO per share, plus in either event an amount equal to all 
dividends accrued and unpaid on such share up to and induding the date fixed for distribution, 
and no more, before any distribution shall be made ID the holders ofthe Common Stock or other 
stock of Ihe Corporatioit ranking junior to the Preferred Stock upon Uquidaiion, provided thai 
the right ofthe holders ofthe S3.50 Cumulative Preferred so to receive such amounts in any such 
event shall not constitute any restriction on the right, power or authority of the Board of Direc­
tors of the Corporation to declare and pay dividends or make any other distribution on the 
shares of the capital stock of the Corporation. 

If upon any such dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs ofthe Corporation its 
net assets shall be insufficient to permit the payment in full ofthe respeaive amounts lo which 



the holders of all outstanding shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and all ouistandisg 
shares of stock of the Corporation ranking on a parity upon hquidation whh the S3.50 Cumuls-
live Preferred' upon such dissolution. liquidation or winding up are entitled in such eveni. iht 
entire remaining net assets of the Corporation shall be distributed among the holders of the 
S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and such other stock in amounts proportionate to the full amounts 
to which they are respectively so entitled. 

Neither the merger nor consolidation of the Corporation, nor the sale, lease or conveyance 
of all or a pari of its assets, shall be deemed to be a voluntary or involuntar>' liquidation, 
dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporatioti •vnMê  the meaning of this Pars' 
graph 4. 

5. Voiing Righii, 
(a) General. The holders of shares of the J3.50 Cumulative Prcfcired shall be entitled it> 

one vole for each share ofthe S3.S0 Curnulative Preferred standing in their names on the books 
of the Corporation in the election of directors and on any question arising at any meeting of 
stockholders of the Corporation at which the holders of shares of the Common Stock or other 
slock of the Corporation into which shares ofthe $3.50 Cumulative Prefierred Stock are at the 
time convertible have the right to vote; except that, whenever the convcraion ratio of the S3.50 
Cumulative Preferred is adjusted as hereinafter in Paragraph 6 provided, the number of votes 
per share of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be increased or decreased by the proportion 
that the total number of votes to which ̂ e aggregate ofthe riiares of Conunon Slock ouistandiag 
immediately prior to the event which caused such adjustment is entitled is increased or 
decreased by such event; provided that (i) the number of votes per share shall in no event be 
decreased to less than one, (ii) no fractional vote shall result from any such increase or decrease, 
(iii) if the number resulting from any such increase or decrease indudes a fraction which is ont-
half or more, the number of votes per share resulting from such increase or decrease shall indude 
one vote for such fraction, (iv) if the number resulting from any such increase or decrease 
includes a fraction which is less Uian one-half, no vote shall be induded for such fraction in the 
number of votes per share resulting from such mcrcase or decrease (unless the number of votes 
per share would be decreased xo less than one), and (v) at the lime of any adjustment in the 
conversion ratio; all previous increases and decreases in the number of votes pet share effecicd 
pursuant to the foregoing shall be disregarded, and the increase or decrease, if any, to be cffccicd 
as a result of such adjustment shall be calculated as if the events which caused all such previous 
increases and decreases occurred at the same time as the event which caused such adjustment. 
The holders of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and the Common Stock shall at all times vote, 
except as otherwise provided herein or required by law, together as one dass, together with the 
holders of any other series or dass of stock ofthe Corporation accorded the ri^t to vote with tht 
Common Stock together as one dass, 

(b) Special As Class, (i) So long as any shares ofthe S3.50 Cumulative Preferred arc out­
standing, the Corporaiion shall nol, without the affirmative vote at a duly authorized meeting or 
written consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the aggregate number of shares at the time 
outstanding of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred and any other series of Preferred Stock accorded 
such class voting right, voting or consenting, as the case may be, separately as a class wilhout 
regard to series, 

(A) create, or increase the authorized number of shares of, any dass of stock ranking, 
cither as to dividends or upon liquidation, prior lo the Preferred Slock; or 

(B) alter or change any of the provisions common to the S3.50 Cumulative Preferreil 
and to one or more other outstanding series of Preferred Stock accorded such class voting 
right so as advencly to affcci the preferences, special rights or powers given to the S3.50 



Cumuiaiive Preferred and such other series of Preferred Stock, but nothing in this subdivi­
sion (E) contained shall reqtiirc such a dass vote or consent in connection with any increase 
in the total number of authorized shares of Preferred Stodc or the authorization or increase 
of any dass of stock ranking, either as to dividends or upon liquidation, on a parity with the 
Preferred Stock; or 

(C) consolidate with or merge into, or sell or transfer all or substantially all its propcn;' 
and assets to, another corporation unless the corporation resulting from such consolidation 
or merger or to which such sale or transfer is made wU have no authorized or outstanding 
stock ranking, cither as to dividends or upon liquidation, prior to the stock v/hith the 
holders of the Preferred Stock receive in such event. 

(ii) So long as any shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred are outstanding, the Corpora­
tion shall nol, without the affirmative vote at a duly authorized meeting or wrinen consent of the 
holders of at least a majority of the shares at the time outstanding of the S3^0 Cumulative 
Preferred and any other series of Preferred Stock accorded such dass voting right, voling or 
consenting, as the case may be, separatdy as a class without regard lo scries, create, or increase 
the total number of authorized shares of, any dass of stock ranking, either as to dividends or 
upon liquidation, on a parity with the Preferred Stock. 

(c) Special as Series. So long as any shares of titt;S3.50 Cumulative Preferred are outstand­
ing, the Corporation shall not, without the affinnative vote at a duly authorized meeting or 
written consent of the holders of at least two-thirds of the aggregate number of shares of the 
$3.50 Cumulative Preferred at the time outstanding, voting or consenting, as the case may be, 
separately as a series, (i) create, or increase the authorized number of shares of, any scries of the 
Preferred Stock ranking, cither as to dividends or upon liquidation, prior to the S3.50Cumuia-
tive Preferred, (ii) alter or change any of the provisions of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred, or 
any of the provisions of any other scries, so as materially and adversely to affect the prricrences. 
special rights or powers given to the 53,50 Cumulative Preferred; provided, however, that where 
any such alteration or change affects one or more o^cr series of Preferred Stock then outstand­
ing in the same manner, the voting right shall be as set forth in subparagraph (b) of this Para­
graph 5 or (iii) consolidate with or merge into, or sell or transfer all or substantially all its 
property and assets ID, another corporation unless provision shall be niade, as a part ofthe terms 
of such consolidation, merger, sale or transfer, whereby the holders of shares of the S3.50 Cumu­
lative Preferred outstanding immediately prior to such event shall be cnuUcd to receive, on the 
happening of such event, in exchange for each such share so held by them, a security of ths 
corporation resulting from such consolidation or merger or to which such sale or transfer shall be 
made, having dividend, voting and conversion rights and righis upon liquidation and redemp­
tion substantially equivalent to such rights as provided herein for shares ofthe $3.50 Cumulaiive 
Preferred. 

(d) Right ID Elect Directors. If and whenever dividends payable on the Preferred Stock 
shall be in default in an aggregate amount equivalent to six full quarteriy dividends on all shares 
of the Praferred Slock at the lime outstanding, the number of direclors constituting the Board of 
Directors shall be increased by two and the holders ofthe Preferred Stock shall have, in addition 
10 any other voting rights, the exclusive and special right voting separately as a dass without 
regard to series, to elect two persons to &11 such directorships. Whenever such right shall have 
vested, it shall be exercised iniiiaily at the next following election of directors by the stockholders 
and shall continue until the dividends in dcfauh on the Preferred Stock shall have been paid in 
full or funds sufhcieni therefor set aside, and, when such dividends are paid or provided for, sud) 
right shall terminate, subject to revesting in the event of each and every subsequent default in an 
aggregate amouni equivalent to six full quarterlv dividends. 
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At any meeting held For the dection of .directors at which the holden of shares of Preferred 
Siock shall have the right, voting as a dass. to eien direaors as herein provided, the presence, in 
person or by proxy, ofthe holders of one-third ofthe number of shares of Preferred Stock at the 
time outstanding shall be required to consihme a quorum of such dass for the election of any 
director by the holders of such class, Al any such meeting or adjournment thereof, (i) the 
absence of a quorum of Preferred Stock shall nol prevent the election of directors other than 
those to be elected by the holders of shares of Preferred Stock voting as a dass and the absence of 
a quoruui for the eitctioi^ of such other directors shall not prevent the election of the directors to 
be elected by holders of shares of Preferred Stock voting as a dass, and (ii) in the absence of 
tivhtr or both such quorums, a majority of the holders present in person or by proxy of the stock 
or stocks which lack a quorum shall have power to adjourn the meeting for the election of 
directors which they are entitled to elect from time to time, wilhout notice other than announce' 
mcnt at Ihe meeting, until a quorum shall be present. The directors dected pursuant to this 
subparagraph (d) shall serve until the next annual meeting or until their respective successon 
shall be elected and shall qualify, provided, however, that when the right of the holders of the 
Preferred Stock to elect directors as herein provided shall terminate, the terms of office of all 
persons so ciccied by the holders of the Preferred Stock shall terminate, and the number of 
directors ofthe Corporarion shall thereupon be such number as may be provided for in the fay-
laws of the Corporation irrespective of any increase made pursuant to this subparagraph (d). 
During any period in which the holders of shares of Preferred Stock have the right to elect 
directors as provided for herein, any vacancy in the directors dected by the holders of the 
Preferred Stock shall be filled by the vote of the remaining duecior theretofore elected by the 
holders of the Preferred Stock. 

6, Conversion Righis. 
(a) Original Conversion Price. Subjea to the provisions for adjustments hereinafter set 

forth, shares ofthe £3.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be convertible at the option of the holder 
thereof, at any lime on or after June 20,1970 upon stinender to any transfer agent for the 53.50 
Cumulative Preferred of the cenihcaie or certificates evidendag the shares so to be converted, 
into fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock of the Corporaiion at the rate of 2.2 
shares of Common Stock for each share ofthe 53.50 Cumulative Prefcned so suTrendered for 
conversion. The right to convert shares of the S3.50 Cumulative Preferred called for redemption 
shall terminate at the close of business on the third business day prior to the Redemption Date. 
Upon conversion, no payment or adjustment shall be made for dividends on the shares of the 
S3.50 Cumulative Preferred so converted. 

(b) Adjustment of Conversion Ratio. The number of shares of Common Stock into which 
each share ofthe 53.50 Cumulative Preferred is convertible shall be subject to adjustment from 
lime lo lime only as follows: 

(i) In case the Corporation shall (A) take a record ofthe holders ofthe Common Stock for 
the purpose of entiiling them lo receive a dividend or other distribution payable in shares of 
Slock of Ihe Corporation of any dass or series, (B) subdivide its ouisianding shares of Common 
Stock. (Q combine its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares or 
(D) issue by reclassification of its Common Stock any shares ofthe Corporation of any class or 
series, Ihe holder of each share of the 53.50 Cumulative PrefcTTcd shall thereafter be entitled to 
receive, upon the conversion of such share, the number of shares of stock of the Corporation 
which he would have owned or have been entitled to receive after the happening of any ofthe 
events described above had such share of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred held by him been 
convened immediately prior to the happening of such event, such adjustment to become effec­
tive immediately after the opening of business on the day following such record daie or the day 
upon which such subdivision, combination or reclassification becomes effeaive, as the case may 
be, provided, however, that no such adjustment shall be made in case the Corporation shall (i) at 



any time during the period prior to the dale set fonh in subparagraph (a) of this Paragraph 6 (bui 
noi more than once in such period) or (ii) at any time in any calendar year (but not more than 
once in such calendar year) take a record of the holders of the Common Stock for the purpose of 
entitling them to receive a dividend payable in shares of Common Slock of the Corporaiion, 
unless such dividend exceeds 2!A% ofthe number ofshares of Common Stock outstanding on the 
date such record is taken, in which case such adjustment shall be made but only on the basis of 
the amount by which the dividend exceeds 2̂ /i% of such number of shares of Common Stock 
outstanding. 

When the Corporation takes a record of the holden of the Common Stock for the purpose of 
cniiiling them to receive a dividend or other distribution payable in shares of slock of the 
Corporation for which an adjustment is required pursuant to the preceding paragraph, tht Cor­
poration may in the discretion ofthe Board of DirecioB at the same time t ^ e a record ofthe 
holders ofthe 53.50 Cumulative Preferred for the purpose of entitling them to receive a dividend 
or other distribution payable in such shares of stock of the Corporation in an amount thereof per 
share equal to the amount thereof which the holder of a share ofthe 53.50 Cumulative Preferred 
would have been entitied to receive had the share held by him been convened immediately prior 
to such taking of a record ofthe holders ofthe Comtnon Stock, and, in such event, no adjustmenl 
shall be made in the conversion ratio of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred. 

For the purposes of this subparagraph (b), the term "Common Stock" means the Common 
Stock and any other stock of the Corporation resulting from a redassi&cation ofthe Common 
Stock or any such other stock. 

(ii) No fractional share of stock of the Corporation shall be issued upon any conversion but, 
in lieu of the issuance of the fraction of a share to which the holder would otherwise have been 
entitled, there shall be paid to the holder of the shares of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred sur­
rendered for conversion, as soon as practicable after the date such shares are surrendered for 
conversion, an amouni in cash equal to the same fraction of the market value of a full share of 
the stock to be received upon the conversion, unless the Board of Directors shall determine to 
adjust fraciional shares by the issue of fraaionai scrip certificates or in some other manner. For 
such purpose, the market value ofthe stock to be received upon the conversion shall be the last 
sales price thereof, regular way on the New York Stock Exchange, on the business day immedi­
ately preceding tbe date upon which the shares of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred are sur­
rendered for conversion, or, in case no such sale takes place on sudi day, the average of the 
closing bid and asked prices thereof, regular way on such Exchange on such day. If shares ofthe 
stock to be received upon conversion are not then listed on the New York Stock Exchange, such 
market value shall be determined in the manner fixed by the Board of Directors. 

(iii) No adjustmenl in the number of shares into which each share ofthe 53.50 Cumulative 
Preferred is convertible shall be required unless such adjustment would require an increase or 
decrease of al least 1/lOOih of a share in the number of shares into which such share is then 
convertible; provided, however, that any adjusimems which by reason of this subdivision are not 
required to be made shall be carried forward and taken into account in any subsequent 
adjustment. 

(iv) Whenever any adjustment is required in the shares into which each share ofthe S3.50 
Cumuiaiive Preferred is convcniblc. the Corporation shall forthwith (A) file with the transfer 
agent or transfer agents for the shares of Ihe 53.50 Cumulative Preferred a siaicmem describing 
in reasonable detail the adjustment and the method of calcuiatiDn Ui?ed and (B) cause a copy of 
such notice to be mailed to ihe holders of record ofthe shares ofthe $3.50 Cumulative Preferred. 

(c) Reservation of Slock for Conversions. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and 
keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares the full number ofshares into whid) all 
shares of the S3.5D Cumulative Preferred from lime to Lime outstanding are convertible, but 



shares held in the treasury ofthe Coiporation may be delivered, in the Corporation's discretion, 
upon any conversion of sharesof the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred. 

(d) Issue Taxes. The Corporation will pay any and all issue and other taxes that may be 
payable in respect of any issue of shares on conversion of shares of the 53.50 Cumulative Pre-
feired pursuant hereio. The Corporaiion shall not, however, be required to pay any tax which 
may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in such issue of shares in a name other than 
that in which the shares so convened were registered, and no such issue shall be made unless and 
until the person requesting such issue has paid to the Corporation the amouni of any such tax. or 
has established, to the satisfaction of the Corporation, thai such tax has been paid 

7. Dividends in Securities or Other Property. In the event the Corporation shall pay on any 
stock of the Corporation into which shares of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred are at the time 
convertible, any dividend or other distribution consisting of securirieE of any corporation other 
than Ihe Corporation, any evidences of indebtedness of the Corporation or any other asseu 
(other than dividends and distributions in cash or shares of stock of the Corporation), it shall on 
the same date.pay, on the shares of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred, a dividend or distribution 
consisting of such securities, evidences of indebtedness or other assets in an amount per share 
equal to the amount thereof which the holder of a share ofthe 53.50 Cumulative Preferred would 
have been entitled to receive had the share held by him been converted immediately prior to the 
taking of a record of the holders of such stock of the Corporation for the purpose of entitiing 
thero to receive such dividend or distribution, such dividend or distribution on the shares ofthe 
53.50 Cumulative Preferred to be payable to the holders of shares of the S3.S0 Cumulative 
Preferred who are holders of record on the books ofthe Corporation on the same dale as is used 
for the uking of a record of the holders, of such stock of the Corporation for such dividend or 
distribution. 

8. Offers of Securities. In the event the Corporation shall offer to sell (by issue of warrants, 
rights or options or otherwise) securities of ihe Corporation or of any other corporation to the 
holders of shares of any stock of the Corporation into which shares ofthe S3.50 Cumulative 
Preferred are at the lime convertible, the Corporation shall make the same offer to the holders of 
shares of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred, giving to each such holder of the 53.50 Cumulative 
Preferred the right to purchase at the offer price the amount of such securities which such holdey 
would have been emiiled to purchase had he converted each share of the 53.50 Cumulative 
Preferred held by him immediately prior to the taking of a record ofthe holders of such slock of 
the Corporation for the purpose of entitling them to receive such offer, such offer to the holders 
ofshares ofthe 53.50 Cumulative Preferred lo be made lo the holders ofshares ofthe 53.50 
Cumulative Preferred who are holders of record on the books ofthe Corporation on the same 
dale as is used for the taking of a record of the holders of such stock of the Coiporation for such 
off'cr. 

9. Restriction on and Notice qf Dividends. Until such time as shares ofthe $3.50 Cumula­
tive Preferred shall be convertible at the option ofthe holders thereof as herein provided, the 
Corporation shall pay no cash dividend nor make any other cash distribution.on the Common 
Stock in excess of quarterly dividends al ihe quarteriy rate of 7'A cents per share, with .Ihe first 
such dividend to be paid after the dale of the filing under the laws of Delaware of the Agreement 
and Plan of Merger dated as of January 15. 1969 between the Corporation and Hess Oil &. 
Chemical Corporation to be calculated as lo amouni and date of paymenl from the last.date 
prior to such dale of iiling on which a dividend was paid on the Common Stock of Hess Oil & 
Chemical Corporaiion. After such time as shares of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred shall be 
convenibleai the option ofthe holder thereof as herein provided, and so long as any such shares 
remain ouisunding. in the event the Corporation shall declare (i) any dividend or other distribu­
tion payable in shares of siock of the CorpDratioii or (ii) any cash dividend or other cash distri­
bution per share on the Common Stock in excess of 120% ofthe average ofthe cash dividends 



and other cash distributions per share oh the Common Stock for the four calendar quarters ncxi 
preceding the calendar quarter in which such dedaration occuTS,.then. and in any such cveivi, tht 
Corporation shall mail to each holder of the 53.50 Cumulative Preferred at the address of each 
such holder shown in the stodc records ofthe Corporation a notice stating the day on which the 
books of the Corporatiott shall close, or a record shall be taken, for such dividend or distribution 
and the amouni and charaacr of such dividend or distribution. Such notice shall be mailed at 
least 20 days in advance of such day therdn specified. 

in applying the provisions of this Paragraph 9 at any time afier̂ tiie Common Siock shall 
have been split-up or combined or after the Corporation shall have taken a record of the holders 
of the Common Stock for the purpose of entitiing them to receive a dividend or other distribu­
tion payable in shares of stock of tht Corporation of any dass or series (other than a dividend 
payable in shares of Common Slock for which no adjustment is required to be made pursuant to 
subparagraph (b) of Paragraph ,6 of this Subsection B), references to "7'A cents per share" and 
"cash dividends and distributions" shall be appropriately adjusted to reflect ariy such event, Md 
for purposes of this Paragraph 9, the term "Common Stock" means the Common Stock and any 
other Slock of the Corporation resulting from a reclassification ofthe Common Stock or any such 
other stock. 

C. ADDmoNAi. SER3ES OF PREFERRED STOCK. 

Authority is herdiy expressly granted to the Board of Directors to create and provide for the 
issue of additional scries of ihe Preferred Slock from ume to time by resolution or resolutions, 
and, in connection with the creation of each such series, to fix, by the resolution or resolutions 
providing for the creation and issue of shares of such series, the following provisions of the 
shares of such series, so far as not inconsistent with the provisions of this Article FOURTH 
applicable to all series of Preferred Siock: 

1. The designation of such series and the number of shares which shall constitute sudi 

2. The provisions, if any, for dividends on shares of such series, and, if provisions are 
made for dividends, the dividend rate and the times at which holders of shares of £uch series 
shall be entitled to receive the dividends, whether the dividends shall be cumulative, and, if 
so, from which date or dales, and the other conditions, if any, induding rights of priority, if 
any, on which the dividends shall be paid, provided, that the dividend payment dates for 
shares of any series ranking as to dividends on a parity with the shares of any other series 
shall be the same as the dividend paymenl dates for such other series; 

3. The provisions, if any, for the redemption or purchase of shares of sudt series, and, IT 
provisions are made for redemption, the time or times and the price or prices at which the 
shares of such series shall be subject lo redemption in whole or in part, and the o^er terms 
and conditions, if any, on which shares of such series may be redeemed or purchased; 

4. Tht rights, if any, to which holders of the shares of such series shall be entitled in tht 
event of any voluntary or involunury dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of 
the Corporation; 

5. The sinking fund or purchase fund provisions, if any, for the redemption or purchase 
of shares of such scries and, if any such fund is so provided for the benefit of such shares, the 
amount of such fund and tht manner of its application; 

6. The extent of the voting powers, if any, of the shares of such series; 
7. Whether or nol the shares of such series shall be convertii3le into, or exchangeable for, 

shares of any other dass or classes of stock, or of any series thereof, ofthe Corporation, and, 
if so convertible or exchangeable, the conversion or exchange price or prices or rates, the 
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adjustments thereof and the other terms and conduions, if any. on which such shares shall 
be so convenihle or exchangeable; and 

8. Any other preferences and relative, panicipating, optional or other spedal righis. and 
qualifications, limitations or resiriciions thereof, of shares of such series as are not fixed and 
determined hereby, 

SEcnoN II 

CoMMOK STOCK 

1. Voting Rights. Every holder of the Common Stock shall be entitied lo one vote for each 
share ofthe Common Stock standing in his name on the books ofthe Corporation. 

2, Dividends. Subject to the provisions of this Article FOUKTH and any fiirther provisions 
prescribed in accordance herewith, the holders of the Common Stock shall be entitled to receive, 
when and as dedared by tbe Board of Direaors, out of funds legally available for that purpose, 
dividends payable either in cash, stock or otherwise. 

SECTION Ul 

PREEMPTTVE RlGHTS 

Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 8 of Subsection B of Section I hereof, no holder 
of any of the shares of the Preferred Stock or ofthe Common Stock shall be entitled as of right as 
sudi holder to purchase or to subscribe for any shares of stock of the Corporation whether now 
or hereafter authoriied, or bonds, certificates of indebtethiess, debeatures, or other securities 
convertible into or carrying any right to purdiase stock of the Corporation of any class, and 
shares of any such stodi, or sudi other securities convertible into or carrying any right to pur­
chase stock, may be issued and disposed of lo such persons and upon sudi terms and for such 
lawful consideration as may be deemed advisable by the Board of Directors. 

FIFTH; 1. Elections of Directors. Elections of Directors need not be by written ballot 
unless the By-Laws ofthe Corporation shall so provide. 

2. Number, Eieciion and Terms of Directors. Except as otherwise fixed pursuant to the 
provisions of Article FOURTH hereof rdating to the rights of the holders of any dass or series of 
stock having a preference over the Common Stodc as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect 
additional directors under specified circumstances, the number of directors of the. Corporation 
shall be fixed from time to time by or purauant to the By-Laws. The directors, other than those 
who may be eleaed by ihe holders of any class or series of slock having a preference-over the 
Common Stock as to dividcrids or upon liquidation, sh^ be classified, with respect to the time 
for which they severally hold office, into three classes, as ncariy equal in number as possible, as 
determined in the manner specified in the By-Laws, one dass to hold oScc initially for a term 
expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 1986, another class to hold office 
initially fora term expiring at the annual meeting of siockhoiders to beheld in 1987, and another 
dass to hold office initially for a term expiring at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in 
J 988, with the members of each dass to hold office until their successors arc elected and quali­
fied. At each annua! meeting ofthe stockholders of the Corporation, the successors to the dass 
of directors whose term expires at that meeting shall be eiecied lo hold office for a term expiring 
at the annual meeting of stockholders held in the third year foliowing the year of ihsu- dection. 

3. Stockholder Nomination of Director Candidates, Advance notice of nominations forthe 
election of directors, other than by the Board of Directors or a Commiuee thereof, shall be given 
in the manner provided in the By-Laws. 
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4. Newly Created Directorships and'Vacancies. Except as otherwise fixed pursuant to the 
provisions of Aniclc Foi'RTH hereof relating to the rights ofthe holders of any class or series of 
stock having a preference over the Common Stock as lo dividends or upon Uquidaiion to elect 
directors under specified circumstances, newly created direnorships resulting from any increase 
in the number of directors and any vacandes on the Board of Diractors resulting from death. 
resignation, disqualification, removal or other cause shall be filled solely by the affirmative vote 
of a majority of the rcmabing direaors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the 
Board of Direaors. Any direaor elected in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold 
office for the remainder of the full term of the dass of direaors in which the new directorship 
was created or the vacancy occurred and until such direaor's successor shall have been elected 
and qualified. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Direaors shall 
shorten the term of any incumbent director. 

5. Removal of Directors. Subjea tc the rights ofthe holders of any dass or scries of stock 
having a preference over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon liquidation to elect direc­
tors under specified rircumstances, any direttor may be removed from office, with or without 
cause, but only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the combined voting 
power ofthe then outstanding shares of capital stock ofthe Corporation entitied to vote gener­
ally in tht eieciion of directors, voting together as a single date. 

6. Stockholder Action. Any aaion required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of 
the Corporation must be efFeaed at a duly called annual or special meeting of such holden and 
may not be effected by any consent in writing by sudi holders. Except as otherwise required by 
law and subject to the rights of the holders of any dass or series of stock having a preference over 
the Common Stock as lo dividends or upon liquidation, special meetings of stoddiolders ofthe 
Corporation may be called only by the Chakman of the Board or the President, and shall be 
called by the Secretary at tbe request of the Board of Direaors pursuant to a resolution approved 
by a majority of the entire Board of Direclors. For purposes of this Article FIFTH, the term 
"entire Board of Directors" means the total number of direaors which the Corporation would 
have if there were no vacancies. 

7, Bi'-Law Amendments. The Board of Directors shall have power to make, alter, amend 
and repeal the By-Laws (cxccpi so far as the By-Laws adopted by the Stockholders shall other­
wise provide). Any By-Laws made by the directors under the powers conferred hereby may be 
altered, amended or repealed by the direcion or by the stockholders. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing and anything contained in this Restated Certificate of Incorporation to the contraTy, 
Sections 7 and JO of Anide III, Seaions I, 6, 8.and 9 of Article IV and Artide XIV of the By-
Laws shall not be altered, amended or repealed and no provision inconsistent therewith shall be 
adopted without the affirmative vote of the holders of al least Z0% ofthe combined voting power 
of al! the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote generally in 
the election of directors, voting together as a single dass. 

8. Amendment, Repeal, ezc Notwithstanding anything contained in this Restated Certifi­
cate of Incorporation to the contrary, the affirmative vote of the holders of al least 80% of the 
combined voling power of all the then ouisiaiiding shares of capital slock of the Corporation 
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single dass, shall be 
required to alter, amend, adopt any provision mconsistent with, or repeal, this Artide FIFTH or 
any provision hereof 

SIXTH: In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, the Board 
of Direclors is expressly authorized: 

To make, alter or repeal the By-Laws. Any By-Laws made by the Board of Du-ectors under 
the power conferred hereby may be ahcred or repealed by the direaors or stockholders. 
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From time to time, witiiout the assent or vote of the stockholders, lo fix the times for the 
declaration and payment of dividends, and to fix the amount to be reserved as xvorking capital 
over and above its capita! stock paid in. and to authorize and cause lo be executed mongages 
and liens upon all the property ofthe Corporation or any part thereof 

From time to time to sell any or all ofthe then unissued capital stock of the Corporation. 
whether tht same be any of the original of its capital or of any increase thereof, without (subjea 
ID the terms hereof) first offering the same to the stockholders then existing, and a!! such sales 
may be made upon such terms and contKiions as the Board of Direaors may deem advisable. 

FrQm lime to time to determine whether and to what extent and at what times and places 
and under what conditions and regulations the accounts and books of the Corporation (other 
than the stock ledger), or any of them shall be open to the inspeaion ofthe stockholders; and no 
stockholder shall have any right of inspeaing any account, book or document ofthe Corpora­
tion, except as conferred by statute, unless authorized by resolution of the stoddiolders or 
directors. 

Ifthe By-Laws so provide, to designate two or more of its number to constitute an Executive 
Committee, which Commitlee shall for the time being, as provided by resolution of the Board of 
Directors or in the By-Laws of the Corporatioa, have and exercise any or all of the powers of the 
Board of Direcion in the management of the business and aiFairs of the Corporation, and have 
pô wcr to authorize the seal of the Corporation to he affixed to all papers which may require it 

The Corporation may in iis By-Laws confer powers upon iu direaon in addhion to the 
foregoing and in addition to the powers and authorities expressly conferred upon them by the 
statute. 

SEVENTH: A sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the property and assets of 
the Corporation shall require the authorization thereof by the affinnaxive vote of the holders of 
two-thirds of the slock issued and outstanding having voting power at a stockholders' meeting 
duly called upon at least 20 days notice containing notice ofthe proposed sale, lease or exchange. 

EIGHTH: The Corporation reserves the right to amend, aher, change or repeal any provi­
sion contained in this Restated Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter 
prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon stockholders herein are granted subject to 
this reservation. 

NINTH; The following provisions shall apply in addition to any other affinnative volt 
required by law or Ibis Restated Certificate of Incorporation: 

SECTION 1 

CERTAIN BUSINESS CQMBiM#,Tt0Ns 

The affirmative vole ofthe holders of not less than two-thirds ofthe outstanding shares of 
Voling Slock (as hereinafter defined) held by stockholders other than the Acquiring Person (as 
hereinafter defined) with which or by or on whose behalf, direaly or indirectly, a Business 
Combination (as hereinafter defined) is proposed, voling as a single class, shall be required for 
the approval or authorization of such Business Combination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the iwD-thirds voting requirement shall not be applicable if such Business Combination is 
approved by the Corporation's Board of Directors prior to the Acquiring Person becoming such 
or if the cash or fair market value ofthe propeny. securities or other consideration to be received 
per share by holders of shares of each dass of Voting Stock in such Business Combination as of 
the date of consummation thereof is, an amount not less than the higher of (a) the Highest Per 
Share Price or the Highest Equivalent Price (as these terms are hereinafter defined) paid by such 
Acquiring Person in acquiring any of ils holdings of Voting Stock, and (b) the Fair Market Price 
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(as hereinafter defined) of such dass of Voting Stock determined on the date the proposal for 
such Business Combination was first publicly announced, and such consideration shall be in the 
same form and of the same kind as the consideration paid by such Acquiring Person in acquiring 
the shares of Voting Stock already acquired by it. If the Acquiring Person ha^ paid for shares of 
Voting Stock with varying forms of consideration, the form of consideration to be received by 
the holders of Voting Stock shall be the form used to acquire the largest number of shares of 
Voting Stock acquired by such Acquiring Person. 

SEcnoN n 

DEFINITIONS, ETC. 
For purposes of Ihis Article NINTH: 

i. Business Combination.. Tht term "̂Business Combinaiion" shall mean (a) any merger or 
consolidation ofthe Corporation or a subsidiary ofthe Corporation with or into an; Acquiring 
Person, (b) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition, including, without limitation, 
a mortgage or any other securily device, in a single transaction or related scries of transactions, 
of all or any Substantial Part (as hercinaftet defined) of the assets either of the Coiporation 
(including without limiuiion any voting securities of a subsidiary) or of a subsidiary of the 
Corporation to an Acquiring Person^ (c) any merger or consolidation of an Acquiring Person 
with or into Ihe Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation, (d) any sale, lease, exchange, 
transfer or other disposition, induding without limitation a mortgage or other security device, in 
a single transaction or related series of iransactions, of all or any Substantial Pan ofthe assets of 
an Acquiring Person to the CorporatiQU or a subddiary of the Corporation, (e) tht issuance oC 
any securities of the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation to an Acquiring Person, 
(f) any recapitalization, mergcy or consolidation that wotUd have the efiea of increasing the 
voting power of an Acquiring Person, (g) the adoption of any plan or proposal for the liquidation 
or dissolution of the Corporation proposed, direaly or indirectiy, by or on behalf of an Acquir­
ing Person, (h) any merger or consolidation ofthe Corporation with a subsidiary ofthe Corpora­
tion proposed by or on behalf of an Acquiring Person, unless the surviving or consolidated 
corporation, as the case may be, has a provision in its certificate of incorporation substantially 
identical to this Article NINTH, and (j) any agreement, contraa or other arrangement providing 
for any of the iransaaions described in this definition of Business Combinaiion. A person who 
is an Acquiring Person as of (x) the time any definitive agreement relating to a Business Combi­
nation is entered inio, [y) the record daie.for the determination of stockholders entitied to notice 
of and 10 vote on a Business Combination, or (z) irrimediately prior to the consummation of a 
Business Combination shall be deemed an Acquiring Person for purposes of this defirution. 

2. Acquiring Person. The term "Acquiring Person " shall mean and iudude any individual, 
corporation (other than the Corporation), partnership or other person or entity which, together 
with its Affiliates and Associates (as defined in Rule l2b-2 ofthe General Rules and Regulations 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as in effect at March 2, 1983 (collectivdy, and as so iri 
effect, the ''Exchange Act")), and with any other individual, corporation (other than the Corpo­
ration), partnership or other person or entity with which il or they have any agreement, arrange-
ment or understanding with respect to acquiring, holding, voting or disposing of Voling Stock, 
Bcneficialiy Owns {as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Aa) in the aggregate 20% or more of 
the outstanding Voting Stock ofthe Corporation. A person or entity, its Affiliates and Associates 
and all such other persons or entities with whom they have any such agreement, arrangemcni or 
understanding shall be deemed a single Acquiring Person for purposes of this Artide Nitnti. 

3, Substaniial Pan. The term "Suif^amw/Par/" shall mean an amount equallo more than 
20% of the fair market value of the total consolidated assets of the Corporation and ils sub­
sidiaries taken as a whole as of the end of its most recent fiscal year ended prior to the time the 
determination is being made. 
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A. Rights 10 Acquire. Without limitation, any share of VotingStockofiheCorporation thai 
any Acquiring Person has the right to acquire at any time (notwithstanding that Rule 13d-3 of 
the Exchange Act deemssuch shares to be beneficially owned only if such right may be exercised 
within 60 days) pursuant to any agreement, or upon exercise of convenion rights, warrants or 
options, or otherwise, shall be deemed to be Beneficially Owned by the Acquiring Person and to 
be outstanding for purposes of Paragraph 2 of this Section II. 

5. Other Consideration to Be Received. For the purposes of Seaion 1 of this Article NthrrH. 
the terra "other consideration to be received" shaH include, without limitation. Common Stock. 
Preferred Slock or other capital stock of the Corporation retained by its existing stockholders 
other than the Acquiring Person with which or by or on whose behalf, direaly or indirectly, a 
Business Combination has been proposed or other parties to such Business Combination in the 
event of a Business Combination in which tht Corporation is the surviving corporatioii. 

6. Voling Stock. The term "Voting Stock" shall mean all of the outstanding shares of 
capital stock ofthe Corporation entitied to vote on each matter on which the holders of record of 
Common Slock of the Corporation shall be entitled to vote, and eadi reference to a percentage of 
shares of Voting Stock shall refer to such percentage of the votes entitled to be cast by sudi 
shares. 

7. Time of Acquisition. An Acquiring Person shall be deemed to have acquired a share of 
the Voting Stock ofthe Corporation at the time when such Acquiring Person became the Benefi­
cial Owner thereof. The price p^d by an Acqiiiring Peraon for such shares heW by a person or 
entity at the time h became part of such Acquiring Person shall be deemed to be the higher of (a) 
Ihe price paid upon the acquisition thereof by such person or entity s6id Qo) the market price of 
the shares in question at the time when such person or entity became pan of snch Acquiring 
Person. 

8. Highest Per Share Price: Hi^iest Eguivaient Price. The terms "Highest Per Share Price" 
and "Highest Equivalent Price" as used in this Article NINTH shall mean the following: If there is 
only one dass of capital slock of the Corporation issued and outstanding, the Highest Per Share 
Price shall mean the highest per share price that can be determined to have been paid at any time 
by the Acquiring Person by or on whose behalf, directly or indirealy, the Business Combiuatian 
has been proposed for any share or shares of that dass of capital stock. If there is more than one 
class of capital stock of the Corporation issued and outstanding, the Highest Equivalent Price 
shall mean, with respect to each dass and scries of capital stock ofthe Corporation, the highest 
per share price equivalent of the highest price thai can be determined to have been paid at any 
lime by such Acquiring Person for any share or shares of any dass or scries of capital stock ofthe 
Corporation. In determining the Highest Per Share Price and Highest Equivalent Price, all 
purchases b>' an Acquiring Penon shall be taken into account regardless of whether the shares 
were purchased before or after the Acquiring Person became an Acquiring Person. Also, the 
Highest Per Share Price and the Hi^cst Equivalent Price shall include any brokerage commis­
sions, transfer taxes and soliciting dealers' fees paid by the Acquiring Person with respea to the 
shares of capital stock ofthe Corporation acquired by the Acquiring Person. The Highest Per 
Share Price and the Highest Equivalent Price shall be appropriately adjusted to lake into account 
stock dividends, subdivisions, combinations and redassifications, 

9. Fair Market Price. The term "Fair Market Price" shall mean for any dass of Voting 
Stock the highest closing sale price during the 30-da-y period immediately preceding the date in 
question of a share of such dass of Voting Stock on the Composite Tape for New York Stock 
ExchangC'listed slocks, or, if such dass of Voling Stock is hot quoted on the Composite Tape, on 
the New York Stock Exchange, or, if such dass of Voting Stock is nol listed on such Exchange, 
on the principal United Slates securities exchange registered under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934 on which such dass of Voting Stock is listed, or, if such class of Voting Slock is nol listed 
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on any such exchange, the highest dosing bid quotation with respea to a share of such dass of 
Voting Stock during the 30*day period preceding the date in question on the National Associa­
tion of Sccuriiies Dealers. Inc. Automated Quotations System or any system then in use. or if no 
such quotations are available, the fair market value on the date in question of a share of such 
stock. 

SECTION HI 

AMENDMENT 

Thc provisions set forth in this Artide NINTH may not be amended, altered, changed or 
repealed in any respea unless such action is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of 
not less than two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Voting Stock of the Corporation at a 
meeting ofthe stockholders duly called for the consideration of such amendment, alteration, 
change or repeal; provided, however, that if such acrionhas been propo^d, direaly or indirectly, 
on behalf of an Acquiring Person, it musrt also be approved by the affirmative vote ofthe holders 
of nol less than iwo-thdrds of the outstanding shares of Voting Stock held by the stockholdei? 
other than such Acquiring Person. 

TENTH: A director of the Corporation shall not be personally liable to the Corporation or 
ils stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a dhxaor, except for 
liability which would otherwise exist under applicable law (i) for any breadi of the director's 
duty of loyahy lo the CoTporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions nol in good faith 
or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) under Seaion 174 of 
Ihe General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware or (iv) for any transaction from which tht 
direaor derived an improper peraonal benefit. Any repeal or modification of, or adoption of any 
provision of this Restated Certificate of Incorporation inconsistent with, this Aniclc TENTH by 
the stockholders of the Corporation or in any other manner as may be permitted by law shall be 
prospective only and shall not adveraely afea any Umitation on the personal liability of a 
direaor of the Corporation existing al the time of such repeal, modification or adoption. 

IN WrTNESS WHEREOF, this Resraied Certificate of Incorporation-has been executed on behalf 
of Amerada Hess Corporation by its Chairman ofthe Board, under its corporate seal, and 
attested by its Secretary this August 15, 1988, 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 
lCOR.TK)R*.TE ffiALl 

By: LEON HESS 

Chairman of ihe Board 
Attest: CARL T. TURSI 

Secretan> 
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CERTIHCATE OF AMENDMENT OF s i ^ ^ S f l l ? ? 'o? |^f<"^^ 
RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

Amcmda Hess Coiporation (the "Corporation"), a corporation orgaaizBd and 
existmg under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "DGCL"), docs hereby 
certify that; 

Ihe amendments to the Restated Certified of hiccH:poration of tiie COpoiation 
set fortii bdow have been duly adopted in accordance mtb the provisions of Section 242 of the 
DGCL: 

Article FIRST of &c Restated Catificalc of IncorpMation of the Corporation ia hereby 
ddeted in its entirety and HA following mserted in lieu thereof: 

FIRST; The name of tiie Corporation is 

Hess Corporation. 

The Brst paragraph of Artiole FOURTH of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation ot 
the Coiporation is hereby deleted in its entiiet)' and the following iuseited in Seu thereof: 

"FOURTH: The total number of shaiiss of all dasses of slock which the 
Corporation shall have authority to issue is 620,000,000 shaxes of which 
20,000,000 shares shall be shares of Preferred Slock, of the par value of $1 per 
share C'PreferrtdStoc^, and 600,000,000 shares shall be shares of Common 
Stock, ofthe par value of SI per SIMTC ^Common SiociT)" 

IN WTTNESS WHEIIEOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of 
Am^dmenl to be duly executed and acknowledged by J. Barclay Colims, its authorized of&cer, 
in accoriiflnce wifli Section 103 of thcDOCL. 

AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

Dated: May 3,2006 By: 
fame: J, BarcJ^f^Ilins D 

Tttlc: Ejcecutive Vice Prestdeau 

s^MsamcBiA\Aiic v^J^aaiAFaSlCairMU^^B^aOMltnaCll.^t^1mp.^D0l: 
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AMERADA HESS CORPORATION 

By-Laws 

ARTICLBL 
OmCES 

SECTI0>1 1. iiegisiered Q^ce. The r e a r e d office shall be m tht CHy of 
•Wilmington, County of Hew Castle, State of Delaware. 

, SECTION 2, Other Officss. The Corporation.may also have an office in New 
Yort:, New Yoik, and offices al sudi other places witiain or wittiQut the State of 
Delaware as the Board of Directors may ftom time to time designate or the business 
of the CorpDiation may TOjuire. 

ARTICLE n. 
SEAL 

The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereon the name of fiie Corporation, the 
year of its organiTation and the wonJs "Corporate Seal, Delaware", The seal may be 
used by causing it or a facsimile tiiereof to be impressed, aifixed, reproduced or 
otherwise used. 

' ARTICLEIB. 
ST0CKH0U3ERS'MEcnNQS 

SECTION 1. Place. All meetings of the stocteholdcis shall be hdd ai sudi place 
either within or wilhout the State of Delaware as may be fixed by the Board of 
Directors. 

SECnow 2. Dare and Time of Annm} Mteting. An annual meeting of 
stockholders shall bt held on tiie date and at ths time fijad by the Board of Directors, 
when the stockholders shall elect a Board of Dtcectors and transact such other 
business as may properly be brought before tbe meeting. 

SECTIONS. Quorum and Adjournment The holders of a m^ortty of tiie stod: 
issued and outstanding and entitied to vote thereat, present in person or represented by 
proxy, shall be requisite and shall constitute a quorum al all meetings of the 
stockholders for the transaction of business except as otherwise provided by the 
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, by the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation, or bytiiese By-Laws. If, however, stah majority shall not be present 
or repTtserrted at any meeting of the stockholders, the stockholders entitiad to vote 
thereat, present in person or by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the meeting &x>ni 
time 10 time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until the 
requisite amount of voting stock shall be present At such adjourned meeting al which 
the requisite amount of voting stock shall be refsresented, any business may be 
trans^:ted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally notified. 



SECTION 4, Voting, At efld\ meetit^ of the stoddiolders, eveiy stoddiolder 
having tht right to vote shall be entitled to vote in person, or by proxy appointed by 
an instnunerrt m writing subscribed by such Biookholder or by his duly authorized 
attomey and bearing a date not moit than three yssrs prior to said meetitig, unless 
said instrument provides for a longer period, the vote for directors shall be i^ balloL 
All elections shall be had and all questions decided by a plurali^ ofthe votes cast 

SECTION'S. Notice of Annud hketin^. Wrrttsn notice of the annual meeting, 
stating the place, date and hour of the meeting, shall be delivered in person, or mailed 
postage, prepaid, to each stockholder entailed to vote thereat at such address ^ appears 
on the records of tht Corpora^on, not less tian tm nor more Than fifty days befcre the 
dale ofthe meeting, 

SECTION 6. Ust ofStocldiolders. The SectetHry shall pn^Mre and make, at least 
ten days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of stockholders entitled 
to vote at said mectmg, arranged' in alphabetical order, and showii^ the address of 
eadi stockholder and ^ t number of siiaies registemi m the namfc of each stoddi\oider. 
Such list shall be open to the exammaiion of any stockholder for any purpose 
germane to the meetmg, during ordinary business hours, for a period of al least ten 
days prior to the meeting either at the place where tiie meeting is to be held or at a 
place specified in the notice of meerting witiiin the city where the meeting is to be 
held. Such list shall be produced and kept at ti:ie timeaud place of the meeting during 
the whole time thereof, and may be inspected by any stoddiDlder Wtio is piessnt 

SKrnON 7. Call of Special Meetings. Except as otherwise required by law and 
subject to the rights ofthe holders of any class or series of stock having a preference 
over the Common Stock as to dh/idends or upon Ikjuidatlon, special meetirgs ofthe 
stockholders for any purpose or purposes may be called only by tiw Chairman ofthe 
Board or tiie President, aid shall be called by th* Secrttary al the request of Ihe Board 
of Directors pursuant to a resolution approved by a majority ofthe entire Board of 
Directors. 

SECTION t Business at Special Meeting!. Business transacad at all special 
meetings shall be confined to ^ e puiptise or purposes stated in the notice. 

SECTION 9. Notice of Special Meetings. Written notice of a special meeting of 
stockholders, staling tiie place, dale and hour of the mfiBtmg and the purpose or 
purposes for which it is called, shall be delivered m person, or mailed poSage 
prepaid, al least ten days before such meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vols 
thertal at such addres as appears on the TtcDrds Off the Corporation. 

• SECTION 10. SioclchDlder Action: How Taken. Any action required or permitted Amendment 
to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be e^clsd at a duly called authorized March 6, 
annual or spedal meetmg of such holders and may not be effected by any consent in 19E5, effective May 
writing by such holdKS. 13, 59S5, 

Ametidment 
auttwrized March 6, 
19E5. effective May 
n , I9£5. 



ARTICLE IV. 
DIRECTORS 

SECTlOVt I. (a) Nvmber. Election and Terms. Except as otherwise fixed 
pursuant to the provisions of Article POUHIH of the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation relating to tiie rights of tiie holders of any class or series of stock, having 
a preference over tiie Common Stock as to dividends or i^on liquidation to elect 
additional directors under specified circumstances, the number of directors shall be 
foied from time to tune by the Board Of Directors but shall not be less thanthret. The 
directors, other than those who my be elected by ti^ holders of any class or series of 
stock having a pteferenoe over the Common Stock as to dividends or upon 
liquidarion, shall be classified, with respect to the time for whirii they severally hold 
office, into three classes, ss nearly equal in number as possible, as dctermuied by the 
Board of Directors, one class to hold office initially for a temi ejqjiring at the annual 
meeting of stockholders to be held in 19B6, anotiier class to hold office initially for a 
term expiring at the annual meetmg of stoddiolders to be held in 19E7, and another 
class to hold office initially for s lam ejqsiring at tiie annual meeting of stockholders 
to be held in 1988, witii the membeis of each class to hold office until their 
succssKirs are elected and qualified. At each siuiual meeting of stockhc^ders, tiie 
successors of tine class of directors whose tesm acpires at that meeting shall be eiected 
to hold office for a teim expiring at the armual meeting of stoekholders held in tiie 
third year followng the year of iheh- election. 

The term "entire Board" as used in these By-Laws means the total number of 
directors which the Corporation would have if there were no vacancies. 

(b) Stocidiolder Ncmina^tm ofDireeUar Candidases. Subject to Ihe rights of 
holders of any class or series of s to^ having a preference over Ihe Common Stock as 
to dividends or upon liquidation, nominations for the election of directors m ^ be 
made by the Board of Directors or a committfie appointed by the Board of Directors 

. or by any stockholder entitled to vote in tiie election of dii«aors generally. However, 
any stockholder entitied to vote m the eieotior of directors generally may nominate 
one or more persons for election as directors at a meeting only if written notice of 
such stockholder's intent to make such nomination or nnminationE has been-gh/etv, 
e'rther by personal delivery or by United States mail, postage p r ^ d . to the Secremry 
ofthe Corporation not later tiian (1) with respect to an election to be held at an annual 
meeting of stockholders, ninety tiays prior to Ihe anuiversary dale of the immediaiely 
preceding annual meeting, and (il) witii respect to an elcxtion to be held al a special 
meeting of stockholders for the election of directors, the close of business on tiie 
tenth day following tiie date on which notice of such meeting is fust ^ven to 
stockhoiders. Each such notice shall set fortii: (a) tiie name and address of the 
stockholder who intends to make the nomination and of the persorv or persons to be 
nominated; (b) a repreaentstion ttiat 4it stockholder is a holder of rtconi of stock of 
the Corporaiion entitied ID vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by 
proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or persons specified in tiie notice; (c) a 
description of all arrangements or understandings between tiie stockholder and each 
nominee and any other person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to 
which tiie nomination or nominations art to be made by the stockholder, (d) such 
btiier information regarding each nominee proposed by such stockholder as would be 
required to he included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to tiie proxy n^es of ti:ic 
Se^rities and Exchange Commission, had tiic nominee been nominated, or intended 

Amendment 
authorized March 6, 
1985, effective 
May 13,19S5. 
(supersedes 
amendment of 
October 5.19E3) 

Amendmem 
authorized Miarch 5, 
1985. effective 
May 13,1985. 
(supersedes 
amendment of 
October 5,1983) 



to be nominated, by the Board of Directors; and (e)tiic consent of each nominee to 
serve as a director of tiie Corporation if so electel The presiding officer of the 
meeting may refuse to acknowledge tiie nomination of any person not made in 
compliance witii the foregoing procedure. 

SECTION 2. PoMfgrs. In addition to the powers and aufiiorities by these By-Laws 
expressly cnnfen^ upon it, tht Board of Directors may exenast all such powers of 
ti^e Corporation and do all such lawful acts and tiungs as are not by tiie General 
Corpomtiori Law of tiie State of Delavrare, by tiie Restated Certificate of 
Incorporation or by these By-Laws cHrected or required to be exercised or done 
exclusively by the sioi^olEtera. 

SECTION 3. Expenses and Fees. Each director my be allowed expenses, if any, 
for atterniance attach regular or special meeting of ti^ Board of Directors and of any 
committee ihensof, and each director who is not an employee ofthe CorfKiTatton or 
any of it's subsidiaries shall receiw for services rendered as a director or as a memhw 
of any committee of tiie Board of Directors such compensaiion as may be fixed by tiie 
Board of Directors, Motiilng herein contrnned shall be construed to preclude any 
director from serving the Corporation in any other cspachy and receiving 
compcnsaiioti tiierefor. 

SECnON 4. Organization Meeting As soon as practicable after the annual 
meeting of tiis stockholderE. a meeting of the newly elected Board of Directors for the 
purpose of organization and Hat election of officers and otherwise shall be held upon 
tiie call and notice specified in Section 6 of this Article. 

SECTION 5. Regular Meetings. Regular, meetings of tiK Board of Directors shall 
be heid without notice at the principal office of the Corporation in New York, New 
York, or at such otiier place witiiin or without tiie State of Delaware as shall be fixed 
by the Board of Directors, at such times as shall be delamuned by the Board of 
Directors. 

SECTION 6, Special Meetings. SpscJalmeetrngs of tiie Board, of DiTectoi? may 
be called by the Chairman of the Board or the President, on two days' notice to each 
director, personally, by mail or by telegram, and shall be called by tiie Secretary h 
like manner and on like notice on the written request of a majority of the entire Board 
of Directors. Special meetings of tire Board of Directors shall be heid at the place and 
time designated in tiie notice of meeting. 

SECnoM7. Quorum. At all mce;ting5 of tilt Board of Directois at least fifty per 
cent of die directors then in office shall he necessary and sufficient to constrmte a 
quorum for tiie transaction of business, and the vote of a majority of tiie directors 
present al any roest'mg at which a quorum is piesem shall be the act of the Board of 
Directors, except as may be otiicrwise specifically provided by the General 
Corporation Law of tiie State of Delaware, by the Restated Certificalfi of 
Incorporaiiou or by these By-Laws. 

SECTION 8. Newly Created Directorships and Vacancies. Except as otherwise Amendment 
fixed pursuant to the provisions of Article FOURTH ofthe Restated Certificate of authorized March 6, 
Incorporation relating to the rights of the holders of any class or aries of stock having 19B5, effective May 
a prefisrence over the Common Stock as to dividends-or upon liquidation to elect 13,1985. 

Amendment 
amhorized March 6. 
1985. effective May 
13,1985. 
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directors under specified circumstances, newly created directorships rcsuhing fiism 
any increase in tiie number of directors and any vatancics on tiie Board of Directors, 
resuititig from dfvrtfa, reagnation, disqualification, removal or other cause shall be 
filled solely by tiie affirmative vote of a majority of the rcmainii^ directors then in 
office, even tiiough less tiian a quorum ofthe Board of Directors. Any director elected 
ill accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold oSice for the remainder of tise 
full term cf tiie class of directors in which the new directorship was created or the 
vacancy occurred and until such director's successor shall have been eleciad and 
qualified. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors 
shall shorten, the term of any irvcumbenl director. 

SECTION?. Removal. Subject to flie rights of any class or series of stock having 
a preference over th t Common Stock as to divaisnds or i ^ n liquidation to elect 
directors under specified circumstances, any ttirector may be removed fiom office, 
with or without cause, but only by the affirmative vote of tiie holderE of least 80^0 of 
the combined voting power of tiie then outstanding slmres of capital stodt of the 
Corporation entitied to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a 
single class. 

SECnoN 10. Action Without Meeting. The provisions of these By-Laws covering 
notices-and meetings to the contrary notwhhsianding, any action requffcd or permitted 
to be taken ai any meeting of tite Boaiti of Directors or of any cornmitjet thereof may 
be taken without a meeting if all members of the .Board of Directors or of such 
committee, as the case may be, conssnt thereto in wrhmg, and tbe writing or writings 
are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board of Diractors or committee. 

ARTICLE V. 
COMMTTTEES 

Amendment 
BUthorized March 6. 
1985, effective May 
13,19B5. 

Redesign^onas 
Section 10 
auti^oriasd K/iarch 6. 
1985, effectrve May 
13,19S5. (previously 
Section 9) 

The Board of Directors, by resolution passed by a majority of tiie whole 
Board of Directors, may d^ai^iatc one or more committees, each committee to consist 
of two or more of tiie dirtctors of the Corporation. Each sudi committee, to the 
extent provided in these By-Laws or as autiiorized by tiie Board of Directors, shall 
have and may exercise the powers ofthe Board of Directors in the management of tiie 
business and affairs of tiie Corporation, and may authorize the seal of tiie Corporation 
to be affixed to all papers Which may require it 

Each such committee shall keep a record of hs proceedings and all actions of 
each such committee shall be reported to Ihc Boanl of Directors at tiie meeting thereof 
next succcedir^ the taking of such action. 

Each such commhtee shall fix its own rules of procedure, but tiie presence of at 
teaST fiftj' per cent of the members of the whole committee shall in each case be 
necessaiy lo constitute a quorum of the committee -and tiie affirmatwe vote of a 
majority of tiie members of the committee present at tiie meeting shall be necessaiy to 
take any action. In die absence of a member of any such commit^ tiie member or 
members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whetiisr or 
not he or they constitute, a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the 
Board of Directors to act al the meeting b tiie place of any such absent or disqualified 
person. 
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.ARTiaEVI. 
OFFICERS 

SECno>̂  1. Tales. The officers ofthe Corporation shall be a Chairman of tiifi Amendment 
Board, a Chairman of the Executive Committee, a President, one or more Vice 
Presidents (one or more of whom maybe designated Seruor Execaith'e Vice President, 
Executive Vice President, Group Vice Preadent or Senior Vice President^ a 
Secretary, a ControUec, an Auditor and a Treasurer. 

autiiorized and 
effective Januarys, 
1986, (supercede 
amenclnBnts of 
January 9,1980) 

SECnoM 2. Election. The Board of Directors at its fust meeting after -each 
annua] meeting of stockholders shall elect the Chairman ofthe Board, tiie Chairman 
of the Exccutive.CommitlBe and the President fiom their own number, and in addition 
shall elect one or more Vice Presidents (ont or mort of whom roi^ be designated as 
Senior Executive Vice President, Executive Vice President, Group Vice President or 
Senior Vice President), the Secretary, file Contreller, the Auditor and ths Treasurer, 
who need not be members ofthe Board of Directors. 

SECTION 3. Other Officers. The Board of Director? may ^jpcant one or more 
Assistant Secretariss, one or more Assistaut Controllers, one of more AEsislant 
Auditors and one or more Assistant Treasurers, and such other officers and agems as 
it shall deem necessary, who shall- hold Ihclr offices for such terras and shall exercise 
such powers and' perform such duties as ^udl b t determined &om tims to time by the 
Board of Directors. 

SECTION 4. Salaries. The salaries of tiie elected officers ofthe Corporation ̂ hall 
be' fixed by the Board of Directors. The salaries, wages of compensation of all other 
employees, rtpresenffliives and agents ofthe Corporation shall be fixed by the Board 
of Directory to the tjtent determined Sum time to time by the Board of E^rectors and 
olherwise in tiie manner determined by tiie Cbaiitnan of Ihc Board. 

SECnoN 5, Terms of Office. The officers of tiie Corporution shall hold office 
until their successors are chosen and qualified. Any officer elected or appointed by 
tilt Board of Directors my be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a 
majority of the whole Board of Directors, If the office of any officer shall become • 
vacant for any reason, the vacancy shall be filled by tiie Board of Directors. 

SECnON 6. Other Powers. Id addition to th« powers and duties hertinafar 
specificaSiy prescribed for the respective officers, iht Board of Dhectors may ftum 
time to time impose or confer upon any of the officers such additional duties and 
powers as tiie Board of Directors may see fit, and tiie Board of Directors may fiom 
time ro time impose or confer any or all of tiie duties and powers hereinafter 
specifically prescribed for any officer upon any otiicr officer or officeis. 

SECTION 7. Divisions and Division Officers. The Board of Dhcctors may fium 
time to time establish one or more operating or administrative divisions of the 
Corporation and assign to such divisions responsibiiities forsitoh of tiie Corporatian's 
business, operatiot^ ar«l affeirs as tilt Board m ^ determine. The Board of Direclors, 
or the Chatmian of tht Boaiti, tiie President, or any other ofEiccr of tiie Corpor^on so 
authorized by the Board, may appoint officers of a division for sudi terms and having 
such tities. exercising such powers and per&rmhsg such duties as the Board or such 

Amendment 
autiiorizBdand 
e^ctiVE Januarys, 
1986, (supercedes 
amendments of. 
January 9,1980) 

Amendmenf 
authorized and 
effective May 1, 
2002 
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appointing officer of tiis Corporation inay detfinnint. An officer of a divisioin shall 
nm as such be an officer of tiit Corporation. An officer of a division ^lall have tiie 
power to execute and deliver contracts and otiier documents relating to tht business, 
operations and a&ics of such offioefs division on behalf of tilt Corporation, but shall 
not have such power witis respect to any tjtiier division ofthe Corporatioa An officer 
of a division may be removed witii or whhout cause by the Board of Directois or by 
the Chaimian of tiie Board, the Presidant or any other officer of fee CoTporation tii«i 
autiiorized by tht Board to appoint offitiers of a division. 

ARTICLE VH. 
DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

SECTtO>J 1. Chairman ofthe Board The Chairman ofthe Board siiall be tiie 
chief executive officer of tiie Corporation; he shall pttsidt al meetings of the 
Stockholders and tiie Board of Directors; he shall, Bubject to control by the Board of 
Directors, have full power and comply witiwrity in fee management of tiie business 
and affeirs of tiie Corporation and shall see tiiat al! orders and resolutions of tiie Board 
of Directois and of alt committees thereof art carried into ofifect. The Chairman of 
tiw Board shall peiform tiie duties of tiie Chaimian of ftie Executive Committee in his 
absence or inability to act 

SECTION 2. Chcdrman of the Executive Committee. The Charman of tiie 
Executive Commhtee of the Board of Directois of the Corporation shall preside at 
meetings of said Executive Committee. Mo action of the EjMcutive Committee shall 
be valid unless the Chairman of tiie Executive Committee or, m his absence or 
inabilhy to act, the Chairman of tiie Board shall concur therein. The Chairman oTthe 
Executive Commtttsc, subject to coniral by tine Board of Directors, ^lall (a) have 
responsibility for tiie capital expenditure budget, (b) review and ratify operating 
expense budgets, (c) review financial aifeirs of the Corporation, including the status 
of capital expenditure and openuing expense budgets, and (d) report his fini^ngs, 
together with his reoommwvdations, to the BMid of Directors of iht Corporation. Ht 
shall psrform such otiier duties as may bt prescribed from time to time by tiie Board 
of Di nsctois or by tiiese By-Laws. 

SECTION 3. Civnrman of &^eFvianae Commitlee, The Chahman of the Finance 
Committee shall preside at meetings of tiie Finance Committee. No action of the 

. Finarice Committee shall be valid unless the Chairman of tiie Finance Gammitles 
shall concur therein. The Cheurman of the Financt Committee shali perform such 
otiier duties as may be prescribed from time to time by the Board of Directois or by 
these B)'-La\ra. 

Amendment 
authoriztd and 
effective December 2, 
1970. 

Amendment 
autiiorized August 2, 
19Ti, effective 
September), 1972, 
(supercedes 
amendment of 
December!. 1970) 

Amendment 
autiiorizsriand 
effectivsMayg. 19B0. 

SECnON 4. President. The President iiall psrform such duties as may be Amendment 
assigned to him from time to time.by the BoanI of Directors or the Chaimum of the authorized and 
Board. The President shall perform tht duties of the Chsurman of tiie Board in his effective Januao' 9, 
absence or inability to act. 1980. 

SECTION 5. Semor VUx Executive Presidents and Executtve Vice f residents. Amendment 
The Stnior Executive Vict Presidents and tiie Executive Vice Presidents shall authoiized and 
perform such duties as may bt assigned to thsm fitim time to time by the Board of effective January 8, 
Directors or tiie Chairman of tiie Board, \9S6. 
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SECnON 6. Vice Presidents. The Vice Presidents (including Group Vice Amendment 
Presidents and Senior Vice Presidents) shall perfatm such duties as may be amhoriztd and 
assigned to them from time to time by the Boarti of Directois or tiie Chairman of effective 
the Board. August 2,1972. 

SECTION 7, Secretary. The Secretary shall attend and keep the minutes and 
records of all meetings of tiie stockholders aad of the Board of Directors. Ht ^lall 
give or cause to he given notice of all meetings of stockholders and of tiie Boarti of 
DireclQTS. He shall keep in safe custiody the seal of the Corporaticru Ht shall have 
power when requira3 to affix the seal to any instrument, and vriien so affixed tiie seal 
shall be attested by the signature of the Secretary or such other officer or agents as 
may be designs^ by tiie Board of Dirtctors. Tl» Secretary shall perform sucJi oifrier 
duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or tiis Chairman ofthe Boaid. 

SECTION S. Assistant Corporate Secretaries and Assistant Secretaries. The Amendment 
Assistant Corporate Secretary, or Assistant Corporate SKTCtaries and ttie Assistant authorized and 
Secretary or Assistant SecrctBrics diall perforai such of tiie duties of tiie Secretary and effective 
such otiier duties as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Dirtctors, the November 4,19S1. 
Chaiimari of tht Board or tiit Secmtaiy. 

SECTION 9. Trsasurer. The Tisasurer shall have general charge of tht corporate 
funds and securities and shall keep or cause to be kept full and accuiatt accounts of 
receipts anddisbursemcttts in books belon^ng to tbe Corporation, and sh^i deposit or 
cause to be deposited all moneys and oti^r valuable eSects in tiie name and to tiie 
credit of the Corporation, in such depositories as may be desi^iated pursuant to tiiese 
By-Laws or by tiit Board of Directors. He shtdi set tiial proptTTroudicrs art taken for 
all disbursements, and shall render to the Chairnian of the Board and tiie Board of 
Directors, whenewr required, and account of all ttBnsactions of his ofiiMi. He ^all 
perfoTm such other duties as m ^ be prescribed by the Board of Directors or tiie 
Chairman of the Board. 

Ht shall give tiie Corpomtion a bond if required by toe Board of Directors, in a 
sum and with one or more sureties satisfectary to ths Board of DiiectoTE, for tiit 
faitiiful performance of die duties of his officft and for the restoiation to tile 
Corporation, in case of his dtatii, resignation, retirenient, or removal from ofRce, of 
all booics, papers, vouchers, monty and other property of whatever kind in his 
possession or under his control be longs to tiie CorporatioiL 

SECTION ID. Assistco^ Treaswers. The Assistant Treasurer or Assistant 
Treasurers stall perform such of tiie d i ^ « of the Treasurer and such otiier duties as 
may be assigned to htm or tiiera from time to time by tiie Boani of Directors, tiie 
Chairman ofthe Board or tiic Treasurer. 

SECTION i 1. Controller. The Controller shall be tiitchief accounting officer of 
the Corporation and shall bt in charge of, and ^all bt responsible for, accounting and 
accounting metiiods. budgets and preparation of statistics to assist in executive control 
ofthe Corporation. He shall prepare such financial statements and reports and 
perform such othtr duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or tiie 
Chairman ofthe Board. 



SECTION 12. Assistant ConsroUers. The Assistant Controller or Assistant 
Controllers shall perform such of the duties of tht Controller and such' other duties as 
may be assigned to him or them from time to time by the Board of Directors, tiie 
Chairman of tiie Board ofthe Controller. 

SECnON 13. Auditor. The Auditor shall review the accounting, financial, and 
related operations and shall be responsible for measuring the effectiveness of ooctmls. , 
Ht shall appTwst procedure, verify ti\e extsut of oomplianct whh controls, prevent 
and detect ftaud DT dishonest, and ptrform such otiier duties asmay be premribed by 
the Board of Directors orthe Chaiiman of the Board. 

SEcnON 14. Assistant Auditors. The Aisislant Auditor or Assistant Auditors 
shall perform such of tiie duties of tiie Auditor and such other duties as may be 
assigned to him or them by the Board of Directors, the Chairman ofthe Board or the 
Auditor. 

ARTICLE Vm. 
iKDBv5NSFICAin01^ 

Every person who is or was a director, officer or employee of tiie Corporation, or 
of any otiier corporation which he serves or served as such at the request of the 
Corporation, shall, in accordance with tiiis Article VUi but not if prohibited by law, 
.be indwnnified by the Corporation as hcremafier provide agiinst reasraiahlt expense 
and any liability paid ur incurred by Itim in connection whh or resulting from any 
tiTreatened or acmal claim, action, suit or proceeding (whether brui^t by or in the 
right of the Corporaiion or such otiier corpt«arion or otiierwiseX civil, criminal, 
administrative or investigative, in which he may be involved, as a parry or otherwise, 
by reason of his being or having been a (Urector, officer or employee of die 
Corporation or such otiier corporation, or by reason of any action taken or not taken 
in his capacity as such director, officer or employee, whether or not he continues to 
bt such al ti^e time such tKpenss or liabtlhy shall have been paid or incurred. 

As. used m fn& Article VIII. tiie term "expenst" shall mean counsel fees and 
disbursements and all other expenses (except any liabilhy) relating to any such claim, 
action, suit or proceeding, and the term "liability" shall maan amounts of judgments, 
fines DT penalties against, and amounts paid in settiement by, B director, officer or 
employee witii respect to any such claim, action, suit or proceeding. 

Any pcraan referred to in the first paragraph of tiiis Article VUI who has been 
wholly successful, on tiie merits or otiijtrwise, witii respect to any claim, action, suit or 
proceeding of the character described in such fust paragraph shall be reimbursed k^ 
the Corporation- for his leasonable expense. 

Any otiier person claiming indemnification under the first paragraph of tills 
Article VIII shall be reimbursed by the Corporation for his reasonable expense and for 
any lisbtlity (other than any amoum paid to tiie Corporation) if a Refeoee shall deliver 

. to tht Corporation his vrritten finding that such person acted in good feith in what tiit 
reasonably believed to bt the btst interests of tht Corporation, and, in addition, witii 
respect to any criminal action or proceeding, reasonably believed that his conduct was 
lawful. The termination of any claim, action, suh or proceeding of tiie character 
described in tiie fii5t paragraph of tills Article Vlll by judgment settiement (whether 
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witii or witiiout court approval), adittrse decision or conviction after trial or upon a 
plea of guilty or of nolo comendere, or its equivalent̂  shall not create a presumption 
thai a director, officer or employee dkl not meet ttie foregoing standards of conduct 
T^c person claiming indenutifioation shall at the request of tiie Referee appear before 
him and answer questions wlueh tht Referee titsms relevant and shall be gĥ en ample 
opportunity lo present to tiie Referee evidence upon which he relies for 
indemnification; and tht Corporatioii shall, at the request of tiie Referee, make 
awlable to theReferet facte, opinions or other evidence in any way relevant for lus 
finding which are witiim the possessbn or control ofthe Corpor^coi. As used in this 
Article VIR, the term "Referee" shall mean independent legal counsel (who may be 
regular counsel ofthe Corporation), or other disinterested person or persons, selected 
by the Board of Directors of the Corporation (whether or not a disinterested quorum 
exists) to act as such hereunder. 

Any exptnse incurred with respect to any claim, action, suit or ptooesiing of tiit 
character described in tilt first paiagr^h of th^ Article VUI may be advanced by tiit 
CorporaiioR prior to tiie fua! disposition tiiereof vtpotv receipt of an undertaking made 
by or on behalf of the recipicm to repay such advance if h' is ultimately detmnined 
that he is not to be indemiufied under this Article VIH or, if it is ultimate^ determined 
that he is to be indemnified under this Article vni , to tht extant tiiat the advance 
exceeds tiie amoum of file indemnification. 

If any clause or provision of this Article VIO shall forany reason be determined 
to be invalid, the provisions hereof shall not otiienvise be affected tiiereby but shall 
remain in full force and effect 

The rights of indemmficatiou provided in this Artitle Vlll shall bt in addition to 
any rights to which any such director, ofiicer or employee may otherwise be entitied 
by t̂ ontract or as a maEter of law md, in the evetrt of such person's death, such rights 
shall extend to Ins htirs and legal representatives, 

ARTICLE DC. 
CERTIFICATES OF STOCK 

SECnON 1. Form. Every holder of stock in the Corporation shall be entitied to 
have a certificate signed by, or in the name ofthe Corporation by, the Chauman ofthe 
Board, or tiie Chairman of the Executive Committee, or the President or a Vice 
President and tiie Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer, or tii,e Secretary or an Assistant 
Secretary of the Corporation certifying tiie number of shares owned by him in the 
Corporation. If such certificate is countersigned (I) by a transfer agent other ti>an tiit 
Corporation or its employee, or (2) by a registrar otiier than tiit Corporaaion or its 
employes, the signatures of the officers of the Corporation may bt facsimiles, in cast 
any oificer who has signed or whOK fecsimile signatturt has been plaxd upon a 
certificatt shall have ceased to bt such officer iafore such certificate is issued, it may 
be issued by the Corporation with the same effect as if he were such officer at the date 
of issue. 
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SECTION l Transfer, upon surrender to tiie Corporation or tiie transfer agent of 
the Corporaiion of a certincate for shares duly endorsed or accompamed by proper 
eviritnct of succession, assignment or autiiority to transfer, it shall be the duty ofthe 
Corporation te issue a new certificate to the person entitied thereto, cancel the old 
certificate and record the transaction upon its books, 

SECno>J3. Fisang Date for Determination of Stockholders of Record In t^er 
thai the Corporation may detsrmint Iht Stockholders entitled to notict of or to vote at 
any meeting of stockholders or al any adjournment thereof, or entitied to receive 
payment of any dividend or distribmion or allotmcm of any tights, or entitied to 
exercise any righis in respect of any change, conversion or exchailge of stock or for 
tiie purpose of any other lawful amon, the Board of Dirwtors may fix, in advance, a 
record date, which shall not ht more tiiaii axty nor less than ten days before tiie date 
of such meeting, nor more tiian axty days prior to any otiier action 

SECTION 4. Holder of Record The Corporation shall be entitied to treat tiie 
holder of record of any share or ^wes of slock as the holder in feet thereof and 
accordingly shall not bt bound to recognize any equitable or ctiisr claim to or intertsl 
in such share on tiie part of any other person, whetiier or not h shall have express or 
otiier notice thereol save as expressly provided by tiie General Corporation Law of 
the State of Delaware. 

SECTION 5. Lost. Stolen or Destrtry^ Certificates. Arty person daimmg a 
certificate of stock to be lost stolen or desuoyed sh^l m ^ an affidavit or 
affirmation of tiiat fact and advwtisc titt same in such manner as the Corponrfion may 
require and shall, if the Corporation so requires, ^ve the Corporation a bond of 
indemnity, iti form and with one or more sureties satisfetory to tiie Qirporation and 
in an amount deemed by the Corporation sufScieut to indeairafy the Corporation, 
whereupon a new certificate may be issued of the same tenor and for tiie same 
number of shares as the one alleged to be lost stolen or destroyed. 

ARTICLE X. 
MOTiCES 

Amendment 
authorized March 6, 
19B5, effective May 
13, 1985. 

SECTION l. Notice by Mail Whenever under the provisions of tiie General 
Corporation 1-aw of tiie State of Delaware, or of the Restated Certificate of 
Incorporstion or of these By-Laws notice is required to be given to any director or 
sTockholdtr. such notice may bt given in writing by mait adortssed to such director 
or stockholder at his addrras as it appears on the records of the Corporation by 
depositing the same in a post office or letter box, post prepaid and such notice ^11 be 
deemed to be given at the ihne when tiie same shall be tiius mailed. 
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SEcnON 2. Waiver of Notice. Any notice required to be g h ^ under tiiesc By-
Laws, tiie Restated Certificate of Incorporation, or the Qensral Corporation Law of 
tiie State of Delaware, may be wwved in, writmg, signed by the pewon or persons 
entitled to said notice, whether before or after tiie time stnted therein, and such written 
v^iver shall be deemed equh^em to notice. Nwther the business to be transacted at 
nor the purpose of, any r ^ l a r or special meeting ofthe stockholders or of tiie Board 
of Dirrctors (o: committBes tiiereof) need be specified in any written waiver of notice.' 

ARTICLE XI. 
iNSPEcnoN OF BOOKS 

The Board of Directors shall deteimine from time to time whether and, if 
allowed, when and under what conditions and regulations tiie accounts and boc^ of 
the Corporation (except such as may by statute be specifically open to inspection) or 
any of them shall be open to the inspection of the stockholders, and the stockholder's 
rights in this respKrt are and shall be restricted and Ifanited accordingly. 

ARTICLE Xn. 
CHECK AND KOTES 

The moneys of tiie Corporation shall bedeposhed in tiie name of tiie Corporation 
in such bank or banls as flie Clmirman of tiie Board, foe Chainnan of'tiit Execittive 
Committee, tiie President or a Vice hesident and foe Treasurer or an Assistant 
Treasurer of foe Corporation may from time to time designate^ and all checks, notes, 
drafts and bills of exchange of foe Corporation shall be signed by such oSicers or 
agents as the Chainnan ofthe Board, ihe Chaiimaii of tiie Executive Cumraittet, foe 
President or a Vice President and foe Treasurer or an Assistant Treasurer of foe 

- Corporaiion may from time to time designate-

ARTICLE XUL 
FISCAL VSAR 

Tht fiscal year shall begin tht first day of January in each year. 

ARTICLE XIV. 
AMEHDMEm^ TO THE BV-UWE 

SECTION \. By the Siockholders. Subject to foe provisions of ti:it Restated 
Certificaie of Incorpoiation, foest By-Laws may be altered, amtnded or repealed, or 
new By-Laws trmctied, at any special mtstiug of foe stoddiolders if duty called for 
that purpose (provided tiial in foe notice of such special meeting, notice of such 
purpose shall be given), or at any annual tttectin^ by tia aSirmfitive vote of a 
m^ ority of foe stock represented asvi entitled to vote foHcal 

Amewiinent 
aufoorized March 6, 
19E5, tfftctivt May 

13. ms. 

SECTION 2. By.the Board of Directors. Sulgect to the laws ofthe State of Amendment 
Delaware, the Restated Certificate of Incorporation and foest By-Lavra, foest By- autttotized March 6, 
Laws may also be ahcred, amended or repealed, or new By-Laws enacted, by the 19S5, effective May 
Board of Directors at any meeting of foe Board of Directors. 13,19E5. 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit A-16 

Secretary of State 

H E S S S M A L L BUSINESS S E R V I C E S , L L C 
E X H I B I T A-16 

Exhibit A-16 "Secretary of State"; Provide evidence that the applicant has registered 
with the Ohio Secretary of State, 

Response: Please see the enclosed documentation confirming Hess Small Business 
Services, LLC's registration with the Ohio Secretary of State. 



*201135600090* 
DATE: 
12/22/2011 

DOCUMENT ID 
201135600090 

DESCRIPTION 
REG. OF FOR. PROFIT LIM. UAB. CO. 
(LFP) 

FILING 
125.00 

EXPED 
200,00 

PENALTY 
.00 

CERT 
.00 

COPY 
.00 

Receipt 
This is not a bill. Please do not remit payment. 

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM 
ATTN: JAMES H. TANKS III 
4400 EASTON COMMONS WAY, SUITE 125 
COLUMBUS, OH 43219 

S T A T E OF O H I O 
C E R T I F I C A T E 

Ohio Secretary of State, Jon Husted 

2069416 

It is hereby certified that the Secretary of State of Ohio has custody ofthe business records for 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 

and, that said business records show the filing and recording of: 

Docunient(s) 

REG. OF FOR. PROFIT LIM. U A B . CO. 

Document No(s): 

201135600090 

Witness my hand and the seal of the 
Secretary of State at Columbus, Ohio 
this 21st day of December, A.D. 2011. 

United States of America 
State of Ohio 

Office ofthe Secretary of State Ohio Secretary of State 

U 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit B-1 

Jurisdictions of Operation 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-1 

Exhibit B-1 "Jurisdictions of Operation"; Provide a list of all Jurisdictions in which 
the applicant or any affiliated interest ofthe applicant is, at the daie of the filing ofthe 
application, certified, licensed, registered or otherwise authorized to provide retail or 
wholesale electric services. 

Response: Hess Small Business Services, LLC ("HSBS") is authorized to provide 
retail electric services in New York, New Jersey and Pennsylvania and retail gas 
services in New York, New Jersey and Ohio. 

Hess Corporation ("Hess"), HSBS's corporate parent is authorized to provide retail 
electric services in: New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland, 
District of Columbia, Connecticut, Rhode Island, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, 
Maine and Ohio. 

Hess is authorized to provide retail gas services in New York, New Jersey, 
Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland, District of Columbia, Virginia, North Carolina, 
South Carolina, Georgia, West Virginia and Ohio. 

Hess and HSBS are wholesale power marketers with market-based rate 
authorization granted by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission under FERC 
Docket Nos. ER-06-1280 and ER-11-3623, respectively. 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit B-2 

Experience & Plans 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-2 

Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans"; Provide a description ofthe applicant's 
experience and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, 
providing billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in 
accordance with Commission rules adopted pursuant to Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised 
Code. 

Response: Hess Small Business Services, LLC ("HSBS") is currently a licensed 
electric supplier in New York, New Jersey and Pennsylvania and licensed gas 
supplier in New York, New Jersey and Ohio. Currently, HSBS serves approximately 
3,000 customers across the New York and New Jersey geographic portions of this 
footprint. As a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hess Corporation ("Hess"), HSBS 
utilizes the operations infrastructure of Hess' Energy Marketing division to ensure 
reliable delivery of products and services to its customers. 

Hess Corporation is a leading total energy provider in the Eastern United States. 
Hess is a retail electricity provider for approximately 4,000 commercial and 
industrial customers located in 11 states and 36 electric distribution company 
service territories within its retail electric marketing footprint. Through our 
experiences in serving these customers over since entering the retail electric 
marketing business in 1999, Hess is experienced in the full business cycle of electric 
marketing including: contracting, contract administration, load aggregation, 
procurement, forecasting and scheduling, risk management, energy management, 
customer service and billing and all other customer protections enumerated in 
Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised Code. 

With respect to customer billing, HSBS operates a proprietary customer 
information system that produces billing statements for its customers and contains 
the information needed to respond to customer inquiries and complaints. The 
system retains customer information for a minimum of three years. 

With respect to customer inquiries, customers interested in obtaining information 
about HSBS have a variety of options through HSBS's: (1) Website 
(www.hesssmallbusiness.com); (2) Toll-Free Number (888-494-4377); (3) Sales 
Representative in the Region (Don Diel, Regional Sales Manager, Phone: (412) 494-
7209, Fax: (412) 494-7201, E-Mail: didel(fl)hess.com^. 

With respect to customer service, our toll-free call center and local marketing 
representatives are available during normal business hours and Hess' website can 
be accessed 24 hours a day. 

http://www.hesssmallbusiness.com


Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit B-2 

Experience & Plans 

With respect to customer complaints and dispute resolution, customers may contact 
our toll-free number at (888) 494-4377 or e-mail the HSBS Quality Service 
Department at smallbusiness(g).hess.com. Complaints or disputes not settled within 
60 days may be submitted to the Ohio Public Utility Commission for resolution and 
HSBS will fully comply with any additional rules and requirements set forth by the 
PUC with respect to customer complaints and dispute resolution process. 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit B-3 

Summary of Experience 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-3 

Exhibit B-3 "Summarv of Experience"; Provide a concise summary ofthe 
applicant's experience in providing the service(s) it is seeking to be certified to provide 
(e.g., number and types of customers served, utility service areas, amount of load, etc.). 

Response: Hess Corporation ("Hess") is a $42 billion energy company with over 79 
years of experience in providing reliable energy services to retail customers. Hess, 
which began serving retail electric customers in 1999, serves approximately 4,000 
commercial and industrial customers and 5,500 peak megawatts across 11 states, 36 
EDC service territories and three Independent System Operators. As such, Hess is 
experienced in the full business cycle of electric marketing including: contracting, 
contract administration, load aggregation, procurement, forecasting and scheduling, 
risk management, energy management, customer service and billing and all other 
customer protections enumerated in Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised Code. Hess also 
actively participated in regulatory proceedings throughout the states in which it 
serves. Hess is currently a licensed Competitive Retail Electric Supplier in Ohio 
(Certificate Number 10-208E(2)). 

Hess Small Business Services, LLC ("HSBS"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hess 
Corporation, is currently a licensed electric supplier in New York, New Jersey and 
Pennsylvania and a Ucensed gas supplier in New York, New Jersey and Ohio, 
serving approximately 3,000 customers throughout this geographic footprint with a 
heavy concentration in New York and New Jersey. Through its use of Hess 
Corporation's Energy Marketing division's operations infrastructure, HSBS is 
experience in the full business cycle of electric marketing including: contracting, 
contract administration, load aggregation, procurement, forecasting and scheduling, 
risk management, energy management, customer service and billing and all other 
customer protections enumerated in Section 4928.10 ofthe Revised Code. Hess and 
HSBS also actively participate in regulatory proceedings throughout the states in 
which they serve. 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit B-4 

Environmental Disclosure 

HESS SMALL BUSINESS SERVICES, LLC 
EXHIBIT B-4 

Exhibit B-4 "Environmental Disclosure"; Provide a detailed description of how the 
applicant intends to determine its (a) generation resource mix, and (b) environmental 
characteristics, including air emissions and radioactive waste. This information shall 
include sufficient discussion so as to detail both the annual projection methodology 
and the proposed approach to compiling the quarterly actual environmental disclosure 
data. Additional details on this requirement may be obtained by referring to 4901:1-
21-09. 

Response: Hess Small Business Services, LLC ("HSBS") expects the generation 
resource mix and environmental characteristics ofthe power it sells to customers in 
Ohio to consist ofthe average regional generation resource mix and average 
regional emission rates for air emissions and radioactive waste. Such data is 
available to HSBS through regional wholesale markets in which it actively 
participates (e.g., the PJM GATS database). HSBS intends to use the regional 
average data published by this source or any other source approved by the 
Commission. Hess intends to disclose environmental data to customers and the 
Commission through environmental disclosure labels in a manner fully consistent in 
both format and timing as set forth in Rule 4901:1-21-09. 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit B-5 

Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations 

H E S S S M A L L BUSINESS S E R V I C E S , L L C 
E X H I B I T B-5 

Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations"; Provide a description of 
all existing, pending or past rulings, Judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of 
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the 
applicant's financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking 
to be certified to provide. 

Response: None. 



Hess Small Business Services, LLC 
Exhibit C-1 

Annual Reports 

H E S S S M A L L BUSINESS S E R V I C E S , L L C 
E X H I B I T C-1 

Exhibit C-1 "Annual Reports"; Provide the two most recent Annual Reports to 
Shareholders. 

Response: Enclosed please find Hess Corporation's 2011 and 2010 Annual Reports. 
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C O M M O N S T O C K D I V I D E N D R E I N V E S T M E N T P L A N 

1. isled Nsvv York Slocik hxchnngc (Tckor symbo IICS) 

Transfer Agent and Registrar 

Co[ii|:)utershai'e Sliareoxviior Scsrviccjs LJ C; 

480 VVnshinclon Rojievnrd 

Jersey City. NJ 07310-1900 

Telephone: l-8ij6-2()3-6?'15 

http./^A'wvv.bnymellon.com/shareQwnGi.J&d 

D O C U M E N T S A V A I L A B L E 

Copies of the Corporation's 2011 Annual Report on 

Foim 10-K. Ouarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current 

Reports on Form 8 K and lis annual proxy slatei"nenl filed 

witJT ine Securities and Exchange Commission, as v/cll as 

the Corporation's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, 

its Corporate Governance Guidelines, and charters of 

the Audit Committee, Compensation and Management 

Development Cornmitteo and Corporate Governance and 

Noiniriating Commltfee of the Goard of Directors, are 

available, without charge, on our Web site listed bolow or 

upon written request to the Corporate Secretary, Hess 

Corporation, 1185 Avenue of the Americas, Nev '̂ York. 

New York 10036. e-mad: corporatGSGcrotary(G)hess.com 

The Corporation has also filed with the New York 

Stock Exchange ("NYSE") its annual certification that the 

Corporation's chief executive officer is not avi'are of 

any violation of the NYSL's corporate governance 

standards. The Corporation has also filed v '̂ith the 

SEC the certifications of its chief executive officer 

and chief financial officer required under SEC Rule 

13a-14(a) as exhibits to its 2011 Form 10-K. 

A N N U A L M E E T I N G 

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders v;ill be held 

on V^GJdnesday. May 2, 2012. 1 Hess Plaza, 

Woodbridge. New Jersey 07095. 

Inlo'TialioM concc-rning tho D vidend Rei'ivost'iienl 

Elan avalablc lo holders ol Hosb Cyiiora'.ior comr~on 

stock may be obl j ined b\' vvritjig 1o c;ompulei'shai"G 

Sna'"ooV'.'ncr Services, Dividend iioinves:meMl 

De.oartment, P. O. Box 3b801b. r-i;tsburgh PA 

15?62-80U;. or by calling 1 866 P03-62'5 

C O R P O R A T E H E A D Q U A R T E R S 

118b .Avenue of the Americas 

New York, NY 1003S 

212-997-8500 

O P E R A T I N G O F F I C E S 

Exploration and Production 

Hess Corporation 

1501 McKinney Street 

Houston, Texas 77010 

Hess Limited 

The Adelphi Building 

1-11 John Adam Street 

London WC2N 6AG 

England 

Marketing and Refining 

Hess Corporation 

1 Hess Plaza 

Woodbridge, New Jersey 07095 

Hess V>/eb site 

wv>/w,hess,com 

' Paper from 
~ responsible sources 
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OUR 
COMPANY 

Hess Corporat ion is a leading global independent energy company 

engaged in th.e explorat ion for and product ion of crude oil 

and natural gas, as well as in ref ining and in market ing refined 

pet ro leum products, natural gas end electr ic i ty. Our strategy is 

to bui ld a company that will sustain prof i tab le g rowth and create 

signi f icant shareholder value. 

We are commi t ted to meet ing the highest standards of corporate 

ci t izenship by pro tect ing the health and safety of our employees, 

safeguarding the envi ronment and rTiaking a posi t ive impact on the 

communi t ies in which we do business. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

2 LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS 

4 OUR GLOBAL OPERATIONS 

6 EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION 

12 MARKETING AND REFINING 

16 CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

20 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE OFFICERS 

Cover: Drilling Operations, North Dakota 



FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS 
HESS CORPORATION 

Amounts in mlltions, except per share data 

FINANCIAL - FOR THE YEAR 2011 2010 

Sales and other operat ing revenues 

Net income at t r ibutable to Hess Corporat ion 

Net income per share di luted 

Common stock div idends per share 

Net cash prov ided by operat ing activit ies 

Capital and exploratory expenditures 

Weighted average di luted shares outstanding 

$38,466 

$ 1,703 

$ 5.01 

$ .40 

$ 4,984 

$ 7,462 

339.9 

$33,862 

$ 2,125 

$ 6.47 

$ .40 

$ 4,530 

$ 5,855 

328.3 

FINANCIAL - AT YEAR END 2011 2010 

Total assets 

Total debt 

Total equi ty 

Debt to capital izat ion ratio'" ' 

Common stock price 

$ 39,136 

$ 6.057 

$ 18,592 

24 .6% 

$ 56 .80 

$35,396 

$ 5,583 

$ 16,809 

24.9% 

$ 76.54 

OPERATING - FOR THE YEAR 2011 2010 

Product ion — net 

Crude oil and natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day) 

United States 

International 

Total 

Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 

United States 

International 

Total 

Barrels of oil equivalent (thousands of barrels per day) 

Marketing and Refining (thousands of barrels per day) 

Refining crude runs - HOVENSA l.E-C.'"' 

Refined petroleum products sold 

94 

172 

266 

100 

523 

623 

370 

142 

430 

89 

218 

307 

108 

561 

669 

418 

195 

471 

(a) Total debt as a percentage of the sum ot total debt and total equity. 

(b) Reflects the Corporation's 50% stiare of HOVENSA's crude runs. 

See Management's Discussion and Analysis ot Results. 



LETTER TO 
STOCKHOLDERS 

John B. Hess 

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

While 2011 was a challenging year operationally, we 

continued to make significant progress in increasing our 

crude oil and natural gas reserves, acquiring strategic 

acreage and positioning our company for long-term 

profitable growth. 

For the year 2011, our company achieved earnings of 

$1.7 billion, or $5.01 per share, reflecting lower crude oil 

and natural gas sales volumes, weaker refining results 

and the impact of higher crude oil selling prices. 

Exploration and Production earned nearly $2.7 billion, 

which was comparable to the previous year. Crude oil 

and natural gas production was 370,000 barrels of oil 

equivalent per day, an 11 percent decrease compared to 

the 418,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day we averaged 

the previous year. Most of the decline was due to several 

short-term setbacks, including weather related delays in 

North Dakota, the temporary shut in of the Llano No.3 

well in the deepwater Gulf of IVIexico, a fire at the Valhall 

Field in Norway and civil unrest in Libya. We continue 

to make progress in restoring these lost production 

volumes. At year end in 2011, we had replaced 147 

percent of production at a finding, development and 

acquisition cost of about $36 per barrel of oil equivalent. 

Our proved reserves stood at 1.573 billion barrels of 

oil equivalent and our resen/e life was 11.4 years. 

In Exploration and Production, we made important 

strategic acreage acquisitions during the year in the 

emerging Utica Shale play in Eastern Ohio and in the 

Kurdistan Region of Iraq. We gained a leadership 

position in the Utica by entering into an agreement 

with CONSOL Energy to acquire a 50 percent interest 

In nearly 200,000 acres and acquiring Marquette 

Exploration for another 85.000 acres, With these 

transactions, the company now has the critical mass 

in shale resources to make a significant contribution 

to our future production and resen/e growth with 

lower risk than has been the case in the past. We 

also acquired an 80 percent interest in two highly 

prospective blocks covering more than 670 square 

miles in a major petroleum province in Kurdistan. 

Marketing and Refining lost $584 million. This loss 

included an after tax charge of $525 million following 

the difficult decision to close the HOVENSA joint venture 

refinery in St. Croix, U.S. Virgin Islands and operate the 

complex as an oil storage terminal. HOVENSA examined 

every option to maximize value, but ultimately severe 

financial losses due to adverse market conditions left 

no other choice. The Retail and Energy Marketing 

businesses, which earned $185 million in 2011, will 

continue to t>e a strategic part of our portfolio with a 

well established brand that generates attractive financial 

returns and offers selective growth opportunities. 

Our financial position remains strong. Our debt to 

capitalization ratio at year end was 25 percent, which 

was essentially unchanged from a year earlier. In 2012, 

our company's capital and exploratory expenditures 

are budgeted at $6.8 billion, with substantially all 

dedicated to Exploration and Production. We plan 

to invest $2.5 billion, or nearly 40 percent of our 

projected spend, in unconventionals. In addition, we 

have budgeted $1.6 billion for production, $1.8 billion 

for development and $800 million for exploration. 

We expect to fund the majority of our 2012 capital 

program from internally generated cash flow and asset 

sales. To protect our cash flow, we have hedged 

120,000 barrels per day, or approximately 45 percent 

of our forecasted oil production for the calendar year 

2012, at an average Brent price of $107.70 per ban-el. 



EXPLORATION A N D PRODUCTION 

In the Bakken oil shale play in North Dakota, we 

generated strong growth throughout the second half of 

the year and exited 2011 at a net rate of approximately 

50,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day, compared 

to an exit rate of 20,000 barrels of oil equivalent in 

2010. We continued to develop critical infrastructure 

projects, including our crude oil rail loading and 

storage facility, which becomes fully operational in 

the first quarter of 2012, and the Tioga gas plant 

expansion, which will be completed in 2013. We also 

plan to continue the appraisal of our acreage in the 

Eagle Ford Shale in Texas and the Utica Shale. 

We continued investment in our conventional opport­

unities, sanctioning the Tubular Bells project in the deep-

water Gulf of Mexico, in which Hess has a 57 percent 

interest and is the operator. We anticipate first production 

in 2014 and expect peak annual net production rate of 

about 25,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day. In 

Australia, we are pursuing commercial options for Block 

WA-390-P, where we have had 13 natural gas discoveries 

and our appraisal program is ongoing. In exploration, our 

company announced a discovery in the Paradise-1 well 

offshore Ghana, where we have a 90 percent interest. 

The well encountered an estimated 490 net feet of oil 

and gas condensate. Further exploration drilling is 

planned in 2012. 

MARKETING A N D REFINING 

Refining results were lower than 2010, principally 

because of losses associated with our HOVENSA joint 

venture refinery, which has completed its shutdown. 

Retail Marketing, which has 1,360 gasoline stores along 

the East Coast of the United States, experienced a 2 

percent decline in both convenience store sales and 

average gasoline volumes, reflecting the weak economic 

environment. Retail expanded its popular Dunkin' Donuts 

offering to 555 locations. Energy Marketing, which 

provides natural gas, electricity and fuel oil to more 

than 21,000 commercial and industrial customers in 

the Eastern United States, generated strong operating 

results with increased sales volumes of natural gas and 

electricity. The Bayonne Energy Center, a 512-megawatt, 

natural gas fueled power plant that will provide electricity 

to New York City, will begin operations in 2012. 

SAFETY A N D SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Our employee safety performance improved for the 

seventh consecutive year in 2011 but our results 

deteriorated in terms of contractor safety. We have 

taken aggressive steps to ensure the continuous 

improvement in safety for our entire workforce. 

Our company is committed to making a long-term 

positive impact on the communities where we do 

business. In North Dakota, we announced a five-year 

$25 million partnership to enhance the transition 

from school to work for students across the state 

beginning in 2012. In Equatorial Guinea, we expect 

to begin in 2012 a second five-year phase expanding 

our successful partnership with the government to 

help transform primary and secondary education. 

Our company also supported community development 

activities in more than 20 countries in the areas of youth 

and community development, education and health. 

Hess was recognized for our efforts to communicate 

openly about sustainable business practices. We were 

cited by Bloomberg as first among 2,454 oil companies 

in the world for disclosure of environmental, social and 

corporate governance issues. Hess was also ranked 

No,1 among S&P 500 companies for "Clean Capitalism" 

by Corporate Knights, a Canadian magazine promoting 

responsible business practices. We were again ranked in 

the Dow Jones Sustainability Index for North America 

and included in NASDAQ CRD Analytics Global 

Sustainability Index. 

We deeply appreciate the hard work and dedication 

of our employees to build a company to sustain 

profitable grov^^h. We are grateful, as always, for 

the outstanding advice and guidance of our Board 

of Directors. We especially want to thank you, our 

stockholders, for your continued interest and support. 

U . 6 . ^ 
John B. Hess 

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 

March 7, 2012 
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OUR GLOBAL OPERATIONS 

We cont inue to make s igni f icant progress in increasing our crude 

oil and natural gas reserves, acqui r ing st rategic acreage and 

pos i t ion ing our company for long te rm pro f i tab le g r o w t h . 
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EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION 
HIGHLIGHTS 

• Doubled Bakken production to 30 mboe,''d despite 

harsh winter weather and severe spring floods 

• Executed strategic entry into emerging Utica Shale play 

in Ohio where Hess now has nearly 200,000 net acres 

• Sanctioned the Hess operated Tubular Bells 

development in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico 

• Encountered 490 feet of net hydrocarbon pay at the 

Hess operated Paradise-1 well in Ghana 

• Acquired two promising exploration blocks in the 

Kurdistan Region of Iraq covering a combined area 

of approximately 670 square miles 

MARKETING AND REFINING 
HIGHLIGHTS 

• Advanced construction of a 512-megawatl natural 

gas fired power piant in Bayonne. NJ v,/hich when 

operational in 2012 will generate enough electricity 

to power 500,000 homes in the New York City area 

• Expanded Supply & Terminals marine diesel fuel sales 

to include Philadelphia harbor 

• Opened three new Hess Express locations and 

expanded our Dunkin' Donuts offering to a total of 

555 sites 

• Achieved outstanding safety performance 

• Closed HOVENSA joint venture refinery in St. Croix, 

U.S. Virgin Islands after three years of losses 
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EXPLORATION 
AND PRODUCTION 

With the addition of our newly acquired acreage position in 

the Utica Shale, the company now has the critical mass in 

shale resources to make a significant contr ibution to our future 

production and reserve growth. 



P R O D U C T I O N 

In 2011, net production averaged 370,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day, down from 418,000 barrels 

of oil equivalent per day in 2010. This decrease 

primarily resulted from short-term setbacks, including 

severe weather in North Dakota, the temporary 

shut-in of the Llano No. 3 well in the Gulf of Mexico 

because of mechanical issues, a two month shut-in 

of the non-operated Valhall Field in Norway due to 

a fire and civil unrest in Libya. We continue to make 

progress restoring lost volumes at these assets. 

Net production from the Bakken doubled to 30,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day from 15,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day the previous year, 

despite harsh winter weather and severe flooding 

in the spring. We generated strong growth throughout 

the second half of the year and exited 2011 at a 

net peak rate of approximately 50,000 barrels of oil 

equivalent per day. We also continued to invest in 

infrastructure projects, including our crude oil rail 

loading facility and the Tioga gas plant expansion, 

In May, we commenced initial production in the 

Eagle Ford Shale in Texas, where we have more 

than 100,000 net acres. By year end, we had drilled 

28 new wells in the Eagle Ford and completed 

22. We plan to continue to delineate our acreage 

position, operating a three rig program and 

drilling approximately 25 to 30 wells in 2012. 

In the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, net production from 

the Shenzi Field in which Hess has a 28 percent interest 



averaged 29,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day. In 

March, the United States government granted approval 

to continue drilling the previously suspended Shenzi 

production well. A second Shenzi production well and 

a water injection well were also drilled and completed. 

Additional wells are planned in 2012 and 2013, 

Equatorial Guinea Block G, in which Hess holds an 

85 percent interest and is the operator, produced 

at a net rate of 54,000 barrels of oil equivalent 

per day. A 4D seismic survey of the block has 

identified additional dhlling opportunities to extend 

the life of the fields. In Russia, a subsidiary in 

which Hess holds a 90 percent interest drilled 28 

wells with production reaching a net rate of 50,000 

barrels of oil equivalent per day at year end. 

DEVELOPMENT 

We achieved a significant milestone in the third 

quarter of 2011 with the sanctioning of the Tubular 

Bells project in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, in 

which Hess has a 57 percent interest and is the 

operator. Hull and topsides fabrication commenced 

and first production is targeted for 2014. 

Several projects in Europe hit important milestones. In 

the Norwegian North Sea, redevelopment of the Valhall 

Field (Hess 64%) progressed with the completion 

of the new living quarters in March and startup of 

gas lift at the Valhall Flank South wellhead platform 

in June. In the United Kingdom, the Schiehallion 

Field (Hess 16%) Floating Production, Storage and 

Offloading Vessel (FPSO) replacement project was 

sanctioned. In Denmark, fabrication of the platform 

jacket and deck commenced for Phase 3 development 

of the South Arne Field (Hess 62%, operator}. 

In Australia, appraisal of Block WA-390-P (Hess 100%, 

operator) is expected to be completed in 2012 and 

we are pursuing commercial options with potential 

liquefaction partners. 

Development of the Malaysia Thailand Joint 

Development Area (JDA) (Hess 50%.} progressed 

with the installation of wellhead platform No. 7, 

fabrication of platform No. 8 and sanctioning of 

platforms No. 9 and No. 10. In Indonesia, Ujung 

Pangkah's (Hess 75%, operator) central processing 

and accommodation and utility platforms were 

completed and gas production commenced in June. 

EXPLORATION 

In Ghana, the Paradise-1 well was completed on 

the Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points Block and 

a Notice of Discovery was filed with the Minister 

of Energy of Ghana. The well encountered an 

estimated 490 net feet of oil and gas condensate 

pay over three separate inten/als, Hess is the 

operator and has a 90 percent interest in the license. 

Additional exploration drilling is planned in 2012. 



|;|l.-^v,.'i'''j&* 

. " • •n 

L . * 

.d -̂
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On the Semai V Block in Indonesia, the Andalan No.l 

and No. 2 wells were completed without encountering 

commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. Hess is 

the operator and has a 100 percent interest in the 

license. Data from both wells are being processed 

and interpreted. On Block CA-1 in Brunei, the 

Julong Center well was completed but did not 

encounter commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. 

Hess has a 14 percent interest in the license 

and additional wells are planned during 2012. 

In Peru, on Block 64 in the Maranon Basin, the 

Situche Norte 4X well spud in November and will be 

completed in 2012. This well follows the previous 

Situche Central light oil discoveries. Hess has a 50 

percent working interest with Talisman as operator. 

In August, our company acquired Marquette 

Exploration for approximately $750 million, which 

included 85,000 net acres in the emerging Utica 

Shale play in Ohio, This transaction was followed 

by the formation of a joint venture with CONSOL 

Energy that added an additional 100,000 net 

acres in Ohio, bringing our position in the Utica 

to nearly 200,000 net acres. In 2012, we plan to 

acquire more than 400 square miles of seismic 

and drill approximately 29 appraisal wells. 

In Australia's Beetaloo Basin, Hess announced a 

partnership with Falcon Oil & Gas on the EP76, 117 

and 98 licenses. These licenses cover more than 6,2 

million acres in a large under-explored basin in northern 

Austral ia with convent ional and unconvent ional 

potential. Hess has an option to earn a 63 percent 

interest in the area. A 2D seismic program commenced 

in 2011 and will continue in 2012. 

In Kurdistan, Hess and partner Petroceltic 

International signed production sharing contracts (PSE) 

with the Kurdistan Regional Government of Iraq for 

the Shakrok and Dinarta blocks, Hess is the operator 

and has an 80 percent paying interest in these licenses. 

The blocks are located northeast of Erbil and cover 

a combined area of approximately 670 square miles. 

Each PSC has an initial three-year exploration pehod 

in which the joint venture plans to acquire 2D seismic 

and drill at least one exploration well in each block. 

n 
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MARKETING 
AND REFINING 

Our Retai l and E n e r g y M a r k e t i n g bus inesses r e m a i n a s t r a t e g i c 

pa r t of our p o r t f o l i o w i t h a we l l es tab l i shed b r a n d t h a t gene ra tes 

s t r o n g f inanc ia l re tu rns and o f fe rs se lec t i ve g r o w t h o p p o r t u n i t i e s 
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R E F I N I N G 

HOVEXSA. ajo:nt vefiture between 1 less Corporatior 

and Pelrolscs de Venezuela S.A, announced in 

uariLiary 2012 tl;a; :t vvojid shutdown its refine^'y 

on St. Groix. United Slates Vrgin Islands. Following 

the shutdown, the complex will operate as an oil 

STorago terminal, _osses at trie H0VEN3.A refinery 

totalec Si .3 bill on over the past three years and 

wore proiected to corilinue. These losses v>.'ere 

caused primarily by Vv'eakness in demand for refined 

petroleum products cue to tne global economic 

s'ovv'down and the addi:ion of new refTing caoacity 

in emerging rnarkels. In the past three years, Mnese 

laclors have caused fhe closure of 18 refineries in the 

United Stales and Europe with capacity totaling 

more tiian 2 million barrels of oil pe'' day. Ir 

addition. Ihe low once of natural gas in trie 

Unitec States pu; HOVENSA an oil-'uelea 

refinery, at a competitive disadvar-'.age. 

Hess' Port Reading. Nevv Jersey, fluid catalytc 

cracking (FCC) facility located near Nev/ York 

Harbor croduces gasoline and fuel oil primari'y tor 

markets in the Northeast United States. The facility 

averaged feeds:ock nins o^ aoou: 63.OOC barrels 

per day ir 201 1 versus 55,000 barrels cor day in 

201C. feedstock runs vvere higher in 2 0 ' 1 duo to 

a planned major turnaround the previous yean 

13 



S U P P L Y & T E R M I N A L S 

Hess operates a ne lwo 'k of 20 refined p-"oduct 

;criTiiiia.s on the East Coast of the Unr.ec Slates, as 

WGli as an o I storace laoility in St Lacia. O J ' East 

Const terminals provide the oon'par'y a oo'iipeJtive 

advantage in tho suppiv of rt^tined oroducts lo our 

Untai. and Enorgv Marketing businesses. 

E N E R G Y M A R K E T I N G 

I less Energy Mad*:eting is a majo:" supplier of 

na:u''al gas. e ectricity and fuel oil tc comnerc ia i , 

industrial and utility customers n the Eastern Uni:ea 

Stales. In 2011. natural gas and e'ectri.city voi(.,mes 

G'ew and operating margins imprc'vec cue to strong 

s jop ly opt i rr izalon res j Is. n 2 0 1 ' constr jct ion 

oonli'iueo' in New Jersey on ll ie Bayonne Energy 

Center, a b l 2-ri iegawatl. nalaral gas laeled eec tnc 

power plant 50 percent owned by "-ess Corpo-'at'on, 

Once operational in mid-2012. the facility will 

generate enough electric ty lo power apcroxrnalely 

000.000 homes in the Nev '̂ York C ly area. 

R E T A I L M A R K E T I N G 

iva:ail Vlarkoting is the lea.ding indepeiioent gasoline 

convoneneo stC're retailor on the East Coasl with 

1,3B() Moss branded locations. Aru'ual convenience 

store revenues in 20 ' ' excluding petro loun product; 

were approxiiriateiy S' .2 bill ion, a decrease cf 

? percent "'rom 2010. Overall slore g.'oss marcirs. 

however, increased in 2011 vnrsas tho pdor year, 

driven cy improved s t c e offerings inolud ng 

deveopmer t c" a new fresh food concept and 

testing of nationally b'-anded cuick-serve restauranr 

concepts. 

n addition, CLJr ng the year the eoiTipany opened 

three new I lESS EXPRESS locations anc expanded 

its successful Dunkin' r.:onu:s offering to a total 

of 555 Hess and VV Icol-less locations. 
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CORPORATE AND 
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

We are commi t t ed to ef fect ive stakeholder engagement and 

st rategic social investments in our host communi t ies that lead 

to sustainable and measurable improvements , especial ly in 

educat ion and health. 
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

O.jr con^par'v is coinrnitled lo helping meet the 

worlo's ino'"easing demand for energy in a manner that 

safeguards our employees, orese'vos the environment 

and ma'<es a posJive impact on Ihe communit'es 

Vv'here v-je operate. We strive each day to oe a 

trusted energy par tnc to eommi.initios. oriiployees. 

business partners, customers and investors 

through sustainable business practices, v^n'ch we 

believe are essential "o our icense to oprjrate. 

Employee safety oerfornance improved ror the 

seventh eonsecutivo year TI 2011. Contractor 

safety performarce deteriorated, driven primarily by 

significantly increased activity in our North Dakota 

operations. We took aggress ve steps to address 

this challenge, resuting in ma'-ked improvements 

in safety performance by year end We expect these 

inprcven^.ents to continue and we are focLJsod on 

regaining our trend of continuous imp'ovemeiit in safely, 

vVith our rapid growtn in unconventional ene'gy 

resources, we took measures to assu'e the puolio about 

our approach lo hyd'aalic fracturing. We registered 

as a voluntary user of the web based Eraehocas 

database. vv'Vv'vv,FracFocus.org. where v.'e publicly 

disclose the chemical composition of drilling fluids. 

While we a'-e focused on oreventing safety, healtn and 

environmental incidents, we recognize the importanci:! 

of maintaining a high level of omergeney response 

p't!t;aredness. As part o"' an eflorl lo learn from the 

Macondo incioent iri the Guif of Mexico, I less carried 

ou't a comprehensive reviev.' of our emcgency resoonse 

preparations. We joined Ihe Marine W''ell Containment 

17 
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Company and Heix Weil Conla'pnient G'oup, 

giving us access to rapid y dep oyable s'ate ot the 

art cop'ainment response systems. In addition. 

Hess oa'tioipated in industry Vv'Crka"-,c groups anc 

task feces focusing on emergency preparedness 

and resconse capabilities in the United States 

and g obally. At the same time, vv'e confirmee Ine 

integrity o' our deepwater drilling operating metiiods 

and adnerence to worldwide drilling standards. 

With respect to c imate change. I less has ra^en 

measures to assess, monitor and reeu'ce o i r carbon 

footprint at ex.sting and futurt; operations, 'v've mace 

oonsiderafjie progress toward our 20 '3 goal of a 

20 percent redLicton in greenhouse gas emissions 

intensity based on a 2008 basel ne. We decreasec 

flarr-g from operations 'r'. Algeria anc Ecuatcria 

Gu nea by more than 50 percent curing the past 

several years, achieving o j ' flare reduction target 

ahead et sehndulo. O'.jr climate ch.ange strategy 

also includes the ourchase of cerlified renev;abe 

energy certificates equivalent to at least 10 percent 

of our annual net purchased eleclricily, along vr-ih 

Ihe puj'chase of cedified carbon offsets to ensure 

that the impact of OL:r commercial a r travel is 

carbon noLjfral. For the third coriseculive year, Hess 

was included T: the Carbon Discosu'^e ^ 'o jec fs 

Global 500 and S&P 500 leadership incexes tor 

tho quality o' our ehrnate cf'ange disclosure. 

I less is an active si.:poorter of several international 

iTiuIti stakeholdo' •mmevi.'orks that seek to proteol 

the environment, promote transparency and advance 

human rights, inc'ud ng the Extractive Indjsfhes 

Iransparoney Initiativr;. flic; United Natior's Glooal 

Cornoacl, the Volunlary Pr nciples on Security 

and Human R'ghts and the International I abour 

Organization's Fundamental Princioles and Rights 

at vVor<. 

We are committed to effective stakeholder 

erigagemerit and strategic soc al investments n 

our host communities that lead lo sustainable and 

measurable imp.'Ovements. espeoiahy in ecucation 

and health. Ihe first fivo-yea' phase ot our padne^'ship 

in Equalorial Guinea lo improve primary educat on s 

nearing coniplefion. ,A second five year program vvill 

launch in earlv 201? and w l ! focus on strengthening 

sneondarv etujcation and vocatior'al Ira ning, W'e vvili 

also continue eflorls to supporl primary education. 

In North Dakota, v.'e announced a f ve year S25 

m llion oartnership v.'ith the; state government to 

enhance secondary, higner and vocational education 

in order to better prepare students to succeed in tho 

workforce. 'Ihe compar-y also supported activities 

in more than 20 counthes n the areas of yoatn and 

community deve.opmient. education and health. 





,-r-..i#j-^f \;.,:, 

' J^ 



HESS 
CORPORATION 

B O A R D O F D I R E C T O R S 

John B. Hess'^i 
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Samuel W. Bodman'^"" 
Former Secretary of the United States 
Department ot Energy; 
Former Deputy Secretary of the United 
States Department of the Treasury 

Nicholas F. Brady'"i^"-" 
Chairman, Choptank Partners. Inc.: 
Former Secretary of the United States 
Department of the Treasury; 
Former Chairman. 
Dillon, Read S Co., Inc. 

Gregory P. Hill 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Worldwide 
Exploration S Production 

Edith E. Holiday f̂ "̂ i 
Corporate Director and Trustee; 
Former Assistant to the President and 
Secretary of the Cabinet; 
Former General Counsel of the United 
States Department of the Treasury 

Thomas H. Kean^'i^n^' 
President, THK Consulting, LLC; 
Former President, Drew University; 
Former Governor, State of New Jersey 

Risa Lavizzo-Mourey'^' 
President and Chief Executive Officer, 
The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation 

Craig G. Mat thews" ' 
Former Vice Chairman 
and Chief Operating Officer, 
KeySpan Corporation; 
Former Chief Executive Officer 
and President, NUI, Inc. 

John H. Mullln III '" 
Chairman. Ridgeway Farm LLC; 
Former Ivlanaging Director, 
Dillon, Read 8, Co.. Inc. 

Frank A. Olson'^'^i 
Former Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer, 
The Hertz Corporation 

Ernst H. von Metzsch'^' 
Managing Member, 
Cambrian Capital. LP.; 
Former Senior Vice President 
and Partner, Wellington 
Management Company 

F. Borden Walker 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Marketing & Refining 

Robert N. Wilson "n^"^' 
Chairman, Mevion Medical Systems; 
Former Vice Chairman 
of the Board of Directors, 
Johnson 8. Johnson 

(1) Member ol Executive Committee 

(2) Member of Audit CommHtee 

(3) Member of Compensation and 

Management Development Commrttee 

(4) Member ot Corporate Governance 

and Nominating Committee 

C O R P O R A T E O F F I C E R S 

John B. Hess 
Chairman of the Board and 
Ctiief Executive Officer 

Gregory P. Hill 
Executive Vice President; 
President, Worldwide 
Exploration 8 Production 

F. Borden Walker 
Executive Vice President: 
President, Marketing & Refining 

S E N I O R V I C E P R E S I D E N T S V I C E P R E S I D E N T S 

Christopher J. Baldwin 

Gary A. Boubel 

John A. Gartman 

Timothy B. Goodell 
General Counsel 

Scott M. Heck 

Lawrence H, Ornstein 

Howard Paver 

John P. Rielly 
Chief Financial Oilicer 

John J. Scelfo 

R. Gordon Shearer 

John V. Simon 

Dahus Sweet 

Michael R. Turner 

Mykel J. Zioio 

George C. Barry 
Secretary 

Robert M. Biglin 
Treasurer 

C. Martin Dunagin 

Richard J . Lawlor 

Jonathon L. Pepper 

Harold I, Small 

Jonathan C. Stein 

Jeffery L, Steinhorn 

Kevin B. Wilcox 
Controller 

Jay R. Wilson 

20 



ANNUAL REPORT 
FORM 10-K 



UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

Form 10-K 
0 ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 

OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 

or 

n TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) 
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the transition period from to 

Commission File Number 1-1204 

Hess Corporation 
i Exact name of Registrant as specified in its cimner) 

DELAWARE 13-4921002 
(State or oilier jurisdiction of (l.R.S. Employer 

incorporation or organization j identification Number) 

1185 A V E N U E O F T H E A M E R I C A S , 10036 
N E W Y O R K , N.Y. (Zip Code) 

(Address of principal execuiive offices) 

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code, is (212) 997-8500) 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: 
Titk of Each Class Nume <iF Each Exchange on Which Registered 

Common Stock (par value $ 1.00) New York Stock Exchange 

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: 
None 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities 
Act. Yes IZI No n 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the 
Exchange Act. Yes • No [yj 

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the 
Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to 
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes 0 No LJ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant submitted electronically and posted on its Corporate website, if any, every 
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of tliis chapter) 
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). 
Yes \7\ No • 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and 
will not be contained, to the best of Registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by 
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K, [7] 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a 
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated tiler" and "smaller reporting company" 
in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): 

Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated filer n Non-accelerated filer O Smaller reporting company • 

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule l2b-2 of the Exchange 

Act). Yes n No 0 

The aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant amounted to $22,545,000,000 computed 

using the outstanding common shares and closing market price on June 30, 2011. 

Al December 31, 2011, there were 339.975,610 shares of Common Stock outstanding. 

Part III is incorporated by reference from the Proxy Statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 2, 2012. 



HESS CORPORATION 

Form 10-K 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Item No. Page 

P A R T I 
1 and 2. Business and Properties 2 

1 A. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations 14 
3. Legal Proceedings 16 

PART II 
5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases 

of Equity Securities 18 
6. Selected Financial Data 20 
7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 21 

7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 40 
8. Financial Statements and Supplementaiy Data 43 
9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure . . . . 95 

9A. Controls and Procedures 95 
9B. Other Information 95 

PART III 
10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 95 
11. Executive Compensation 96 
12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 

Matters 96 
13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 96 
14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 96 

PART IV 
15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 97 

Signatures 101 
FinancialStatementsof HOVENSA L.L.C. as of December 31, 2011 103 



PARTI 

Items 1 and 2. Busine.s.s and Properties 

Hess Corporation (the Registrant) is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in 1920. The Registrant and its 
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Corporation or Hess) is a global integrated energy company that 
operates in two segments. Exploration and Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The E&P 
segment explores for, develops, produces, purchases, transports and sells crude oil and natural gas. These 
exploration and production activities take place principally in Algeria. Australia. Azerbaijan, Brazil, Brunei, 
China, Denmark, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, France, Ghana, Indonesia, the Kurdistan region of Iraq, Libya, 
Malaysia, Norway, Peru, Russia, Thailand, the United Kingdom and the United States (U.S.). The M&R segment 
manufactures refined petroleum products and purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural 
gas and electricity. The Corporation owns 50% of HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA), a joint venture in the U.S. 
Virgin Islands. In January 2012, HOVENSA announced a decision to shut down its refinery and operate the 
complex as an oil storage terminal. The Corporatitju also operates a refining facility, terminals, and retail 
gasoline stations, most of which include convenience stores, that are located on the East Coast of the United 
States. 

Exploration and Production 

The Corporation's total proved developed and undeveloped reser\'es at December 31 were as follows; 

Developed 
United States 
Europe (b) . . 
Africa 
Asia 

Undeveloped 
United States 
Europe (b) . . 
Africa 
Asia 

Total 
United States 
Europe (b) . . 
Africa 
Asia 

Crude Oil, 
Condensate & 
Natural Gas 
Liquids <c) 

2011 2010 

(Millinns 4>f barrels) 

190 
212 
194 
25 

621 

183 
282 

56 
27 

548 

373 
494 
250 
52 

1,169 

180 
210 
215 
22 

627 

124 
256 

55 
42 

477 

304 
466 
270 
64 

1,104 

Natural Gas 

2011 2010 

(Millions of mcf) 

199 
273 

63 
677 

1,212 

161 
290 

8 
752 

1,211 

360 
563 
71 

1,429 

2,423 

199 
424 

54 
638 

1,315 

81 
295 

9 
898 

1,283 

280 
719 
63 

1,536 

2,598 

Total Barrels of 
Oil Equivalent 

(BOE) (a) 

2011 2010 

(Millions of barrels) 

223 
258 
204 
138 

823 

210 
331 

57 
152 

750 

433 
589 
261 
290 

1,573 

213 
281 
224 
128 

846 

138 
305 
56 

192 

691 

351 
586 
280 
320 

1,537 

(uj Reflects natural gas reserves converted on the basis of relative energy content of six mcf equals one barrel of oil etjuivaleni (one mcf 
represents one thousand cubic feel). Barrel of oil equivalence does nol necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of 
natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent ba.vis has been substantially lower tlian the corre.iponding price for crude oil over the recent 
pas!. See the average selling prices in the table on page H. 



(h) Proved i-esen-es in Norway, which represented 23% and 22% of the Coiporation's total reseives at December .^1, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, were as follows: 

Developed .. 
Undeveloped 

Total 

Crude on. Condensate & 
Natural Gas Liquids Natural Gas 

Total Barrels of on 
Equivalent (BOE) 

20JI 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 

(Millions of barrels) 
108 97 
185 167 

(Millions of mcf) 
137 157 
251 247 

(Millions of barrels) 
131 J 23 
227 20S 

293 264 3S8 404 358 331 

(c) Total natural gas liquids resertes were 113 million barrels (56 million bairels developed and 57 million barrels undeveloped) al 
December 31, 2011 and 102 million barrels (54 million barrei-i developed and 4S million barrels undeveloped) at December 31. 2010. 

On a barrel of oil equivalent (boe) basis, 48% of the Corporation's worldwide proved reserves were 
undeveloped at December 31, 2011 (45% at December 31, 2010). Proved reserves held under production sharing 
contracts at December 31.2011 totaled 12% of crude oil and natural gas liquids reserves and 51 % of natural gas 
reserves, compared with 15% of crude oil and natural gas liquids reserves and 51% of natural gas reserves at 
December 31, 2010. See the Supplementary Oil and Gas Data on pages 85 through 93 in the accompanying 
financial statements for additional information on the Corporation's oil and gas reserves. 

Worldwide crude oil, natural gas hquids and natural gas production was as follows: 

Crude oil (thousands of barrels per day) 
United States 

Offshore 
Onshore 

Europe 
Russia 
Norway* 
United Kingdom 
Denmark 

Africa 
Equatorial Guinea 
Libya 
Algeria 
Gabon 

Asia 
Azerbaijan 
Other 

Total 

Natural gas liquids (thousands of barrels per day) 
United States 

Offshore 
Onshore 

Europe* 

Asia . . 

Total . . 

)11 

44 
37 

2010 

52 
23 

2009 

39 
21 

81 75 

89 

66 

6 

7 

13 

249 

6 
_ 7 

J^ 
_3 

17 

113 

7 
6 

13 

289 

7 
7 

14 

3 

1 

18 

60 

45 
20 
14 
10 

42 
16 
19 
11 

37 
13 
21 
12 

83 

54 
4 
8 
— 

69 
23 
11 
10 

70 
22 
14 
14 

120 

16 

279 

4 

7 

11 

3 

14 



2011 2010 2009 
Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 
United States 

Offshore 61 70 55 
Onshore _39 _ ^ 38 

100 108 93 

Europe 
Norway* 29 29 21 
United Kingdom 41 93 118 
Denmark _ l l _12 12 

81 134 151 

Asia and Other 
Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA) 267 282 294 
Thailand 84 85 85 
Indonesia 56 50 65 
Other _35 ^ 2 

442 427 446 

Total _623 _669 _690 

Barrels of oil equivalent (per day)** 370 418 408 

* Norway production for 20n ii\cluded IS thousand barrels per day of crude oil, I thousand barrels per day of natural gas liquids and 
15 thousand mcf per day of natural gas from the Valliall Field. Norv.-ay production for 2010 included 14 thousand barrels per day of 
crude oil, I thousand barrels per day of natural gas liquids and 13 thousand mcf per day of natural gas from the Valhall Field. 

""* Refiecis natural gas production convened on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equals one barrel). Barrel of oil ecjuivalence 
does not necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent basis has been 
substantially lower than the corresponding price for crude oil over the recent pu.tt. See the average selling prices in Ihe table cm page 8. 

A description of our significant E&P operations is as follows: 

United States 

At December 31, 2011, 28% of the Corporation's total proved reserves were located in the United States. 
During 2011, 35% of the Corporation's crude oil and natural gas liquids production and 16% of its natural gas 
production were from United States operations. The Corporation's production in the United States was from 
offshore properties in the Gulf of Mexico, as well as onshore properties principally in the Williston Basin of 
North Dakota and in the Permian Basin of Texas. 

Offshore: The Corporation's production offshore the United States was principally from the Shenzi (Hess 
28%), Llano (Hess 50%). Conger (Hess 38%), Baldpate (Hess 50%), Hack Wilson (Hess 25%) and Penn State 
(Hess 50%) fields. 

At the Shenzi Field, the operator is expected to complete initial installation of water injection equipment and 
drill additional development wells in 2012. At the outside operated Llano Field, a workover on a shut-in well, which 
was producing in excess of 10,000 net barrels of oil equivalent per day prior to shut-in, will be completed in 2012. 
Additional development drilling at the Llano Field is planned to commence during the second half of 2012. 

During the third quarter of 2011, the Corporation, as operator, and its partner sanctioned the development of 
the Tubular Bells Field (Hess 57%) in the Mississippi Canyon Block 725 Area in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico. 
In 2012, field development will be advanced with the on-going construction of a floating production system and 
development drilling that is scheduled to start in the second quarter. First production is anticipated in 2014. 

At the Pony prospect on Green Canyon Block 468 (Hess 100%), the Corporation has signed a non-binding 
agreement with the owners of the adjacent Knotty Head prospect on Green Canyon Block 512 that outlines a 
proposal to jointly develop the field. This agreement provides that the Corporation will be operator of the joint 
development. Negotiation of a joint operating agreement, including working interest percentages forthe partners, 
and planning for the field development are progressing. The project is now targeted for sanction in 2013. 



At December 31, 2011, the Corporation had interests in 289 blocks in the Gulf of Mexico, of which 267 
were exploration blocks comprising 1,054,000 net undeveloped acres, with an additional 46,000 net acres held 
for production and development operations. 

Onshore: In North Dakota, the Corporation holds nearly 900,0(X) net acres in the Bakken oil shale play 
(Bakken). In 2012, the Corporation plans to invest approximately $1.9 billion for drilling and infrastructure in the 
Bakken. The Corporation plans to operate 16 rigs with five dedicated hydraulic fracturing crews in 2012. 
Infrastructure investments include completion of a crude oil rail loading and storage facility, which is due to 
become fully operational in the first quarter of 2012, and continuing expansion ofthe Tioga gas plant. 

In Texas, the Corporation holds a 34% interest in the Seminole-San Andres Unit and is operator. The 
Corporation also holds more than 100,000 net acres in the Eagle Ford shale. First production from the Eagle Ford 
commenced in May 2011. During 2012, the Corporation plans to operate three rigs and diill approximately 25 to 
30 wells. 

Tn 2011, the Corporation entered into agreements to acquire approximately 85,000 net acres in the Utica 
Shale play in eastern Ohio for approximately $750 milhon, principally through the acquisition of Marquette 
Explorarion, LLC. The Corporation also completed the acquisition of a 50% undivided interest in CONSOL 
Energy Inc.'s (CONSOL) nearly 200,000 acres in the Utica Shale play for S59 milhon in cash at closing and the 
agreement to fund 50% of CONSOL's share of the drilhng costs up to $534 million within a 5-year period. 
Appraisal of the Utica acreage commenced in the fourth quarter of 2011 and will continue during 2012 with the 
acquishion of seismic and the planned drilling of 29 wells. 

Europe 

At December 31. 2011, 37% of fhe Corporation's total proved reser\'es were located in Europe (Norway 
23%, United Kingdom 4%, Denmark 3% and Russia 7%). During 2011, 35% ofthe Corporation's crude oil and 
natural gas liquids production and 13% of its natural gas production were from European operations. 

Norway: Substantially all of the 2011 Norwegian production was from the Corporation's interests in the 
Valhall Field (Hess 64%). At December 31, 2011, the Corporation also held interests in the Hod (Hess 63%) and 
Snohvit (Hess 3%) fields. All three ofthe Corporation's Norwegian field interests are located offshore. 

At the Valhall Field, a multi-year redevelopment project is scheduled lo be completed in 2012. The project 
includes the installation of two new platforms with production, compression and water injection equipment and 
hving quarters. In addition, further drilling is planned for Valhall in 2012. In the third quarter of 2012, there is 
expected to be significant downtime for the operator to complete the project and commission the new facilities. 

In August 2011, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the SnoiTe Field (Hess 1%), offshore 
Norway. In January 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Snohvit Field. 

United Kingdom: Production of crude oil and natural gas liquids from the United Kingdom North Sea was 
principally from the Corporation's non-operated interests in the Bittern (Hess 28%), Nevis (Hess 27%), Beryl 
(Hess 22%) and Schiehallion (Hess 16%) fields. Natural gas production from the United Kingdom was primarily 
from the Nevis (Hess 27%) and Beryl (Hess 22%) fields. The Corporation also has interests in the Atlantic (Hess 
25%), Cromarty (Hess 90%), Fife, Flora and Angus (Hess 85%), Fergus (Hess 65%), Ivanhoe and Rob Roy 
(Hess 77%), Renee (Hess 14%) and Ruble (Hess 19%) fields. These fields are no longer producing and 
decommissioning activities have commenced. 

In the first half of 2011, the Corporation completed the sale of a package of natural gas producing assets 
including its interests in the Easington Catchment Area (Hess 30%), the Bacton Area (Hess 23%), the Everest Field 
(Hess 19%) and the Lomond Field (Hess 17%), as well as its interest in the Central Area Transmission System 
pipeline. The Corporation also completed the sale of its interest in the Cook Field (Hess 28%) in August 2011. 

Denmark: Crude oil and natural gas production comes from the Corporation's operated interest in the 
South Ame Field (Hess 62%), offshore Denmark. In October 2011, the Corporation acquhed an additional 4% 
interest in the South Ame Field increasing its interest to 62% from 58%. 

Russia: The Corporation's activities in Russia are conducted through its interest in a subsidiary operating 
in the Volga-Urals region. In the third quarter of 2011, the Corporation acquired an additional 5% interest in its 



subsidiary, increasing its ownership to 90%. As of December 31, 2011, this subsidiary had exploration and 
production rights tn 22 license areas. During 2012, the Corporation plans to contmue drilhng and to install gas 
treatment facilities that are anticipated to start up in the fourth quarter of 2012. 

France: The Corporation's activities in France are conducted through an agreement with Toreador 
Resources Corporation (Toreador), under which it can invest in an initial exploration phase and earn up to a 50% 
working interest in, and become operator of. Toreador's approximately 680,000 net acres in the Paris Basin. An 
initial six exploration well program, which was scheduled to begin in 2011, was deferred due to a temporary drilling 
moratorium requested by the government prior to the implementation of a law prohibiting hydraulic fracturing. In 
2012, the Corporation anticipates drilling up to three conventional vertical wells and continuing geological and 
geophysical analysis. 

Africa 

At December 31, 2011, 17% of the Corporation's total proved reserves were located in Africa (Equatorial 
Guinea 5%, Algeria 1% and Libya 11%). During 2011, 25% of the Corporation's crude oil and natural gas 
liquids production was from its African operations. 

Equatorial Guinea: The Corporation is operator and owns an interest in Block G (Hess 85%) which 
contains the Ceiba Field and Okiune Complex, During 2012, the Corporation intends to drill additional 
production wells at the Ceiba Field. Additional development drilling at the Okume Complex is planned to 
commence during 2013. 

Algeria: The Corporation has a 49% interest in a venture with the Algerian national oil company that 
redeveloped three oil fields. The Corporation also has an interest in Bir El Msana (BMS) Block 401C (Hess 
45%). In 2011, the Coiporation sanctioned a small development project at the BMS Field. 

Libya: The Corporation, in conjunction with its Oasis Group partners, has oil and gas production 
operations in the Waha concessions in Libya (Hess 8%). The Corporation also owns a 100% interest in offshore 
exploration Area 54 in the Mediterranean Sea, where two wells discovered hydrocarbons. 

In response to civil ururest in Libya, a number of measures were taken by the international community in the 
first quarter of 2011, including the imposition of economic sanctions. Production at the Waha Field was 
suspended in the first quarter of 2011. As a consequence of the civil unrest and the sanctions, the Corporation 
delivered force majeure notices to the Libyan government relating to the agreements covering its exploration and 
production interests in order lo protect its rights while it was temporarily prevented from fulfilling its obligations 
and benefiting from the rights granted by those agreements. Production at the Waha Field restarted during the 
fourth quarter of 2011 at levels that were significantly lower than those prior to the civil umest. The 
Corporation's Libyan production averaged 23.000 barrels of oil equivalent per day (boepd) for the full year of 
2010 and 4,000 boepd for 2011. The force majeure covering the Corporation's production interests was 
withdrawn at the end of the fourth quarter of 2011. as the economic sanctions were lifted. The force majeure 
covering the Corporation's offshore exploration interests remained in place at year-end but is expected to be 
withdrawn in 2012. The Corporation had proved reserves of 166 milhon barrels of oil equivalent in Libya at 
December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011, the net book value of the Corporation's exploration and production 
assets in Libya was approximately $500 million. 

Ghana: The Corporation holds a 90% interest and is operator in the Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points 
License where the Corporaiion drilled an exploration well in 2011 that encountered an estimated 490 net feet of 
oil and gas condensate pay over three separate intervals. The Corporation anticipates commencing additional 
exploration drilling in the first quarter of 2012, subject to govermnent approvals and rig availability. 

Egypt'. The Corporation owns an 80% interest in Block 1 offshore Egypt in the North Red Sea. 

Asia 

At December 31, 2011, 18% of the Corporation's total proved reserves were located in the Asia region (JDA 
8%, Indonesia 5%, Thailand 3%, Azerbaijan 1% and Malaysia 1%). During 2011, 5% ofthe Corporation's crude 
oil and natural gas liquids production and 71% of its natural gas production were from its Asian operations. 

Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA): The Corporation owns an interest in Block A-18 
of the JDA (Hess 50%) in the Gulf of Thailand. In 2011, the operator continued development drilling and 



wellhead platform construction and installation activities. In 2012, the operator will continue development ofthe 
block by progressing wellhead platform installations and with the anticipated sanction of a compression project. 

Malaysia: The Corporation's production in Malaysia comes from its interest in Block PM301 (Hess 50%), 
which is adjacent to Block A-18 of the JDA where the natural gas is processed. The Corporation also owns 
interests in Block PM302 (Hess 50%) and Block SB302 (Hess 40%). Technical and commercial evaluations are 
underway to assess the development alternatives for these blocks. 

Indonesia: The Coiporation's production in Indonesia comes from its interests offshore in the Ujung 
Pangkah project (Hess 75%), and the Natuna A Field (Hess 23%). During 2011, a second wellhead platform and 
central processing facility were installed at Ujung Pangkah. At the Natuna A Field, the operator completed 
construction and installed a second wellhead platform and a central processing platform. The Corporation holds a 
100% working interest in the offshore Semai V Block, where it drilled two exploration wells during 2011 which 
were both expensed in the fourth quarter. The Corporation also owns a 100% working interest in the offshore 
South Sesulu Block, a 49% interest in the West Timor Block, which includes onshore and offshore acreage, and a 
100% interest in the Timor Sea Block I, offshore Indonesia. 

Thailand: The Corporation's natural gas production in Thailand comes from the offshore Pailin Field 
(Hess 15%) and the onshore Sinphuhorm Block (Hess 35%). 

Azerhaijan: The Corporation has an interest in the Azeri-Chnag-Guneshli (ACG) fields (Hess 3%) in the 
Caspian Sea and also owns an interest in the Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan oil transportation pipeline company (Hess 2%). 

Brunei: The Corporation has an interest in Block CA-I (Hess 14%). In 2011, the operator drilled the 
Julong Center exploration well which was subsequently expensed. The operator anticipates commencing further 
exploration drilling on this block in 2012. 

Kurdistan Region of Iraq: In July 2011, the Corporation signed production sharing contracts with the 
Kurdistan Regional Government of Iraq for the Dinarta and Shakrok exploration bkicks. The Corporation is 
operator and has an 80% paying interest (64% participating interest) in the blocks, which have a combined area 
of more than 670 square miles. The terms of the contracts require the acquisition of 2D seismic and drilling of at 
least one well on each of the blocks over the three year license period. 

China: The Corporation has signed a joint study agreement with Sinopec to evaluate unconventional oil 
and gas resource opportunities covering approximately 1.7 million acres in China. 

Other Exploration Areas 

Australia: The Corporation holds a 100% interest in an exploration hcense covering approximately 
780,000 acres in the Carnarvon basin offshore Western Australia (WA-390-P Block, also known as Equus). The 
Corporation has drilled all of the 16 commitment wells on the block, 13 of which were natural gas discoveries. 
During 2011, the Corporation conrinued its appraisal program by drilling and flow testing certain wells. 
Appraisal of the discoveries is expected to be completed in mid-2012. Development plans were progressed 
during 2011, mcludtng the awarding of Front-End Engineering Design (FEED) contracts for a semi-submersible 
production platform, subsea gas gathering systems and an export pipeline in the fourth quarter. Negotiations with 
potential liquefaction partners will continue during 2012. In addition, during 2011, the Corporation signed a 
participation agreement under which it has the option to earn a 63% working interest in more than 6.2 million 
acres in the Beetaloo Basin, Northern Territory Austraha. 

Peru: The Corporation has an interest in Block 64 in Peru (Hess 50%). The operator has drilled several 
exploratory wells on the block that have encountered hydrocarbons. In the fourth quarter of 2011, the operator 
spudded the Situche Norte 4X well which is expected to be completed in mid-2012. 

Brazil: The Corporation has a 40% interest in block BM-S-22 located offshore Brazil. 

Sales Commitments 

In the E&P segment, the Corporation has contracts to sell fixed quantities of its natural gas and natural gas 
liquids (NGL) production. The natural gas contracts prmcipally relate to producing fields in Asia. The most 
significant of these commitments relates to the JDA where the minimum contract quantity of natural gas is 
estimated at 107 million mcf per year based on current entitlements under a sales contract expiring in 2027. There 
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are additional natural gas supply commitments on producing fields in Thailand and Indonesia which ciurently total 
approximately 45 million mcf per year under contracts expiring in years 2021 through 2029. The Corporation also 
has a commitment to supply approximately 15 million mcf of natural gas per year in the Bakken under a sales 
contract expiring in 2013. The Corporation also has NGL contracts relating to the Bakken, which commence in 
2013. The minimum contract quantity under these contracts, which expire in 2023, is approximately 9.6 milhon 
barrels per year. The estimated total volume of production subject to sales commitments under all these contracts is 
approximately 2,422 million mcf of natural gas and 96 million barrels of NGL. The Corporation has not 
experienced any significant constraints in satisfying the committed quantities required by its sales commitments and 
it anticipates being able to meet future requirements from available proved and probable reserves-

Natural gas is marketed by the M&R segment on a spot basis and under contracts for varying periods of dme 
to kx:al distribution companies, and commercial, industrial and other purchasers. These natural gas marketing 
activities are primarily conducted in the eastern portion of the United States, where the principal source of supply is 
purchased namral gas, not the Corporation's production from the E&P segment. The Corporation has not 
experienced any significant constraints in obtaining the required supply of purchased natural gas. 

Average selling prices and average production costs 

2011 2010 2009 

Average selling prices (a) 
Crude oil (per barrel) 

United States $ 98.56 $ 75.02 $ 60.67 
Europe (b) 80.18 58.11 47.02 
Africa 88.46 65.02 48.91 
Asia 111.71 79.23 63.01 

Worldwide 89.99 66.20 51.62 
Natural gas hquids (per barrel) 

United States $ 58.59 $ 47.92 $ 36.57 
Europe (b) 75.49 59.23 43.23 
Asia 72.29 63.50 46.48 

Worldwide 62,72 50.49 38.47 
Natural gas (per mcf) 

United States $ 3.39 $ 3.70 $ 3.36 
Europe (b) 8.79 6,23 5.15 
Asia and other 6.02 5.93 5.06 

Worldwide 5.96 5.63 4.85 
Average production (hfting) costs per barrel of oil equivalent 

produced (c) 
United States $ 16.30 $ 12.61 $ 13.72 
Europe (b) 25.13 17.55 15.77 
Africa 15.95 11.00 10.93 
Asia and other 10.62 8.16 7.65 

Worldwide 17.40 12.61 12.12 

(a) Includes inter-company rrcm.tfers valued at approximate marliel prices and the effect ofthe Corporation '.v hedging activities. 

(h) The average selling prices in Norway for 2011 were $112.3a per barrel for crude oil, $62.07 per barrel for natural gas liquids and 
$9.77 per mcf for natural gas. The average production (lifting) cost in Norway in 2011 was $31.09 per barrel of oil equivalent produced. 
The average .telling prices in Norway for 2010 were $79.47 per barrel for crude oil, $52.26 per barrel for natural gas Hquids and 
$7.32 per mcf for natural gas. The average production (lifting) cost in Norv.xiy in 2010 was $18.33 per barrel of oil equivalent produced. 

(c) Production (lifting) co.st.i- consist of amounts incurred lo operate and maintain the Corporation's producing oil and gas wells, related 
equipment and facilities, transportation costs and production and severance taxes. Tlie average production costs per barrel of oil 
equivalent reflect the crude oil equivalent of natural gas production converted on the basis of relative energy content (six mcf equcds one 
barrel). 

The table above does not include costs of finding and developing proved oil and gas reserves, or the costs of 
related general and administrative expenses, interest expense and income taxes. 



Gross and net undeveloped acreage at December 31,2011 

United States . 
Europe (b) . . . 
Africa 
Asia and other 

Total (c) 

Undeveloped 
Acreage (a) 

Gross Net 

(In thousands) 

2,902 
2,651 
8,009 

11,250 

24,812 

2,038 
1,266 
4,625 
6,960 

14,889 

(a) Includes acreage held under production .sharing contracts. 

(b) Gross and net undeveloped acreage in Norway was 841 thousand and 132 thousand, respectively. 

(c) Licenses covering approximately 29% of the Corporation's net undeveloped acreage held at December 31, 2011 are scheduled to expire 
during the next three years pending the results of exploration activities. These .-scheduled e.xpirations are largely in Asia. South America 
and the United Siales. 

Gross and net developed acreage and productive wells at December 31,2011 
Developed 

AppHcabie to Productive Wells (a) 
Productive Wells Oil C.as 

Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net 

(In thousands) 

United States 972 684 1,446 730 65 51 

Europe (b) 1,015 787 282 189 21 2 

Africa 9,832 933 903 130 — — 
Asia 2,200 630 80 10 ^ J02 

Total 14,019 3,034 2,711 1,059 547 155 

(a) Includes multiple completion welts (wells producing from different formations in the .tame bore hole) totaling 28 gross wells and 19 net 
wells-

lb) Gross and net developed acreage in Norway was 132 thousand and 43 ihoitsand, respectively. Gross and net productive oil wells in 
Norway were 44 and 29, respectively. Gross and net productive gas wells in Nonvay were 9 and 1, respectively. 

Number of net exploratory and development wells drilled at December 31 

Productive wells 
United States 
Europe 
Africa 
Asia and other 

Dry holes 
United States — 5 4 — — — 
Europe 
Africa 
Asia and other 

Net Exploratory 
Wells 

2011 

20 
6 
1 
4 

31 

2010 

1 
1 
6 

8 

2009 

7 
1 
8 

16 

Net I>evelopment 
Wells 

2011 

98 
25 

1 
18 

142 

2010 

83 
18 
11 
7 

119 

2009 

44 
12 
23 
12 

91 

Total 

2 
1 
1 

4 

35 

— 
2 
2 

9 

17 

— 
— 

2 

6 

22 

— 
— 
— 

— 

142 

— 
1 

— 

1 

120 

— 
— 
— 

— 

91 



Gross 
Wells 

203 
10 
1 

21 

Net 
Wells 

71 
8 
1 
6 

Number of wells in process of drilling at December 31, 2011 

United States 
Europe 
Africa 
Asia and other 

Total 235 86 

Marketing and Refining 

Refining 

The Corporation owns a 50% interest in HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA), a joint venture with a subsidiary 
of Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. (PDVSA) that operated a refinery in Ihe U.S. Virgin Islands. In addition, the 
Corporaiion owns and operates a refining facility in Port Reading, New Jersey. 

HOVENSA: In January 2012, HOVENSA announced a decision It) shut down its refinery in St. Croix, 
U.S. Virgin Islands and operate the complex as an oil storage terminal. For further discussion ofthe refinery 
shutdown, see Note 5, HOVENSA L.L.C. Joint Venture in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Refining operations at HOVENSA consisted of crude units, a fluid catalytic cracking (FCC) unit and a 
delayed coker unit. The following table summarizes capacity and utilization rates for HOVENSA: 

Crude 
Fluid catalytic cracker 
Coker 

Refinery 
Capacity 

(Thousands of 
barrels per day) 

350* 
150 
58 

Refinery Utilization 

2011 2010 2009 

81,1% 78.0% 80.3% 
71.7% 66.5% 70.2% 
77.4% 78.3% 81.6% 

* HOVENSA's crude oil refining capacity was reduced lo 350.000 from 500.000 barrels per day in the first half of 2011. 

Gross crude runs at HOVENSA averaged 284,000 barrels per day in 2011 compared with 
390,000 barrels per day in 2010 and 402,000 barrels per day in 2009. These utilization rates reflect weaker 
refining margins, together with planned and unplanned maintenance. 

Port Reading Facility: The Corporation owns and operates an FCC unit in Port Reading, New Jersey, 
with a capacity of 70,000 barrels per day. This facility, which processes residual fuel oil and vacuum gas oil, 
operated at a rate of approximately 63,000 barrels per day in 2011 compared with 55,000 and 63,000 barrels per 
day, respectively in 2010 and 2009. Substanrially all of Port Reading's production is gasoline and heating oil. 
During 2010, the Port Reading refining facility was shut down for 41 days fora scheduled turnaround. 

Marketing 

The Corporation markets refined petrtileum products, natural gas and electricity on the East Coast of the 
United States to the motoring public, wholesale distributors, industrial and commercial users, other petroleum 
companies, governmental agencies and public utilities. 

The Corporation had 1,360 HESS® gasoline stations at December 31, 2011, including stations owned by its 
WilcoHess joint venture (Hess 44%). Approximately 92% of the gasoline stations are operated by the 
Corporation or WilcoHess. Of the operated stations, 95% have convenience stores on the sites. Most of the 
Corporation's gasoline stations are in New York, New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Florida, Massachusetts, North 
Carolina and South Carolina. 
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The table below summarizes marketing sales volumes for the years ended December 31: 

2011" 2010=^ 2009^^ 

Refined petroleum product sales (thousands of barrels per day) 
Gasolme 222 242 236 
Distillates 123 120 134 
Residuals 65 69 67 
Other 20 40 36 

Total refined petroleum product sales 430 471 473 

Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 2,167 2,016 2,010 
Electricity (megawatts round the clock) 4,374 4,140 4,306 

* Of total refined petroleum products sold, a total of approximately 37% 4 1 % and 45% was obtained from HOVENSA and Port Reading in 
2011. 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Corporation purchased the balance from third parlies under short-term supply contracts and spot 
purchases. 

The Corporation does not anticipate any disruption to product supply for its Marketing operations as a result 
of the shutdown of HOVENSA's refinery. 

The Corporation owns 20 terminals with an aggregate storage capacity of 21 million barrels in its East Coast 
marketing areas. The Corporation also owns a terminal in St. Lucia with a storage capacity of 10 milhon barrels, 
which is operated for thud party storage. 

The Corporation has a 50% interest in Bayonne Energy Center, LLC, a joint venture established to build and 
operate a 512-megawatt natural gas fueled electric generating station in Bayonne, New Jersey. The joint venture 
plans to sell electricity into the New York City market by a direct connection with the Con Edison Gowanus 
substation. Construcrion of the facility began in mid-2010 and operations are due to commence in mid-2012. 

The Corporaiion has a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership that trades energy commodities and 
derivatives. The Corporaiion also takes energy commodity and derivative trading positions for ils own account. 

A subsidiary of the Corporation is exploring the development of fuel cell and hydrogen reforming 
technologies-

For additional financial information by segment see Note 19, Segmenl Information in the notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Competition and Market Conditions 

See Item IA. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operation.̂ , for a discussion of competition and 
market conditions. 

Other Items 

Gulf of Mexico Update 

The Corporaiion has filed 183 Suspension of Operations (SOO) requests with the Bureau of Safety and 
Environmental Enforcement (BSEE). These SOO requests seek the BSEE's approval for the extension of leases 
beyond their initial period where operations requued to hold the leases have been delayed due to circumstances 
beyond the control of the Corporaiion. All 183 SOO requests have been approved for one year extensions. In 
addition, the Corporation has applied and received approval for exploration plans for two deepwater prospects. 
Further discussions have been held with the BSEE concerning the Corporation's oil spill response plan for its 
Gulf of Mexico operations, which is also awaiting approval. This plan sets forth expectations for response 
training, drills and capabilities and the strategies, procedures and methods that the Corporation will employ in the 
event of a spill covering the following topics: spill response organization, incident command post, 
communications and notifications, spill detection and assessment (including worst case discharge scenarios), 
identification and protection of environmental resources, strategic response planning, mobilization and 
deployment of spill response equipment and personnel, oil and debris removal and disposal, the use of 
dispersants and chemical and biological agents, in-situ burning of oil, wildlife rehabilitation and documentation 
requirements. 
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Emergency Preparedness and Response Plans and Procedures 

The Corporation has tn place a series of business and asset-specific emergency preparedness, response and 
business continuity plans that detail procedures for rapid and effective emergency response and environmental 
mitigation activities. These plans are risk appropriate and are maintained, reviewed and updated as necessary to 
ensure their accuracy and suitability. Where appropriate, they are also reviewed and approved by the relevant 
host government authorities. 

Responder training and drills are routinely held worldwide to assess and continually improve the 
effectiveness of the Corporation's plans. The Corporation's contractors, service providers, representatives from 
government agencies and. where applicable, joint venture partners participate in the drills to ensure that 
emergency procedures are comprehensive and can be effectively implemented. 

To complement internal capabilities and to ensure coverage for its global operations, the Corporation 
maintains membership contracts with a network of local, regional and global oil spill response and emergency 
response organizations. At the regional and global level, these organizations include Clean Gulf Associates, 
Helix Well Containment Group (HWCG), Marine Well Containment Company (MWCC), Wild Well Control, 
National Response Corporation (NRC) and Oil Spill Response (OSR). Clean Gulf Associates is a regional spill 
response organization and HWCG and MWCC both provide the equipment and personnel to contain an 
underwater well control incident in the Gulf of Mexico. Wild Well Control provides firefighting, well control and 
engineering services globally. NRC and OSR are global response organizations and are available to assist the 
Corporation when needed anywhere in the world. In addition to owning response assets in their own right, these 
organizations maintain business relationships that provide immediate access to additional critical response 
support services if requiied. These owned response assets included nearly 300 recovery and storage vessels and 
barges, more than 250 skimmers, over 300,000 feet of boom, and significant quantities of dispersants and other 
ancillary equipment, including aircraft. If the Coiporation were to engage these organizations to obtain additional 
critical response support services, it would fund such sei"vices and seek reimbursement under its insurance 
coverage described below. In certain circumstances, the Corporation pursues and enters into mutual aid 
agreements with other companies and government cooperatives to receive and provide oil spill response 
equipment and personnel support. The Corporation mamtams close associations with emergency response 
organizations through its representation on the Executive Committee of Clean Gulf Associates and the Board of 
Directors of OSR. 

The Corporation continues to participate in a number of industry-wide task forces that are studying better 
ways to assess the risk of and prevent onshore and offshore incidents, access and control blowouts in subsea 
environments, and improve containment and recoveiy methods. The task forces are working closely with the oil 
and gas industry and international government agencies to implement improvements and increase the 
effectiveness of oil spill prevention, preparedness, response and recovery processes. 

Insurance Coverage and Indemnification 

The Corporation maintains insurance coverage that includes coverage for physical damage to its property, third 
party liability, workers' compensation and employers' iiabUity, general liability, sudden and accidental pollution, 
and other ctwerage. This insurance coverage is subject to deductibles, exclusitms and limitations and there is no 
assurance that such coverage will adequately protect the Corporation against liability from all potential 
consequences and damages. 

The amount of insurance covering physical damage to the Corporation's property and liability related to 
negative environmental effects resulring from a sudden and accidental pollution event, excluding windstorm 
coverage in the Gulf of Mexico tor which it is self insured, varies by asset, based on the asset's estimated 
replacement value or the estimated maximum loss. In the case of a catastrophic event, first party coverage 
consists of two tiers of insurance. The first $250 million of coverage is provided through an industry mutual 
insurance group. Above this $250 million threshold, insurance is carried which ranges in value to over $2.0 
billion in total, depending on the asset coverage level, as described above. Additionally, the Corporation carries 
insurance which provides third party coverage for general liability, and sudden and accidental pollution, up to $1 
billion. Beginning in 2012, the first layer of insurance coverage has been increased to $300 million, and above 
that threshold, insurance is carried which ranges in value to over $2.25 billion. 
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Other insurance policies provide coverage for, among other things: charterer's legal liability, in the amount 
of $500 million per occurrence and aircraft liability, in the amount of $300 million per occurrence. 

The Corporation's insurance policies renew at various dates each year. Future insurance coverage for the 
industry could increase in cost and may include higher deductibles or retentions, or additional exclusions or 
limitations. In addition, some forms of kisurance may become unavailable in the future or unavailable on terms 
that are deemed economically acceptable. 

Generally, the Corporation's drilhng contracts (and most of its other offshore services contracts) provide for 
a mutual hold harmless indemnity structure whereby each party to the contract (the Corporation and Contractor) 
indemnifies the other party for injuries or damages to their personnel and property regardless of fault. Variations 
include indemnity exclusions to the extent a claim is attributable to the gross negligence and/or willful 
misconduct of a party. Third-party claims, on the other hand, are generally allocated on a fault basis. 

The Corporation is customarily responsible for, and indemnifies the Contractor against, all claims, including 
those from thhd-parties, to the extent attributable to pollution or contamination by substances originating from its 
reser\'oirs or other property (regardless of fault, including gross negligence and willful misconduct) and the 
Contractor is responsible for and mdemnifies the Corporation for all claims attributable to pollution emanating 
from the Contractor's property. Additionally, the Corporation is generally liable for all of its own losses and most 
third-party claims associated with catastrophic losses such as blowouts, ciatering and loss of hole, regardless of 
cause, although exceptions for losses attributable to gross negligence and/or willful misconduct do exist. Lastly, 
many offshore services contracts include overall limitations of the Contractor's liability equal to the value of the 
contract or a fixed amount, whichever is greater. 

Under a standard joint operating agreement (JOA), each party is liable for all claims arising under the JOA, 
not covered by or in excess of insurance canied by the JOA, to the extent of its participating interest (operator or 
non-operator). Variations include indenmity exclusions where the claim is based upon the gross negligence and/ 
or willful misconduct of a party in which case such party is solely liable. However, under some production 
sharing contracts between a governmental entity and commercial parties, liability of the commercial parties to the 
governmental entity is joint and several. 

Environmental 

Compliance with various existing environmental and pollution control regulations imposed by federal, state, 
local and foreign governments is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Coiporation's financial 
condition orresuhs of operations. The Corporation spent $19 million in 2011 for environmental remediation. The 
Corporation anticipates capital expenditures for facilifies, primarily to comply with federal, state and local 
environmental standards, other than for the low sulfur requirements, of approximately $120 milhon in both 2012 
and 2013. For further discussion of environmental matters see the Environment, Health and Safety section of 
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

Number of Employees 

The number of persons employed by the Corporation at year-end was approximately 14,350 in 2011 and 
13,800 in 2010. 

Other 

The Corporation's Internet address is www.hess.com. On its website, the Corporation makes available free of 
charge its annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and 
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as 
reasonably practicable after the Corporation electronically files with or furnishes such material to the Securities and 
Exchange Commission. The contents ofthe Corporation's website are not incorporated by reference in this report. 
Copies of the Coiporation's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, its Corporate Govemance Guidelines and the 
charters of the Audit Committee, the Compensation and Management Development Committee and the Corporate 
Govemance and Nominating Committee ofthe Board of Directors are available on the Corporation's website and 
are also available free of charge upon request to the Secretary of the Corporation at its principal executive offices. 
The Corporation has also filed with fhe New York St(X;k Exchange (NYSE) its annual certification that the 
Corporation's chief executive officer is unaware of any violation of the NYSE's corporate governance standards. 
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Item IA. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations 

Our business activities and the value of our securities are subject to significant risk factors, including those 
described below. The risk factors described below could negatively affect our operations, financial condition, 
liquidity and results of operations, and as a result, holders and purchasers of our securities could lose part or all 
of their investments. It is possible that additional risks relating to our securities may be described in a prospectus 
supplement if we issue securities in the future. 

Our business and operating results are highly dependent on the market prices of crude oil, natural 
gas, refined petroleum products and electricity, which can be very volatile. Our estimated proved reserves, 
revenue, operating cash flows, operating margins, future earnings and trading operations are highly dependent on 
the prices of crude oil, natural gas, refined petroleum products and electricity, which are volatile and influenced 
by numerous factors beyond our ctmtrol. Changes in commodity prices can also have a material impact on 
collateral and margin requirements under our derivative contracts. The major foreign oil producing countries, 
including members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries (OPEC), exert considerable influence 
over the supply and price of crude oil and refined petroleum products. Their ability or inability to agree on a 
common policy on rates of production and other matters has a significant impact on the oil markets. The 
commodities trading markets as well as other supply and demand factors may also influence the selling prices of 
crude oil. natural gas, refined petroleum products and electricity. To the extent that we engage in hedging 
activities to mitigate commodity price volatility, we may not realize the benefit of price increases above the 
hedged price. In order to manage the potential volatility of cash flows and credit requnements, the Corporation 
utilizes significant bank credit facilities. An inability to renew or replace such credit facilities or access other 
sources of funding as they mature would negarively impact our liquidity. 

If we fail to successfully increase our reserves, our future crude oil and natural gas production will he 
adversely impacted. We own or have access to a finite amount of oil and gas resen'es which will be depleted 
over time. Replacement of oil and gas production and reserves, including proved undeveloped reserves, is subject 
to successful exploration drilling, development activities, and enhanced recovery programs. Therefore, future oil 
and gas production is dependent on technical success in finding and developing additional hydrocarbon reserves. 
Exploration activity involves the interpretation of seismic and other geological and geophysical data, which does 
not always successfully predict the presence of commercial quantities of hydrocarbons. Drilhng risks include 
unexpected adverse conditions, irregularities in pressure or formations, equipment failure, blowouts and weather 
interruptions. Future developments may be affected by unforeseen reservoir conditions which negatively affect 
recoveiy factors or flow rates. The costs of drilling and development activities have increased in recent years 
which could negatively affect expected economic returns. Reserve replacement can also be achieved through 
acquisition. Although due dihgence is used in evaluating acquired oil and gas properties, similar risks may be 
encountered in the production of oil and gas on properties acquired from others. 

There are inherent uncertainties in estimating quantities of proved reserves and discounted future net 
cash flow, and actual quantities may be lower than estimated. Numerous uncertainties exist in estimating 
quantities of proved reserves and future net revenues from those reserves. Actual future production, oil and gas 
prices, revenues, taxes, capital expenditures, operating expenses, and quantities of recoverable oil and gas 
reserves may vary substantially from those assumed in the estimates and could materially affect the estimated 
quantities of our proved reserves and the related future net revenues. In addition, reserve estimates may be 
subject to downward or upward changes based on production performance, purchases or sales of properties, 
results of future development, prevailing oil and gas prices, production sharing contracts, which may decrease 
reserves as crude oil and natural gas prices increase, and other factors. 

We are subject to changing laws and regulations and other governmental actions that can 
significantly and adversely affect our business. Federal, state, local, territorial and foreign laws and 
regulations relating to tax increases and retroactive tax claims, disallowance of tax credits and deductions, 
expropriation or nationalization of property, mandatory government participarion, cancellation or amendment of 
contract rights, and changes in import and export regulations, limitations on access to exploration and 
development opportunities, as well as other political developments may affect our operations. The Dodd-Frank 
Wall Street Reform Act, enacted in 2010, delegated rulemaking responsibilities to carry out the Act to vaiious 
U.S. government agencies. Our business could potentially be adversely impacted by one or more of the final 
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rules under this Act, when issued, includmg potential additional costs to engage in certain derivative transactions. 
We also market motor fuels through lessee-dealers and wholesalers in certain states where legislation prohibits 
producers or refiners of crude oil from direcdy engaging in retail marketing of motor fuels. Similar legislation 
has been periodically proposed in various other states. As a result of the accident in April 2010 at the BP p.l.c. 
(BP) operated Macondo prospect in the Gulf of Mexico (in which the Corporation was not a participant) and the 
ensuing significant oil spill, a temporary drilling moratorium was imposed in the Gulf of Mexico. While this 
moratorium has since been lifted, significant new regulations have been imposed and further legislation and 
regulations may be proposed, including an increase in the potential liability in the event of an oil spill. The new 
regulatory envhonment has resulted in a longer permitting process and higher costs. 

Political instability in areas where we operate can adversely affect our business. Some of the 
international areas in which we operate, and the partners with whom we operate, are politically less stable than 
other areas and partners. Political unrest in North Africa and the Middle East has affected and may continue to 
affect our operations in these areas as well as oil and gas markets generally. The threat of terrorism around the 
world also poses additional risks to the operations of the oil and gas industry. 

Our oil and gas operations are subject to environmental risks and environmental laws and regulations 
that can result in signiflcant costs and liabilities. Our oil and gas operations, like those of the industry, are 
subject to environmental risks such as oil spills, produced water spills, gas leaks and ruptures and discharges of 
substances or gases that could expose us to substantial liability for pollution or other environmental damage. For 
example, the accident at the BP operated Macondo prospect in April 2010 resulted in a significant release of 
crude oil which caused extensive environmental and economic damage. Our operations are also subject to 
numerous United States federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations. Non-compliance 
with these laws and regulations may subject us to administrative, civil or criminal penaUies, remedial clean-ups 
and natural resource damages or other liabilities. In addition, increasingly stringent environmental regulations, 
particularly relating to the production of motor and other fuels, have resulted and will likely continue to result in 
higher capital expenditures and operating expenses for us and the oil and gas industry in general. 

Concerns have been raised in certain jurisdictions where we have operations concerning the safety and 
environmental impact of the drilling and development of unconventional oil and gas resources, particularly using 
the process of hydraulic fracturing. While we believe that these operations can be conducted safely and with 
minimal impact on the envnonment, regulatory bodies are responding to these concerns and may impose 
moratoriums and new regulations on such drilling operations that would likely have the effect of prohibiting or 
delaying such operations and increasing their cost. For example, a moratorium prohibiting hydraulic fracturing is 
currently impacting the Corporation's operations in France. 

Concerns about climate change may result in significant operational changes and expenditures and 
reduced demand for our products. We recognize that climate change is a global environmental concern. 
Continuing political and social attention to the issue of climate change has resulted in both existing and pending 
international agreements and national, regional or local legislation and regulatory measures to limit greenhouse 
gas emissions. These agreements and measures may require significant equipment modificafions, operational 
changes, taxes, or purchase of emission credits to reduce emission of greenhouse gases from our operations, 
which may result in substantial capital expenditures and compliance, operating, maintenance and remediation 
costs. In addition, we manufacture petroleum fuels, which through normal customer use resuU in the emission of 
greenhouse gases. Regulatory initiatives to reduce the use of these fuels may reduce our sales of, and revenues 
from, these products. Finally, to the extent that climate change may result in more extreme weather related 
events, we could experience increased costs related to prevention, maintenance and remediation of affected 
operations in addition to costs and lost revenues related to delays and shutdowns. 

Our industry is highly competitive and many uf our c<»mpetitors are larger and have greater 
resources than we have. The petroleum industry is highly competitive and very capital intensive. We 
encounter competition from numerous companies in each of our activities, including acquiring rights to explore 
for crude oil and natural gas, and in purchasing and marketing of refined petroleum products, natural gas and 
electricity. Many competitors, including national oil companies, are larger and have substantially greater 
resources. We are also in competition with producers and marketers of other forms of energy. Increased 
competition for worldwide oil and gas assets has significantly increased the cost of acquisitions. In addhion, 
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competition for drilling services, technical expertise and equipment has, in the recent past, affected the 
availability of technical personnel and drilling rigs, resulting in increased capital and operating costs. 

Catastrophic events, whether naturally occurring or man-made, may materially affect our operations 
and financial conditions. Our oil and gas operations are subject to unforeseen occurrences which have 
affected us from time to time and which may damage or destroy assets, interrupt operations and have other 
significant adverse efl̂ ecis. Examples of catastrophic risks include hurricanes, fires, explosions and blowouts, 
such as the accident at the Macondo prospect operated by BP in the Gulf of Mexico in 2010. Although we 
maintain insurance coverage against property and casualty losses, there can be no assurance that such insurance 
will adequately protect the Corporation against liability from all potential consequences and damages. Moreover, 
some forms of insurance may be unavailable in the future or be available only on terms that are deemed 
economically unacceptable. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

The Corporation, along with many other companies engaged in refining and marketing of gasoline, has been 
a party to lawsuits and claims related to the use of methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) in gasoline. A series of 
similar lawsuits, many involving water utilities or governmental entities, were filed in jurisdictions across the 
United States against producers of MTBE and petroleum refiners who produced gasoline containing MTBE, 
including the Corporation, The principal allegation in all cases was that gasoline containing MTBE is a defective 
product and that these parties are strictly liable in proportion to their share of the gasoline market for damage to 
groundwater resources and are required to take remedial action to ameliorate the alleged effects on the 
environment of releases of MTBE. In 2008, the majority of the cases against the Corporation were settled. In 
2010 and 2011, additional cases were settled including an acfion brought in state court by the State of New 
Hampshire. Two separate cases brought by the State of New Jersey and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
remain unresolved. In 2007, a pre-tax charge of $40 million was recorded to cover all of the known MTBE cases 
against the Corporation. 

The Corporation received a directive from the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection 
(NJDEP) to remediate contamination in the sediments of the lower Passaic River and the NJDEP is also seeking 
natural resource damages;. The directive, insofar as it affects the Corporation, relates to alleged releases from a 
petroleum bulk storage terminal in Newark, New Jersey now owned by the Corporation. The Corporation and 
over 70 companies entered into an Administrative Order tm Consent with the Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) to study the same contamination. The NJDEP has also sued several other companies linked to a facility 
considered by the State to be the largest contributor to river contaminafion. In January 2009, these companies 
added third party defendants, including the Corporation, to that case. In June 2007, the EPA issued a draft study 
which evaluated six alternatives for eariy action, with costs ranging from $900 million to $2.3 billion for all 
parties. Based on adverse comments from the Corporation and others, the EPA is reevaluating its ahernatives. In 
addition, the federal trustees for natural resources have begun a separate assessment of damages to natural 
resources in the Passaic River. Given the ongoing studies, remedial costs cannot be reliably estimated at this 
time. Based on currently known facts and circumstances, the Corporation does not believe that this matter will 
result in a material liability because its terminal could not have contributed contamination along most of the 
river's length and did not store or use contaminants which are of the greatest concern in the river sediments, and 
because there are numerous other parties who will likely share in the cost of remediation and damages. 

On July 25. 2011, the Virgin Islands Department of Planning and Natural Resources commenced an 
enforcement action against HOVENSA by issuance of documents titled "Notice Of Violation, Order For 
Corrective Action, Notice Of Assessment of Civil Penalty, Notice Of Opportunity For Healing" (the "NOVs"). 
The NOVs assert violations of Virgin Islands Air Pollution Control laws and regulations arising out of odor 
mcidents on St. Croix in May 2011 and proposes total penalties of $210,000. HOVENSA is engaging in 
settlement discussions with the Government of the Virgin Islands, but believes that it has good defenses against 
the asserted violations. 

On December 16, 2010, the Virgin Islands Department of Planning and Natural Resources commenced four 
separate enforcement actions against HOVENSA by issuance of documents titled "Notice Of Violation, Order 
For Correcfive Action, Notice Of Assessment of Civil Penalty, Notice Of Opportunity For Hearing". The NOVs 
assert violations of Virgin Islands Air Pollution Control laws and regulations arising out of air release incidents 
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at the HOVENSA refmety in 2009 and 2010 and propose total penalties of $1,355,000. HOVENSA anticipates 
settling this matter in the first quarter of 2012. 

In July 2004, Hess Oil Virgin Islands Corp. (HOVIC), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Corporation, and 
HOVENSA, each received a letter from the Commissioner of the Virgin Islands Department of Planning and 
Natural Resources and Natural Resoiu'ces Trustees, advising of the Trustee's intention to bring suit against 
HOVIC and HOVENSA under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act 
(CERCLA). The letter alleges that HOVIC and HOVENSA are potenfially responsible for damages to natural 
resources arising from releases of hazardous substances from the HOVENSA refinery, which had been operated 
by HOVIC until October 1998. An action was filed on May 5, 2005 in the District Court of the Virgin Islands 
against HOVENSA, HOVIC and other companies that operated industrial facihties on the south shore of 
St. Croix asserting that the defendants are liable under CERCLA and territorial statutory and common law for 
damages to natural resources. HOVIC and HOVENSA are continuing to vigorously defend this matter and do not 
believe that this matter will result in a material liability as they believe that they have strong defenses against this 
complaint. 

The Corporation periodically receives notices from the EPA that it is a "potential responsible party" under 
the Superfund legislation with respect to various waste disposal sites. Under this legislation, all potentially 
responsible parties are jointly and severally liable. For certain sites, the EPA's claims or assertions of Hability 
against the Corporation relating to these shes have not been fully developed. With respect to the remaining sites, 
the EPA's claims have been settled, or a proposed settlement is under consideration, in all cases for amounts that 
are not material. The ultimate impact of these proceedings, and of any related proceedings by private parties, on 
the business or accounts of the Corporarion cannot be predicted at this time due to the large number of other 
potentially responsible parties and the specularive nature of clean-up cost estimates, but is not expected to be 
material. 

The Corporation is from time lo time involved in other judicial and administrative proceedings, including 
proceedings relating to other envuronmental matters. The Corporation cannot predict with certainty if, how or 
when such proceedings will be resolved or what the eventual relief, if any, may be, particularly for proceedings 
that are in their early stages of development or where plaintiffs seek indeterminate damages. Numerous issues 
may need to be resolved, including through potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual 
matters before a loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated for any proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, in 
management's opinion, based upon currently known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such proceedings is 
not expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, resuhs of operations or cash flows of 
the Coiporation. 
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PART II 

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Stock, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 
Equity Securities 

Stock Market Information 

The common stock of Hess Corporation is traded principally on the New York Stock Exchange (ticker 
symbol: HES). High and low sales prices were as follows: 

2011 2010 

Quarter Ended High Low High Low 

March 31 $87.40 $76.00 $66.49 $55.89 
June 30 87.19 67,65 66.22 48.70 
September 30 77.12 50.42 59.79 48.71 
December 31 66.49 46.66 76.98 59.23 

Performance Graph 

Set forth below is a hne graph comparing the five year shareholder return on a $100 investment in the 
Corporation's common stock assuming reinvestment of dividends, against the cumulative total returns for the 
following indexes: 

Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index, which includes the Corporarion, and 

• AMEX Oil Index, which is comprised of companies involved in various phases of the oil industry 
including the Corporation. 

Comparison of Five-Year Shareholder Returns 
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Holders 

At December 31, 2011, there were 5,635 stockholders (based on the number of holders of record) who 
owned a total of 339,975,610 shares of common stock. 

Dividends 

Cash dividends on common stock totaled $0.40 per share ($0.10 per quarter) during 2011, 2010 and 2009. 
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Equity Compensation Plans 

Following is information on the Registrant's equity compensation plans at December 31, 2011: 

Plan Category 

Equity compensation plans approved by security 
holders 

Equity compensation plans not approved by security 
holders** 

Number of 
Securities to 

be Issued 
Upon Exercise 
of Outstanding 

Options, 
Warrants and 

Rights (a) 

13,570,000 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
of Outstanding 

Options, 
Warrants and 

Righis (b) 

$61.68 

Number of 
Securities 
Remaining 

Available for 
Future Issuance 
Under Equity 
Compensation 

Plans 
(Excluding 
Securities 

Reflected in 
Column (a)) (c) 

8,403,000* 

* These securities may be awarded as stock options, restricted stock or other awards permitted uruler the Registrant's equity compensation 
plan. 

"*'* The Corporation has a Stock Award Program pursuant to which each non-employee director received appro.ximateiy $150,000 in value 
ofthe Corporation's common .ttock in 2011. These awards were made from shares purchased by the Corporation in the open market. 

See Note 11, Share-based Compensation in the notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements for further 
discussion ofthe Corporation's equity compensation plans. 
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data 

A five-year summary of selected financial data follows; 
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 

(Milhons of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Sales and other operating revenues 
Crude oil and natural gas liquids $ 9,065 $ 7,235 $ 5,665 $ 7,764 $ 6,303 
Natural gas (including sales of purchased gas) 5,526 5,723 5,894 8,800 6,877 
Reflned petroleum products 19,459 16,103 12,931 19,765 14,741 
Electricity 2,957 3,165 3,408 3,451 2,322 
Convenience store sales and other operating 

revenues 1,459 1,636 1,716 1,354 1,484 

Total $38,466 $33,862 $29,614 $41,134 $31,727 

Net income attributable to Hess Corporation $ l,703(a) $ 2,125(b) $ 740(c) $ 2,360(d) $ 1,832(e) 

Earnings per share 
Basic S 5.05 $ 6.52 $ 2.28 $ 7.35 $ 5.86 
Diluted $ 5,01 $ 6.47 $ 2.27 $ 7.24 $ 5.74 

Total assets $39,136 $35,396 $29,465 $28,589 $26,131 
Total debt $ 6,057 $ 5,583 $ 4,467 $ 3,955 $ 3,980 
Total equity $18,592 $16,809 $13,528 $12,391 $10,000 
Dividends per share of common slock $ .40 $ .40 $ .40 $ .40 $ .40 

(a) Includes after-tax charges totaling $694 million relating to llie shutdown of the HOVENSA LLC. (HOVENSA) refinery, asset 
impairments and an increase in the United Kingdom supplementary tax rale, partially offset by after-tax income of $413 million relating 
to gains on as.tet lale.'i. 

(h) Includes after-tax income of $1,130 million relating to gains on asset sales, partially offset by charges totaling $694 million for an asset 
impairment, an impairment ofthe Corporation's equity investment in HOVENSA, dry hole expense and premiums on repurchases of 
fixed-rate public notes. 

(c) Includes after-tax expenses totaling $104 million relating to repurchases of fixed-rate public notes, retirement benefits, employee 
Severance costs and asset impairments, partially oft'set by after-tax income totaling $101 million principcdiy relating to the resolution of 
a United States royalty dispute. 

Id) Includes after-tax expenses totaling $26 million primarily relating lo asset impairments and hurricanes in the Gulf of Mexico. 

(e) Includes net after-tax expenses of $75 million primarily relating to asset impairments, estimated production imhedance settlements and a 
charge for MTBE litigation, partially offset by income from LIFO inventory liquidations and gains on asset sales. 
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

Overview 

The Corporation is a global integrated energy company that operates in two segments, Exploration and 
Production (E&P) and Marketing and Refining (M&R). The E&P segment explores for, develops, produces, 
purchases, transports and sells crude oil and natural gas. The M&R segment manufactures refined petroleum 
products and purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural gas and electricity. 

Net income in 2011 was $1,703 million compared with $2,125 million in 2010 and $740 million in 2009. 
Diluted earnings per share were $5.01 in 2011 compared with $6.47 in 2010 and $2.27 in 2009. A table of items 
affecting comparability between periods is shown on page 23. 

Exploration and Production 

The Corporation's strategy for the E&P segment is to profitably grow reserves and production in a 
sustainable and financially disciplined manner. The Corporation's total proved reserves were 1,573 miUion 
barrels of oil equivalent (boe) at December 31, 2011 compared with 1,537 million boe at December 31, 2010 and 
1,437 million boe al December 31, 2009. 

E&P earnmgs were $2,675 million in 2011, $2,736 miUion in 2010 and $1,042 million in 2009. Average 
realized crude oil selling prices were $89.99 per barrel in 2011, $66.20 in 2010 and $51.62 in 2009. including the 
impact of hedging. Average realized natural gas selling prices were $5.96 per mcf m 2011. $5.63 in 2010 and 
$4.85 in 2009. Production averaged 370,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day (boepd) in 2011, a decrease of 
48.000 boepd or 11% from 2010. Production averaged 408,(K)0 boepd in 2009. The Corporation estimates that 
total worldwide production will average between 370,000 and 390,000 boepd in 2012, excluding the impact of 
asset sales and any Libyan production. 

The following is an update of significant E&P activities during 2011: 

• In North Dakota, net production from the Bakken oil shale play averaged approximately 30,000 boepd 
during 2011 and 38,000 boepd for the fourth quarter 2011. The Corporation forecasts Bakken production 
will average 60,000 boepd for the full year of 2012 and is targeted to reach 120,000 boepd in 2015. 

• The Corporation and its partner sanctioned the development of the Tubular Bells Field (Hess 57%) in the 
Mississippi Canyon Block 725 Area in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico. In 2012, field development will be 
advanced with the construction of a floating production system and development drilling is scheduled to 
start in the second quarter. First production is anticipated in 2014. 

• Tn the third quarter of the year, the Corporation announced the acquisition of approximately 185,000 net 
acres in the Utica Shale play in eastern Ohio. The Corporation entered into agreements to acquire 
approximately 85,000 net acres for approximately $750 million, principally through the acquisition of 
Marquette Exploration, LLC. In October 201L the Corporation completed the acquisition of a 50% 
undivided interest in CONSOL Energy Inc.'s (CONSOL) nearly 200,000 acres in the Utica Shale play for 
$59 million in cash at closing and the agreement to fund 50% of CONSOL's share of the drilling costs up 
to $534 million within a 5-year period. Appraisal of the Utica acreage commenced in the fourth quarter 
and will continue during 2012 with the acquisition of seismic and the planned drilling of 29 wells. 

• The Corporation filed a Notice of Discovery with the Ministry for Energy of Ghana for the Paradise-1 
exploration well in the Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points block. The well encountered an estimated 490 
net feet of oil and gas condensate pay over three separate intervals. The Corporation is operator and has a 
90% working interest in the license. The Corporation anticipates commencing additional exploration 
drilling in the first quarter of 2012, subject to government approvals and rig availability. 

• In 2011, the Corporation drilled the Andalan-1 well on the Semai V block, offshore Indonesia (Hess 
100%). The well encountered reservok sands and hydrocarbons but not in commercial quantities. This 
well, along with a follow up well, was expensed in the fourth quarter. In September 2011, the operator of 
Block CA-1 in Brunei (Hess 14%) spud the Julong Center well. This well also failed to find commercial 
quantities of hydrocarbons and was expensed. 
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• In February 2011, the Corporation completed die sale of its interests in certain natural gas producing 
assets located in the United Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of $359 million, after post-closing 
adjustments, resulting in a pre-tax gain of $343 million ($310 miUion after income taxes). In August 
2011, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Snorre Field (Hess 1%). offshore Norway 
and the Cook Field (Hess 28%) in the United Kingdom North Seafor cash proceeds of $131 million, after 
post-closing adjustments. These disposals resulted in non-taxable gains totahng $103 million. 

Status of Libyan Operations 

In response to civil umest in Libya, a number of measures were taken by the international community in the 
first quarter of 2011, including the imposition of economic sanctions. Production at the Waha Field was suspended 
in the first quaiter of 2011. As a consequence of the civil unrest and the sanctions, the Corporation delivered force 
majeure notices to the Libyan government relating to the agreements covering its exploration and production 
interests in order to protect its rights while it was temporarily prevented from fulfiUmg its obligations and benefiting 
from the righis granted by those agreements. Production at the Waha Field restarted during the fourth quarter of 
2011 al levels that were significantly lower than those prior to the civil unrest. The Corporation's Libyan production 
averaged 23,000 barrels of oU equivalent per day (boepd) for the full year of 2010 and 4,000 boepd for 2011. The 
force majeure covering the Corporation's production interests was withdrawn at the end of the fourth quarter of 
2011, as the economic sanctions were lifted. The force majeure covering the Coiporation's offshore exploration 
interests remained in place at year-end but is expected to be whhdrawn m 2012. The Corporation had proved 
reserves of 166 million barrels of oil equivalent in Libya at December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011, the net 
book value ofthe Corporation's exploration and production assets in Libya was approximately $500 million. 

Marketing and Refining 

The Corporation's strategy for the M&R segment is to deliver strong operating performance and generate free 
cash flow. In January 2012, HOVENSA announced a decision to shut down its refinery in St. Croix, U.S. Virgin 
Islands and operate the complex as an oil storage terminal. Results from M&R activities amounted to losses of $584 
million in 2011, losses of $231 million in 2010 and earnmgs of $127 million in 2009. Refining operations generated 
losses of $728 milhon m 2011, $445 million in 2010 and $87 milhon in 2009. Refining results include after-tax 
charges of $525 million in 2011 and $289 million in 2010 related lo the Corporation's investment in HOVENSA. 
Marketing earnings were $185 million m 2011, $215 million in 2010 and $168 million in 2009. 

Liquidity and Capital and Exploratory Expenditures 

Net cash provided by operating activities was $4,984 million in 2011, $4,530 miUion in 2010 and 
$3,046 miUion in 2009. At December 31, 2011, cash and cash equivalents totaled $351 million compared with 
$1,608 miUion at December 31, 2010, principally due to increased capital expenditures. Total debt was 
$6,057 mUlion at December 31, 2011 and $5,583 million at December 31, 2010. The Corporation's debt lo 
capitalization ratio at December 31, 2011 was 24.6% compared with 24.9% at the end of 2010. 

Capital and exploratory expenditures were as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 
(Millions of dollars) 

Exploration and Production 
United States $4,305 $2,935 $1,200 
International 3,039 2,822 1,927 

Total Exploration and Production 7,344 5,757 3,127 
Marketing. Refining and Corporate 118 98 118 

Total capital and exploratory expenditures $7,462 $5,855 $3,245 

Exploration expenses charged to income included above: 
United Slates $ 197 $ 154 $ 144 
International 259 209 183 

Total exploration expenses charged to income included above $ 456 $ 363 $ 327 
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The Corporation anticipates investing $6.8 biUion in capital and exploratory expenditures in 2012, 
substantially all of which is targeted for E&P operations. 

Consolidated Results of Operations 

The after-tax income (loss) by major operating activity is summarized below for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 

(MilliouN of dollars, 
except per share data) 

Exploration and Production $2,675 $2,736 $1,042 
Marketing and Refining (584) (231) 127 
Corporate (154) (159) (205) 
Interest expense (234) (221) (224) 

Net income attributable to Hess Corporation $1,703 $2,125 $ 740 

Net income per share — diluted $ 5.01 $ 6.47 $ 2.27 

The following table summaiizes, on an after-tax basis, items of income (expense) that are included in net 
income and affect comparability between periods. The items in the table below are explained on pages 27 through 30. 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 

Exploration and Production $ 244 $ 732 $ 45 
Marketing and Refining (525) (289) 12 
Corporate — (7) (60) 

$ (281) $ 436 $ (3) 

In the following discussion and elsewhere in this report, the financial effects of certain iransactions are 
disclosed on an after-lax basis. Management reviews segmenl earnings on an after-tax basis and uses after-lax 
amounts tn ils review of variances in segment earnings. Management believes that after-tax amounts are a 
preferable method of explaining variances in earnings, since they show the entire effect of a transaction rather 
than only the pre-tax amount. After-tax amounts are determined by applying the income tax rate in each tax 
jurisdiction to pre-tax amounts. 
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Comparison of Results 

Exploration and Production 

Following is a summarized mcome statement of the Corporation's E&P operations for the years ended 
December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 
IMillions of dollars) 

Sales and other operating revenues* $ 10,047 $ 8,744 $ 6,835 
a h e r , net 464 1,233 207 

Total revenues and non operating income 10,511 9,977 7,042 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 2,352 1,924 1,805 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease 

impairment 1,195 865 829 
General, administrative and other expenses 313 281 255 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,305 2,222 2,113 
Asset impairments 358 532 54 

Total costs and expenses 6,523 5,824 5,056 

Results of operations before income taxes 3,988 4,153 1,986 
Provision for income taxes 1,313 1,417 944 

Results of operations attributable lo Hess Corporation $ 2,675 S ^:.7^^ $ 1,042 

'̂ Amounts differ from E&P operating revenues in Note 19, Segmenl Information in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
primarily due to She exclusion of sales of hydrocarbons purchased from third parties. 

After considering the E&P items affecting comparability of earnings between periods in the table on 
page 27, the remaining changes in E&P eamings are primarily attributable lo changes in selling prices, 
production and sales volumes, operating costs, exploration expenses, income taxes and foreign exchange, as 
discussed below. 

Selling Prices: Higher average selling prices increased E&P revenues by approximately $2,400 million in 
2011 compared with 2010. Higher average selling prices increased E&P revenues by approximately $1,775 
million in 2010 compared with 2009. 

The Corporation's average selling prices were as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 

Crude oil — per barrel (kicluding hedging) 
United States $ 98.56 $ 75.02 $ 60.67 
Europe 80.18 58.11 47.02 
Africa 88.46 65.02 48.91 
Asia 111.71 79.23 63.01 

Worldwide 89.99 66.20 51.62 
Crude oil -— per barrel (excluding hedging) 

United States $ 98.56 $ 75.02 $ 60.67 
Europe 80.18 58.11 47.02 
Africa 110.28 78.31 60.79 
Asia 111.71 79.23 63.01 

Worldwide 95.60 71.40 56.74 
Natural gas liquids — per barrel 

United Stales $ 58.59 $ 47.92 $ 36.57 
Europe 75.49 59.23 43.23 
Asia 72.29 63.50 46.48 

Worldwide 62.72 50.49 38.47 
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2011 2010 2009 

$3.70 
6.23 
5.93 
5.63 

$3.36 
5.15 
5.06 
4.85 

Natural gas — per mcf 
United States $3.39 
Europe 8.79 
Asia and other 6.02 

Woridwide 5.96 

In October 2008, the Corporation closed Brent crude oil hedges covering 24.000 barrels per day from 2009 
through 2012 by entering into offsetting contracts with the same counterparty. The deferred after-tax losses as of 
the date the hedge positions were closed are recorded in eamings as the contracts mature. Crude oil hedges 
reduced E&P eamings by $327 miUion ($517 million before income taxes) in 2011, $338 million ($533 million 
before income taxes) in 2010 and $337 million ($533 mUlion before income taxes) in 2009. The remaining 
reaUzed after-tax losses from the closed hedge positions will be approximately $325 million in 2012. The 
Corporation also entered into Brent crude oil hedges using fixed-price swap contracts to hedge 120,000 boepd of 
crude oil sales volumes for the full year of 2012 at an average price of $107.70 per barrel. 

Production and Sales Volumes: The Corporation's crude oil and natural gas production was 370,000 
boepd in 2011 compared with 418,000 boepd in 2010 and 408,000 boepd in 2009. The principal reasons for the 
reduction are described below. Approximately 72% m 2011, 73% in 2010 and 72% in 2009 ofthe Corporation's 
production was from cnjde oil and natural gas liquids. The Coiporation currently estimates that its 2012 
production will average between 370,000 and 390,000 boepd, excluding the impact of asset sales and any Libyan 
production. 

The Corporation's net daily worldwide production was as follows for the years ended December 31: 

Crude oil — bartels per day 
United States 
Europe 
Africa 
Asia 

Total 

Natural gas liquids — ban"els per day 
United States 
Europe 
Asia 

Total 

Natural gas — mcf per day 
United Slates 
Europe 
Asia and other 

Total 

Barrels of oil equivalent — per day* 

Reflects natural gas production converted on the Imsis of relative energy content (.tix mcf equals one barrel). Barrel of oil equivalence does 
nol necessarily result in price equivalence as the equivalent price of natural gas on a barrel of oil equivalent basis has been substantially 
lower than the corresponding price for crude oil over the recent past. See the average selling prices in the table above. 

2011 

(In 

81 
89 
66 
13 

249 

13 
3 
1 

17 

100 
81 

442 

623 

370 

2010 

1 thousands) 

75 
88 

113 
13 

289 

14 
3 
1 

18 

108 
134 
427 

669 

418 

2009 

60 
83 

120 
16 

279 

11 
3 

— 

14 

93 
151 
446 

690 

408 
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United States: Crude oU production in the United States was higher in 2011 compared with 2010, 
primarily due to new wells in the Bakken oU shale play, partly offset by lower production due to a shut-in well at 
the Llano Field. Natural gas production was lower in 2011 compared with 2010, primarily due to this shut-in well 
al the Llano Field. Crude oil and natural gas producrion was higher m 2010 compared with 2009, primarily due to 
new production from the Shenzi, Llano, Conger and Bakken fields. 

Europe: Crude oil producrion was comparable in 2011 and 2010, as higher production from Russia was 
largely offset by lower production from the Corporation's United Kingdom North Sea assets. Crude oil 
production was higher in 2010 compared with 2009, due to higher production in Russia and in Norway following 
the acquisition of additional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields in 2010. Natural gas production was lower in 
2011 compared with 2010, primarily due lo the sale in February 2011 of certain natural gas producing assets in 
the United Kingdom North Sea. Natural gas production was lower in 2010 compared with 2009, primarily due to 
downtime at certain United Kingdom gas fields. 

Africa: Crude oil production decreased in 2011 compared with 2010 due to the suspension of production 
in Libya following civil unrest, the exchange in September 2010 of the Corporation's interests in Gabon for 
increased interests in Norway, lower production entitlement in Equatorial Guinea and Algeria as a result of 
higher seUing prices, and natural decline in Equalorial Guinea. Crude oil production decreased in 2010 compared 
with 2009 following the exchange of Gabon for addhional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields in Norway and 
lower entitlement to Algerian production. 

Asia and other: Natural gas production in 2011 was higher than 2010, primarily due to higher total 
nominations at the Joint Development Area of Malaysia and Thailand (JDA) and the adjacent Block PM301 in 
Malaysia and first production from the Gajah Bam Complex at the Natuna A Field in Indonesia, which commenced 
production in the fourth quarter of 2011. Natural gas production in 2010 was lower than in 2009, primarily due to 
downtime at the Pangkah Field in Indonesia and a temporary shut-in at the Bumi Field m the JDA. 

Sales Volumes: Lower sales volumes and other operating revenues decreased revenue by approximately 
$1,100 mUlion in 2011 compared whh 2010 and higher sales volumes and other operating revenues increased 
revenue by $135 mUlion in 2010 compared with 2009. 

Operating Costs and Depreciation, Depletion and AmortizfftUm: Cash operating costs, consisting of 
production expenses and general and administrative expenses, increased by $460 million in 2011 compared with 
2010 and increased by $145 million in 2010 compared with 2009. The increase in 2011 was primarily due to higher 
production taxes as a result of higher selling prices, together with higher operating and maintenance expenses, 
mainly in Norway and in the Bakken oil shale play. The increase in costs in 2010 compared to 2009 was piimarily 
due to higher production taxes as a result of higher selling prices. 

Depreciarion, depletion and amortization charges increased by $83 miUion in 2011 and $109 million in 
2010, compared with the correspondmg amounts in prior years. The increases in both 2011 and 2010 were 
prunarily due to higher per barrel costs, reflecting higher finding and development costs. In addition, the higher 
total per banel costs in 2011 resulted from a greater proportion of production volumes from the Bakken. 

Excluding items affecting comparability between periods, cash operating costs per barrel of oil equivalent 
were $19.71 in 2011, $14.45 in 2010 and $13.70 in 2009. Depreciation, depletion and amortization costs per 
barrel of oft equivalent were $17.06 in 2011, $14.56 m 2010 and $14.19 in 2009. For 2012, cash operating costs 
are estimated to be in the range of $20.00 to $21.00 per barrel and depreciation, depletion and amortization costs 
are esrimated to be in the range of $20.50 to $21.50 per barrel, resulting in total unit costs in the range of $40.50 
to $42.50 per barrel of oil equivalent, excluding Libyan operations. 

Exploration Expenses: Exploration expenses increased in 2011 compared to 2010, mainly due to higher 
dry hole expenses. Dry hole expenses included amounts relating to two exploration wells on the Semai V Block, 
offshore Indonesia and a well in the North Red Sea Block 1, offshore Egypt. Exploration expenses also increased 
in 2010 from 2009, primarily due to higher lease amortization. 

Income Taxes: Excluding the impact of items affecting comparability, the effective income tax rates for 
E&P operations were 38% m 2011,44% in 2010 and 48% in 2009. The decrease in the effective income tax rate in 
2011 compared with 2010 was predominantly due to the suspension of Libyan operations. The effective income tax 
rate for E&P operations in 2012 is estimated lo be in the range of 36% to 40%. excluding Libyan operations. 
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Before Income Taxes 
2011 

$446 
— 

(358) 
— 

— 
— 

$ 88 

2010 

$1,208 
— 

(532) 
(101) 

__ 

— 

$ 575 

2009 

(Millions 

$ — 
143 
(54) 
— 

(23) 

$ 66 

After Income Taxes 
2011 

of dollars) 

$413 
— 

(140) 
— 

— 

(29) 

$244 

2010 

$1,130 
— 

(334) 
(64) 

— 
— 

$ 732 

2009 

$ — 
89 

(26) 
— 

(18) 
— 

$45 

Foreign Exchange: The after-tax foreign currency losses were $16 mUlion in 2011. $9 miUion in 2010 
and $10 million in 2009. 

Items Affecting Comparability of Earnings: Reported E&P eamings include the following items affecting 
comparability of income (expense) before and after income taxes for the yeais ended December 31: 

Gains on asset sales 
Royalty dispute resolution 
Asset impairments 
Dry hole expense 
Reductions in carrying values of 

assets 
Income lax adjustment 

2011: In Febiuary 2011, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Easmgton Catchment 
Area (Hess 30%), the Bacton Area (Hess 23%), the Everest Field (Hess 19%) and the Lomond Field (Hess 17%) 
in the United Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of $359 miUion, after post-closing adjustments. These 
disposals resulted in pre-tax gains totaling $343 million ($310 million after income taxes). These assets had a 
productive capacity of approximately 15,000 boepd. The total combined net book value of the disposed assets 
prior lo the sale was $16 million, including allocated goodwUl of $14 million. In August 2011, the Corporation 
completed ihe sale of its interests in the Snorre Field (Hess 1%), offshore Norway and the Cook Field (Hess 
28%) in the United Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of $131 miUion, after post-closing adjustments. These 
disposals resulted in non-taxable gains totaling $103 mUUon. The total combined net book value ofthe disposed 
assets prior to the sale was $28 mUlion, including allocated goodwUl of $11 mUlion. 

In the third quaiter of 2011, the Corporation recorded impairment charges of $358 million ($140 million after 
income taxes) related to increases in the Corporarion's estimated abandonment liabilities primarily for 
non-producing properties which resulted in the book value ofthe properties exceeding their fair value. See Note 9, 
Asset Retirement Obligations in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In July 2011, the United Kingdom increased the supplementary lax rate on petroleum operations to 32% 
from 20% with an effective dale of March 24, 2011. As a result, the Corporation recorded a charge of $29 million 
to increase the deferred tax liability in the United Kingdom. 

2010: The Corporation completed the exchange of its interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the United 
Kingdom for additional interests of 28% and 25%, respectively, in the Valhall and Hod fields in Norway. This 
non-monetary transaction, which was recorded at fair value, resulted in a pre-tax gain of $1,150 miUion ($1,072 
million after income taxes). The Corporation also completed the sale of its interest in the Jambi Merang natural 
gas development project in Indonesia for a gain of $58 million. 

The Corporation recorded a charge of $532 million ($334 miUion after mcome taxes) to fully impair the 
carrying value of its 55% interest in the West Mediterranean Block 1 concession (West Med Block), located 
offshore Egypt. This interest was acquired in 2006 and included four natural gas discoveries and additional 
exploration prospects. The Corporation and its partners subsequently explored and further evaluated the area, made 
a fifth discovery, conducted development planning, and held negotiations with the Egypfian authorities to amend the 
existing gas sales agreement. In September 2010, the Corporation and its partners notified the Egyptian authorities 
of their decision to cease exploration activities and lo relinquish a significant portion of the block. As a result, the 
Corporation fully impaired the carrying value of its interest in the West Med Block. The West Med Block was 
relinquished in 2011. The Corporation also recorded $101 million ($64 mUlion after mcome taxes) of dry hole 
expenses related to previously suspended well costs on the West Med Block offshore Egypt and Block BM-S-22 
offshore Brazil, both of which were driUed prior to 2010. 
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2009: The U.S. Supreme Court decided il would not review the decision of the 5lh Circuit Court of 
Appeals against the U.S. Minerals Management Ser\'ice (predecessor to the Bureau of Ocean Energy 
Management, Regularion and Enforcement) relating to royalty relief under the Deep Water Royalty Relief Act of 
1995. As a result, the Corporation recognized after-tax income of $89 million to reverse all previously recorded 
royalUes covering the periods from 2003 to 2009. The pre-tax amount of S143 million was reported in Other, net 
in the Statement of Consohdated Income. 

The Corporaiion recorded total asset impairment charges of $54 miUion ($26 million after income taxes) to 
reduce the carrying value of two-short lived fields in the United Kingdom North Sea. Pre-tax charges of 
approximately $23 million ($18 million after income taxes) were recorded to impair the carrying values of 
production equipment and to write down materials kiventories hi Equatorial Guinea and the United States. The 
pre-tax amount of most of the inventory write downs was reported in Production expenses in the Statement of 
Consohdated Income. 

The Corporation's future E&P eamings may be impacted by external factors, such as volatility in the selling 
prices of crude oU and natiual gas, reserve and production changes, exploration expenses, industry cost inflation, 
changes in foreign exchange rates and income tax rates, the effects of weather, political risk, environmental risk 
and catastrophic risk. In addition, as a resuh of the oil spill in 2010 al the BP p.l.c. operated Macondo prospect in 
the Gulf of Mexico, there have been and there may be further changes in laws and regulations that could impact 
the Coiporation's future drilUng operations and increase its potential liability in the event of an oil spill. For a 
more comprehensive description of the risks that may affect the Corporation's E&P business, see Item 1 A. Ri.ik 
Factors Related to Our Business and Operations. 

Marketing and Refining 

Results from M&R acliviries were losses of $584 miUion in 2011, losses of $231 million in 2010 and 
eamings of $127 million in 2009. Excluding the items affecting comparability reflected in die table on page 23 
and discussed below, results were losses of $59 mUlion in 2011 and eamings of $58 miUion in 2010 and $115 
million in 2009. 

Refining: Refining results consist of the Corporation's share of HOVENSA's losses, together with the 
results of Port Reading and other miscellaneous operating activiries. Refining losses were $728 million in 2011 
(including $525 miUion of after-tax losses related to the impairment recorded by HOVENSA and other charges 
due to the decision to shut down the refinery in St. Croix), $445 milhon in 2010 (including a $289 million 
after-lax charge to reduce the carrying value of the Corporation's equity investment in HOVENSA) and 
$87 miUion in 2009 (mcluding a benefit of $12 miUion due to an income tax adjustment). 

In 2011, HOVENSA experienced conrinued substanrial operating losses due to global economic condifions 
and competitive disadvantages versus other refiners, despite efforts to improve operating performance by 
reducing refkiing capacity to 350,000 from 500,000 barrels per day m the first half of the year. Operating losses 
were also projected lo continue. In January 2012, HOVENSA announced a decision to shut down its refinery and 
operate the complex as an oil storage terminal. As a result of these developments, HOVENSA prepared an 
impairment analysis as of December 31, 2011, which concluded that undiscounted future cash flows would not 
recover the carrying value of its long-lived assets, and recorded an impairment charge and other charges related 
to the decision to shut down the refinery. For 2011, the Corporation recorded a total of $ 1,073 million of losses 
from its equity investment in HOVENSA. These pre-tax losses included S875 mUlion ($525 million after income 
taxes) due to the impairment recorded by HOVENSA and other charges associated with its decision to shut down 
the refinery. The Corporation's share of the impairment related losses recorded by HOVENSA represents an 
amount equivalent to the Corporation's financial support to HOVENSA at December 31, 2011, its planned future 
funding commitments for costs related to the refinery shutdown, and a charge of $135 million for the write-off of 
related assets held by the subsidiary which owns the Corporation's investment in HOVENSA. At December 31, 
2011, the Corporation has a liability of $487 million for its planned funding commitments, which is expected to 
be incurred in 2012. A deferred income lax benefit of $350 million, consisting primarily of U.S. income taxes, 
has been recorded on the Corporation's share of HOVENSA's impairment and refinery shutdown related 
charges. 
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Tn December 2010, the Corporation recorded an impairment charge of $300 milhon before income taxes 
($289 million after income taxes) to reduce the carrying value of its equity investment in HOVENSA, which was 
recorded in Income (loss) from equity investment in HOVENSA L.L.C, on the Statement of Consolidated 
Income. The investment had been adversely affected by consecutive annual operating losses resulting from 
continued weak refining margins and refineiy ulUization. and a fourth quarter 2010 debt rating downgrade. As a 
result of a strategic assessment in 2010, HOVENSA decided to lower its crude oil refining capacity to 350,000 
from 500,000 bartels per day in 2011. The Corporation performed an impairment analysis and concluded thai hs 
investment had experienced an other than temporary decHne in value. For discussion of the impairment charge. 
see Note 5, HOVENSA L.L.C. Joint Venture in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Excluding items affecting comparabUity discussed above, the Corporation's share of HOVENSA's results 
was a loss of $198 million in 2011, $137 million in 2010 ($222 mUlion before income taxes) and $141 million 
($230 miUion before income taxes) in 2009. U.S. Virgin Island income taxes have not been recorded on the 
Corporation's share of HOVENSA's 2011 resuhs due lo cumulative operating losses. These resuhs reflect lower 
refining margins, higher fuel costs and lower sales volumes. During 2010, the fluid catalytic cracking unit at 
HOVENSA was shut down for a scheduled tumaround. The Corporation's share of HOVENSA's turnaround 
expenses was approximately $20 million after income taxes. 

Other after-tax refining results, principally from Port Reading operations, were a loss of $5 million in 2011, 
a loss of $19 miUion in 2010 and income of $42 mUlion in 2009. During 2010, the Port Reading refining facility 
was shut down for 41 days for a scheduled tumaround. The after-tax expenses for the Port Reading tumanjund 
were approximately $30 million. The tumaround expenses are included in Other operating expenses in the 
Statement of Consolidated Income. 

The following table summarizes refinery utihzation rates for the years ended December 31: 
Refinery Refinery Utilization 
Capacity 2011 2010 2009 

(Thousands of 
barrels per day) 

HOVENSA 
Crude 350* 81.1% 78.0% 80.3% 
Fluid catalytic cracker 150 71.7% 66.5% 70.2% 
Coker 58 77.4% 78.3% 81.6% 

Port Readmg 70 90.0% 78.1% 90.2% 

* HOVENSA's crude oil refining capacity was reduced to 350,000 from 500.000 barrels per day in the first half of 2011. 

Marketing: Markelmg operations, which consist principally tjf retail gasoline and energy marketing 
activiries, generated income of $185 mUlion in 2011, $215 million in 2010 and $168 mUlion in 2009. The 
decrease in eamings in 2011 compared with 2010 was due to lower sales volumes and lower margins. The 
increase in eamings in 2010 compared with 2009 reflected improved margins from the weak economic 
environment in 2009. 

The table below summarizes marketing sales volumes for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 

Refined petroleum product sales (thousands of barrels per day) 430 471 473 
Natural gas (thousands of mcf per day) 2,167 2,016 2,010 
Electricity (megawatts round the clock) 4,374 4,140 4,306 

The Corporation has a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership that trades energy commodities and 
energy derivatives. The Corporation als(} takes trading positions for its own account. The Corporation's after-tax 
results from trading activities, including its share of the results of the tiading partnership, amounted to a loss of 
$41 miUion in 2011, a loss of $J million in 2010 and eamings of $46 million m 2009. 

Marketing expenses increased in 2011 compared with 2010 reflecting higher retail credit card fees, 
maintenance, environmental and employee related expenses. Marketing expenses increased in 2010 compared 
with 2009, principally reflecting changes m retail credit card fees. 
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The Corporation's future M&R eamings may be impacted by supply and demand factors, volatility in 
margins, credit risks, the effects of weather, competitive industry conditions, political risk, environmental risk 
and catastrophic risk. For a more comprehensive description of the risks that may affect the Corporation's M&R 
busmess, see Item IA. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and Operations. 

Corporate 

The following table summarizes corporate expenses for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 

(IVGllions of dollars) 

Corporate expenses (excluding items affecting comparability) $ 260 $ 256 $227 
Income taxes (benefits) (106) (104) (82) 

Net corporate expenses 154 152 145 
Items affecting compaiabilily between periods, after-tax — 7 60 

Total corporate expenses, after-tax $ 154 $ 159 $205 

Excluding items affecting comparability between periods, net corporate expenses were comparable in 2011 
and 2010. The increase in net corporate expenses in 2010 compared with 2009 primarily reflects higher employee 
and msurance costs and bank facUity fees. After-tax corporate expenses in 2012 are estimated to be in the range 
of $160 miUion to $170 mUlion. 

In 2010, the Corporation recorded a pre-tax charge of $11 mUlion ($7 miUion after income taxes) related to 
the repurchase of the remaining $116 mUlion of fixed-rate public notes that were scheduled to mature in 2011. In 
2009, the Corporation recorded pre-tax charges of $54 million ($34 million after income taxes) related to the 
repurchase of $546 miUion in fixed-rate public notes thai were scheduled to mature in 2011 and $42 inUlion ($26 
million after income taxes) relating to retirement benefits and employee severance costs. The pre-tax charges in 
connection with the debt repurchases were recorded in Other, net, and the pre-tax amounts of the retirement 
benefits and severance costs were recorded in General and administrative expenses in the Statement of 
Consolidated Income. 

Interest 

Inlerest expense was as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 
Total interesl incurred $ 396 $ 366 $ 366 
Capitalized interest (13) (5) (6) 

Interest expense before income taxes 383 361 360 
Income taxes (benefits) (149) (140) (136) 

After-tax interest expense $ 234 $ 221 $ 224 

The increase in interest expense in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily reflects higher average borrowings 
foUowing the issuance of $1.25 biUion of 30-year fixed-rate public notes in August 2010. Capitahzed interesl 
increased in 2011 due lo the sanctioning of the Tubular BeUs project. Interesl expense was comparable in 2010 
and 2009. After-tax interest expense in 2012 is expected lo be in the range of $245 million to $255 million. 

Consolidated Sales and Cost of Products Sold 

Sales and other operating revenues totaled $38,466 miUion in 2011, $33,862 mUUon m 2010 and 
$29,614 mUlion in 2009. The increase in Sales and other operating revenues of 14% year-on-year from 2009 to 
2011 is primarily due to higher cmde oil and refined petroleum product selling prices, partially offset by lower 
cmde oil and refined petroleum product sales volumes. 
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The increase in Cost of products sold each year principally reflects higher prices for purchased refined 
petroleum products. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The following table sets forth certain relevant measures of the Corporation's liquidity and capital resources 
at December 31: 

2011 2010 
(Millions of dollars) 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 351 $ 1,608 
Short-term debt and current maturities of kmg-term debt $ 52 $ 46 
Total debt $ 6,057 $ 5,583 
Total equity $ 18,592 $ 16,809 
Debt to capitalization ratio* 24.6% 24.9% 

* Total debt as a percentage of the sum of total debt plus equity. 

Cash Flows 

The following table sets forth a summary ofthe Corporation's cash flows forthe years ended December 31; 

2011 2010 2009 
(Millions of dollars) 

Net cash provided by (used in): 
Operating activities $ 4,984 $ 4,530 $ 3,046 
Investing activities (6,566) (5,259) (2,924) 
Financing activities 325 975 332 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $(1,257) $ 246 $ 454 

Operating Activities: Net cash provided by operating activities amounted lo $4,984 million in 2011 
compared with $4,530 million in 2010, reflecting higher operating eamings partially offset by a period over 
period increase in the use of cash from changes in operating assets and liabilities of $412 million. Operating cash 
flow increased to $4,530 miUion in 2010 from $3,046 miUion in 2009 principally reflecting higher eamings. 

Investing Activities: The following table summarizes the Corporation's capital expenditures for the years 
ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 
Exploration and Production 

Exploration $ 869 $ 552 $ 611 
Production and development 4,673 2,592 1,927 
Acquisitions (including leaseholds) 1,346 2,250 262 

6,888 5,394 2,800 
Marketing, Refining and Corporate 118 98 118 

Total $7,006 $ 5,492 $2,918 

Capital expenditures in 2011 included acquisitions of approximately $800 miUion for 185,(M30 net acres in 
the Utica Shale play m eastern Ohio, $214 million for interests in two blocks in the Kurdistan Region of Iraq and 
$116 mUlion for an additional 4% mterest in the South Ame Field in Denmark. Capital expenditures in 2010 
included acquisitions of 167,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale play in North Dakota from TRZ Energy, LLC 
for $ 1,075 million in cash and additional interests of 8% and 13% in the Valhall and Hod fields, respectively, for 
$507 miUion in cash. Capital expenditures in 2009 included acquisitions of $ 188 mUl ion for unproved leaseholds 
and $74 miUion for a 50% interest in blocks PM301 and PM302 in Malaysia, which are adjacent to Block A-18 
of the JDA. In addition, proceeds from asset sales were $490 million m 2011 and $183 miUion in 2010. 
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Financing Activities: During 2011, net proceeds from borrowings on available credit facilities were $422 
miUion. During 2010, net proceeds from borrowings were $1,098 million, including the August 2010 issuance of 
$1,250 miUion of 30-year fixed-rate public notes with a coupon of 5.6% scheduled to mature in 2041. The 
proceeds were used to purchase additional acreage in the Bakken and additional interests in the Valhall and Hod 
fields. In January 2010, the Corporaiion completed the repurchase of the remaining $116 million of fixed-rate 
public notes that were scheduled to mature in 2011. 

Total common stock dividends paid were $136 mUlion in 2011 and $131 million in 2010 and 2009. The 
Corporation received net proceeds from the exercise of stock options, including related income lax benefits of 
$88 mUlion, $54 miUion and $18 miUion in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

Future Capital Requirements and Resources 

The Corporation anticipates investing a total of approximately S6.8 billion in capital and exploratory 
expenditures during 2012, substantially all of which is targeted for E&P operations. The Corporation expects to 
fund its 2012 operations, including capital expenditures, its share of HOVENSA financial support totaling 
$487 million, dividends, pension contributions and required debt repayments, with existing cash on-hand, cash 
flows from operations including the effect of hedging, proceeds from asset sales and its available credit facilities. 
Crude oU and natural gas prices are volatile and difficult to predict. In addition, unplanned increases in the 
Coiporation's capital expenditure program could occur. If conditions were to change, such as a significant decrease 
in commodity prices or an unexpected increase in capital expenditures, the Corporation would take steps to protect 
its financial flexibility and may pursue other sources of liquidity, including the issuance of debt securities, the 
issuance of equity securities, and/or asset sales. 

The table below summarizes the capacity, usage, and available capacity ofthe Corporation's borrowing and 
letter of credit facilities al December 31, 2011; 

Fx{H ration 
Dale Capacity 

Revolving credh facility April 2016 $ 4,000 
Asset-backed credit facUily July 2012 (a) 525 
Committed lines Various (b) 2,675 
Uncommitted hues Various (b) 562 

Total S 7,762 

Borrowings 
letters of 

Credit Issued 

(Millions of dollars) 

$ — $ 173 
350 — 

100 

$450 

1,063 
462 

$1,698 

folat Used 

$ 173 
350 

1,063 
562 

$2,148 

Available 
Capacity 

$ 3,827 
175 

1,612 

$5,614 

la) Total capacity of$l billion subject to the amount of eligible receivables po.ited as collateral, 

(b) Committed and uncommitted lines luive expiration dates through 2014. 

In April 2011, the Corporation entered into a new $4 biUion syndicated revolving credit facility that matures m 
April 2016. This facility, which replaced a $3 biUion facility that was scheduled to mature m May 2012, can be used 
for borrowings and letters of credit. Borrowings on the facility bear interesl at 1.25% above the London Interbank 
Offered Rate. A facUity fee of 0.25% per aimum is also payable on the amouni of the facUity. The interesl rate and 
facility fee are subject to adjustment if the Corporation's credit rating changes. The covenants that establish 
restrictions on the amount of total borrowings and secured debt are consistent with the previous facility. 

The Corporation has a 364-day asset-backed credit facility securitized by certain accoimts receivable from its 
Marketing and Refining operations. Under the terms of this financing arrangement, the Corporation has the ability 
to borrow or issue letters of credit of up to $1 billion subject to the availability of sufficient levels of eligible 
receivables. At December 31, 2011, outstanding borrowings under this facUity of $350 million were collateralized 
by a total of S947 million of accounts receivable, which are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary. These receivables 
are only available to pay the general obhgations of the Corporation after satisfaction of the outstanding obligations 
under the asset-backed facility. 

The Corporation also has a shelf registration statement filed with the SEC under which it may issue 
additional debt securities, warrants, common stock or preferred stock. Promptiy after filing this report, as a result 
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ofthe Corporation's existing shelf registration expiring on Febmary 26, 2012, the Corporation anticipates filing a 
new shelf registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, under which it may issue, among 
other things, addhional debt securities, warrants, common stock or preferred stock. 

The Corporation's long-term debt agreements contain a financial covenant ihat restricts the amount of total 
borrowings and secured debt. At December 31, 20! 1, the Corporation is permitted lo borrow up lo an additional 
$24.9 billion for the constmction or acquisition of assets. The Corporaiion has the ability to bortow up to an 
additional $4.5 billion of secured debt at December 31,2011. 

The Coiporation's $1.7 billion in letters of credit outstanding al December 31, 2011 were primaiUy issued to 
satisfy margin requftements. See also Note 17, Risk Management and Trading Activities in the notes to the 
Consolidated Fmancial Statements. 

Credit Ratings 

There are three major credit rating agencies that rate the Corporation's debt. All three agencies have 
currently assigned an investment grade rating with a stable outlook to the Corporation's debt. The interest rates 
and facUity fees charged on some of the Corporation's credit facilities, as well as margin requhements from risk 
management and trading counterparties, are subject lo adjustment if the Corporation's credit rating changes. 

Contractual Obligations and Contingencies 

Following is a table showing aggregated information about certain contractual obligations at December 31, 
2011: 

Payments Due by Period 

2013 and 2015 and 
Total 2012 2014 2016 Thcreafler 

(Millions of dollars) 

Total debt* $6,057 $ 52 $ 386 $459 $5,160 
Operating leases 3,210 531 1,195 320 1,164 
Purchase obligations 

Supply coimnitments 8,131 7,187 782 149 13 
Capital expenditures and other 

investments 3,045 1,640 873 257 275 
Operating expenses 3,039 1,637 829 204 369 
Odier long-term liabilities 3,327 290 556 463 2,018 

'̂  At December 31, 2011. the Corporation's debt hears interest at a weighted average ruieof6.H%. 

Supply commitments include term purchase agreements at market prices for a portion of the gasoline 
necessary lo supply the Corporation's retail marketing system and feedstocks for the Port Reading refining 
facility. In addition, the Corporation has commitments lo purchase refmed petroleum products, natural gas and 
electricity to supply contracted customers in ils energy marketing business. These commitments were computed 
based predominately on year-end market prices. 

The table also reflects future capital expenditures, including the portion of the Corporation's planned 
$6.8 biUion capital investment program for 2012 that was contractually committed at December 31, 2011. 
Obligations for operating expenses include commitments for transportation, seismic purchases, oil and gas 
production expenses and other normal business expenses. Other long-term liabilities reflect contractually 
committed obligations in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011, including asset retirement 
obligations, pension plan liabilities and estimates for uncertain income tax positions. 

During 2011, the Corporation entered into a lease agreement for a floating production system and related 
support activities for the Tubular Bells Field. Payments under this five year contract, which total approximately 
$420 million and are expected to commence by mid-2014, are included in Capital expenditures and other 
investments in the contractual obligations table above. The Corporation also has a tolling agreement with 
Bayonne Energy Center, LLC (BEC) (Hess 50%), a joint venture formed to generate electricity for sale into the 
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New York City market. Under the tolling arrangement, the Corporaiion will pay its share of a predetermined 
monthly amount to BEC foUowing the start up of plant operations, which is expected in mid-2012. Estimated 
payments through 2027, which total approximately $415 mUlion, are included in Operating expenses in the 
contractual obligations table. 

The Coiporation and certain of its subsidiaries lease gasoline stations, drilling rigs, tankers, office space and 
other assets for varying periods under leases accounted for as operating leases. 

The Corporation has a contingent purchase obligation to acquire the remaining interest in WilcoHess, a 
retail gasoline station joint venture. This contingent obligation, which expues in April 2014, was approximately 
$205 miUion at December 31, 2011. 

The Corporation is contingently liable under letters of credit and under guarantees of the debt of other 
entities directly related to its business at December 31, 2011 as shown below (in milhons of doUars): 

Letters of credit $ 67 
Guarantees 1^ 

$ 82 

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements 

The Corporation has leveraged leases not included in its Consohdated Balance Sheet, primarily related to 
retaU gasoline stations that the Corporation operates. The net present value of these leases is $388 miUion at 
December 31, 2011 compared with $394 mUUon at December 31, 2010. If these leases were included as debt, the 
Corporation's December 31, 2011 debt to capitalization ratio would increase to 25.7% from 24.6%. 

See also Note 18, Guarantees and Contingencies in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Foreign Operations 

The Corporation conducts exploration and production activities outside the United States, principally in 
Algeria, AustraUa, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Bmnei, China. Denmark, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, France, Ghana, 
Indonesia, the Kurdistan region of Iraq, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Peru, Russia, Thailand and the United 
Kingdom. Therefore, the Corporation is subject to the risks associated with foreign operations, including political 
risk, lax law changes and currency risk. 

See also Item 1 A. Risk Factors Related to Our Bu.siness and Operations. 

Accountinjr Policies 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates 

Accounting policies and estimates affect the recognition of assets and Uabililies in the Corporation's 
Consolidated Balance Sheet and revenues and expenses in the Statement of Consolidated Income. The 
accounting methods used can affect net income, equity and various financial statement ratios. However, the 
Corporation's accounting policies generaUy do not change cash flows or liquidity. 

Accounting for Exploration and Development Costs: Exploration and production activities are accounted 
for using the successful efforts method. Costs of acquiring unproved and proved oil and gas leasehold acreage, 
including lease bonuses, brokers' fees and other related costs, are capitalized. Annual lease rentals, exploration 
expenses and exploratory dry hole costs are expensed as incurred. Costs of drilling and equipping productive 
wells, including development dry holes, and related production facilities aie capitalized. In production 
operations, costs of injected COT for tertiary recovery are expensed as incurred. 

The costs of exploratory wells that find oil and gas reserves are capitalized pending determination of 
whether proved reserves have been found. Exploratory drilling costs remain capitalized after drilling is 
completed if (1) the well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify completion as a producing well and 
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(2) sufficient progress is being made in assessing the reserves and the economic and operational viability of the 
project. If either of those criteria is not met, or if there is substantial doubt about the economic or operational 
viabUily of the project, the capitalized weU costs are charged to expense. Indicators of sufficient progress in 
assessing reserves and the economic and operating viabihty of a project include: commitment of project 
personnel, active negotiations for sales contracts with customers, negotiations with governments, operators and 
contractors and firm plans for additional drilling and other factors. 

Crude Oil and Natural Gas Reserves: The SEC revised ils oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosure 
requirements effective for year-end 2009 reporting. In addition, the Financial Accounlmg Standards Board 
(FASB) revised its accounting standard on oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosures. The determination of 
estimated proved reser\'es is a significant element in arriving at the resuhs of operations of exploration and 
production activities. The estimates of proved reserves affect well capitalizations, the unit of production 
depreciation rates of proved properties and wells and equipment, as well as impairment testing of oil and gas 
assets and goodwUl. 

For reserves to be booked as proved they must be determined with reasonable certainty to be economically 
producible from known reservoirs under existing economic conditions, operating methods and government 
regulations, In addition, government and project operator approvals must be obtained and, depending on the 
amount of the project cost, senior management or the board of directors must commit to fund the project. The 
Corporation maintains its own intemal reser\'e estimates that are calculated by technical staff that work directly 
with the oU and gas properties. The Coiporation's technical staff updates reserve estimates throughout the year 
based on evaluations of new wells, performance reviews, new technical data and other studies. To provide 
consistency thioughout the Corporation, standard reserve estimation guidelines, definitions, reporting reviews 
and approval practices are used. The internal reserve estimates are subject to internal technical audits and senior 
management review, The Coiporation also engages an independent third party consulting firm to audit 
approximately 80% ofthe Corporation's total proved reser\'es. 

Impairment of Long-lived Assets and Goodwill: As explained below, there are significant differences in 
the way long-lived assets and goodwiU are evaluated and measured for impairment testing. The Corporaiion 
reviews long-hved assets, including oil and gas fields, for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may nol be recovered. Long-lived assets are tested based on 
identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If the carrying 
amounts of the long-lived assets are not expected to be recovered by undiscounted future net cash flow esiunates, 
the assets are impaired and an impairment loss is recorded. The amount of impairment is based on the estimated 
fair value ofthe assets generally determined by discounting anticipated future net cash flows. 

In the case of oU and gas fields, the present value of future net cash flows is based on management's best 
estimate of future prices, which is determined with reference to recent historical prices and published forward 
prices, applied to projected production volumes and discounted at a risk-adjusted rate. The projected production 
volumes represent resenes, including probable reserves, expected to be produced based on a stipulated amouni 
of capital expenditures. 

The production volumes, prices and timing of production are consistent with intemal projections and other 
externally reported information. Oil and gas prices used for determining asset impakments will generaUy differ 
from those used in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows, since the standardized measure 
requires the use of historical twelve month average prices. 

The Corporation's impairment tests of long-lived E&P producing assets are based on its best estimates of 
future production volumes (including recovery factors), selling prices, operating and capital costs, the timing of 
future production and other factors, which are updated each time an impairment test is performed. The 
Corporation could have impairments if the projected production volumes from oil and gas fields decrease, crude 
oil and natural gas selling prices decline significantly tor an extended period or future estimated capital and 
operating ct)sts increase significantly. 

The Corporation's goodwill is tested for impairment annually in the fourth quarter or when events or 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouni of the goodwill may not be recoverable. The goodwill test is 
conducted at a reporting unit level, which is defmed in accounting standards as an operating segment or one level 
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below an operating segmenl. The reporting unit or units lo be used m an evaluation and measurement of goodwill 
for impairment testing are determined from a number of factors, including the manner in which the business is 
managed. The Corporation has concluded that the E&P segment is die reporting unit for the purposes of testing 
goodwill for impairment, since the E&P segment is managed globally by one segment manager who allocates 
financial and technical resources globally and reviews operating results at the segment level. Accordingly, the 
Corporation expects that the benefits of gotxlwill will be recovered through the operations of that segment. 

If any of the E&P segment components, such as our financial reporting regions (United Slates, Europe, 
Africa and Asia) were considered to be reporting units, an analysis would be performed to determine if these 
components were economically similar as defined in the accounting standard for goodwill (ASC 350-20-35). If 
components are economically similar, that guidance requires that those components be aggregated and deemed a 
single reporting unit. 

While the Corporation believes that the E&P segment is the reporting unit because of the manner in which 
the business is managed, it also evaluated the requked aggregation criteria specified in the accounting standard 
for segment reporting (ASC 280-10-50-11) and determined that its components are economicaUy similar for the 
following reasons: 

• The Corporaiion operates ils exploration and production segmenl as a single, global business. 
• Each component produces oU and gas. 
• The exploration and production processes are similar in each component. 
• The methods used by each component to market and distribute oil and gas are similar. 
• Customers of each component are similar. 
• The components share technical resources and support services. 

If the Corporation reorganized ils exploration and production business such that there was more than one 
reporting unit, g(X)dwill may be assigned to two or more reporting units. 

The Corporation's fair value estimate of the E&P segment is the sum of: (1) the discounted anticipated cash 
flows of producing assets and known developments, (2) the estimated risk adjusted present value of exploration 
assets, and (3) an estimated market premium to reflect the market price an acquirer would pay for potential 
synergies including cost savings, access to new business opportunities, enterprise control, improved processes and 
increased market share. The Corporation also considers the relative market valuation of similar E&P companies. 

The determination of the fair value of the E&P segmenl depends on estimates about oil and gas reser\'es, 
future prices, timing of future net cash flows and market premiums. Significant extended declines in crude oil 
and natural gas prices or reduced reserve estimates could lead to a decrease in the fair value of the E&P segment 
that could result in an impairment of goodwill. 

As there are significant differences in the way long-lived assets and goodwU! are evaluated and measured 
for impanment testing, there may be impakments of individual assets that would not cause an impairment of the 
goodwiU assigned to the E&P segment. 

Impairment of Equity Investees: The Corporation reviews equity method investments for impairment 
whenever events or changes tn circumstances indicate that an other than temporary decline in value may have 
occurred. The fan value measurement used in the impairment assessment is based on quoted market prices, 
where avaUable, or other valuation techniques, including discoimled cash flows. Differences between the 
carrying value of the Corporation's equity investments and its equity in the net assets of the affiliate that result 
from impairment charges are amortized over the remaining useful life of the affiliate's fixed assets. 

Income Taxes: Judgments are required in the determination and recognition of income tax assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements. These judgments include the requirement to only recognize the financial 
statement effect of a tax position when management believes that it is more likely than not, that based on the 
technical merits, the position will be sustamed upon examination. 

The Coiporation has net operating loss carryforwards or credit carryforwards in several jurisdictions, 
including the United States, and has recorded deferred lax assets for those losses and credits. Additionally, the 
Corporation has deferred lax assets due lo temporary differences between the book basis and tax basis of certain 
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assets and liabUities. Regular assessments are made as to the likelihood of those deferred lax assets being 
realized. If it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuatitm 
allowance is recorded to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is expected to be realized. In evaluating 
reaUzability of deferred tax assets, the Corporation refers to the reversal periods for available carryforward 
periods for net operating losses and credit carryforwards, temporary differences, the availability of tax planning 
strategies, the existence of appreciated assets and estimates of future taxable income and other factors. Estimates 
of future taxable income are based on assumptions of oil and gas reserves and selUng prices that are consistent 
with the Corporation's intemal business forecasts. Additionally, the Corporation has income taxes which have 
been deferred on intercompany transactions eliminated in consolidation related to transfers of property, plant and 
equipment remaining within the consolidated group. The amortization of these income taxes deferred on 
intercompany transactions will occur ratably with the recovery through depletion and depreciation of the carrymg 
value of these assets. The Corporaiion does nol provide for deferred U.S. income taxes for that portion of 
undistributed eamings of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. 

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation's derivative instruments and supplemental pension plan 
investments are rectjrded al fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in eamings or other comprehensive 
income each period as appropriate. The Corporation uses various valuation approaches in determining fair value, 
including the market and income approaches. The Corporation's fair value measurements also include 
non-performance risk and time value of money considerations. Counterparty credit is considered for receivable 
balances, and the Corporation's credit is considered for accmed liabilities. 

The Corporation also records certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value when required by 
generally accepted accounting principles. These fair value measurements are recorded in connection with 
business combinations, the initial recognition of asset retirement obligations and any impairment of long-lived 
assets, equity method investments or goodwiU. 

The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the FASB fair value measurements accounting 
standard which established a hierarchy for the inputs used to measure fair value based on the source of the input, 
which generally range from quoted prices for identical instruments in a principal trading market (Level 1) to 
estimates determined using related market data (Level 3). Multiple inputs may be used to measure fair value, 
however, the level of fair value is based on the lowest significant input level withm this fair value hierarchy. 

Details on the methods and assumptions used to determine the fair values are as follows: 

Fair value measurements based on Level 1 inputs: Measurements that are most observable are 
based on quoted prices of identical instruments obtained from the principal markets in which they aie traded. 
Closing prices are both readily available and representative of fan value. Market transactions occur with 
sufficient frequency and volume to assure liquidity. The fair value of certain of the Corporation's exchange 
traded futures and options are considered Level 1. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 2 inputs: Measurements derived indirectly from 
observable inputs or from quoted prices from markets that are less liquid are considered Level 2. Measurements 
based on Level 2 inputs include over-the-counter derivative instruments that are priced on an exchange traded 
curve but have contiactual terms that are not identical to exchange traded contracts. The Corporaiion utilizes fair 
value measurements based on Level 2 inputs for certain forwards, swaps and options. The liability related to the 
Corporation's cmde oil hedges is classified as Level 2. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 3 inputs: Measurements that are least observable are 
estimated from related market data determined from sources with little or no market activity for comparable 
contracts or are positions with longer durations. For example, in its energy markelmg business, the Corporaiion 
sells natural gas and electricity to customers and offsets Ihe price exposure by purchasing forward contracts. The 
fair value of these sales and purchases may be based on specific prices al less liquid deUvered locations, which 
are classified as Level 3. Fair values determined using discounted cash flows and other unobservable data are 
also classified as Level 3. 

Derivatives: The Corporation utilizes derivative instruments for both risk management and trading 
activities. In risk management activities, the Corporation uses futures, forwards, options and swaps, individually 
or in combination to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in the prices of cmde oU, natural gas, refined petroleum 
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products and electricity, as well as changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates. In trading activities, 
the Corporation, principally through a consolidated partnership, trades energy-related commodities and 
derivatives, including futures, forwards, options and swaps, based on expectations of future market conditions. 

All derivative instruments are recorded at fak value in the Corporation's Consolidated Balance Sheet. The 
Corporation's policy for recognizing the changes in fak value of derivatives varies based on the designation of 
the derivative. The changes in fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are recognized currently 
in eamings. Derivatives may be designated as hedges of expected future cash flows or forecasted transactions 
(cash flow hedges) or hedges of fkm commitments (fak value hedges). The effective portion of changes in fak 
value of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges is recorded as a component of other comprehensive 
income (loss). Amounts included in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for cash flow hedges are 
reclassified into eamings in the same pericxl that the hedged item is recognized in eamings. The ineffective 
portion of changes in fair value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges is recorded currenUy in eamings. 
Changes in fair value of derivatives designated as fair value hedges are recognized currently in eamings. The 
change in fak value of the related hedged commitment is recorded as an adjustmenl to its carrying amount and 
recognized currently in eamings. 

Derivatives that are designated as either cash flow or fair value hedges are tested for effectiveness 
prospectively before they are executed and both prospectively and retrospectively on an on-going basis to 
detemiine whether they continue to qualify for hedge accounting. The prospective and retrospective effectiveness 
calculations are performed using either historical simulation or other statistical models, which utilize historical 
observable market data consisting of futures curves and spot prices. 

Retirement Plans: The Corporation has funded non-contributory defined benefit pension plans and an 
unfunded supplemental pension plan. The Coiporation recognizes in the Consolidated Balance Sheet the net 
change in the funded status of the projected benefit obligation for these plans. 

The determination of the obligations and expenses related to these plans are based on several actuarial 
assumptions, the most significant of which relate to the discount rate for measurmg the present value of future plan 
obligations; expected long-term rates of return on plan assets; and rate of future increases in compensation levels. 
These assumptions represent estimates made by the Corporation, some of which can be affected by external factors. 
For example, the discount rate used to estimate the Corporation's projected benefit obligation is based on a portfolio 
of high-quality, fixed income debt instruments with maturities that approximate the expected paymenl of plan 
obligations, while the expected relum on plan assets is developed from the expected future returns for each asset 
category, weighted by the target allocation of pension assets lo that asset category. Changes in these assumptions 
can have a material impact on the amounts reported in the Corporation's financial statements. 

Asset Retirement Obligations: The Corporaiion has material legal obligations to remove and dismantie long 
lived assets and to restore land or seabed al certain exploration and production k^ations. In accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, the Corporation recognizes a liability ftjr the fak value of required asset 
retkement obligations. In addition, the fak value of any legally required conditional asset retirement obligations is 
recorded if the liability can be reasonably estimated. The Corporation capitalizes such costs as a component of the 
carrying amount of the underlying assets in the period in which the liability is incurred. In order to measure these 
obligations, the Corporation estimates the fair value of the obligations by discounting the future payments that will 
be requked to satisfy the obligations. In determining these estimates, the Corporation is required lo make several 
assumptions and judgments related to the scope of dismantlement, timing of settlement, interpretation of legal 
requirements, inflationary factors and discount rate. In addition, there are other extemal factors which could 
significantly affect the ultimate settlement costs for these obligations including changes in environmental 
regulations and other statutory requirements, fluctuations in industiy costs and foreign currency exchange rates and 
advances in technology. As a resuh, the Corporation's estimates of asset retkement obligations are subject to 
revision due to the factors described above. Changes in estimates prior to settiement result in adjustments to both 
the liability and related asset values. 
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Environment, Health and Safety 

The Corporation has a values-based, socially-responsible strategy focused on improving envkonment, health 
and safety performance and making a positive impact on communities where il does business. The strategy is 
reflected in the Corporation's environment, health, safety and social responsibUily (EHS & SR) policies and by 
envkonment and safety management systems that help protect the Corporation's workforce, customers and local 
communities. The Corporation's management systems are designed to uphold or exceed international standards 
and are intended lo promote intemal consistency, adherence lo policy objectives and continual improvement in 
EHS & SR pertbrmance. Improved performance may, in die short-term, increase the Corporation's operating 
costs and could also requke increased capital expenditures to reduce potential risks to assets, reputation and 
license to operate. In addition to enhanced EHS & SR performance, improved productivity and operaticmal 
efficiencies may be realized as collateral benefits from investments in EHS & SR. The Corporatitm has programs 
in place to evaluate regulatory compliance, audit facilities, train employees, prevent and manage risks and 
emergencies and to generally meet corporate EHS & SR goals. 

Over the last several years, many refineries have entered into consent agreements to resolve the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) assertions that refining faciUties were modified or expanded 
without complying with the New Source Review regulations that requke permits and new emission controls in 
certain ckcumstances and other regulations that impose emissions control requirements. In January 2011, 
HOVENSA signed a consent decree with the EPA lo resolve its claims. Under the terms of the Consent Decree, 
HOVENSA agreed to pay a penalty of approximately $5 million and spend approximately $700 million over the 
next 10 years to install equipment and implement additional operating pr(K:edures at the HOVENSA refinery to 
reduce emissions. In addition, the Consent Decree requires HOVENSA to spend approximately $5 million to 
fund an environmental project to be determined at a later dale by the Virgin Islands and $500,000 to assist the 
Virgin Islands Water and Power Authority with monitoring. However, as a result of HOVENSA's decision lo 
shut down its refinery, which was announced in January 2012, HOVENSA believes that it will not be required to 
make material capital expenditures pursuant to this consent decree. The Corporation believes that it will also 
enter into a consent decree with the EPA in the near future to resolve these matters as they relate to its Port 
Reading refinery facility, which is not expected to have a material adverse impact on the financial condition, 
results of operations or cash flows of the Corporation. 

The Corporation produces and distributes fuel oils in the United States. Many states and localities are 
adopting requkements that mandate a lower sulfur content of fuel oils and restrict the types of fuel oil sold within 
thek jurisdictions. These proposals could requke capital expenditures by the Corpt)ration for its Port Reading 
refining facility to meet the requked sulfur content standards or other changes in the marketing of fuel oils and 
affect Ihe profitability of that facility. 

The Corporaiion has undertaken a program lo assess, monitor and reduce the emission of greenhouse gases, 
including carbon dioxide and methane. The Corporation recognizes dial climate change is a global envkonmental 
concern. The Corporation is committed to the responsible management of greenhouse gas emissions from our 
existing assets and future developments and is implementing a strategy to control our carbon emissions. 

The Corporaiion will have contmuing expendkures for envkonmental assessment and remediation. Sites 
where corrective action may be necessary include gasoline stations, terminals, onshore exploration and 
production facUities. refineries (including soUd waste management units under permhs issued pursuant to the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act) and, although not currently significant, "Superfund" sites where the 
Corporation has been named a potentially responsible party. 

The Corporation accmes for environmental assessment and remediation expenses when the future costs are 
probable and reasonably estimable. At year-end 2011, the Corporation's reserve for estimated remediation 
liabilities was approximately $60 million. The Corporaticm expects that existing reserves for environmental 
liabilities will adequately cover costs to assess and remediate known sites. The Corporation's remediation 
spending was $19 miUion in 2011, $13 miUion in 2010 and $11 miUion in 2009. Capital expenditures for 
faciUties, primarily to comply with federal, slate and local environmental standards, other than for the low sulfur 
requirements, were approximately $95 mUlion in 2011, $85 miUion in 2010 and $50 miUion in 2009. 
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Forward-looking Information 

Certain sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including Business and Properties, Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuhs of Operations and Quantitative and Qualitative 
Disclosures about Market Risk, include references to the Corporation's future results of operations and financial 
position, liquidhy and capital resources, capital expenditures, oil and gas production, tax rates, debt repayment, 
hedging, derivative, market risk and envkonmental disclosures, off-balance sheet arrangements and contractual 
obligations and contingencies, which include forward-looking information. These sections typically include 
statements with words such as "anticipate", "estimate", "expect", "forecast", "guidance", "could", "may", 
"should", "would" or simUar words, indicating that future outcomes are uncertain. Forward-looking disclosures 
are based on the Corporation's current understanding and assessment of these activities and reasonable 
assumptions about the future. Actual results may differ from these disclosures because of changes in market 
conditions, government actions and other factors. For more information regarding the factors that may cause the 
Corporation's results to differ from these statements, see Item IA. Risk Factors Related to Our Business and 
Operations. 

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 

In the normal course of its business, the Corporation is exposed to commodity risks related to changes in the 
price of cmde oil, natural gas. refined petroleum products and electricity, as well as to changes in mterest rates 
and foreign curtency values. In the disclosures that follow, risk management activities are refeaed to as energy 
marketing and corporate risk management activities. The Corporation also has ti-ading operations, principally 
through a 50% voting inlerest in a consolidated partnership that trades energy-related commodities, securities and 
derivatives. These activhies are also exposed to commodity risks primarily related lo the prices of crude oU, 
natural gas and refmed petroleum products. The following describes how these risks are controlled and managed. 

ControLi: The Corporation maintains a contiol envkonment under the direction of its chief risk officer and 
through ils corporate risk policy, which the Corporation's senior management has approved. Controls include 
volumetric, term and value at risk limits. The chief risk officer must approve the use of new instmments or 
commodities. Risk limits are monitored and are reported on a daily basis to business units and to senior 
management. The Corporation's risk management department also performs independent verifications of sources of 
fair values and validations of valuation models. These controls apply to all of the Corporation's risk management 
and trading activities, including the consolidated tiading partnership. The Corporation's treasury department is 
responsible for administering and monitoring foreign exchange rate and interest rate hedging programs. 

The Corporation uses value at risk to monitor and control commodity risk within ils risk management and 
trading activities. The value at risk model uses historical simulation and the results represent the potential loss in 
fak value over one day at a 95% confidence level. The model captures both first and second order sensitivities 
for options. Results may vary from time to time as strategies change in trading activities or hedging levels change 
in risk management activities. 

Instruments: The Corporaiion primarily uses forward commodity contracts, foreign exchange forward 
contiacts, futures, swaps, options and energy commodity based securities in hs risk management and trading 
activities. These contracts are generally widely traded instruments with standardized terms. The foUowing 
describes these instruments and how the Corporation uses them; 

• Forward Commodity Contracts: The Corporation enters into contracts for the forward purchase and 
sale of commodities. At settlement date, the notional value of the contract is exchanged for physical 
delivery of the commodity. Forward contracts that are deemed normal purchase and sale contiacts are 
excluded from the quantitative market risk disclosures. 

• Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts: The Corporation enters into forward contracts primarily for the 
British Pound and the Thai Bahl, which commit the Corporation to buy or sell a fixed amount of these 
currencies at a predetermined exchange rate on a future date. 

• Exchange Traded Contracts: The Corporatioii uses exchange traded contracts, including futures, on a 
number of different underlying energy commodities. These contiacts are settled daily with the relevant 
exchange and may be subject lo exchange position limits. 
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• Swaps: The Corporaiion uses financially settled swap contiacts with thkd parties as part of its risk 
management and trading activities. Cash flows from swap contracts are determined based on 
underiying commodity prices or interesl rates and are typically settled over the life of the contract. 

• Options: Options on various underlying energy commodities include exchange traded and thkd party 
contracts and have various exercise periods. As a seller of options, the Corporaiion receives a premium 
at the outset and bears the risk of unfavorable changes in the price of the commodity underlying the 
option. As a purchaser of options, the Corporation pays a premium al the outset and has the right lo 
participate in the favorable price movements in Ihe underlying commodities. 

• Energy Securities: Energy securities include energy-related equity or debt securities issued by a 
company or government or related derivatives on these securities. 

Risk Management Activities 

Energy marketing activities: In its energy marketing activities, the Corporation sells refined petioleum 
producls, natural gas and electricity principaUy to commercial and industiial businesses al fixed and floating 
prices for varying periods of time. Commodity contiacts such as futures, forwards, swaps and options together 
with physical assets, such as storage, are used to obtain supply and reduce margin volatUity or lower costs related 
lo sales contracts with customers. 

Corporate risk management: Corporate risk management activities include tiansactions designed to 
reduce risk in the seUing prices of crude oil, refined petroleum products or natural gas produced by the 
Corporation or to reduce exposure lo foreign cuirency or interesl rate movements. Generally, futures, swaps or 
option strategies may be used to reduce risk in the selling price of a portion of the Corporation's cmde oil or 
natural gas production. Forward contracts may also be used to purchase certain currencies in which the 
Coiporation does business with the intent of reducing exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. Interesl rate 
swaps may also be used, generally to convert fixed-rate interest payments to floating. 

The Corporation has outstanding foreign exchange contiacts used to reduce its exposure to fluctuating 
foreign exchange rates for various currencies, including the British Pound and the Thai Baht. At 
December 31, 2011, the Coiporation had a payable for foreign exchange contiacts maturing in 2012 with a fair 
value of Sl4 million. The change in fair value ofthe foreign exchange contracts from a 10% strengthening ofthe 
U.S. Dollar exchange rate is estimated to be a loss of approximately $89 million at December 31, 2011. 

The Corporation's outstanding long-term debt of $6,040 million has a fair value of $7,317 miUion at 
December 31, 2011. A 15% decrease in the rate of interest would increase the fair value of debt by approximately 
$247 miUion at December 31, 2011. 

Following is the value at risk for the Corporation's energy marketing and risk management commodity 
derivatives activities, excluding foreign exchange and interesl rale derivatives described above: 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

At December 31 $94 $5 
Average 30 5 
High 94 6 
Low 8 4 

The increase in the value at risk for the Corporation's energy marketing and risk management commodity 
derivatives activities in 2011 primarily reflects additional Brent cmde oil cash flow hedge positions as described 
in Note 17, Risk Management and Trading Activities in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Trading Activities 

Trading activities are conducted principally through a trading partnership in which the Corporation has a 
50% voling interest. This consolidated entity intends to generate eamings through various strategies primarily 
using energy commodities, securities and derivatives. The Corporation also takes trading positions for its own 
account. 
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Followuig is the value at risk for the Corporation's trading activhies; 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

At December 31 $ 4 $14 
Average 11 14 
High 16 15 
Low 4 12 

The information that follows represents 100% of the trading partnership and the Corporation's proprietary 
trading accounts. Derivative trading transactions are marked-to-market and unrealized gains or losses are 
recognized currently in eamings. Gains or losses from sales of physical products are recorded at the lime of sale. 
Net realized gains on tiadmg activities amounted to $44 mlUion in 2011 and $375 mUlion in 2010. The following 
table provides an assessment of the factors affecting the changes in fair value of financial instmments and 
derivative commodity contracts used in tradmg activities: 

2011 2010 
(Millions of dollars) 

Fair value of contracts outstanding at January 1 $ 94 $ 110 
Change in fair value of contracts outstanding al the beginning of the yeai' and stiU 

outstanding at the end of the yeai" (69) 10 
Reversal of fair value for contiacts closed during the year 9 (233) 
Fak value of contiacts entered into during the year and stiU outstanding (120) 207 

Fak value of contiacts outstanding al December 31 $ (86) $ 94 

The following table summarizes the sources of net asset (UabUity) fak values of financial instmments and 
derivative commodity contiacts by year of maturity used in the Corporation's trading activities at December 31, 
2011: 

Total 

Source of fair value 
Level 1 $ (45) 
Level 2 285 
Level 3 (326) 

2012 2013 2014 

(Millions of dollars) 

$ (31) $ (3) $ (1) 
276 36 (3) 

(325) (60) 30 

2015 and 
Beyond 

$ (10) 
(24) 
29 

Total $ (86) $ (80) $ (27) $ 26 $ (5) 

The following table summarizes die receivables net of cash margin and letters of credit relating to the 
Corporation's tiading activities and the credit ralmgs of counterparties at December 31: 

2011 2010 
(Millions of dollars) 

Investment grade determined by outside sources $ 389 $ 314 
Investment grade determined internally* 304 272 
Less than investment grade 89 48 

Fak value of net receivables outstanding al December 31 $ 782 $ 634 

* Based on information provided by counterparties and other available sources. 

42 



Item 8. Financial Statements and .Supplementary Data 

HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULE 

Page 
Number 

Management's Report on Internal Contiol over Financial Reporting 44 
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 45 
Consolidated Balance Sheet alDecember 31, 2011 and 2010 47 
Statement of Consolidated Income for each of the three years in the period ended 

December 31, 2011 48 
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended 

December 31, 2011 49 
Statement of Consolidated Equity and Comprehensive Income for each of the three years in the period 

ended December 31, 2011 50 
Notes to Consolidated Fin^pcial Statements 51 
Supplementary Oil and Gas Data 85 
Quarterly Financial Data 94 
Schedule* II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 102 
Financial Statements of HOVENSA L.L.C. as of December 31, 2011 103 

"* Schedules other than Schedule II have been omitted because ofthe absence ofthe conditions under which they are required or because the 
required information is presented in the financial statements or ihe notes thereto. 
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Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal contiol over financial 
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the 
participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we 
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our intemal contiol over financial reporting, as requked by 
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, based on the framework in Intemal Contn)l — Integrated Framework 
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation, 
management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011. 

The Corporation's independent registered public accounting fkm, Ernst & Young LLP, has audited the 
effectiveness ofthe Corporation's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, as stated in 
their report, which is included herein. 

By 

A/tU^ 
By 

John P. Rielly 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer 

John B. Hess 
Chairman ofthe Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

Febmary 27, 2012 

44 



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Hess Corporation 

We have audUed Hess Corporation's intemal conti'ol over financial reporting as of December 31. 2011, 
based on criteria established in Intemal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Hess Corporation's management is responsible 
for maintaining effective intemal contiol over financial reporting, and for hs assessment of die effectiveness of 
internal contiol over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Report on Intemal Control 
over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Corporation's intemal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether effective intemal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our 
audit included obtaining an understanding of intemal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based 
on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemal purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's intemal contiol over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable delaU, 
accurately and fairly reflect the iransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that tiansactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements m accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and dkectors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limkations, intemal contiol over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness lo future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion. Hess Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), the consohdated balance sheet of Hess Corporation and consolidated subsidiaries as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of consolidated income, cash flows, and equity and 
comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 of Hess Corporation 
and consolidated subsidiaries, and our report dated Febmary 27, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

J&/V>vtt̂  V 1^U/M^U? i - ^ / ^ * < ^ > ^ ' 

Febmary 27, 2012 
New York, New York 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Hess Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Hess Corporation and consolidated 
subsidiaries (the "Corporation") as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of consolidated 
income, cash flows, and equity and comprehensive income for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2011. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 8. These 
financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United Slates). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audk also mcludes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe thai our audits provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fakly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Hess Corporaiion and consolidated subsidiaries al December 31, 2011 and 
2010, and the consolidated results of their operations and thek cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2011, in conformity whh U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our 
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the consolidated financial 
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects, the information set forth therein. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards ofthe Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States), Hess Corporation's intemal contiol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on 
criteria established in Intemal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations ofthe Treadway Commission and our report dated Febmary 27, 2012 expressed an unqualified 
opinion thereon. 

/ S / i ' ^ t ^ V- '^^hA/^^LL? V- ^Z™"*^^ 

Febmary 27. 2012 
New York. New York 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

December 31, 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars; 
thousands ofshares) 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 351 $ 1.608 
Accounts receivable 

Trade 4,761 4.478 
Other 250 240 

Inventories 1,423 1,452 
Other current assets 1,554 1,002 

Total current assets 8,339 8,780 

INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES .384 443 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Total — at cost 39,710 3.5,7(13 

Less reserves for depreciation, depletion, amortization and lease impairment 14,998 14,576 

Property, plant and equipment — net 24,712 21,127 

GOODWILL 2,305 2,408 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 2,941 2,167 
OTHER ASSETS 455 471 
TOTAL ASSETS $ 39,136 S 35.396 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable $ 3,712 S 4,274 
Accmed liabilities 3,524 2,567 
Taxes payable 812 726 
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt 52 46 

Total current liabilities 8,100 7,613 

LONG-TERM DEBT 6,005 5,537 
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 2,843 2,995 
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS 1,844 1,203 
OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS 1,752 1,239 

Total liabilities 20,544 18,587 

EQUITY 
Hess Corporation Stockholders' Equity 

Comnion stock, par value $1.00 
Authorized — 600,000 shares 
Issued: 2011 — 339,976 shares; 2010 — 337,681 shares 340 338 

Capital in excess of par value 3,417 3,256 
Retained earnings 15,826 14.254 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1)067) (1,159) 

Total Hess Corporation stockholders' equity 18,516 16,689 

Noncontrolling interests 76 120 

Total equity 18,592 16,809 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 39,136 $ 35,396 

The consolidated financial statements reflect the successful efforts method of accounting for oil and gas 
exploration and production activities. 

See accompanying notes lo consolidated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME 

Years Ended December 31, 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars, except per share data) 

REVENUES AND NON-OPERATING INCOME 
Sales (excluding excise taxes) and other operating revenues $38,466 $33,862 $29,614 
Income (loss) from equity investment in HOVENSA L.L.C (1,073) (522) (229) 
Gains on asset sales 446 1,208 — 
Other, net 32 65 184 

Total revenues and non-operating income 37,871 34,613 29,569 

COSTS AND EXPENSES 
Cost of products sold (excluding items shown separately below) 26,774 23,407 20,961 
Production expenses 2,352 1,924 1,805 
Marketing expenses 1,069 1,021 1,008 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment 1,195 865 829 
Other operating expenses 171 213 183 
General and administiative expenses 702 662 647 
Interesl expense 383 361 360 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,406 2,317 2,200 
Asset impakments 358 532 54 

Total costs and expenses 35,410 31,302 28,047 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 2,4(tl 3,311 1,522 
Provision for income taxes 785 1,173 715 

NET INCOME $ 1,676 $ 2,138 $ 807 
Less: Net income (loss) altiibutable to noncontrolling interests (27) 13 67 

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO HESS CORPORATION $ 1,703 $ 2,125 $ 740 

BASIC NET INCOME PER SHARE $ 5.05 $ 6.52 $ 2.28 
DILUTED NET INCOME PER SHARE $ 5.01 $ 6.47 $ 2.27 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF COMMON SHARES 

OUTSTANDING (DILUTED) 339.9 328.3 326.0 

See accompanying notes to consoUdated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 31, 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollarN) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income $ 1,676 $ 2,138 $ 807 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,406 2,317 2,200 
(Income) loss from equity investment in HOVENSA L.L.C 1,073 522 229 
Asset impairments 358 532 54 
Exploratory dry hole costs 438 237 267 
Lease impairment 301 266 231 
Stock compensation expense 104 112 128 
Gains on asset sales (446) (1,208) — 
Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes (623) (495) (438) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (243) (760) 320 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 4 (16) (137) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accmed liabUities 544 1,141 (542) 
Increase (decrease) in taxes payable 46 95 (81) 
Changes in other assets and liabilities (654) (351) 8 

Net cash provided by operating activhies 4,984 4,530 3,046 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Capkal expenditures (7,006) (5,492) (2,918) 
Proceeds from asset sales 490 183 — 
Otiier, net (50) 50 (6) 

Net cash used in investing activhies (6,566) (5,259) (2,924) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net borrowings (repayments) of debt with maturities of 90 days or less 100 — (850) 
Debt with maturities of greater than 90 days 

Borrowings 
Repayments 

Cash dividends paid 
Noncontiolling interests, net 
Employee stock options exercised, including income tax benefits 

Net cash provided by financing activhies 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .. 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

422 
(100) 
(136) 
(49) 
88 

325 

(1,257) 

1,608 

S 351 

1.278 
(180) 
(131) 
(46) 
54 

975 

246 
1,362 

$ 1,608 

1,991 
(694) 

(131) 

(2) 
18 

332 

454 
908 

$ 1,362 

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

AccumulHtccI 
Capital in Other lotai HC-SJ 

CnmmiHi hixccn ot' Kclained Comprehensive Stitckhnldcrs' Nonronlrollinti I'oUl 
Stock Par Harrings irconic |l,ossl 1-^iiit} Interests Kquity 

Balance at January 1.2009 $326 $2,347 $11,642 
Net income 740 

Deferred gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, after-iax 
Effect of hedge losses recognized in income 
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges 

Change in postretirement plan liabilitie.s, after-tax 
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment and 

other 

Comprehensive income (loss) 
Activity related to restricted common stock awards, net I 61 — 
Employee stock options, including income tax benefits — 73 — 
Cash dividends declared — — (131) 
Noncomrolling interests, net — — — 

Balance at December 31, 2009 327 2,481 12.251 

Net income 2,125 
Deferred gains (losses) on cash flow hedges, after-tax 

Effect of ĥ d̂ge losses recognized in income 
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges 

Change in postretirement plan liabilities, after-lax 
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment and 

other 

Comprehensive income (loss) 
CoiTimon stock issued for acquisition 9 639 ~ 
Activity related to restricted common stock awards, net I 59 — 
Employee stock options, including income tax benefits I 105 — 
Cash dividends declared — — (132) 
Noncontrolling interests, net — (28) 10 

Balance at December 31, 2010 338 3,256 14,254 

Net income 1,703 
Deferred gains (losses) on cash flô A' hedges, after-tax 

Effect of hedge losses recognized in income 
Net change in fair value of cash flow hedges 

Change in postretirement plan liabilities, after-tax 
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment and 

other 

Comprehensive income (loss) 
Activity related to restricted common stock awards, net 1 52 — 
Employee stock options, including income tax benefits 1 138 — 
Cash dividends declared — — (J36) 
Noncontrolling interests, net — (29) 5 

Balance at December 31, 2011 $340 $3,417 $15,826 

<Millinn<i of dollars) 

$(2,008) 

963 
(729) 

(6) 

105 

— 
— 
— 
— 

(1.675) 

656 
(198) 

28 

30 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

(1J59) 

432 
2 

(246) 

(96) 

— 
— 
— 
— 

$(1,067) 

$12,307 
740 

963 
(729) 

(6) 

105 

1.073 
62 
73 

(131) 

— 
13,384 

2,125 

656 
(198) 

28 

30 

2,641 
648 
60 

106 
(132) 

(18) 

16,689 

1,703 

432 
2 

(246) 

(96) 

1,795 
S3 

139 
(136) 

(24) 

$18,516 

$ 84 : 
67 

— 
— 

(5) 

62 

— 
— 
— 
(2) 

144 

13 

— 
— 

I 

14 

— 
— 
— 
— 

(38) 

120 

(27) 

— 
— 

2 

(25) 

— 
— 
— 

(19) 

$ 76 ( 

iil2,391 
807 

%3 
(729) 

(6) 

100 

1,135 
62 
73 

(131) 
(2) 

13,528 

2,138 

656 
(198) 

28 

31 

2,655 
648 

60 
106 

(132) 
(56) 

16,809 

1,676 

432 
2 

(246) 

(94) 

1,770 
S3 

139 
(136) 

(43) 

S18^92 

See accompanying notes lo consolidated financial statements. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary uf Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Business: Hess Corporation and its subsidiaiies (the Corporation) engage in the exploration for 
and the development, production, purchase, transportation and sale of crude oil and natural gas. These activities are 
conducted principally in Algeria, Australia, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Brunei, Chma. Denmark, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, 
France, Ghana. Indonesia, the Kurdistan region of Iraq, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Peru, Russia, Thailand, the 
United Kingdom and the United States (U.S.). In addition, the Corporation manufactures refined petroleum products 
and purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum producls, natural gas and electricity. The Corporation owns 
50% of HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA), a joint venture in the U.S. Virgin Islands. In January 2012, HOVENSA 
aimounced a decision to shut down its refinery and continue to operate die complex as an oil storage terminal. The 
Corporation also operates a refining facility, terminals and retail gasoline stations, most of which include 
convenience stores that are located on the East Coast of the United States. 

In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), 
management makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and habilifies in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet and revenues and expenses in the Statement of Consolidated Income. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. Among the estimates made by management are oil and gas reserves, asset 
valuations, depreciable lives, pension liabilities, legal and environmental obligations, asset retirement obligations 
and income taxes. Certain infonnation in the financial statements and notes has been reclassified to conform to 
the current period presentation. In the preparation of these financial statements, the Corporation has evaluated 
subsequent events through the date of issuance. 

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial stalenients include the accounts of Hess 
Corporation and entities in which the Corporation owns more than a 50% voling interesl or entities that the 
Corporation controls. The Corporaiion consolidates the trading partnership in which it owns a 50% voting 
interest and over which it exercises control. The Corporation's undivided interests in unincorporated oil and gas 
exploration and production ventures are proportionately consolidated. Investments in affiliated companies, 20% 
to 50% owned and where the Corporation has the abiUty lo influence the operating or financial decisions of the 
affiliate, includmg HOVENSA, are accounted for using the equity method. 

Revenue Recognitiim: The Corporation recognizes revenues from the sale of crude oil, natiu'al gas, refined 
petrt)leum prtKiucts and other merchandise when title passes to the customer. Sales are reported net of excise and 
similar taxes in the Statement of Consolidated Income. The Corporafion recognizes revenues from the production of 
natural gas properties based on sales lo customers. Differences between Exploration & Production (E&P) natural 
gas volumes sold and the Corporation's share of natural gas production are not material. Revenues from natural gas 
and electricity sales by the Corporation's marketing operations are recognized based on meter readings and 
estimated deliveries to customers since the last meter reading. 

In hs E&P activities, the Corporation engages m crude oil purchase and sale u^ansactions widi the same 
counterparty that are entered into in contemplation of one another for ihe primary purpose of changing location or 
quality. Similarly, in ils marketing activities, the Corporation enters into refined petroleum product purchase and sale 
transactions with the same counterparty. These arrangements are reported net in Sales and other operating revenues in 
the Statement of Consolidated Income. 

Derivatives: The Corporation utilizes derivative instruments for both risk management and trading 
activities. In risk management activities, the Corporation uses futures, forwards, options and swaps, individually 
or in combination, to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in prices of crude oil, natural gas, refined petroleum 
products and electricity, as well as changes in inlerest and foreign currency exchange rates. In trading activities, 
the Corporation, principally through a consolidated partnership, trades energy-related commodities and 
derivatives, including futures, forwards, options and swaps based on expectations of future market condhions. 

All derivative instruments are recorded al fair value in the Corporation's Consolidated Balance Sheet. The 
Corporation's policy for recognizing the changes in fair value of derivatives varies based on the designation of 
the derivative. The changes in fair value of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are recognized currently 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

in earnings. Derivatives may be designated as hedges of expected future cash flows or forecasted transactions 
(cash flow hedges) or hedges of fum commitments (fan value hedges). The effecfive portion of changes in fair 
value of derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges is recorded as a component of other comprehensive 
income (loss) while the ineffective portion ofthe changes in fair value is recorded currently in earnings. Amounts 
included in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings 
in the same period that the hedged item is recognized in earnings. Changes in fan value of derivafives designated 
as fair value hedges are recognized currently in eamings. The change in fair value of the related hedged 
commitment is recorded as an adjustment lo its carrying amount and recognized currently in eamings. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, which are readily 
convertible into cash and have maturities of three months or less when acquired. 

Inventories: Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. For refined petroleum product 
inventories valued at cost, the Corporarion uses principally the last-in, first-out (LIFO) inventory method. For the 
remaining inventories, cost is generally determined using average actual costs, 

Exploration and Development Costs: E&P activities are accounted for using the successful efforts 
method. Costs of acquiring unproved and proved oil and gas leasehold acreage, including lease bonuses, brokers' 
fees and other related costs, are capitalized. Annual lease rentals, exploration expenses and exploratory di^ hole 
costs are expensed as incurred. Costs of drilling and equipping productive wells, including development dry 
holes, and related production facilities are capitalized. In production operations, costs of injected COo for tertiary 
recovery are expensed as incurred. 

The costs of exploratory wells that find oil and gas reseives are capitalized pending determination of 
whether proved reserves have been found. Exploratory drilling costs remain capitalized after drilling is 
completed if (1) the well has found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify completion as a producing well and 
(2) sufficient progress is being made in assessing the reserves and the economic and operational viability of the 
project. If either of those criteria is not met, or if there is substantial doubt about the economic or operational 
viability of a project, the capitahzed well costs are charged lo expense. Indicators of sufficient progress in 
assessing reserves and the economic and operating viabihty of a project include commitment of project 
persoimel. active negoriations for sales contracts with customers, negotiations with govemmenis, operators and 
contractors, firm plans for additional drilling and other factors. 

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization: The Corporation records depletion expense for acquisititm 
costs of proved properties using the units of production method over proved oil and gas reserves. Depreciation 
and depletion expense for oil and gas production equipment and wells is calculated using the units of production 
method over proved developed oil and gas reserves. Provisions for impairment of undeveloped oil and gas leases 
are based on periodic evaltialions and other factors. Depreciatitm of all other plant and equipment is determined 
on the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives. Retail gas stations and equipment related to a leased 
property, are depreciated over the estimated useful lives not to exceed the remaining lease period. The 
Corporation records the cost of acquired customers in its energy marketing activities as intangible assets and 
amortizes these costs on the straight-line method over the expected renewal period based on historical 
experience. 

Capitalized Interest: Interest from extemal borrowings is capitalized on material projects using the 
weighted average cost of outstanding borrowings until the project is substantially complete and ready for its 
intended use, which for oil and gas assets is at first production from the field. Capitalized inlerest is depreciated 
over the useful lives of the assets in the same manner as the depreciation of the underlying assets. 

Asset Retirement Obligations: The Corporation has material legal obligations to remove and dismantle 
long-lived assets and to restore land or seabed al certain exploration and production locations. The Corporation 
recognizes a liability for the fair value of legally required asset retirement obligations associated with long-lived 
assets in the period in which the retirement obligations are incurred. In addition, the fair value of any legally 
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required conditional asset retirement obligations is recorded if the liability can be reasonably estimated. The 
Corporation capitalizes die associated asset retkement costs as pait of the carrying amouni of the long-lived 
assets. 

Impairment of Long-lived Assets: The Corporaiion reviews long-lived assets for unpairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recovered. If the carrying 
amounts are not expected lo be recovered by undiscounted future cash flows, the assets are impaired and an 
impairment loss is recorded. The amount of impairment is based on the estimated fair value of the assets 
generally determined by discounting anticipated future net cash flows. In the case of oil and gas fields, the net 
present value of future cash flows is based on management's best estimate of future prices, which is determined 
with reference to recent historical prices and published forward prices, applied to projected production volumes 
and discounted at a risk-adjusted rate. The projected production volumes represent reserves, including probable 
reserves, expected to be produced based on a stipulated amount of capital expenditures. The production volumes, 
prices and timing of production are consistent with intemal projections and other exlemally reported information. 
Oil and gas prices used for determining asset impairments will generally differ from the average prices used in 
the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows. 

Impairment of Equity Investees: The Corpoiation reviews equity method investments for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an other than temporary decline in value may have 
occurred. The fair value measurement used in the impairment assessment is based on quoted market prices, 
where available, or other valuation techniques, including discounted cash flows. Differences between the 
carrying value of the Corporation's equity investments and its equity in the net assets of the affiliate that result 
from impairment charges are amortized over the remaining useful hfe of the affiliate's fixed assets. 

Impairment of Goodwill: Goodwill is tested for impau-ment annually in the fourth quarter or when events 
or changes in ckcumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the goodwill may not be recoverable. This 
impairment test is calculated at the reporting unit level, which for the Corporation's goodwill is the Exploration 
and Production operating segment. The Corporation identifies potential impakments by comparing the fair value 
of the reporting unit to its book value, including goodwill. If the fak value of the reporting unit exceeds the 
carrying amount, goodwill is not impaired. Ifthe carrying value exceeds the fak value, the Corporation calculates 
the possible impairment loss by comparing the implied fak value of goodwill with the carrying amount. If the 
implied fak value of goodwill is less than the carrying amount, an impakment would be recorded. 

Income Taxes: Deferred income taxes are determined using the liabilhy method. The Corporation 
regularly assesses the realizabihty of deferred tax assets, based on estimates of future taxable income, the 
availability of tax planning strategies, die existence of appreciated assets, the available carryforward periods for 
net operating losses and other factors. If it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will 
not be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded lo reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be 
realized. In addition, the Corporation recognizes the financial statement effect of a tax position only when 
management befieves that it is more likely than not, that based on the technical merits, the position will be 
sustained upon exanknation. Additionally, the Corporafion has income taxes which have been deferred on 
intercompany Iransactions eliminated in consolidation related lo transfers of property, plant and equipment 
remaining within the consolidated group. The amortization of these income taxes deferred on intercompany 
transactions will occur ratably with the recovery through depletion and depreciation of the carrying value of these 
assets. The Corporation does nol provide for deferred U.S. income taxes for that portion of undistributed eamings 
of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. The Corporation classifies inlerest 
and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as income lax expense. 

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation's derivative instmments and supplemental pension plan 
investments are recorded at fak value, with changes in fak value recognized in eamings or other comprehensive 
income each period as appropriate. The Corporation uses various valuation approaches in determining fair value, 
including the market and income approaches. The Corporation's fak value measurements also include 
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non-performance risk and lime value of money considerations. Counterparty credh is considered for receivable 
balances, and the Corporation's credit is considered for accrued liabilities. 

The Corporation also records certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities al fak value when required by 
GAAP. These fak value measurements are recorded in connection with business combinations, the initial 
recognition of asset retkement obligations and any impairment of long-lived assets, equity method investments 
or goodwill. 

The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the fair value measurements accounting standard 
which established a hierarchy for the inputs used lo measure fair value based on the source of the input, which 
generally range from quoted prices for identical instmments in a principal trading market (Level 1) to estimates 
determined using related market data (Level 3). Muhiple inputs may be used to measure fak value, however, the 
level of fak value is based on the lowest significant input level within this fair value hierarchy. 

Details on the methods and assumptions used lo determine the fair values are as follows: 

Fair value measurements based on Level I inputs: Measurements that are most observable are 
based on quoted prices of identical instilments obtained from the principal markets in which they are traded. 
Closing prices are both readily available and representative of fair value. Market tiransactions occur with 
sufficient frequency and volume to assure liquidity. The fair value of certain of the Corporation's exchange 
traded futures and options are considered Level 1. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 2 inputs: Measurements derived indkectly from 
observable inputs or from quoted prices from markets that are less liquid are considered Level 2. Measurements 
based on Level 2 inputs include over-the-counter derivative instmments that are priced on an exchange traded 
curve, but have contractual terms that are nol identical lo exchange traded contracts. The Corporation utilizes fair 
value measurements based on Level 2 inputs for certain forwards, swaps and options. The liability related lo the 
Corporation's cmde oil hedges is classified as Level 2. 

Fair value measurements based on Level 3 inputs: Measurements that are least observable are 
estimated from related market data, determined from sources with little or no market activity for comparable 
contracts or are positions with longer durations. For example, in ils energy marketing business, fhe Corporation 
enters into contracts lo sell natural gas and electricity to customers and offsets the price exposure by purchasing 
forward contracts. The fak value of these sales and purchases may be based on specific prices at less liquid 
dehvered locations, which are classified as Level 3. There may be offsets to these positions that are priced based 
on more liquid markets, which are, therefore, classified as Level 1 or Level 2. Fair values determined using 
discounted cash flows and other unobservable data are also classified as Level 3. 

Retirement Plans: The Corporation recognizes the funded status of defined benefit postretkement plans in 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The funded status is measured as the difference between the fair value of plan 
assets and the projected benefit obligation. The Corporation recognizes the net changes in the funded status of 
these plans in the year in which such changes occur. Prior service costs and actuarial gains and losses in excess of 
10% of the greater of the benefit obligation or the market value of assets are amortized over the average 
remaining service period of active employees. 

Share-based Compensation: The fair value of all share-based compensation is expensed and recognized 
on a straight-line basis over the full vesting period of the awards. 

Foreign Currency Translation: The U.S. Dollar is the functional currency (primary currency in which 
business is conducted) for most foreign operations. Adjustments resulting from translating monetary assets and 
liabilities that are denominated in a non-functional currency into the functional currency are recorded in Other, 
net in the Statement of Consolidated Income. For operations that do not use the U.S. Dollar as the functional 
currency, adjustments resulting from translating foreign currency assets and liabilities into U.S. Dollars are 
recorded in a separate component of equity tided Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). 

Maintenance and Repairs: Maintenance and repaks are expensed as incurred, including costs of refinery 
tumarounds. Capital improvements are recorded as additions in Property, plant and equipment. 
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Environmental Expenditures: The Corporation accmes and expenses envkonmental costs to remediate 
existing conditions related to past operations when the future costs are probable and reasonably estimable. The 
Corporation capitalizes environmental expenditures that increase the life or efficiency of property or that reduce 
or prevent future adverse impacts to the environment. 

2. Acquisitions and Dispositions 

2011: In the thkd quarter of 2011, the Corporation entered into agreements to acquire approximately 
85,000 net acres in the Utica Shale play in eastern Ohio for approximately $750 million, principally through the 
acquisition of Marquette Exploration, LLC (Marquette). This acquisition strengthens the Corporation's portfolio 
of unconventional assets. The acquisition of Marquette has been accounted for as a business combination and the 
assets acquired and the Uabililies assumed were recorded at fair value. The estimated fak value was based on a 
valuation approach using market related data which is a Level 3 measurement. The majority ofthe purchase price 
was assigned to unproved properties and the remainder to producing wells and working capital. This transaction 
is subject lo normal post-closing adjustments. 

In October 2011, the Corporaiion completed the acquisition of a 50% undivided inlerest in CONSOL 
Energy Inc.'s (CONSOL) nearly 200,000 acres, in the Utica Shale play in eastern Ohio, for $59 million in cash at 
closing and the agreement to fund 50% of CONSOL's share of the drilling costs up to $534 million whhin a 
5-year period. This transaction has been accounted for as an asset acquisition. 

In Febmary 2011, the Corporaiion completed the sale of hs interests in the Easington Catchment Area (Hess 
30%), the Bacton Area (Hess 23%), the Everest Field (Hess 19%) and the Lomond Field (Hess 17%) in the 
United Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of $359 million, after post-closing adjustments. These disposals 
resulted in pre-tax gains totaling S343 million ($310 million after income taxes). These assets had a productive 
capacity of approximately 15,000 boepd. The total combined net book value of the disposed assets prior to the 
sale was $16 million, including allocated goodwill of $14 million. 

In August 2011, the Corporation completed the sale of its interests in the Snorre Field (Hess 1%), offshore 
Norway and the Cook Field (Hess 28%) In the Umted Kingdom North Sea for cash proceeds of $131 million, 
after post-closing adjustments. These disposals resulted in non-taxable gains totaling $103 million. These assets 
were producing at a combined net rate of approximately 2,500 boepd al the time of sale. The total combined net 
book value ofthe disposed assets prior to the sale was $28 million, including allocated goodwill of $11 million, 

2010: In December, the Corporation acquired approximately 167,000 net acres in the Bakken oil shale 
play (Bakken) in North Dakota from TRZ Energy, LLC for $1,075 million in cash. In December, the Corporation 
also completed the acquisition of American Oil & Gas Inc. (American Oil & Gas) for approximately 
$675 million through the issuance of approximately 8.6 million shares of the Corporation's common slock, 
which increased the Corporation's acreage position in the Bakken by approximately 85,000 net acres. The 
properties acquired are located near the Corporation's existing acreage. These acquisitions strengthen the 
Corporation's acreage position in the Bakken, leverage existing capabilities and infrastructure and are expected 
to contribute lo future reserve and production growth. Both of these transactions were accounted for as business 
combinations and the majority of the fak value of the assets acquked was assigned to unproved properties. The 
total goodwill recorded on these transactions was $332 million after final post-closing adjustments. 

In September, the Corporation completed the exchange of hs interests in Gabon and the Clair Field in the 
United Kingdom for additional interests of 28% and 25%, respectively, in the Valhall and Hod fields offshore 
Norway. This non-monetary exchange was accounted for as a business combinaiion and was recorded at fan-
value. The transaction resulted in a pre-tax gain of $1,150 million ($1,072 million after income taxes). The total 
combined carrying amount ofthe disposed assets prior lo the exchange was $702 mUlion, including goodwill of 
$65 million. The Corporation also acquked, from a different third party, additional interests of 8% and 13% in 
the Valhall and Hod fields, respectively, for $507 million in cash. This acquisition was accounted for as a 
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business combination. As aresuk of both of these transactions, the Corporation's total interests in the Valhall and 
Hod fields are 64% and 63%, respectively. The primary reason for these transactions was to acquire long-lived 
crude oil reserves and future production growth. The following table summarizes the fair value of the assets 
acquked and liabilities assumed in 2010 and adjusted for final post-closing adjustments in both of these 
transactions: 

Property, plant and equipment 
Goodwill 
Current assets 

Total assets acquked 
Current liabilities 
Deferred tax liabiUlies 
Asset retirement obligations 

Net assets acquired 

For all 2010 acquishions and the exchange described above, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are 
recorded at fak value. The estimated fak value ofthe property, plant and equipment acquired in the transactions 
described above was primarily based on an income approach. The significant inputs used in this Level 3 fak 
value measuremenl include assumed future production and capital based on anticipated development plans, 
commodhy prices, costs and a risk-adjusted discount rate. The goodwill recorded equals the deferred tax liability 
recognized for the differences in book and tax bases of the assets acquked. The goodwill is not expected lo be 
deducfible for income lax purposes. 

In January, the Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Jambi Merang natural gas development 
project in Indonesia (Hess 25%) for cash proceeds of $183 milhon. The transaction resulted in a gain of 
$58 million, after deducting the net book value of assets including goodwill of $7 miUion. 

2009: The Corporation acquked for $74 million a 50% interest m Blocks PM301 and PM302 in Malaysia, 
which are adjacent to Block A-18 of the Joint Development Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA) and contain an 
extension of the Bumi Field. The Corporaiion also acquked 37 previously leased retail gasoline stations, 
primarily through the assumption of S65 million of fixed-rate notes. 

3. Libyan Operations 

In response to civil unrest in Libya, a number of measures were taken by the mlemalional community In the 
fkst quarter of 2011, including the imposition of economic sanctions. Production al the Waha Field was 
suspended in the first quarter of 2011. As a consequence of the civil unrest and the sanctions, the Corporaiion 
delivered force majeure notices to the Libyan government relatmg to the agreements covering its exploration and 
production interests in order to protect its rights while it was temporarily prevented from fulfilling its obligations 
and benefiting from the rights granted by those agreements, Production at the Waha Field restarted during the 
fourth quarter of 2011 at levels that were significantly lower than those prior to the civil umest. The 
Corporation's Libyan production averaged 23,000 barrels of oil equivalent per day (boepd) for the full year of 
2010 and 4,000 boepd for 2011. The force majeure covering the Corporation's production kileresls was 
withdrawn at the end of the fourth quarter of 2011, as the economic sanctions were lifted. Hie force majeure 
covering the Corporation's offshore exploration interests remained in place at year-end but is expected lo be 
withdrawn in 2012. The Corporation had proved reserves of 166 milhon barrels of oil equivalent in Libya at 
December 31, 2011. At December 31, 2011, the net book value ofthe Corporation's exploration and production 
assets in Libya was approximately $500 million. 
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4. Inventories 

Inventories al December 31 were as follows: 
2011 2010 

(MillionN uf dollars) 

Cmde oil and other charge stocks $ 451 $ 496 
Refined petroleum products and natural gas 1,762 1,528 
Less: LIFO adjustmenl (1,276) (995) 

937 1,029 
Merchandise, materials and supplies 486 423 

Total inventories $ 1,423 $1,452 

The percentage of LIFO inventory to total cmde oil, refined petroleum products and natural gas inventories 
was 72% and 65% at December 31, 20 i 1 and 2010, respectively. 

5. HOVENSA L.L.C. Joint Venture 

The Corporation has a 50% interest in HOVENSA L.L.C. (HOVENSA), a joint venture with a subsidiary of 
Petroleos de Venezuela, S.A. (PDVSA), which owns a refinery in the U.S. Virgin Islands. The Corporation's 
investment in HOVENSA is accounted for using the equity method. In accordance with Rule 3-09 of Regulation 
S-X, the Corporation has filed the audited financial statements for HOVENSA in this report on Form 10-K. 
Summarized financial information for HOVENSA as of December 31 and for the years then ended follows: 

2011 2010 2009 

Summarized Balance Sheet, at December 31 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other current assets 
Net fixed assets 
Other assets 
Current liabilities, including member suppjort 
Long-term debt 
Deferred liabilities and credits 

Members' equity 

Carrying value of Hess Corporation's equity investment . . 

Summarized Income Statement, forthe years ended 
December 31 
Sales 
Costs and expenses 

Net income (loss) 

Hess Corporation's income (loss) from equity investment 
in HOVENSA L.L.C 

(Millions of dollars) 

$ 42 
329 
— 
10 

(1,858) 
* 

(115) 

$ (1,592) 

$ — 

$ 13,126 
(15,613) 

$ (2,487) 

$ (1,073)*^ 

$ 45 
668 

1,987 
27 

(1,001) 
(706) 
(135) 

$ 885 

S 158 

$ 12,258 
(12,696) 

$ (438) 

= $ (522)** 

$ 78 
580 

2,080 
33 

(953) 
(356) 
(137) 

$ 1,325 

$ 681 

$ 10,048 
(10,499) 

$ (451) 

$ (229) 

* Long-term debt of $356 million was classified as a current liability, resulting from HOVENSA'S tender offer in January 2012 to 
repurchase tbe debt. 

** The Corporation's share of HOVENSA's 2011 loss e.Kludes $3(X) million previously recorded in 2010 for the partial impairment of the 
Corporation's investment. 
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In 2011, HOVENSA experienced continued substantial operating losses due to global economic conditions 
and competitive disadvantages versus other refiners, despite efforts to improve operating performance by 
reducing refining capacity to 350.000 from 500.000 barrels per day in the fkst half of the year. Operating losses 
were also projected to continue. In January 2012, HOVENSA announced a decision to shut down its refinery and 
operate Ihe complex as an oil storage terminal. As a resuh of these developments, HOVENSA prepared an 
impakment analysis as of December 31, 2011, which concluded that undiscounted future cash flows would not 
recover the carrying value of its long-lived assets, and recorded an impairment charge and other charges related 
to the decision lo shut down the refinery. For 2011, the Corporation recorded a total of $1,073 million of losses 
from ils equity investment in HOVENSA. These pre-tax losses included $875 milhon ($525 million after income 
taxes) due lo the impairment recorded by HOVENSA and other charges associated with its decision to shut down 
the refinery. The Corporation's share of the impairment related losses recorded by HOVENSA represents an 
amouni equivalent to the Corporation's financial support to HOVENSA at December 31, 2011, its planned future 
funding conunitments for costs related to the refinery shutdown, and a charge of $135 million for the write-off of 
related assets held by the subsidiary which owns the Corporation's investment in HOVENSA. At December 31, 
2011, the Corporation has a liabihty of $487 million for its planned funding commilmenls. which is expected lo 
be incurred in 2012. A deferred income tax benefit of $350 million, consisting primarily of U.S. income taxes, 
has been recorded on the Corporation's share of HOVENSA's impakment and refinery shutdown related 
charges. 

In December 2010, the Corporation recorded an impakment charge of $300 million before income taxes 
($289 million after income taxes) lo reduce the carrying value of ils equity investment in HOVENSA to ks fak 
value, which was recorded in Income (loss) from equity investment in HOVENSA L.L.C. The investment had 
been adversely affected by consecutive annual operaring losses resulting from continued weak refining margins 
and refmeiy urilization and a fotulh quarter 2010 debt rating downgrade. As a resuU of a strategic assessment in 
2010, HOVENSA decided to lower crude oU refining capacity to 350,000 from 500,000 barrels per day in 2011. 
The Corporation performed an impakment analysis and concluded that its investment had experienced an other 
than temporary decline in value. The fak value was determined based on an income approach using estimated 
refined petroleum product selling prices and volumes, related costs of product sold, capital and operating 
expenditures and a market based discount rate (a Level 3 fair value measuremenl). 

In Febmary 2012, HOVENSA completed a tender offer to repurchase its outstanding tax exempt bonds al par. 

6. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment at December 31 consist ofthe following: 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Exploration and Production 
Unproved properties $ 4,064 $ 3,796 
Proved properties 3,975 3.496 
Wells, equipment and related facihties 29,239 26.064 

37,278 33,356 
Marketing, Refining and Corporate 2,432 2,347 

Total — al cost 39,710 35,703 
Less: reserves for depreciarion, depletion, amortization and lease 

impakment 14,998 14,576 

Property, plant and equipment — net $24,712 $21,127 
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In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Corporation agreed to sell its interests in the Snohvit Field in Norway 
(Hess 3%) for approximately $135 million, after normal closing adjustments. At December 31, 2011, the 
Corporation classified this property and another property as assets held for sale. At December 31, 2011, the total 
cari-ying amount of these assets of $764 million was reported in Other current assets, including goodwill of $62 
million. In addition, related asset retkement obligations and deferred income taxes totaling $556 million were 
reported in Accmed liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, properties classified as held for sale are not 
depreciated but are subject lo impakment testing. 

The following table discloses the amouni of capitalized exploratory well costs pending determination of 
proved reserves at December 31, and the changes therein during the respective years: 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 

Beginning balance al January 1 $1,783 $1,437 $1,094 
Additions to capitalized exploratory well costs pending the 

determination of proved reserves 512 675 433 
Reclassifications to wells, facilities, and equipment based on the 

determination of proved reserves (171) (87) (16) 
Capitalized exploratory well costs charged lo expense (90) (110) (74) 
Dispositions (12) (132) — 

Ending balance at December 31 $2,022 $1,783 $1,437 

Number of weUs at end of year 59 77 53 

The preceding table excludes exploratory dry hole costs of $348 miUion, $127 million and $193 million in 
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, which were incurred and subsequently expensed in the same year. In 2011, 
capitalized well costs reclassified based on the determination of proved reserves primarUy related to the Tubular 
Bells project in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico, which was sanctioned during the year. 

At December 31, 2011, exploratory driUing costs capitalized in excess of one year past completion of 
drilling were incurred as follows (in millions of dollars): 

2010 $ 423 
2009 448 
2008 392 
2007 72 
2006 168 

$1,503 

The capitalized well costs in excess of one year relate lo 11 projects. Approximately 43% of the capitalized 
well costs in excess of one year relates to the Pony prospect in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico. The Corporaiion 
has signed a non-binding agreement with the owners of the adjacent Knotty Head prospect on Green Canyon 
Block 512 that outlines a proposal to jointly develop the field. Negotiation of a joint operating agreement, 
including working interest percentages for the partners, and planning for the field development are progressing. 
The project is now targeted for sanction in 2013. Approximately 30% relates to Block WA-390-P, offshore 
Western Australia, where further drilling and other appraisal and commercial activities are ongoing. 
Approximately 18% relates lo Area 54, offshore Libya, where force majeure was declared in 2011 following the 
civil unrest in Libya, see Note 3, Libyan Operations in the notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The 
Corporaiion expects the force majeure to be lifted in 2012 and commercial negotiations with the Libyan 
government to resume. The remainder of the caphalized well costs in excess of one year relates to projects where 
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further drilling is planned or development planning and other assessment activities are ongoing to determine the 
economic and operating viabUity ofthe projects. 

7. Goodwill 

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows: 

2011 2010 

(Millions (rf dollars) 

Beginning balance at January 1 $2,408 $1,225 
Acquisitions — 1,255 
Dispositions and other (103) (72) 

Endmg balance at December 31 $2,305 $2,408 

8. Asset Impairments 

Durmg 2011, the Corporation recorded impakment charges of $358 million ($140 million after income 
taxes) related to increases in the Corporation's estimated abandonment liabUities primarily for non-producing 
properties which resulted in the book value of the properties exceeding thek fair value. See also Note 9. Asset 
Retirement Obligations in the notes lo the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Corporation's estimated fair 
values for these properties were determined using a valuation approach based on market related data which is a 
Level 3 fair value measurement. 

During 2010, the Corporation recorded a charge of $532 million ($334 million after income taxes) to fully 
impair the carrying value of its 55% interest in the West Mediterranean Block 1 concession (West Med Block), 
located offshore Egypt. This inlerest was acquired in 2006 and included four natural gas discoveries and 
additional exploration prospects. The Corporation and ils partners subsequently explored and further evaluated 
the area, made a fifth discovery, conducted development planning, and held negotiations with the Egyptian 
authorities lo amend the existing gas sales agreement. In September 2010, the Corporation and ils partners 
notified the Egyptian authorities of thek decision to cease exploration activities on the block and to relinquish a 
significant portion of the block. As a result, the Corporation fully iinpaked the canying value of its interest in the 
West Med Block. The Corporation's estimated fak value of the West Med Block was determined using a 
valuation approach based on market related data (Level 3 fak value measuremenl). 

During 2009, the Corporation recorded total asset impairment charges of $54 million ($26 million after 
income taxes) to reduce the carrying value of two short-lived fields in the United Kingdom North Sea. 

9. Asset Retirement Obligations 

The following table describes changes lo the Corporation's asset retkement obligations; 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Asset retirement obligations at January 1 $1,358 $1,297 
Liabilities incurred 25 255 
Liabilities settled or disposed of (334) (282) 
Accretion expense 96 78 
Revisions of estimated liabilities 947 (6) 
Foreign currency translation (21) 16 

Asset retirement obhgations al December 31 2,071 1,358 
Less: current obligations 227 155 

Long-term obligations at December 31 $1,844 $1,203 
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In 2011, the revisions of estimated liabilities reflect an increase in well abandonment obligations resulting 
from enhanced cement seal verification procedures, changes in scope and timing due to updated work programs 
and higher ser\rice and equipment costs. In 2010, liabilities incurred mostly related to the acquisition of 
additional interests in the ValhaU and Hod fields. LiabUities settled or disposed of primarily relate lo assets held 
for sale and dispositions. 

10. Long-term Debt 

Long-term debt al December 31 consists ofthe foUowing: 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Asset-backed credit facility, weighted average rate 0.8% $ 350 $ — 
Short-term credit facUity, rate 1.2% 100 — 
Fixed-rate public notes: 

7.0% due 2014 250 250 
8.1% due 2019 998 997 
7.9% due 2029 695 695 
7.3% due 2031 746 746 
7.1% due 2033 598 598 
6.0% due 2040 744 744 
5.6% due 2041 1,242 1.241 

Total fixed-rate public notes 5,273 5,271 
Other fixed-rale notes, weighted average rate 8.3%, due through 2023 112 133 
Project lease financing, weighted average rate 5.1 %, due through 2014 90 102 
Pollution control revenue bonds, weighted average rale 5.9%, due through 2034 . . . 53 53 
Fair value adjustments — interest rale hedging 53 8 
Other debt 9 2 

6,040 5,569 
Less; current maturities 35 32 

Total $6,005 $5,537 

In April 2011, the Corporation entered into a new $4 billion syndicated revolving credit facility that matures in 
April 2016. This facility, which replaced a $3 biUion facUity that was scheduled to mature in May 2012, can be used 
for borrowings and letters of credit. Borrowings on fhe facility bear interesl at 1.25% above the London Interbank 
Offered Rate. A facility fee of 0.25% per annum is also payable on the amount of the facility. The interesl rate and 
facility fee are subject to adjustment if the Corporation's credit rating changes. The covenants that establish 
restrictions on the amount of total borrowings and secured debt are consistent with the previous facility. 

The Corporation has a 364-day asset-backed credit facility securitized by certain accounts receivable from ils 
Marketing and Refining operations. Under the terms of this financing arrangement, the Corporation has the ability 
to borrow or issue letters of credit of up to $1 billion, subject lo the availabUity of sufficient levels of eligible 
receivables. At December 31, 2011, outstanding borrowings under this facility of $350 million were collateralized 
by a total of $947 miUion of accounts receivable, which are held by a wholly-owned subsidiary. These receivables 
are only available lo pay the general obligations of the Corporaiion after satisfaction of the outstanding obhgations 
under the asset-backed facUity. Al December 31, 2011, die Corporation classified $350 nkUion of borrowmgs under 
the asset-backed credit facility and $100 milhon of borrowings under a short-term credh facility as long-term debt, 
based on the avaUable capacity under the $4 billion syndicated revolving credit facility. 
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In August 2010, the Corporation issued $1,250 million of 30-year fixed-rate public notes with a coupon of 
5.6% scheduled to mature in 2041. The proceeds were used to purchase additional acreage in the Bakken and 
additional interests in the Valhall and Hod fields. 

At December 31, 2011, the Corporation's fixed-rate pubhc notes have a principal amount of $5,300 million 
(S5,273 million net of unamortized discount). Inlerest rates on the outstanding fixed-rale public notes have a 
weighted average rate of 6.9%. 

The aggregate long-term debt maturing during the next five years is as follows (m millions of dollars): 
2012 — $35; 2013 — $37; 2014 — $349; 2015 — $4 and 2016 — $455. 

The Corporation's long-term debt agreements contain a financial covenant that restricts the amount of total 
borrowings and secured debl. At December 31, 2011, the Corporation is permitted lo borrow up to an additional 
$24.9 billion for the constmction or acquisition of assets. The Corporation has the ability lo borrow up to an 
additional $4.5 billion of secured debt at December 31, 2011. 

Outstanding letters of credit at December 31 were as follows: 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Revolving credit facility $ 173 $ — 
Asset-backed credit facility — 400 
Committed hues* 1,063 1,161 
Unconunitted lines* 462 521 

Total $1,698 $2,082 

* Committed and uncommitted lines have expiration dales through 2014. 

Of the total letters of credit outstanding at December 31, 2011, $67 miUion relates to contingent liabilities 
and the remaining $1,631 miUion relates to liabilities recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

The total amount of inlerest paid (net of amounts capitalized) was $383 million, $319 million and $335 
miUion in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Corporation capitalized interest of $13 million, $5 million and 
$6 mUlion in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

11. Share-based Compensation 

The Corporation awards restricted common stock and stock options under its 2008 Long-term Incentive 
Plan. Generally, stock options vest in one to three years from the date of grant, have a 10-year term, and the 
exercise price equals or exceeds the market price on the date of grant. Outstanding restricted common stock 
generally vests in three years from the date of grant. 

Share-based compensation expense consists ofthe following: 

Before Income Taxes After Income Taxes 
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 

Stock options $ 51 
Restricted stock 

Total 

$ 51 
53 

$104 

$ 52 
60 

$112 

(Millions of dollars) 

$ 58 $ 31 $ 32 
70 32 37 

$128 $ 63 $ 69 

S 36 
44 

$ 80 

Based on restricted stock and stock option awards outstanding at December 31, 2011, unearned 
compensafion expense, before income taxes, will be recognized in future years as follows (in millions of dollars): 
2012 — $71, 2013 — $43 and 2014 — $4. 
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The Corporation's stock option and restricted stock activity consisted of the following: 

Outstanding at January 1, 2(X)9 . . . 
Granted 
Exercised 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at December 31, 2009 
Granted 
Exercised 
Vested 
Forfeited 

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 
Granted 
Exercised 
Vested 
Foifeited 

Outstanding al December 31, 2011 

Exercisable al December 31, 2009 
Exercisable al December 31, 2010 
Exercisable al December 31, 2011 

stock Options 

Options 

(Thousands) 

9.700 
3.135 
(416) 

— 
(317) 

12,102 
2,792 

(1,080) 
— • 

(394) 

13.420 
2,227 

(1,716) 
— 

(361) 

13,570 

6,636 
8,079 
8,841 

Weighted-
Average 

Exercise Price 
per Share 

$ 

$ 

52.73 
56.44 
38.85 

— 
65.68 

53.83 
60.12 
42.37 

— 
65.04 

55.73 
82.92 
41.40 

— 
67.64 

61.68 

46.11 
51.73 
57.37 

Restricted Stock 
Shares of 
Restricted 
Common 

Stock 

(Thousands) 

3,161 
1,056 

— 
(893) 
(376) 

2,948 
952 
— 

(880) 
(182) 

2,838 
742 
— 

(970) 
(163) 

2,447 

Weighted-
Average 

Price on Date 
of Grant 

$ 64.78 
56.27 

— 
50.13 
66.11 

66.00 
60.04 

— 
55.42 
65.56 

67.32 
82.99 

— 
84.81 
63.71 

65.38 

The table below summarizes information regarding fhe outstanding and exercisable stock options as of 
December 31,2011: 

Range of 
Exercise Prices 

$20.00 - $40.00 . 
$40.01 - $50.00 . 
$50.01 - $60.00 . 
$60.01 - $80.00 . 
$80.01-$120.00 

Outstanding Opli 

Options 

(Thousands) 

1.098 
1.520 
4,304 
2,584 
4,064 

13.570 

Weighted-
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Life 

(Years) 

3 
4 
6 
8 
8 

7 

ons 

Weighted-
Avcragc 

Exerdse Price 
per Share 

$ 27.52 
49.25 
55.17 
60.57 
83.18 

61.68 

Exercisable Options 

Options 

(Thousands) 

1,098 
1,520 
3,348 

839 
2,036 

8,841 

Weighted-
Average 

Exerdse Price 
per Share 

$ 27.52 
49.25 
54.77 
60.63 
82.48 

57.37 

The intrinsic value (or the amount by which the market price ofthe Corporation's common stock exceeds 
the exercise price of an option) at December 31, 2011 totaled $51 mUlion for both outstanding options and 
exercisable options. At December 31, 2011, the weighted average remaining term of exercisable options was five 
years. 
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The Corporation uses the Black-Scholes model lo estimate the fan value of employee stock options. The 
following weighted average assumptions were utilized for stock options awarded; 

2011 2010 2009 

Risk free interest rate 1.81% 2.14%, 1.80% 
Stock price volatility 395 .390 .390 
Dividend yield .49% .67% .70% 
Expected life in years 4.5 4.5 4.5 
Weighted average fan value per option granted $27.98 $20.18 $18.47 

The risk free interest rate is based on the expected life of the options and is obtained from published sources. 
The stock price volatility is determined from historical slock prices using the same period as the expected life of 
the options. The expected stock option life is based on historical exercise patterns. 

In May 2008, shareholders approved the 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan and in May 2010, approved an 
amendment to the 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan. The Corporation also has stock options outstanding under a 
former plan. At December 31, 2011, the number of common shares reserved for issuance under the 2008 Long-
term Incentive Plan, as amended, is as follows (in thousands): 

Total common shares reserved for issuance 16,006 
Less: stock options outstanding 7,603 
Available for future awards of restricted stock and stock options 8,403 

12. Foreign Currency 

Foreign currency gains (losses) before mcome taxes recorded m the Statement of Consolidated Income 
amounted to $(29) miUion in 2011, $(5) miUion in 2010 and $20 mUlion in 2009. Foreign currency translation 
adjustments recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were a reduction to stockholders' 
equity of $84 miUion at December 31, 2011 and an increase to stockholders' equity of $12 million al 
December 31, 2010. 

13. Retirement Plans 

The Corporaiion has funded nonconlribulory defined benefit pension plans for a significant pottion of its 
employees. In addhion, the Corporation has an unfunded supplemental pension plan covering certain employees, 
which provides incremental payments that would have been payable from the Corporation's principal pension 
plans, were il not for limilalions imposed by income lax regulations. The plans provide defined benefits based on 
years of service and final average salary. Additionally, the Corporaiion maintains an unfunded postretirement 
medical plan thai provides health benefits to certain qualified retirees from ages 55 through 65. The measurement 
date for all retirement plans is December 31. 
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The foUowing table summarizes the Corporation's benefit obligations and the fak value of plan assets and 
shows the funded status ofthe pension and postretirement medical plans: 

Funded 
Pension Plans 

Unfunded 
Pension Plan 

Postretirement 
Medical Plan 

201J 

Change in benefit obligation 
Balance at January 1 $1,497 
Service cost 49 
Interest cost 81 
Actuarial (gain) loss 294 
Benefit payments (51) 
Plan settlements 
Foreign currency exchange rate changes (4) 

Balance at December 31 1,866 

Change in fair value of plan assets 
Balance at January 1 1,365 
Actual return on plan assets (3) 
Employer contributions 185 
Benefit payments (51) 

Foreign currency exchange rate changes (3) 

Balance at December 31 1,493 

Funded status (plan assets less than benefit 
obligations) at December 31 

Unrecognized net actuarial losses 
Net amount recognized 

2010 2011 2010 2011 

1,497 227 192 125 

2010 

$1,359 
41 
78 
75 

(46) 
-

(Millions of dollars) 

$ 192 $ 188 
9 8 
8 8 

31 7 
(13) (2) 

(17) 

$ 107 
6 
5 
9 

(2) 
-

$ 84 
5 
4 

IS 
(4) 
-

107 

1,072 
155 
192 
(46) 
(8) 

-
-

13 
(13) 

-

-
-

20 
(20) 

-

-
-
2 

(2) 
-

-
-
4 

(4) 
-

1,493 

(373) 
829 

$ 456 

1,365 

(132) 
460 

S 328 

(227)* 
103 

$(124) 

(192)* 
83 

$(109) 

-

(125) 
39 

S (86) 

— 

(107) 
32 

$ (75) 

" The trust established by the Corporation for the supplemental plan held assets valued at $7 miUion at December 31. 20! I and $21 million 
at December 31, 2010. 

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet al December 31 consist of the following; 

Funded Unfunded Postretirement 
Pension l^ans Pension Plan Medical Plan 

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Accrued benefit hability $(373) $(132) $(227) $(192) $(125) $(107) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, pre-tax* 829 460 103 83 39 32 
Net amount recognized $456 $328 $(124) $(109) $(86) $(75) 

* The aftertax reduction to equity recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income (toss) was $631 million at December 31, 2011 and 
$385 million at December 31. 2010. 

The accumulated benefit obligation for the funded defined benefit pension plans mcreased to $1,703 million 
at December 31, 2011 from $1,355 million at December 31, 2010 primarily due to a reduction in the discount 
rate. The accumulated benefit obligation for the unfunded defined benefit pension plan was $202 million at 
December 31, 2011 and $176 million at December 31, 2010. 
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Components of net periodic benefit cost for funded and unfunded pension plans and the postretirement 
medical plan consisted of tiie following: 

Pension Plans Postretirement Medical Plan 

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 

Service cost , 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization of unrecognized net actuarial 

losses 
Settlement loss 

$ 58 
89 

(109) 

47 
— 

$ 49 
86 

(86) 

48 
8 

(Millions 

$ 40 
S3 

(59) 

65 
17 

of dollars) 

$ 6 
5 

— 

2 
— 

$ 5 
4 

— 

1 
— 

$ 3 
4 

__ 

— 
~— 

4.3% 
4.3 

5.3 
7.5 
4.4 

5.3% 
4.4 

5.8 
7.5 
4.3 

5.8% 
4.3 

6.3 
7.5 
4.4 

Net periodic benefit cost $ 85 $105 $146 $13 $10 $ 7 

The Corporation's 2012 pension and postretirement medical expense is estimated to be approximately 
$145 miUion. of which approximately $85 million relates lo the amoitization of unrecognized net actuarial 
losses. 

The weighted average actuarial assumptions used by the Corporation's funded and unfunded pension plans 
were as follows: 

2011 2010 2009 

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at 
December 31 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net benefit cost for years 
ended December 31 

Discount rate 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rate of compensation increase 

The actuarial assumptions used by the Corporation's postretirement medical plan were as follows: 

2011 2010 2009 

Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations al December 31 
Discount rate 3.9% 4.8% 5.4% 
Initial health care u-end rate 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 
Ultimate trend rate 5.0% 5.0% 4.5% 
Year in which ultimate trend rate is reached 2018 2017 2013 

The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for each year were established at the end of 
each previous year while the assumptions used to determme benefit obligafions were established at each year-
end. The net periodic benefit cost and the actuarial present value of benefit obligations are based on actuarial 
assumptions that are reviewed on an annual basis. The discount rale is developed based on a portfolio of high-
quality, fixed income debl instruments widi maturities that approximate the expected payment of plan 
obligations. The overall expected return on plan assets is developed from the expected future returns for each 
asset category, weighted by the target allocation of pension assets lo that asset category. 

The Corporation's investment strategy is to maximize long-term returns at an acceptable level of risk 
through broad diversification of plan assets in a variety of asset classes. Asset classes and target allocations are 
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determined by the Corporation's investment committee and include domestic and foreign equities, fixed income, 
and other investments, including hedge funds, real estate and private equity. Investment managers are prohibited 
from investing in securities issued by the Corporaiion unless indu-ectly held as part of an index strategy. The 
majority of plan assets are highly liquid, providing ample liquidity for benefit payment requirements. The current 
target allocations for plan assets are 50% equity securities, 25% fixed income securities (including cash and 
short-term investment funds) and 25% to all other types of investments. Asset allocations are rebalanced on a 
periodic basis throughout the year to bring assets to within an acceptable range of target levels. 

The following tables provide the fair value of the financial assets of the funded pension plans as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010 in accordance with the fair value measurement hierarchy described m Note 1, 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 

— 
118 
149 

149 
12 
87 
96 

— 
— 
15 

$654 

— 
— 
— 

1 
2 
— 
1 

211 
58 
44 
— 

$317 

452 
168 
160 

150 
14 
87 
97 

211 
58 
51 
15 

$1,493 

(Millions of dollars) 

December 31, 2011 
Cash and short-term inveslmeni funds $ 2 $ 28 $ — $ 30 
Equities: 

U.S. equities (domestic) 452 
International equities (non-U.S.) SO 
Global equities (domestic and non-U.S.) 11 

Fixed income: 
Treasury and government issued (a) — 
Government related (b) — 
Mortgage-backed securities (c) — 
Corporate — 

Other: 
Hedge funds — 
Private equity funds — 
Real estate funds 7 
Diversified commodities funds — 

$ 522 

December 31, 2010 
Cash and short-term investment funds $ 5 $ 3 1 S — $ 36 
Equities: 

U.S. equities (domestic) 
International equities (non-U.S.) 
Global equities (domestic and non-U.S.) 

Fixed income: 
Treasury and government issued (a) 
Govemment related (b) 
Mortgage-backed securities (c) 
Corporate 

Other: 
Hedge funds 
Private equity funds 
Real estate funds 
Diversified commodities funds 

67 

444 
53 
18 

— 
— 
— 

• — 

7 
— 

$ 527 

— 
121 
140 

98 
14 
61 
93 

— 

— 
— 
14 

$572 

— 
— 
— 

3 
3 
— 
1 

187 
40 
32 

$266 

444 
174 
158 

101 
17 
61 
94 

187 
40 
39 
14 

$1,365 
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(a) Includes sccuriiies issued and guaranteed by U.S. and non-U.S. governments. 
(h) Primarily con.mts of .securities issued by governmental agencies and municipalities. 

(c) Comprised of U.S. resideniicd and commercial mortgage-hacked securities. 

Cash and short-term investment funds consist of cash on hand and short-term investment funds. The short-
term investment funds provide for daily investments and redemptions and are valued and carried at a $1 net asset 
value (NAV) per fund share. Cash on hand is classified as Level 1 and short-term investment funds are classified 
as Level 2. 

Equities consist of equity securities issued by U.S. and non-U.S. corporations as well as commingled 
investment funds that invest in equity securities. Individually held equity securities are traded actively on 
exchanges and price quotes for these shares are readily available. Individual equity securities are classified as 
Level 1. Conuningled fund values reflect the NAV per fund share, derived from the quoted prices in active 
markets ofthe underlying securities. Equity commingled funds are classified as Level 2. 

Fixed income investments consist of securities issued by the U.S. government, non-U.S. governments, 
governmental agencies, municipaUties and corporations, and agency and non-agency mortgage-backed securities. 
This investment category also includes commingled inveslmeni funds that invest in fixed income securities. 
Individual fixed uicome securities are generally priced on the basis of evaluated prices from independent pricing 
services. Such prices are monitored and provided by an independent, thud-party custodial firm responsible for 
safekeeping plan assets. Individual fixed income securities are classified as Level 2 or 3. Commingled fund 
values reflect the NAV per fund share, derived indirectly from observable inputs or from quoted prices in less 
liquid markets ofthe underlying securities. Fixed income commingled funds are classified as Level 2. 

Other mvestmenis consist of exchange-traded real estate investment trust securities as weU as commingled 
fund and Ihnited partnership investments in hedge funds, private equity, real estate and diversified commodities. 
Exchange-traded securities are classified as Level I. Commingled fund values reflect the NAV per fund share 
and are classified as Level 2 or 3. Private equity and real estate limited partnership values reflect informafion 
reported by the fund managers, which include inputs such as cost, operating results, discounted future cash flows, 
market based comparable data and independent appraisals from third-party sources with professional 
qualifications. Hedge funds, private equity and non-exchange-traded real estate investments are classified as 
Level 3. 

The following tables provide changes in financial assets that are measured at fan value based on Level 3 
inputs that are held by institutional funds classified as: 

Balance at January 1, 2010 
Actual return on plan assets: 

Related to assets held at December 31, 2010 
Related to assets sold durmg 2010 

Purchases, sales or other settlements 
Net transfers in (out) of Level 3 

Balance at December 31, 2010 

Actual relum on plan assets: 
Related to assets held al December 31, 2011 
Related to assets sold during 2011 

Purchases, sales or other setdements 
Net transfers in (out) of Level 3 

Balance alDecember 31, 2011 

* Fixed Income includes treasury and government issued, government related, mortgage-backed and corporate .securities. 
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Hxed 
Income* 

$ 8 

— 

1 
(2) 
7 

— 

(3) 

$ 4 

Private Real 
Hedge Equity Estate 
Funds Funds Funds 

(Millions of doUars) 
$143 $ 29 $ 14 

6 

38 
— 

187 

(5) 
2 

27 

$211 

1 

10 
— 
40 

9 

9 

$ 58 

I 

17 
— 
32 

2 

10 

$ 44 

Total 

$194 

8 

66 
(2) 

266 

6 
2 

43 

$317 
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The Corporation has budgeted contributions of approximately $150 million to its funded pension plans in 
2012. 

Estimated future benefit payments by the funded and unfunded pension plans and the postretirement 
medical plan, which reflect expected future service, are as follows (in millions of dollars): 

2012 $ 82 
2013 95 
2014 95 
2015 102 
2016 l i s 

Years 2017 to 2021 650 

The Corporation also contributes to several defined contribution plans for eligible employees. Employees may 
contribute a portion of then compensation to the plans and the Corporaiion matches a portion of the employee 
contributions. The Corporaiion recorded expense of $28 miUion m 2011 and $24 million in both 2010 and 2009 for 
conttibutions to these plans. 

14. Income Taxes 

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consisted of: 

2011 2010 2009 
(Millions of dollars) 

United States Federal 
Cun-ent $ 202 $ 151 $ 39 
Deferred (588) (309) (284) 

State 17 46 (15) 

(369) (112) (260) 

Foreign 
Current 1,185 1,515 1,143 
Deferred (60) (230) (168) 

1,125 1,285 975 

Adjustment of deferred tax liability for foreign income tax rale 
change* 29 — — 

Total provision for income taxes $ 785 $1,173 $ 715 

* Reflects the July 2011 enactment of an increase in the United Kingdom supplementary income tax rate to 32% from 20%. 

Income (loss) before income taxes consisted of the following: 

2011 20JO 2009 
(Millions of dollars) 

United States* $ 211 $ (108) $ (711) 
Foreign** 2,250 3,419 2,233 

Total income before income taxes $2,461 $3,311 $1,522 

* Includes suhstaiitially all of the Corporation's interest expense and the results of hedging activities. 
'^"Foreign income includes the Corporatitm 's Virgin Islands and other operations located outside of the United States. 
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A summary of the components of deferred tax liabilities, deferred tax assets and taxes deferred al 
December 31 follows: 

2011 2010 
(Millions of dollars) 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment $(3,742) $(4,026) 
Other (125) (52) 

Total deferred tax liabilities (3,867) (4,078) 

Deferred tax assets 
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,204 896 
Tax credit carryforwards 396 244 
Property, plant and equipment and investments 2,217 1,852 
Investment in HOVENSA 331 — 
Accmed compensation and other liabilities 508 391 
Asset retirement obligations 438 369 
Other 332 302 

Total deferred tax assets 5,426 4,054 

Valuation allowances* (1,071) (444) 

Total deferred lax assets, net 4,355 3,610 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ 488 $ (468) 

*• The increase in the valuation allowances from 2010 to 2011 is principally attributable to operating loss and lax credit carry forwards and 
other deductible temporary differences originating in the current year. 

Al December 31, 2011, the Corporaiion has recognized a gross deterred tax asset related to net operating 
loss carryforwards of $1,204 million before application of the valuation allowances. The deferred tax asset is 
comprised of approximately $920 million attributable to foreign net operating losses, which begin to expire in 
2020, $90 million attributable lo United Slates federal operating losses which begin lo expue in 2020 and $194 
miUion attributable to losses in various slates which begin to expire in 2012. At December 31, 2011, the 
Corporation has federal, state and foreign aUernative minimum tax credit carryforwards of approximately 
$140 mUlion. which can be carried forward mdefinitely and approximately $1 milhon of other business credit 
carryforwards. Foreign tax credit carryforwards, which begin to expire in 2016, total $255 mUlion. Included 
within Property, plant and equipment and investments in the foregoing table are taxes deferred, resulting from 
intercompany transactions eliminated in consolidation related to transfers of property, plant and equipment 
remaining whhin the consolidated group. 

In the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, deferred tax assets and liabiUties from the preceding table 
are netted by taxing jurisdiction, combined with taxes deferred on intercompany tt-ansactions, and are recorded in 
the following captions: 

2011 2010 

Other cunent assets 
Deferred income taxes (long-term asset) . . 
Accrued liabilities 
Deferred income taxes (long-term liability) 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 

(Millions of dollars) 

S 398 
2,941 

(8) 
(2,843) 

$ 488 

$ 386 
2,167 

(26) 
(2,995) 

$ (468) 
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The difference between the Corporation's effective income tax rale and the United Stales statutory rale is 
reconciled below: 

2011 2010 2009 

United Stales statutory rate 
Effect of foreign operations* 
State income taxes, net of Federal income tax 
Gains on asset sales 
Effect of equity loss and operations related lo HOVENSA 
Other 

Total 

35.0% 
(2.9) 
0.4 

(5.0) 
2.8 
1.6 

31.9% 

35.0% 
9.4 
0.9 

(10.4) 
3.1 

(2.6) 

35.4% 

35.0% 
15.2 
(1.2) 

— 
— 

(2.0) 

47.0% 

(Millions of dollars) 

$400 
62 
20 
(8) 

(59) 
— 

$415 

$271 
152 
57 
(2) 

(77) 
(1) 

$400 

*• The decrease in the effective income tax rate in 20! 1 compared with 2010 attributable to the effect of foreign operations relates to a cliange 
in the proportion of income earned anumg foreign jurisdictions, with the suspension of Libyan operations providing the highest impact. 

Below is a reconciliation ofthe beginning and ending amount of uiuecognized tax benefits; 

_ 2011 2010 

Balance at January I 
Additions based on tax positions taken in the current year 
Additions based on tax positions of prior years 
Reductions based on tax positions of prior years 
Reductions due to settlements with taxing authorities 
Reductions due to lapse of statutes of limitation 

Balance at December 31 

Al December 31, 2011, the umecognized tax benefits include $331 miUion, which if recognized, would 
affect the Corporation's effective income tax rate. Over the next 12 months, it is reasonably possible that the total 
amount of unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by $30 to $40 million due to settlements with taxing 
authorities and lapsing of statutes of limitation. The Corporation had accrued inlerest and penalties related to 
unrecognized lax benefits of approximately $42 milhon as of December 31, 2011 and approximately $16 mUlion 
asofDecember31,2010. 

The Corporaiion has not recognized deferred income taxes for that portion of undistributed eamings of 
foreign subsidiaries expected to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations. The Corporaiion had 
undistributed eamings from foreign subsidiaries expected to be indefinitely reinvested in foreign operations of 
approximately $5,2 billion at December 31, 2011. If these earnings were not indefmitely reinvested, a deferred 
tax liabihty of approximately $1.8 billion would be recognized, not accounting for the potential utilization of 
foreign tax credits in the United States. 

The Corporation and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the United States and various foreign 
jurisdictions. The Corporation is no longer subject to examinations by income tax authorities in most 
jurisdictions for years prior to 2005. 

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) in 2011, 2010 and 2009 amounted to $1,384 mUlion, $1,450 million and 
$1,177 mUlion, respectively. 
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15. Outstanding and Weighted Average Common Shares 

The foliowing table provides the changes in the Corporation's outstanding common shares: 

2011 2010 2009 

(Thousands of shares) 

Balance at January I 337,681 327,229 326,133 
Issued for an acquisition* — 8,602 — 
Activity related to restricted common slock awards, net 579 770 680 
Employee stock options 1,716 1,080 416 

Balance at December 31 339,976 337,681 327,229 

^ See Note 2, Acqui.utions and Dispositions in the notes to the ConsoUdated Financial Statements. 

The weighted average number of common shares used in the basic and diluted eamings per share 
computations for each year is summarized below: 

2011 2010 2009 

(Thousands of shares) 

Common shares — basic 336,901 325,999 323,890 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Stock options 1,617 829 836 
Restricted common slock 1,380 1,449 1,239 

Common shares — diluted 339,898 328,277 325,965 

The calculation of weighted average common shares excludes the effect of 3,490,000, 5,157,000 and 
4,050,000 oul-of-the-money stock options for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Cash dividends on common 
stock totaled $0.40 per share ($0.10 per quarter) during 2011, 2010 and 2009. 

16, Leased Assets 

The Corporaiion and certain of lis subsidiaries lease gasohne stations, drUling rigs, tankers, office space and 
other assets for varying periods under contractual obligations accounted for as operating leases. Certain operating 
leases provide an option to purchase the related property at fixed prices. At December 31, 2011, future minimum 
rental payments applicable lo non-cancelable operating leases with remaining terms of one year or more (other 
than oil and gas property leases) are as follows (tn millions of doUars): 

2012 $ 531 
2013 672 
2014 523 
2015 199 
2016 121 
Remaining years 1,164 

Total minimum lease payments 3.210 
Less: mcome from subleases 47 

Net minimum lease payments $3,163 

Operating lease expenses for drilling rigs used to drill development wells and successful exploration wells 
are capitalized. 
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Rental expense was as follows: 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 

Total rental expense $348 $273 $266 
Less: income from subleases 12 13 11 

Net rental expense $336 $260 $255 

17. Risk Management and Trading Activities 

In the normal course of its business, the Corporation is exposed to commodity risks related to changes in the 
prices of crude oil, natural gas, refined petroleum producls and electricity, as well as to changes in interest rates 
and foreign currency values. In the disclosures that foUow, risk management activities are referred to as energy 
marketing and corporate risk management activities. The Corporation also has trading operations, prmcipally 
through a 50% voting interest in a consolidated partnership, that trades energy-related commodities, securities 
and derivatives. These activities are also exposed to commodity price risks primarily related lo the prices of 
crude oil, natural gas, refined petroleum products and electricity. 

The Corporation maintains a control environment under the direction of its chief risk officer and through its 
corporate risk policy, which the Corporation's senior management has approved. Controls include volumetric, 
term and value at risk limits. The chief risk officer must approve the use of new instruments or commodities. 
Risk limits are monitored and are reported on a daily basis to business unhs and senior management. The 
Corporation's risk management department also performs independent verifications of sources of fak values and 
validations of valuation models. These controls apply to all of the Corporation's risk management and trading 
activities, including the consolidated trading partnership. The Corporation's treasury department is responsible 
for administering and monitoring foreign exchange and interest rate hedging programs. 

Following is a description of the Corporation's activities that use derivatives as part of their operations and 
strategies. Derivatives mclude both financial instmments and forward purchase and sale contracts. Gross notional 
amounts of both long and short positions are presented in the volume tables below. These amounts include long 
and short positions that offset in closed positions and have not reached contractual maturity. Gross notional 
amounts do not quantify risk or represent assets or liabilities of the Corporation, but are used in the calculation (]f 
cash settlements under the contracts. 

Energy Marketing Activities: In ils energy marketing activities, the Corporation sells refined petroleum 
products, natural gas and electricity principaUy to commercial and industrial businesses al fixed and floating 
prices for varying periods of time. Commodity contracts such as futures, forwards, swaps and options, together 
with physical assets such as storage and pipeline capacity, are used to obtain supply and reduce margin volatility 
or lower costs related lo sales contracts with customers. 

The table below shows the gross volume of the Corporation's energy marketing commodity contracts 
outstanding: 

At December 31, 

2011 2010 

Crude oil and refined petroleum products (millions of barrels) 28 30 
Natural gas (mUlions of mcf) 2,616 2,210 
Electricity (millions of megawatt hours) 244 301 

The changes m fan- value of certain energy markelmg commodity contracts that are not designated as hedges 
are recognized currenfiy in eamings. Revenues from the sales contracts are recognized in Sales and other 
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operating revenues in the Statement of Consolidated Income, while supply contract purchases and net settlements 
from financial derivatives related to these energy marketing activities are recognized in Cost of products sold in 
the Statement of Consolidated Income. Net realized and unrealized pre-tax gams on derivative contracts nol 
designated as hedges amounted to $65 miUion in 2011, $247 mUlion in 2010 and $102 miUion in 2009. 

At December 31, 2011, a portion of energy marketing commodity contracts are designated as cash flow 
hedges lo hedge variability of expected future cash flows of forecasted supply iransactions. The length of time 
over which the Corporaiion hedges exposure to variability in future cash flows is predominantly one year or less. 
For contracts outstanding at December 31, 2011, the maximum diu âtion was approximately two years. The 
Corporation records the effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges as a component of 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Amounts recorded in 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are reclassified into Cost of products sold in the Statement of 
Consolidated Income in the same period that the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion 
of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges is recognized immediately in Cost of producls sold. 

The after-tax deferred losses relating to energy marketing acti\'ities recorded in Accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss) were $64 million and $147 mlUion al December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
The Corporation estimates thai a loss of approximately $44 mUlion will be reclassified into earnings over the 
next twelve months. During 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Corporation reclassified after-lax losses from Accumulated 
other comprehensive income (loss) of $105 million, $318 miUion and $596 million ($172 milhon, $527 mUlion 
and $955 mUlion of pre-tax losses), respectively. The amounts of ineffectiveness were a loss of $4 mUUon in 
2011, a gain of $2 mUhon in 2010 and a loss of $2 mUhon in 2009. The pre-tax amount of deferred hedge losses 
is reflected in Accounts payable and the related income tax benefits are recorded as deferred income tax assets, 
which are included in Other current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Corporate Risk Management: Corpt)rate risk management activities include transactions designed to 
reduce risk in the selling prices of crude oil, refined petroleum producls or natural gas produced by the 
Corporation or to reduce exposure lo foreign currency or inlerest rate movements. Generally, futures, swaps or 
option strategies may be used to fix the forward selling price of a portion of the Corporation's crude oil, refined 
petioleum pn)ducts or natural gas production. Forward contracts may also be used to purchase certain currencies 
in which the Corporation does business with the intent of reducing exposure to foreign currency fluctuations. 
These forward contracts comprise various currencies including the British Pound and Thai Baht. Interesl rale 
swaps may be used to convert interest payments on certain long-term debt from fixed to floating rates. 

The table below shows the gross volume of Corporate risk management derivative contracts outstanding: 

At December 31, 

2011 2010 

Commodity, primarUy crude oil (miUions of barrels) 51 35 
Foreign exchange (miUions of U.S. Dollars) $ 900 $1,025 
Interest rate swaps (miUions of U.S. Dollars) $ 895 $ 310 

During 2008, the Corporaiion closed Brent crude oU cash flow hedges covering 24,000 barrels per day 
through 2012, by entering into offsetting contracts with the same counterparty. As a result, the valuation of those 
contracts is no longer subject to change due to price fluctuations. The deferred hedge losses as ofthe date that the 
hedges were closed are being recorded in eamings as the hedged transactions occur. Hedging activities primarily 
related to closed Brent cmde oil positions decreased Exploration and Production Sales and other operating 
revenues by $517 mUlion in 2011 and $533 miUion m bodi 2010 and 2009 ($327 million, $338 mUlion and $337 
million after-taxes, respectively). 

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Corporation entered into Brent crude oil hedges using fixed-price 
swap contracts to hedge the variability of expected future cash flows from 90,000 barrels per day of forecasted 
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cmde oU sales volumes for the full year of 2012. In January 2012, the Corporation entered into additional Brent 
cmde oil hedges of 30,000 barrels per day for the full year of 2012. The average price for these hedges is S107.70 
per barrel. The Corporation records the effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges as a 
component of Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Amounts recorded in Accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss) are reclassified into Sales and other operating revenues in the Statement of 
Consohdated Income in the same period that the hedged item is recognized in eamings. The ineffective portion 
of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges is recognized immediately in Sales and other operating revenues. 

The after-tax deferred losses in Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to Brent cmde oil 
hedges were $286 mUlion and $638 mUlion at December 31. 2011 and 2010, respectively. The entire amount of 
net after-tax deferred losses of $286 mlUlon as of December 31, 2011 wiU be reclassified into eamings during 
2012. In 2011, the amount of ineffectiveness from Brent cmde oU hedges was a gain of $9 million. 

As a resuh of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedge posUlons used in the Corporation's Energy 
Marketing and Corporate Risk Management Activities, pre-tax deferred losses in Accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss) decreased by $5 mUhon In 2011, increased by $324 million in 2010 and $1,148 
million in 2009 ($2 million, $198 mUlion and $729 miUion afler-lax, respectively). 

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Corporaiion had interesl rate swaps with gross notional amounts of 
$895 million and $310 million, respectively, which were designated as fair value hedges. Changes in the fair 
value of interest rate swaps and the hedged fixed-rate debt are recorded in Interest expense in the Statement of 
Consolidated Income. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Corporation recorded increases of 
$45 miUion and $8 million (excluding accmed interesl), respectively, in the fair value of interest rale swaps and a 
corresponding adjustment in the carrying value ofthe hedged fixed-rale debt. 

Foreign exchange contracts are not designated as hedges. Gains or losses on foreign exchange contracts are 
recognized immediately in Other, net in Revenues and non-operating income in the Statement of Consolidated 
Income. 

Net realized and unrealized pre-tax gains (losses) on derivative contracts used for Corporate risk 
management and not designated as hedges amounted to the following: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 

Commodity $ 1 $ (7) $ 9 
Foreign exchange (15) (7) 86 

Total $(14) $(14) $95 

Trading Activities: Trading activities are conducted principally through a trading partnership in which the 
Corporaiion has a 50% voting inlerest. This consolidated entity intends to generate eamings through various 
strategies primarily using energy-related commodities, securities and derivatives. The Corporation also takes 
trading positions for ils own account. The information that follows represents 100% of the trading partnership 
and the Corporation's proprietary trading accounts. 
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The table below shows the gross volume of derivative contracts outstanding relating lo trading activities: 

At December 31, 

2011 2010 

Commodity 
Cmde oil and refined peti'oleum products (mUlions of barrels) 2,169 3,328 
Natural gas (millions of mcf) 4,203 4,699 
Electricity (miUions of megawatt hours) 304 79 

Foreign exchange (mUlions of U.S. Dollars) $ 581 $ 506 
Other 

Interest rate (millions of U.S. Dollars) $ 182 $ 205 
Equity securiries (millions of shares) 16 35 

Pre-tax unrealized and realized gains (losses) recorded in Sales and other operating revenues in the 
Statement of Consolidated Income from trading activities amounted to the foliowing: 

Year Ended December 31, 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 

Commodity $ 44 $ 88 $196 
Foreign exchange — 5 23 
Other _(28) _ 1 0 _ J 7 

Total $ 16 $103 $236 

Fair Value Measurements: The Corporation determines fair value in accordance with the fair value 
measurements accounting standard (ASC 820 - Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures), which eslabUshed a 
hierarchy that categorizes the sources of inputs, which generally range from quoted prices for identical 
instruments in a principal trading market (Level 1) to estimates determined using related market data (Level 3). 

When Level 1 inputs are available within a particular market, those inputs are selected for determmalion of 
fair value over Level 2 or 3 inputs in the same market. To value derivatives that are characterized as Level 2 and 
3, the Corporation uses observable inputs for similar instmments that are available from exchanges, pricing 
services or broker quotes. These observable inputs may be supplemented with other methods, including intemal 
extrapolation, dial result in the most representative prices for insUruments with shnilar characteristics. Multiple 
inputs may be used to measure fair value, however, the level of fair value for each physical derivative and 
financial asset or liability presented below is based on the lowest significant input level within this fair value 
hierarchy. 
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The following table provides the Corporation's net physical derivative and financial assets and (Uabilities) 
that are measured at fair value based on this hierarchy: 

Collateral and 
counterparty 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 netting Balance 

(Millions of dollars) 

December 31,2011 
Assets 

Derivative contracts 
Commodity $ 135 $ 1,188 $ 511 $ (67) $ 1,767 
Interest rate and other — 66 — — 66 
Collateral and counterparty netting (33) (148) (4) (121) (306) 

Total derivative contracts 102 1,106 507 (188) 1,527 
Other assets measured at fair value on a recurring 

basis 7 34 — (2) 39 

Total assets $109 $ 1,140 $507 $(190) $ 1,566 

Liabilities 
Derivative contracts 

Commodhy $(191) $(1,501) $(650) $ 67 $(2,275) 
Foreign exchange — (15) — — (15) 
Other — (18) (2) — (20) 
Collateral and counterparty netting 33 148 4 117 302 

Total derivative contracts (158) (1,386) (648) 184 (2,008) 
Other liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring 

basis — (52) (2) 2 (52) 

Total liabilities $(158) $(1,438) $(650) $ 186 $(2,060) 

December 31,2010 
Assets 

Derivative contracts 
Commodity $ 65 $ 1.308 $ 883 $(304) $ 1,952 
Foreign exchange — 1 — — 1 
Inlerest rate and other — 17 — — 17 
CoUaleral and counterparty netting 0 ) (274) (19) (213) (507) 

Total derivative contracts 64 1,052 864 (517) 1,463 
Other assets measured at fair value on a recurring 

basis 20 49 3 — 72 

Total assets $ 84 $ 1,101 $ 867 $(517) $ 1,535 

Liabilities 
Derivative contracts 

Commodity $(324) $(2,519) $(474) $ 304 $(3,013) 
Foreign exchange — (12) — — (12) 
Other — (10) — — (10) 
Collateral and counterparty netting 1 274 19 34 328 

Total derivative contracts (323) (2,267) (455) 338 (2,707) 
Other habilifies measured at fan value on a recurring 

basis — -— — — — 

Total liabilities $(323) $(2,267) $(455) $338 $(2,707) 
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The following table provides changes in physical derivative and financial assets and Uabililies that are 
measured al fair value based on Level 3 inputs: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2011 2010 ~ 

(Millions of dollars) 

Balance at January f $ 412 $ 84 
Unrealized pre-tax gains (losses) 

Included in earnings (52) 169 
Included in other comprehensive income 25 101 

Purchases 2,294 1,141 
Sales (2,524) (1,090) 
Settlements (115) 32 
Transfers into Level 3 (114) 30 
Transfers out of Level 3 (69) (55) 

Balance at December 31 $ (143) $ 412 

Purchases and sales in the table above primarUy represent option premiums paid or received, respectively, 
during the reporting period. Settlements represent realized gains and losses on derivatives settled during the 
reporting period. 

The following table provides net transfers into and out of each level of the fair value hierarchy: 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Transfers into Level 1 $ (17) $ 14 

Transfers out of Level 1 297 28 
$280 $ 42 

Transfers into Level 2 $ — S 312 
Transfers out of Level 2 (97) (329) 

$ (97) $ (17) 

Transfers mlo Level 3 $(114) $ 30 
Transfers out of Level 3 (69) (55) 

$(183) $ (25) 

The Corporation's policy is to recognize transfers in and transfers out as ofthe end ofthe reporting period, 
Transfers between levels result from the passage of time as contracts move closer to then maturities, fluctuations 
in the market liquidity for certain contracts and/or changes in the level of significance of fair value measurement 
inputs. 

In addition to the financial assets and liabilities disclosed in the tables above, the Corporation had other 
short-term financial instruments, primarily cash equivalents and accounts receivable and payable, for which the 
canying value approximated theu" fak value at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. Outstanding long-
term debt had a carrying value of $6,040 miUion, compared with a fair value of $7,317 million at December 31, 
2011, and a carrying value of $5,569 million, compared with a fair value of $6,353 miUion at December 31, 
2010. 
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The table below reflects the gross and net fair values of the Corporation's risk management and trading 
derivative insQ-uments: 

Accounts Accounts 
Receivable Payable 

(MiUions of dollars) 
December 31, 2011 

Derivative contracts designated as hedging instmments 
Commodity $ 181 $ (216) 
Other 61 (3) 

Total derivative contracts designated as hedging instmments 242 (219) 

Derivative contracts not designated as hedging instmments* 
Commodity 9,350 (9,823) 
Foreign exchange 6 (21) 
Other 12 (24) 

Total derivative contracts not designated as hedging instmments 9,368 (9,868) 

Gross fair value of derivative contracts 9,610 (10,087) 
Master netting arrangements (7,962) 7,962 
Cash collateral (received) posted (121) 117 

Net fair '̂alue of derivative cr>nlracts $ 1,527 $ (2,008) 

December 31, 2010 
Derivative contracts designated as hedging instruments 

Commodity $ 225 $ (483) 
Other 10 (2) 

Total derivative contracts designated as hedging instmmenls 235 (485) 

Derivative contracts not designated as hedging instraraents* 
Commodity 11,581 (12,383) 
Foreign exchange 7 (19) 
Otiier 31_ (32) 

Total derivative contracts not designated as hedging instmments 11,619 (12,434) 

Gross fan value of derivative contracts 11,854 (12,919) 
Master netting arrangements (10,178) 10,178 
Cash collateral (received) posted (213) 34 

Net fair value of derivative contracts $ 1,463 $ (2.707) 

* Includes trading derivatives and derivatives used for risk management. 

The Corporation generally enters into master netting airangemenls to mitigate counterparty credit risk. Master 
netting arrangements are standardized contracts that govem aU specified transactions with the same counlerparty and 
allow the Corporation to terminate all contracts upon occurrence of certain events, such as a counterparty's default or 
bankmptcy. Where diese arrangements provide the right of offset and die Corporation's intent and practice is to offset 
amounts in the case of contract terminations, the Corporation records fair value on a net basis. 

Credit Risk: The Corporation is exposed to credit risks that may at times be concentrated with certain 
counterparties, groups of counterparties or customers. Accounts receivable are generated from a diverse domestic 
and international customer base. The Corporation's net receivables at December 31, 2011 are concentrated with the 
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following counterparty and customer industry segments: Integrated Oil Companies —29%, Government Entities — 
10%, Services —9%, Trading Companies —8%, Real Estate —8% and Manufacturing —7%. The Corporation 
reduces its risk related to certain counterparties by using master netting arrangements and requiring collateral, 
generaUy cash or letters of credit. The Corporation records the cash collateral received or posted as an offset to the 
fair value of derivatives executed with the same counlerparty. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Corporation 
held ciLsh from counterparties of $121 million and $213 miUion, respectively. The Corporaiion posted cash to 
counterparties at December 31, 2011 and 2010 of $ 117 million and $34 milhon, respectively. 

At December 31, 2011, the Corporation had outstanding letters of credit totaling $1,698 miUion, primarily 
issued to .satisfy margin requirements. Certain ofthe Corporation's agreements also contain contingent collateral 
provisions that could requke the Corporation to post additional collateral if the Corporation's credit rating 
declines. As of December 31, 2011, the net liability related lo derivatives with contingent collateral provisions 
was approximately $962 million before cash collateral posted of $3 miUion. At December 31, 2011, aU three 
major credit rating agencies that rate the Corporation's debt had assigned an uivestment grade rating. If two of 
the three agencies were to downgrade the Corporation's rating to below investment grade, as of December 31, 
2011, the Corporation would be required to post additional collateral of approximately $189 million. 

18. Guarantees and Contingencies 

The Corporation has $67 million in letters of credit for which il is contingently liable. The Corporation also 
has a contingent purchase obligation lo acquke the remaining interest in WilcoHess, a retail gasoline station joint 
venture. This contingent obligation, which expires in April 2014, was approximately $205 million at 
December 31, 2011. 

The Corporation is subject to loss contingencies with respect to various lawsuits, claims and other 
proceedings, including envkonmental mailers. A liability is recognized in the Corporation's consolidated 
financial statements when it is probable a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If 
the risk of loss is probable, but the amount cannot be reasonably estimated or the risk of loss is only reasonably 
possible, a liability is not accmed; however, the Corporation discloses the nature of those contingencies. 

The Corporation, along with many other companies engaged in refining and marketing of gasoline, has been 
a party to lawsuits and claims related lo the use of methyl tertiary butyl ether (MTBE) in gasohne. A series of 
similar lawsuits, many involving water utilities or governmental entities, were filed in jurisdictions across the 
United States against producers of MTBE and petroleum refiners who produced gasoline containing MTBE, 
including the Corporation. The principal allegation in all cases was that gasoline containing MTBE is a defective 
product and that these parties are strictly liable in proportion to thek share of the gasoline market for damage to 
groundwater resources and are required to lake remedial action to ameliorate the alleged effects on the 
envkonment of releases of MTBE. In 2008, the majority of the cases against the Corporation were settled. In 
2010 and 2011, additional cases were settled including an action brought in state court by the State of New 
Hampshire. Two cases brought by the Stale of New Jersey and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico remain 
umesolved. In 2007, a pre-tax charge of $40 million was recorded to cover all of the known MTBE cases against 
the Corporation. 

Over the last several years, many refineries have entered mlo consent agreements to resolve the United 
Slates Enviromnental Protection Agency's (EPA) assertions that refining facilities were modified or expanded 
without complying with the New Source Review regulations that requke permits and new emission controls in 
certain ckcumstances and other regulations that impose emissions control requirements. In January 2011, 
HOVENSA signed a consent decree with the EPA to resolve its claims. Under the terms of the Consent Decree, 
HOVENSA agreed to pay a penalty of approximately $5 million and spend approximately $700 million over the 
next 10 years to install equipment and implement additional operating procedures at the HOVENSA refinery to 
reduce emissions. In addition, the Consent Decree requires HOVENSA to spend approxknaiely $5 million to 
fund an environmental project to be determined at a later dale by the Virgin Islands and $500,000 to assist the 
Vkgin Islands Water and Power Authority with monitoring. However, as a result of HOVENSA's decision to 
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shut down its refinery, which was announced in January 2012, HOVENSA believes dial il will nol be required to 
make material capital expenditures pursuant to this consent decree. The Corporation believes that it will also 
enter into a consent decree with the EPA in the near future to resolve these mailers as ihey relate to its Port 
Reading refinery facility, which is not expected to have a material adverse impact on the financial condition, 
results of operations or cash flows of the Corporation, In addition, many stales and locahties are adopting 
requirements that mandate a low sulfur content of fuel oils and restrict the types of fuel sold within thek 
jurisdictions. These proposals could require capital expenditures by the Corporation for its Port Reading refinmg 
facility to meet the requked sulfur content standards or other changes in the marketing of fuel oils and affect the 
profitability of that facility. 

The United States Deep Water Royally Relief Act of 1995 (the Act) implemented a royalty relief program 
that relieves eligible leases issued between November 28, 1995 and November 28, 2000 from paying royalties on 
deepwater production in Federal Outer Continental Shelf lands. The Act does not impose any price thresholds in 
order to qualify for the royally relief. The U.S. Minerals Management Service (MMS, predecessor to the Bureau 
of Ocean Energy Management, Regulation and Enforcement) created regulations that included pricing 
requirements lo qualify for the royalty relief provided in the Act. During the period from 2003 to 2009, the 
Corporation accmed the royalties imposed by the MMS regulations. The legaUly of the thresholds imposed by 
the MMS was challenged in the federal courts and, in October 2009, the U.S. Supreme Court decided not to 
review the appellate court's decision against the MMS. As a resuU, the Corporation recognized a pre-tax gain of 
$143 million ($89 miUion after income taxes) in 2009 to reverse all previously recorded royalties. The pre-tax 
gain is reported in Other, net in the Statement of Consolidated Income. 

The Corporation is from time lo time involved in other judicial and administrative proceedings, including 
proceedings relating to other environmental matters. The Corporation cannot predict with certainty if, how or 
when such proceedings will be resolved or what the eventual relief, if any, may be, particularly for proceedings 
that are in their early stages of development or where plaintiffs seek indeterminate damages. Numerous issues 
may need to be resolved, including through potentially lengthy discovery and determination of important factual 
matters before a loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated for any proceeding. Subject to the foregoing, in 
management's opinion, based upon currentiy known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such proceedings is 
not expected to have a material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of 
Ihe Corporation. 

19. Segment Information 

The Corporation has two operating segments that comprise the sttiicture used by senior management to 
make key operating decisions and assess performance. These are (1) Exploration and Production and 
(2) Marketing and Refining. The Exploration and Production segment explores for, develops, produces, 
purchases, transports and sells cmde oil and natural gas. The Marketing and Refining segment manufactures 
refined petroleum products and purchases, markets and trades refined petroleum products, natural gas and 
electricity. 



HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLVL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

The following table presents financial data by segment for each of the three years ended December 31: 

Exploration 
and 

Production 

2011 
Operating revenues 

Total operating revenues (b) $10,646 
Less: Transfers between affiliates 116 

Operating revenues from unaffiliated customers $10,530 

Net income (loss) attributable to Hess Corporation $ 2,675 

Income (loss) from equity investment in 
HOVENSA L.L.C 

Interest expense — 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,305 
Asset impakments 358 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,313 
Investments in affihates 97 
Identifiable assets 32,323 
Capital employed (c) 22,699 
Capital expenditures 6,888 

2010 
Operating revenues 

Total operating revenues (b) $ 9,119 
Less: Transfers between affiliates 143 

Operating revenues from unaffihated customers $ 8,976 

Net income (loss) attributable to Hess Corporaiion $ 2,736 

Income (loss) from equity investment in 
HOVENSA L.L.C $ — 

Interest expense — 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,222 
Asset impakments 532 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,417 
Investments in affiliates 57 
Identifiable assets 28,242 
Capital employed (c) 19,803 
Capital expenditures 5,394 

Marketing Corporate 
and and 

Refining interest Consolidated (a) 

(Millions of dollars) 

$27,936 $ 1 
1 — 

$27,935 $ 1 

$ (584) $ (388) 

$ — $(1,073) $ 

88 

(273) 
287 

6,302 
2,337 

115 

383 
13 

(255) 

511 
(387) 

3 

$38,466 

$ 1,703 

$(1,073) 
383 

2,406 
358 
785 
384 

39,136 
24,649 
7,006 

$24,885 $ 

$24,885 

$ (231) 

$ (522) 
— 
82 

4 
386 

6,377 
2,715 

82 

$ 

L 

$ 

1 

(380) 

361 
13 

(248) 
— 

I l l 
(126) 
16 

$33,862 

$ 2.125 

$ (522) 
361 

2,317 
532 

1,173 
443 

35,396 
22,392 
5,492 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

Marketing Corporate 
and and 

Refining Interest 

(Millions of dollars) 

Exploration 
and 

Production 

2009 
Operating revenues 

Total operating revenues (b) $ 7,259 
Less: Transfers between affiliates 110 — — 

Operatmg revenues from unaffiliated customers $ 7,149 $22,464 $ 1̂  

Net income (loss) atti-ibutable to Hess Corporation $ 1,042 $ 127 $ (429) 

Consolidated (a) 

$22,464 $ I 

Income (loss) from equity investment in 
HOVENSA L.L.C 

Interest expense 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 
Asset impairments 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . . . . 
Investments in affiliates 
Identifiable assets 
Capital employed (c) 
Capital expenditures 

— $ (229) 
— 360 

2,113 
54 

944 
57 

21,810 
14,163 
2.800 

79 
— 
24 

856 
6,388 
2,979 

83 

8 
— 

(253-
— 

1,267 
853 

35 

$29,614 

$ 740 

$ (229) 
360 

2,200 
54 

715 
913 

29,465 
17.995 
2,918 

(a) After elimination of transactions between affiliates, which are valued at approximate market prices. 
(b'l Sales and operating revenues are reported net of excise and similar taxes in the Statement of Consolidated Income, which amounted lo 

upproximaieiy $2,350 milliof!, $2,200 millirm and $2, SIX) millirm in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
((•) Calculated as equity plus debt. 

Financial information by major geographic area for each of the three years ended December 31, 2011: 

2011 
Operating revenues 
Propetty, plant and equipment (net) 

2010 
Operating revenues 
Property, plant and equipment (net) 

2009 
Operating revenues 
Property, plant and equipment (net) 

United States 

$31,813 
11,490 

$28,066 
8,343 

$24,611 
5,792 

Europe 
(Milli 

$3,137 
6,826* 

$2,109 
6,764* 

$1,771 
3,930* 

Africa 
ions of dollars) 

$1,782 
2,355 

$2,271 
2,573 

$1,898 
3,617 

.\sia and 
OUier 

$1,734 
4,041 

$1,416 
3,447 

$1,334 
3,288 

Consolidated 

$38,466 
24,712 

$33,862 
21,127 

$29,614 
16.627 

Ofthe total Europe proi?erty. plant and equipment (net), Norway represented $5,031 million, $5,002 million and $2,049 million in 20! I, 
2010 and 2009. respectively. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDURIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 

20. Related Party Transactions 

The following table presents the Corporation's related party transactions for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 

Purchases of petroleum producls: 
HOVENSA* $3,806 $4,307 $3,659 

Sales of petroleum producls and cmde oU: 
WilcoHess 2,898 2,113 1,634 
HOVENSA 710 607 530 

* Following the closure of HOVENSA's refinery in St. Croix at announced in January 2012, the Corporation will no longer purchase 50% of 
HOVENSA's production of refined petroleum products, after any .iules to unaffiliated parties. 

The following table presents the Corporation's related party accounts receivable (payable) at December 31: 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

WUcoHess $127 $ 110 
HOVENSA, net (22) (107) 

21. Subsequent Event 

In January 2012, the Corporation completed the sale of its interest in the Snohvit Field (Hess 3%) for 
proceeds of approximately $135 million, after normal closing adjustments. 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDURIES 
SUPPLEMENTARY OIL AND GAS DATA 

(Unaudited) 

The Supplementary Oil and Gas Data that follows is presented in accordance with ASC 932, Disclosures 
about Oil and Gas Producing Activities, and includes (1) costs incurred, capitalized costs and results of 
operations relating lo oil and gas producing activhies, (2) net proved oil and gas reserves and (3) a standardized 
measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to proved oil and gas reserves, including a reconciliation of 
changes therein. 

The Corporation produces cmde oil, natural gas liquids and/or natural gas principally in Algeria, Azerbaijan, 
Denmark, Equatorial Guinea, Gabon (untU September 2010). Indonesia, Libya, Malaysia, Norway, Russia, 
Thailand, the United Kingdom and the United Slates. Exploration activities are also conducted, or are planned, in 
additional countries. 

Costs Incurred in Oil and Gas Producing Activities 

United Europe Asia and 

For tbe Years Ended December 31 Total States (d) Africa Other 

(Millions of dollars) 

2011 
Property acquisitions (a) 

Unproved $1,224 $ 992 $ — $ — $232 
Proved 122 6 116 — — 

Exploration 1,325 525 98 292 410 
Production and development caphal expenditures (c) 5,645 2,951 1,734 189 771 

2010 
Property acquisitions (a, b) 

Unproved $1,887 $1,849 $ 38 $ — $ — 
Proved 1,015 443 572 — — 

Exploration 915 185 58 164 508 

Production and development capital expenditures (c) 2,654 1,088 850 289 427 

2009 
Property acquisitions (a) 

Unproved $ 188 $ 184 $ 2 $ — $ 2 
Proved 74 — — — 74 

Explorarion 938 206 69 225 438 

Production and development capital expenditures (c) 1,918 807 513 255 343 

(a) Includes wells, equipment and facilities acquired with proved reser\'es and excludes properties acquired in non-cash property 

exchanges. 

(h) In 2010, acquisitions include $652 million, representing the non-cash portion of the purchase price for American Oil & Gas Inc., 
primarily through the issuance of common slock. 

(c) Includes $972 million, $62 million and $(9) million in 2011. 2010 and 2009, respectively, related to the accruals and revisions for asset 
retirement obligations except obligations acquired in non-cash property exchanges. 

(d) Costs incurred in oil and gas producing activities in Nonvay. excluding non-monetary exchanges, were as follows for ihe years ended 

December 3 1 : 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 
Property acquisitions (a) 

Unproved $ — S 14 
Proved — 572 

Exploration 10 12 
Production and development capital expenditures 741 469 
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Capitalized Cost^j Relating to Oil and Gas Producing Activities 

At December 31, 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Unproved properties $ 4,064 $ 3,796 
Proved properties 3,975 3,496 
WeUs, equipment and related facilities 29,239 26,064 

Total costs 37,278 33,356 
Less: reserve for depreciation, depletion, amortizafion and lease impairment 13,900 13,553 

Net capitalized costs $23,378 $19,803 

Results of Operations for Oil and Gas Producing Activities 

The results of operations shown below exclude non-oil and gas producing activities, primarily gains on sales 
of oU and gas properties, interest expense, gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions and 
other non-operating income. Therefore, these results are on a different basis than the net income from 
Exploration and Production operations reported in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations and in Note 19, Segmenl Information in the notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

For the Year Ended December 31 Total 

2011 

Sales and other operating revenues 
Unaffiliated customers $ 9,931 
Inter-company 116 

Total revenues 10,047 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 2,352 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease 

impakment 1,195 
General, administralive and other expenses 313 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,305 
Asset impairments 358 

Total costs and expenses 6,523 

Results of operations before income taxes 3,524 
Provision for income taxes 1,300 

Results of operations $ 2,224 

United Asia and 
States Europe* Africa Other 

(Millions of dollars) 

$3,255 $3,019 $2,081 $1,576 
116 — — — 

3,371 3,019 2,081 1,576 

660 968 383 341 

475 
190 
800 
16 

2,141 

1,230 
473 

$ 757 

76 
56 
588 
342 

2,030 

989 
522 

$ 467 

231 
17 
502 
— 

1,133 

948 
230 

$ 718 

413 
50 
415 
— 

1,219 

357 
75 

$ 282 
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United Asia and 
Ft)r the Years Ended December 31 Total States Europe* Africa Other 

(\fillions of dollars) 

2010 
Sales and other operating revenues 

Unaffihated customers $8,601 $2,310 $2,251 $2,750 $1,290 
Inter-company 143 143 — — — 

Total revenues 8,744 2,453 2,251 2,750 1,290 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 1,924 489 727 455 253 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease 

impakment 865 364 49 143 309 
General, administrative and other expenses 281 161 48 20 52 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,222 649 463 772 338 
Asset impairments 532 — — 532 — 

Total costs and expenses 5,824 1,663 1,287 1,922 952 

Resuhs of operations before income taxes 2,920 790 964 828 338 
Provision for income taxes 1,425 305 477 580 63 

Results of operations $1,495 $ 485 $ 487 $ 248 $ 275 

2009 
Sales and other operatmg revenues 

Unaffiliated customers $6,725 $1,501 $1,827 $2,193 $1,204 
Inter-company 110 110 — — — 

Total revenues 6,835 1,611 1,827 2,193 1,204 

Costs and expenses 
Production expenses, including related taxes 1,805 431 642 480 252 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease 

impairment 829 383 75 159 212 
General, administrative and other expenses 255 130 45 22 58 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 2,113 503 419 821 370 
Asset impakments 54 — 54 — — 

Total costs and expenses 5,056 1,447 1,235 1.482 892 

Results of operations before income taxes 1,779 164 592 711 312 
Provision for income taxes 904 64 185 514 141 

Results of operations $ 875 $ 100 $ 407 $ 197 $ 171 

* Results of operations for oil and gas producing activities in Norway were as follows for the years ended December 31: 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 

Sales and other operating revenues — Unaffiliated customers $ 996 $ 524 
Costs and expenses 

Production expenses, including related laws 290 149 
Exploration expenses, including dry holes and lease impairment 10 12 
General, administrative and other expenses 9 9 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 232 133 

Total costs and expenses 541 303 

Results of operations before income taxes 455 221 
Provision for income taxes 295 154 

Results of operations S 160 $ 67 
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Oil and Gas Reserves 

The Corporation's proved oil and gas reserves are calculated in accordance with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations and the requkements of the FASB. Proved oil and gas reserves are 
quantities, which by analysis of geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainly lo 
be economically producible from knovm reservoirs under existing economic conditions, operating methods and 
government regulations. The Corporation's estimation of net recoverable quantities of liquid hydrocarbons and 
natural gas is a highly technical process performed by intemal teams of geoscience professionals and reservok 
engineers. Estimates of reserves were prepared by the use of standard engineering and geoscience methods 
generally recognized in the petroleum industry. The method or combination of methods used in the analysis of 
each reservoir is based on the maturity of the reservoir, the completeness of the subsurface data available at the 
time of the estimate, the stage of reservok development and the production history. Where applicable, reliable 
technologies may be used in reserve estimation, as defined in the SEC regulations. These technologies, including 
computational methods, must have been field tested and demonstrated to provide reasonably certain results with 
consistency and repeatability in the formation being evaluated or in an analogous formation. In order for reserves 
lo be classified as proved, any requked government approvals must be obtained and depending on the cost ofthe 
project, either senior management or the Board of Dkectors must commit to fund the development. The 
Corporation's proved reserves are subject to certain risks and uncertainties, which are discussed in Item IA, Ri.sk 
Factors Related to Our Business and Operations of this Form 10-K. 

Internal Controls 

The Corporaiion maintains internal controls over its oil and gas reserve estimation process which are 
administered by the Corporation's Senior Vice President of E&P Technology and its Chief Fmancial Officer. 
Estimates of reserves are prepared by technical staff that work directly with the oil and gas properties using 
standard reserve estimation guideUnes, definitions and methodologies. Each year, reserve estimates for a 
selection of the Corporation's assets are subject to intemal technical audits and reviews. In addition, an 
independent third party reserve engineer reviews and audits a significant portion of the Corporation's reported 
reseives (see below). Reserve estimates are reviewed by senior management and the Board of Directors. 

Qualifications 

The person primarily responsible for overseeing the preparation of the Corporation's oil and gas reserves is 
Mr. Scoll Heck, Senior Vice President of E&P Technology. Mr. Heck is a member of the Society of Petroleum 
Engineers and has over 30 years of experience in the oil and gas industiy with a BS degree in Petroleum 
Engineering. His experience includes over 15 years primarUy focused on oil and gas subsurface understanding 
and reserves estimation in both domestic and international areas. The Corporation's upstream iechnok)gy 
organization, which Mr. Heck manages, focuses on oil and gas industry subsurface and reservok engineering 
technologies and evaluation techniques. Mr. Heck is also responsible for the Corporation's Global Reserves 
group, which is the internal organization responsible for establishing the poUcies and processes used within the 
operating units lo estimate reserves and perform intemal technical reserve audits and reviews. 

Reserves Audit 

The Corporation engaged the consulting fkm of DeGolyer and MacNaughton (D&M) to perform an audh of 
the internally prepared reserve estimates on certain fields aggregating 81% of 2011 year-end reported reserve 
quantities on a barrel of oil equivalent basis (76% in 2010). The purpose of this audit was lo provide additional 
assurance on the reasonableness of internally prepared reserve estimates and compliance with SEC regulations. 
The D&M letter report, dated January 31, 2012, on the Corporation's estimated oil and gas reserves was prepared 
using standard geological and engineering methods generally recognized in the petroleum industry. D&M is an 
independent petroleum engineering consultmg firm thai has been providing petroleum consulting services 
throughout the world for over 70 years. D&M's letter report on the Corporation's December 31, 2011 oU and gas 
reserves is included as an exhibit to this Form 10-K. While the D&M report should be read in its entkety, the 
report concludes that for the properties reviewed by D&M, the total net proved reser\'e estimates prepared by 
Hess and audited by D&M, in the aggregate, differed by approximately 3% of total audited net proved reserves 
on a barrel of oil equivalent basis. The report also includes among other information, the quaUfications of the 
technical person primarUy responsible for overseeing the reserve audit. 
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Following are the Corporation's proved reserves forthe three year's ended December 31, 2011: 

Crude Oil, Condensate & 
Natural Gas Liquids Natural Ga.s 

Asia 
United Europe United Europe and 
Stales (h) Africa Asia Total States (h) Africa(i) Total 

(Millions of barrels) (Millions of mcf) 

Net Proved Developed and Undeveloped 
Reserves 
At January 1,2009(g) 227 332 324 87 970 276 639 1,858 2,773 
Revisions ofpreviousesthnates (a) 22 28 34 (7) 77 46 66 83 195 
Extensions, discoveries and other 

additions 26 1 — — 27 23 — — 23 
Improved recovery — -— — — — — — — — 
Purchases of minerals in place — — — — — — — 101 101 
Sales of minerals in place — — — —'• — — (1) — (1) 
Production (f) _(26) _(31) _(44) _(6) (107) (39) (62) (169) (270) 

At December 31,2009 249 330 314 74 967 (b) 306 642 1,873 2,821 

Revisions ofpreviousesthnates (a) 68 14 22 (1) 103 (7) (9) (23) (39) 
Extensions, di.scoveries and other 

additions 3 19 — 1 23 14 15 1 30 
Improved recovery — — — — — — — — — 
Purchases of minerals in place 16 150 — — 166 13 129 — 142 
Sales of minerals in place — (13) (25) (5) (43) — (4) (89) (93) 
Production (f) _(32) _(34) _(4]_) _(5) _(112) _(46) _(54) (163) (263) 

At December 31,2010 304 466 270 64 1,104 (b) 280 719 1,599 2,598 

Revisions of previous estimates (a) 33 59 (1) (7) 84 36 7 69 112 
Extensions, discoveries and other 

additions 70 7 5 — 82 85 — — 85 
Improved recovery — — — — — — — — — 
Purchases of minerals in place — 3 — — 3 1 6 — 7 
Sales ofminerals in place — (7) — — (7) — (135) — (135) 
Production (f) _(34) _(34) _(24) _(5) (97) j42) _(34) (168) (244) 

AlDecember 31,2011 373 494 250 52 1,169 (b) 360 (c) 563 1,500 2,423 

Net Proved Developed Reserves (d) 
At January 1,2009 119 192 237 23 571 202 502 727 1,431 
AlDecember 31,2009 154 171 241 27 593 205 417 923 1,545 
At December 3(,2010 180 210 215 22 627 199 424 692 1,315 
Al December 31,2011 190 212 194 25 621 199 273 740 1,212 

Net Proved Undeveloped Reserves (e) 
At January 1,2009 108 140 87 64 .399 74 137 U131 1,342 
AlDecember 31,2009 95 159 73 47 374 101 225 950 1,276 
At December 3!, 2010 124 256 55 42 477 81 295 907 1,283 
At December 31,2011 183 282 56 27 548 161 290 760 1,211 

(a) Includes the impact of changes in selling prices on the resene estimates for production sharing contracts with cost recovery provisions. 
Revisions included reductions to crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids reserves of II million barrels, II million barrels and 
18 million barrels in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, resulting from liigher selling prices. Revisions also included reductions to 
natural gas reserves of 83 million mcf. 62 million mcf and 102 million mcf in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, resulting from higher 
.selling prices. 

(b) Includes 10 million barrels in 2011, 15 million barrels in 2010 and 17 million barrels in 2009 of crude oil reserves relating to a 
noncontrolling interest owner of a corporate joint venture. 

89 



(c) Excludes approximately 355 million mcf of carbon dioxide gas for sale or use in company operations. 

id) Natural gas liquids net proved developed reserves were 56 million barrels. 54 miUion barrels and 4! million barrels al December 31, 
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and 36 million barrels at January I, 2009. 

(e) Natural gas liquids net proved undeveloped reserves were 57 million barrels, 48 million barrels and 30 million barrels at December 31, 
2011, 2010 and 2009, respeclively. and 22 million barrels at Januaty 1, 2009. 

(f) Naturcd gas production includes volume.̂  used for fuel. 

(g) Proved reserves at January !. 2009 were determined by D&M. 

(h) Proved reserves in Norway were asftyllows: 

Crude Oil, Condensate & 
Natural Gas Liquids Natural Gas 

2011 2010 m / "mo 

(MUlions of barrels) (Millions of mcf) 
AlJanuary I 264 136 404 287 
Revisions of previous estimates 40 (16) (4) (!) 
Purchases of mineral', in place — 150 — 130 
Sales ofminerals in place (3) — — — 
Production _(S) (6) (12) {12) 

Al Decemlier 31 293 264 388 404 

Net Proved Developed Reserves at Decetnber 31 108 97 137 157 
Net Proved Undeveloped Rescnes al December 31 /SS 167 2SI 247 

(i) Natural gas reserves in Africa were 71 million mcf in 2011, 63 million mcf in 2010 and 71 million mcf in 2009. 

Proved undeveloped reserves 

The December 31, 2011 oil and gas reserve estimates disclosed above include 548 miUion barrels of Uquid 
hydrocarbons and 1.211 million mcf of natural gas, or an aggregate of 750 mUlion barrels of oil equivalent 
(mmboe), classified as proved undeveloped reserves. Overall volumes of proved undeveloped reserves increased 
by 59 mmboe compared with year-end 2010. Additions and revisions in proved undeveloped reserves from 
existing fields amounted to 146 mmboe, primarily in the United States, Norway and the United Kingdom. These 
increases resuhed from ongoing technical assessments, performance evaluations and development activities. In 
2011, 85 mmboe were converted from proved undeveloped reserves to proved developed reserves resulting from 
continuing development activity and new wells mainly in Indonesia, Norway, Russia, the United Kingdom and 
North Dakota in the United States. The Corporation estimates that capital expendUures of $1,080 million were 
incurred lo convert proved undeveloped reserves lo proved developed reser\'es during 2011. Acquisitions and 
dispositions of assets in 2011 further reduced proved undeveloped reser\'es by a net 2 mmboe. 

The Corporation is involved m multiple long-term projects thai have staged developments. Certain of these 
projects have proved reserves, which have been classified as undeveloped for a period in excess of five years, 
totaling 85 mmboe or 5% of total 2011 proved reserves. Substantially aU ofthe proved undeveloped reserves in 
excess of five yeais relate lo four offshore producing assets. Three natural gas projects in the Joint Development 
Area of Malaysia/Thailand (JDA) and Indonesia are being developed in phases to satisfy long-term natural gas 
sales contracts and an oil project in Azerbaijan is continuing to be developed in phases. A summary of the 
development status of each of the four projects follows: 

• JDA — This natural gas project in the Gulf of Thailand currently has a central processing platform and 
seven wellhead platforms. Three additional wellhead platforms are currently under constmction and the 
eleventh is in the process of being sanctioned. In addition, a major investment in compression 
equipment is in the field development plan. 

• Pangkah — This natural gas and oU project offshore Java, Indonesia currently has two producing 
offshore wellhead platforms and onshore production facilities. In addition, a central processing 
platform and acconunodation utility platform has been installed and utilized from mid-2011. Further 
development drilling is on-going. 

• Natuna A — This natural gas project offshore Sumatra, Indonesia currently has two wellhead 
platforms, two central processing facilities and a floating storage and offloading vessel. Additional 
wellhead platforms and subsea well tie-backs are planned to satisfy gas sales contracts. 
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• Azeri-Chirag-Guneshli (ACG) — This oU project offshore Azerbaijan in the Caspian Sea has seven 
operational platforms that have been completed over multiple phases of development. The operator 
began constmction on another production platform in 2010. 

At December 31, 2011, the Corporation had approximately 5 mmboe of proved undeveloped reserves in 
excess of five years relating to the Snohvit Field, offshore Norway. In January 2012, the Corporation completed 
the sale of its inlerest in this field. 

Production sharing contracts 

The Corporation's proved reserves include cmde oU and natural gas reserves relating to long-term 
agreements with governments or authorities in which the Corporation has the legal right to produce or has a 
revenue interest in the production. Proved reserves from these production sharing contracts for each of the three 
years ended December 31, 2011 are presented separately below, as weU as volumes produced and received 
during 2011, 2010 and 2009 from these production sharing contracts. 

Crude Oil, Condensate & 
Natural Cas Liquids Natural Gas 

Asia 
United United and 
Stales Europe Africa Asia Total Slates Europe Africa Total 

(Millions of barreb) (Millions of mcfi 

Production Sharing Contracts 
Proved Reserves* 

At December 31,2009 — — 161 68 229 — — 1,599 1,599 
AtDecember3I,2010 — — 108 57 165 — — 1,316 1,316 
At December 31,2011 — — 89 46 135 — — 1,230 1,230 

Production 
2009 — — 36 5 41 — — 136 136 
2010 — — 33 4 37 — — 130 130 
2011 — — 23 4 27 — — 136 136 

* Includes natural gas liquids <̂f 5 million barrels in 2011, 7 million barrels in 2010 and ! i million barrels in 2009. 

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Oil and Gas Reserves 

Future net cash flows are calculated by applying prescribed oil and gas selling prices used in determining 
>'ear-end reserve estimates (adjusted for price changes provided b>' contractual arrangements) to estimated future 
production of proved oil and gas reserves, less estimated future development and production costs, which are 
based on year-end costs and existmg economic assumptions. Future income tax expenses are computed by 
applying the appropriate year-end statutory tax rates lo the pre-tax net cash flows relating to the Corporation's 
proved oil and gas reserves. Future net cash flows are discounted at the prescribed rate of 10%. The discounted 
future net cash flow estimates do not include exploration expenses, inlerest expense or corporate general and 
administralive expenses. The selling prices of cmde oil and natural gas are highly volatile. The prices which are 
required to be used for the discounted future net cash flows do not include the effects of hedges and may not be 
representative of future selling prices. The future net cash flow estimates could be materially different if other 
assumptions were used. 
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At December 31 Total 
United 
States Europe* Africa Asia 

(Millions of dollars) 

2011 
Future revenues $126,874 $33,225 $50,876 $27,299 $15,474 

Less: 
Future production costs 31,517 9,220 16,020 3,455 2,822 
Future development costs 17,858 5,854 7,751 1,761 2,492 
Future mcome lax expenses 43,008 7,022 16,368 16,933 2,685 

92,383 22,096 40,139 22,149 7,999 

Future net cash flows 34,491 11,129 10,737 5,150 7,475 
Less: discount at 10% annual rate 14,753 6,190 4,599 1,488 2,476 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash 
flows $ 19,738 $ 4,939 $ 6,138 $ 3,662 $ 4,999 

2010 
Future revenues $ 91,336 $21,112 $36,157 $21,150 S12,917 

Less: 
Future production costs 21,635 6,155 9,536 3,332 2,612 
Future development costs 13,554 3,178 6,534 1,269 2,573 
Future income tax expenses 30,250 4.423 11.745 12,173 1,909 

65,439 13,756 27,815 16,774 7,094 

Future net cash flows 25,897 7.356 8,342 4,376 5,823 
Less: discount at 10% annual rate 10,195 3,764 3,361 1,028 2,042 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash 
flows $ 15,702 $ 3,592 $ 4,981 $ 3,348 S 3,781 

2009 
Future revenues $ 65,275 $14,047 $20,298 $18,615 $12,315 

Less: 
Future production costs 18.336 4,037 7,289 4,154 2,856 
Future development costs 11.041 2,532 3,829 1,798 2,882 
Future income tax expenses 17.976 2,744 5.114 8,601 1,517 

47,353 9,313 16,232 14,553 7,255 

Future net cash flows 17.922 4,734 4,066 4,062 5,060 
Less: discount at 10% annual rale 6.521 2,106 1.653 841 1,921 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash 
flows $11,401 $2 ,628 $2 ,413 $3 ,221 $3 ,139 
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At December 31, the standardized measure of discounted finure net cashflows relating to proved resetves in Norway were as follows: 

2011 2010 

(Millions of dollars) 
Future revenues $34,495 $23,115 
l£ss: 

Future production costs 10,596 4.399 
Future development costs 4,270 3,426 
Future income Uuexpenses 13,247 9.908 

28,113 17.733 

Future net cashflows 6,382 5,382 
Less: discount at 10% annual rate 2,755 2,156 

.Standardized mpa.sure of discounted future net cashflows $ 3,627 $ 3,226 

Changes in Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Net Cash Flows Relating to Proved Oil and Gas 
Reserves 

For the Years Ended December 31 2011 2010 2009 

(Millions of dollars) 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at January I $15,702 $11,401 $ 6,964 

Changes during the year 
Sales and transfers of oU and gas produced during the year, net of production 

costs (7,695) (6,820) (5,030) 
Development costs incurred during year 4,673 2,592 1,927 
Net changes in prices and production costs applicable to future production 9,233 7,970 7,484 
Net change in estimated future development costs (1,963) (1,678) (227) 
Extensions and discoveries (including improved recoveiy) of oil and gas 

reserves, less related costs 1,040 356 426 
Revisions of previous oil and gas reserve estimates 2,587 1,885 1,855 
Net purchases (sales) of minerals in place, before income taxes (398) 3,193 165 
Accretion of discount 3,096 2,011 1,235 
Net change in income taxes (5,234) (5,848) (4,061) 
Revision in rate or timing of future production and other changes (1,303) 640 663 

Total 4,036 4,301 4,437 

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at December 31 $19,738 $15,702 $11,401 
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HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA 
(Unaudited) 

Quarterly results of operafions for the years ended December 31: 

Sales and Net 
Other Income (Loss) Diluted Net 

Operating Gross Attributable to Income (Loss) 
Revenues IVofit (a) Hess Corporation per Share 

(Million of dollars, except per share data) 

2011 
First $ 10,215 $ 1,761 $ 929 (b) $ 2.74 
Second 9,853 1,536 607 1.78 
Thkd 8,665 622 298 (c) 0.88 
Fourth 9,733 1,417 (131)(d) (0.39) 

2010 
Fksl $ 9,259 $ 1,395 $ 538 (e) $ 1.65 
Second 7,732 1,093 375 1.15 
Thkd 7,864 672 1,154 (f) 3.52 
Fourth 9,007 1,288 58 (g) 0.18 

(a) Gross profit represents sales and other operating revenues, less cost of products sold, production expenses, marketing expenses, other 
operating expenses, depreciation, depletion and amoriizaticm and asset impairments. 

(b) Includes an after-tax gain of $310 million related to a.s.set sales. 

(c) Includes after-lux gains of $103 millicm related to asset sales, offset by an after-tax charge of $140 million related to asset impairments 
and an after-tax expense of $29 million for an increase in Ihe United Kingdom supplementary tax rate. 

id) Includes an after- tiix cltarge of $525 million related to the shutdown ofthe HOVENSA LLC. (HOVENSA) refinery in .Si. Croix, U.S. 
Virgin Islands. 

(e) Includes an after-tax gain of $58 million related to an asset .••ale, partially offset by an after-tax charge of $7 million related to the 
repurchase offixed-raie public notes. 

(f) Includes an after-tax gain of $1,072 million related to an a.\.\et exchange, partially offset by after-tax charges of $347 million related to 
an asset impairment. 

(gl Includes an after-uiK charge of $289 million relating to the Corporation's impairment of its equity investment in HOVENSA and an 
after-tax charge of $5! million related to dry hale costs. 

The results of operations for the periods reported herein should not be considered as indicative of future 
operating results. 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 

Based upon their evaluation of the Corporation's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in 
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of December 31, 2011, John B. Hess, Chief Executive Officer, 
and John P. Rielly, Chief Financial Officer, concluded Ihat these disclosure controls and procedures were 
effective as of December 31, 2011. 

There was no change in intemal controls over financial reporting identified in the evaluation requked by 
paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15 or 15d-15 in the quarter ended December 31, 2011 that has materially affected, or 
is reasonably likely to materially affect, intemal controls over financial reporting. 

Management's report on internal control over financial reporting and the attestation report on the 
Corporation's intemal controls over financial reporting are included in Item 8 of this annual report on 
Form 10-K. 

Item 9B. Other Information 

None. 

PART III 

Item 10. Directors, Executive OSicers and Corporate Governance 

Information relating to Directors is incorporated herein by reference to "Election of Directors" from the 
Registrant's definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 2, 2012. 

The Corporation has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to the Corporation's 
directors, officers (including the Corporation's principal executive officer and principal financial officer) and 
employees. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on the Corporation's website. In the event that 
we amend or waive any of the provisions of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that relate to any element 
of the code of ethics definition enumerated in Item 406(b) of Regulation S-K, we Intend to disclose the same on 
the Corporation's website at www.hess.com. 

Information relating to the audit commitlee is incorporated herein by reference lo "Election of Directors" 
from the registrant's definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 2, 
2012. 
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Executive Officers ofthe Registrant 

The following table presents information as of Febmary 1, 2012 regarding executive officers of the 
Registrant: 

Year Individual 
Became an 
Executive 

Name Age Office Held* Officer 

John B. Hess 57 Chairman o f the Board, Chief 1983 

Executive Officer and Director 
Gregory P. HUl 50 Executive Vice President and President of 2009 

Worldwide Exploration and Production 
and Director 

F. Borden WaUcer 58 Executive Vice President and President 1996 
of Marketing and Refining and Dkector 

Timothy B. Goodell 54 Senior Vice President and General Counsel 2009 
Lawrence H. Ornstein 60 Senior Vice President 1995 
John P. Rielly 49 Senior Vice President and Chief 2002 

Financial Officer 
John J. Scelfo 54 Senior Vice President 2004 
Mykel J. Ziolo ,. 59 Senior Vice President 2009 
Robert M. Biglin 47 Vice President and Treasurer 2010 

" All officers referred to herein hold office in accordance with the By-latvs until the first meeting ofthe Directors following tlie annual 
meeting of .stockholders ofthe Registrant and until their successors shall have been duly chosen and qualified. Each of said oncers was 
elected lo the office opposite his name on Mav 4, 2011. Tbe first meeting of Directors following the next annual meeting of stockholders of 
the Registrant is .scheduled lo he held May 2. 2012. 

Except for Messrs. HUl and Goodell, each of the above officers has been employed by the Registrant or its 
subsidiaries m various tnanagerial and execuiive capacities for more than five years. Prior to joining the 
Corporation, Mr. HUl served in senior executive positions in exploration and production operations at Royal 
Dutch Shell and ils subsidiaries, where he was employed for 25 years. Before joining the Corporation in 2009. 
Mr. Goodell was a partner in the law firm of White & Case LLP. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

Information relating to executive compensation is incorporated herein by reference to "Election of 
Directors — Executive Compensation and Other Information," from the Registrant's definitive proxy statement 
for the annual meeting of stockholders lo be held on May 2, 2012. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder 
Matters 

Information pertaining to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated 
herein by reference to "Election of Dkectors — Ownership of Voting Securhies by Certain Beneficial Owners" 
and "Election of Dkectors — Ownership of Equity Securities by Management" from the Registrant's definitive 
proxy statement for the aimual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 2, 2012. 

See Equity Compensation Plans in Item 5 for information pertaining to securities authorized for issuance 
under equity compensation plans. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

Information relating to this item is incorporated herein by reference to "Election of Directors" from the 
Registirant's definitive proxy statement for the annual meeting of stockhoiders to be held on May 2, 2012. 

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

Information relating to this item is incorporated by reference to "Ratification of Selection of Independent 
Auditors" from the Registrant's definitive proxy statement for the aimual meeting of stockholders lo be held on May 2, 
2012. 
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PART IV 

Item 15, Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 

(a) 1. and 2. Financial statements and financial statement schedules 

The financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed in the accompanying 
index to financial statements and schedules in Hem 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

3. Exhibits 

3(1) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant, including amendment thereto dated May 3, 
2006 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3 of Registrant's Form 10-Q for the three months ended 
June 30, 2006. 

3(2) By-laws of Registrant incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 3(1) of Form 8-K of Registiant dated 
Febmary 2, 2011. 

4(1) Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of AprU 14, 2011, among Registrant, certain subsidiaries of 
Registrant, J.P. Morgan Chase Bank. N.A. as lender and administrative agent, and the other 
lenders party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibh 10(1) of Form 8-K of Registrant dated 
AprU 14,2011. 

4(2) Indenture dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registrant and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as 
Tmslee. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) of Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three 
months ended September 30, 1999. 

4(3) Fkst Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1999 between Registrant and The Chase 
Manhattan Bank, as Tmstee, relating to Registrant's 7"Vjj% Notes due 2009 and 7^^% Notes due 
2029, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(2) to Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months 
ended September 30, 1999. 

4(4) Prospectus Supplement dated August 8, 2001 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating to 
Registrant's 5.30% Notes due 2004, 5.90% Notes due 2006, 6.65% Notes due 2011 and 
7.30% Notes due 2031, incorporated by reference to Registrant's prospectus filed pursuant to 
Rule 424(b)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933 on August 9, 2001. 

4(5) Prospectus Supplement dated February 28, 2002 to Prospectus dated July 27, 2001 relating to 
Registrant's 7.125% Notes due 2033, incorporated by reference to Registrant's prospectus filed 
pursuant to Rule 424(b)(2) under the Securities Act of 1933 on March 1. 2002. 

4(6) Indenture dated as of March 1, 2006 between Registrant and The Bank of New York Mellon as 
successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Trustee, including form of Note. Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4 lo Registrant's Form S-3ASR filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 
March 1,2006. 

4(7) Form of 2014 Note issued pursuant to Indenture, dated as of March I, 2006, among Registrant 
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase as Tmstee. Incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 4(1) to Registrant's Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on Febmary 4, 2009. 

4(8) Form of 2019 Note issued pursuant to Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2006, among Registrant 
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as successor to JP Morgan Chase, as Tmstee. Incorporated 
by reference lo Exhibit 4(2) to Registrant's Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on February 4. 2009. 

4(9) Form of 6.00% Note, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registrant 
filed on December 15,2009. 
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4(10) Form of 5.60% Note incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4(1) to the Form 8-K of Registrant filed 
on August 12, 2010. Other instmments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of 
Registrant and ils consolidated subsidiaries are not being filed since the total amount of securities 
authorized under each such instmment does not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of Registrant 
and hs subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Registi^ant agrees to furnish to the Commission a copy 
of any instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debl of Registrant and ils 
subsidiaries upon request. 

10(1) Extension and Amendment Agreement between the Govemment of the Virgin Islands and Hess 
Oil Vkgin Islands Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4) of Form 10-Q of Registrant 
for the three months ended June 30, 1981. 

10(2) Restated Second Extension and Amendment Agreement dated July 27, 1990 between Hess Oil 
Virgin Islands Corp. and the Govemment of the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference to 
Exhibh 19 of Form 10-Q of Registrant forthe three months ended September 30, 1990. 

10(3) Technical Clarifying Amendment dated as of November 17, 1993 lo Restated Second Extension 
and Amendment Agreement between the Government of the Vkgin Islands and Hess Oil Vkgin 
Islands Corp. incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(3) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 1993. 

10(4) Third Extension and Amendment Agreement dated April 15, 1998 and eft'ective October 30, 1998 
among Hess OU Virgin Islands Corp.. PDVSA V.I., Inc., HOVENSA L.L.C. and the Govemment 
of the Virgin Islands incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(4) of Form 10-K of Registrant for 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. 

10(5)* Incentive Cash Bonus Plan description incorporated by reference lo Item 5.02 of Form 8-K of 
Registrant filed on Febmary 8, 2011. 

10(6)* Financial Counseling Program descripfion incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(6) of Form 10-
K of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. 

10(7)* Hess Corporation Savings and Stock Bonus Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(7) of 
Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. 

10(8)* Performance Incentive Plan for Senior Officers, as amended, as approved by stockholders on May 
4, 2011, incorporated by reference lo Annex A to the definitive proxy statement ofthe Registrant 
dated March 25, 2011. 

10(9)* Hess Corporarion Pension Restoration Plan dated January 19, 1990 incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10(9) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31.1989. 

10(10)* Amendment dated December 31, 2006 to Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan 
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(10) of Form lO-K of Registrant for fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2006. 

10(11)* Letter Agreement dated May 17, 2001 between Registrant and John P. Rielly relating to Mr. 
Rielly's participation in the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan, incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10(18) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. 

10(12)* Second Amended and Restated 1995 Long-term Incentive Plan, including forpis of awards 
thereunder incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 10(11) of Form 10-K of Registrant for fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2004. 

10(13)* 2008 Long-lerm Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B to Registrant's definitive 
proxy statement filed on March 27, 2008. 

10(14)* Fkst Amendment dated March 3, 2010 and approved May 5, 2010 to Registrant's 2008 Long-
term Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to Annex B of Registrant's definitive proxy 
statement dated March 25, 2010. 
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10(15)* Forms of Awards under Registrant's 2008 Long-term Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to 
Exhibk 10(14) of Registrant's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. 

10(16)* Compensaticm program description for non-employee dkectors, incorporated by reference to 
Item 1.01 ofForm8-Kof Registrant filed on January 4, 2007. 

10(17)* Amended and Restated Change of Control Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of May 29, 
2009 between Registrant and F. Borden WaUcer, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(1) of 
Form 10-Q of Registrant for the three months ended June 30, 2009. A substantially identical 
agreement (differing only in the signatories thereto) was entered into between Registrant and John 
B. Hess. 

10(18)* Change of Control Termination Benefits Agreement dated as of May 29, 2009 between Registrant 
and John P. Rielly incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(17) of Registrant's Form 10-K for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. Substantially identical agreements (differing only in the 
signatories thereto) were entered into between Registrant and other executive officers (including 
the named executive officers, other than those referred to in Exhibit 10(17)). 

10(19)* Letter Agreement dated March 18, 2002 between Registrant and F. Borden Walker relating to 
Mr. Walker's participation in the Hess Corporation Pension Restoration Plan incorporated by 
reference to Exhibit 10(16) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2001. 

10(20)* Agreement between Registrant and Gregory P. Hill relating to his compensation and other terms 
of employment, incorporated by reference lo Item 5.02 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed January 7, 
2009. 

10(21)* Agreement between Registrant and Timothy B. (joodell relating to his compensation and other 
terms of employment incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(20) of Registrant's Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. 

10(22)* Deferred Compensation Plan of Registrant dated December 1, 1999 incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10(16) of Form 10-K of Registrant for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999. 

10(23) Asset Purchase and Contribution Agreement dated as of October 26, 1998, among PDVSA V.I.. 
Inc., Hess Oil Vkgin Islands Corp. and HOVENSA L.L.C. (including Glossary of definitions) 
incorporated byreference to Exhibit 2.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on November 13, 1998. 

10(24) Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of HOVENSA L.L.C. dated as of 
October 30, 1998 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K of Registrant filed on 
November 13, 1998. 

21 Subsidiaries of Registrant. 

23(1) Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated 
Febmary 27, 2012, lo the incorporation by reference in Registrant's Registration Statements 
(Form S-3 No. 333-157606, and Form S-8 Nos. 333-43569, 333-94851, 333-115844, 333-150992 
and 333-167076), of its reports relating lo Registrant's financial statements. 

23(2) Consent of DeGolyer and MacNaughton dated Febmary 27, 2012. 

31(1) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-l4(a)) or Rule 15d-i4(a) 
(17CFR240.15d-14(a)). 

31(2) Certification requked by Rule 13a-14(a) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(a)) or Rule 15d-14(a) 
(17CFR240.15d-14(a)). 

32(1) Certification requked by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)) or Rule 15d-14(b) 
(17 CFR 240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Titie 18 of the United States Code 
(18 U.S.C. 1350). 
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32(2) Certification required by Rule 13a-14(b) (17 CFR 240.13a-14(b)) or Rule 15d-14(b) 
(17 CFR 240.15d-14(b)) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code 
(18 U.S.C. 1350). 

99(1) Letter report of DeGolyer and MacNaughton, Independent Petroleum Engineering Consulting 
Firm, dated January 31, 2012, on proved reserves audit as of December 31, 2011 of certain 
properties attributable to Registrant. 

101 (INS) XBRL Instance Document 

IOI(SCH) XBRL Schema Documem 

lOl(CAL) XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document 

lOl(LAB) XBRL Labels Linkbase Document 

lOl(PRE) XBRL Presentation Lkikbase Document 

lOl(DEF) XBRL Definition Linkbase Document 

* These exhibila relate lo executive compensation plans and arrangements. 

(b) Reports on Form Ŝ K 

During the three months ended December 31, 2011, Registrant filed or furnished the following report on 
Form 8-K; 

1. Filing dated October 26, 2011 reporting under Items 2.02 and 9.01, a news release dated October 26, 
2011 reporting results for the thkd quarter of 2011 and furnishing under Item 7.01 and 9.01 the prepared 
remarks of John B. Hess, Chakman of tiie Board of Direclors and Chief Executive Officer of Hess 
Corporaiion, and John P. RieUy, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, al a public conference 
caU held October 26, 2011. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirementv of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securitie.s Exchange Act of 1934, the 
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
authorized, on the 27th day of February 2012. 

HESS CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

By /s/ JOHN P. RiET-LY 

(John P. Rielly) 
Senior Vice E'residonl and 

Chief Financial Officer 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed 
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

Signature Title Date 

/s/ JOHN B. HESS 

John B. [less 

/&/ SAMUliL W. BODMAN 

Samuel W. Bodman 

/s/ NICHOLAS F . BRADY 

Nicholas F. Brady 

/s/ GREGORY P. HILL 

Gregory P. Hill 

/s/ EDITH E . HOLIDAY 

Edith E. Holiday 

/s/ THOMAS H . KRAN 

Thomas H. Kean 

/s/ RISA LAVIZZO-MOUREY 

Risa Lavizzo-Mourey 

/s/ CRAIG G. MATTHEWS 

Craig G. Matthews 

/s/ JOHN H . MULLIN 

John H. Mullin 

/s/ FRANK A. OLSON 

Frank A. Olson 

/s/ JOHN P. RIELLY 

John p. Rielly 

/s/ ERNST H . VON METZSCH 

Ernst H. von Metzsch 

/s/ F. BORDEN WALKER 

F. Borden Walker 

/s/ ROBERT N . WILSON 

Robert N. Wilson 

Dkector, Chakman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer 

(Principal Executive Officer) 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer 

(Principal Financial and Accounting Ofiicer^ 

Director 

Director 

Director 

February 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 

Febmary 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 

February 27,2012 

February 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 

February 27. 2012 

1 

February 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 

February 27, 2012 
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Schedule II 

HESS CORPORATION AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES 

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 

Additions 

Description 

2011 

Losses on receivables 

Deferred income tax valuation 

2010 

Losses on receivables 

Deferred income tax valuation 

2009 
Losses on receivables 
Deferred income tax valuation 

Balance 
Januarj' 1 

$ 58 

$ 444 

$ 54 

$ 500 

S 46 

$ 266 

Charged 
to Costs Charged Deductions 

and to 0 £ e r from 
Expenses Accounts Reserves 

(Millions of dollar.s) 

$ 4 $ 1 $ 8 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

648 

9 

135 

13 

455 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

— 

1 

— 

— 

$ 

$ 

S 

$ 

$ 

21 

6 

191 

5 

221 

Balance 
December 31 

$ 55 

$ 

$ 

$ 

L 

1,071 

58 

444 

54 

500 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

The Members 
HOVENvSA LXX, 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of HOVENSA L.L.C. ("the Company'') as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and die related statements of operations, comprehensive loss and (accumulated 
deficit) retained earnings, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibUily is to express 
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. 
Those standards requke that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged lo perform an audit of the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audhs included consideration of uitemal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the ckcumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control over financial 
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fakly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of HOVENSA L.L.C. at December 31, 2011 and 2010. and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company's decision to shut down refining operations 
and operate as an oil storage lernunal raises substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. The 
Company's plans as lo these matters are described in Note 1. The 2011 financial statements do not include any 
adjustments that might resuh from the outcome of this uncertainty. 

^ A / y ^ y l ^ u ^ y ^ U ? y ^ ^ t o ^ j 

February 27. 2012 
New York, New York 

103 



HOVENSA L.L.C. 

Balance Sheets 

December 31 

2011 2010 ~ 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
Assets 
Current as.sets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 42,275 $ 45,124 
Debt service fund 11,361 11,350 
Accounts receivable: 

Members and affiliates 36,694 274,678 
Trade (less allowance in 2011 of $52,416) 104,776 98,036 
Other 228 2,627 

Inventories 159,594 260,492 
Deposits and prepaid expenses 15,707 20,762 

Total current assets 370,635 713,069 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Land 19,315 19,315 
Refinery facilities 3,012,619 2,938,071 
Other 108,307 104,352 
Construction in progress 29,722 68,852 

Total—at cost 3,169,963 3,130,590 

Less accumulated depreciation (3,169,963) (1,143,269) 

Property, plant and equipment—net — t ,987,321 

Other assets 10,374 26,793 

Total assets $ 381,009 $ 2,727,183 

Liabilities and members^ equity 
Current liabilities; 

Accounts payable: 
Members and atfiliates $ 423,706 S 584,230 
Trade 346,917 404.031 

Tax-exempt revenue bonds 355,683 — 
Payable lo members for financial support 654,000 — 
Accmed liabilities 76,480 10,710 
Taxes payable 1,459 1.968 

Total current liabilities 1,858,245 1.000.939 
Long-term debt — 705,683 
Odier liabilities 115,223 135,666 

Total liabilities 1,973,468 1,842,288 

Members' equity: 
Members' initial inveslmeni 1,343,429 1.343,429 
Accumulated deficit (2,898,232) (410,980) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (37,656) (47.554) 

Total members' equity (1,592,459) 884,895 

Total liabilities and members* equity $ 381,009 $ 2,727,183 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Loss 
and (Accumulated Deficit) Retained Earnings 

Year ended December 31 

2011 2010 2009 

(Etollars in Thousands) 

Sales $13,126,326 $12,258,297 $10,048,271 
Opeiafing expenses: 

Product costs 12,803,408 11,926,310 9,782,220 
Operating expenses 554,516 586,336 548,265 
Depreciation and amortizafion 128,403 142,503 139,854 
Asset impairments and shutdown related charges 2,072,600 — — 

Total operating expenses 15,558,927 12,655,149 10,470,339 

Operating loss (2,432,601) (396,852) (422,068) 

Other non-operating income (expense): 
Interest expense (38,689) (25,904) (22,299) 
Other expense, net (15,962) (15,173) (6,858) 

Net loss $(2,487,252) $ (437,929) $ (451.225) 

Components of comprehensive (loss) income: 
Net loss $(2,487,252) $ (437,929) $ (451,225) 
Change in retkement plan habihties (9,898) 1,789 (18,021) 

Comprehensive loss $(2,497,150) $ (436,140) $ (469,246) 

(Accumulated deficit) retained earnings: 
Opening balance $ (410,980) $ 26,949 $ 478,174 
Net loss (2,487,252) (437.929) (451,225) 

Closing balance $(2,898,232) $ (410,980) $ 26,949 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

Statements of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31 

2011 2010 2009 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net loss $(2,487,252) $(437,929) 3(451,225) 

Adjustments lo reconcile net loss lo net cash provided by operating 
activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 128,403 142,503 139,854 
Asset impairments and shutdown related charges 2,072,600 — — 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 181,227 (104,173) (118,026) 
Decrease in mventories 65,698 16,043 203,224 
Increase in deposits and prepaid expenses (510) (55) (410) 
Decrease in other assets 16,419 26,695 21.748 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued liabiUties (218,068) 47,343 274,546 
(Decrease) increase in taxes payable (509) 143 124 
(Decrease) increase in other liabUities (25,473) (2,798) 13,926 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (267,465) (312,228) 83,761 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Capital expenditures (39,373) (70,206) (80,700) 

Net cash used in investment activities (39,373) (70,206) (80,700) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Increase in restricted cash (11) (17) (16) 
(Decrease) increase in long-term debl, net (350,000) 350,000 
Increase in payable to members for financial support 654,000 — — 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 303,989 349,983 (16) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,849) (32,451) 3,045 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 45,124 77,575 74,530 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ 42,275 $ 45,124 S 77,575 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

1. Basis of Financial Statements and Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Business 

Background: HOVENSA L.L.C. (the "Company" or "HOVENSA") was formed as a 50/50 joint venture 
between subsidiaries of Petroleos de Venezuela. SA. ("PDVSA") and Hess Corporation ("Hess"), to own and 
operate the Company's refinery ltx:aled in St. Croix, United States (U.S.) Virgin Islands. The Company's 
members are PDVSA V.I., Inc., a subsidiary of PDVSA, and Hess OU Vkgin Islands Corp. ("HOVIC"), a 
subsidiary of Hess. The Company purchases crude oU from PDVSA, Hess and thkd parties. It manufactures and 
sells petroleum products primarily to PDVSA and Hess. 

HOVENSA operates under a Concession Agreement with the Government of the U.S. Vkgin Islands. The 
original Concession Agreement was entered into on September 1, 1965 and the Thkd Amendment lo the 
Concession Agreement is due to expire on August 1, 2022. The Concession Agreement can be extended with 
Vkgin Islands govemment approval which has occurred on two previous occasions. 

Recent Events - Shutdown of Refinery: In December 2011, the Company's members reached agreement 
to commence the shutdown of refining operations effective January 18, 2012, and operate as an oil storage 
terminal. As a result of this decision, the Company recorded non-cash charges totaling $2,072,600 in December 
2011 lo fully impak its property, plant and equipment and recognize certain other expenses related to the 
shutdown decision. In conjunction with the refinery shutdown, the Company plans to fiquidate ils refined product 
inventory, redeem hs outstandmg debt, and settle or dispose of certain other UabUities. 

Basis of Presentation and Going Concern 

The accompanying financial statements of HOVENSA have been prepared in conformity with United Stales 
generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"). These financial statements have been prepared 
assuming HOVENSA will continue as a going concern. As further explained in Notes 2 and 3 below, the 
Company has fully impaked its property, plant and equipment and recorded certain refinery shutdown costs at 
December 31, 2011. Additional financial support from the members will be requked to fund expenditures for the 
refinery shutdown and conversion lo an oU storage terminal in 2012. There is no assurance that any or all ofthe 
member financial support will be provided by the members, Absent member support it is unlikely HOVENSA's 
operations would be able to continue. 

Use of Estimates 

In preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management makes estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabUities in the balance sheet and revenues and 
expenses in the statement of operations. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Among the estimates 
made by management are asset impakments, refinery shutdown costs, inventory and other asset valuations, legal 
and environmental obligations and pension liabilities. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes revenues from the sale of petroleum products when fille passes to the customer, 
which generally occurs when products are shipped or delivered in accordance with the terms of the respective 
sales agreements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into cash and have 
maturities of three months or less when acquired. 
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HOVENSA L.L.C. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(DoUars in Thousands) 

Debt Service Fund 

The debt service fund is cash held by a trustee representing six months of interest and fees payable on the 
Company's outstanding lax-exempt revenue bonds. 

Inventories 

Inventories of crude oil and refined prcxlucts are valued at the lower of last-in, fksl-out ("LIFO"') cost or 
market. Inventories of materials and supplies are valued at the lower of average cost or market. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation of refinery facilities is determined principally on the units-of-production method based on 
estimated production volumes. Depreciation of all other equipment is determined on the straight-line method 
based on estimated useful hves. 

Maintenance and Repairs 

Maintenance and repaks are expensed as incurred including costs of refinery tumarounds. Capital 
improvements are recorded as additions to property, plant and equipment. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impakment whenever events or changes in circumstances mdicate that 
the carrymg amount of the assets may not be recoverable. The impairment recognized is the amouni by which the 
carrying amount exceeds the estimated fak market value ofthe assets. 

Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO's) 

ARO's must be recorded al fak value in the period in which it is determined that a legal obligation exists 
and a reasonable estimate of the fak value of the liability can be made. 

Environmental Expenditures 

Liabilities for future remediation costs are recorded when envkonmental assessments or remedial efforts are 
probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated. Other than for assessments, the timing and magnitude of 
these accruals generally are based on the completion of investigations or other studies or a commitment to a 
formal plan of action. Environmental liabilities are based on best estimates of probable undiscounted future costs 
using currently available technology and applying current regulations. Such accruals are adjusted as further 
information develops or circumstances change. Recoveries of envkonmental remediation costs from other parties 
are recorded as assets when their receipt is deemed probable. The Company capitalizes envkonmental 
expenditures that increase the life of property or reduce or prevent environmental contamination. 

Income Taxes 

The Company is a limited hability company and, as a result, income taxes are the responsibility of the 
members. Accordingly, no effect of income lax has been recognized in the accompanying financial statements. 

Retirement Plans 

The Company recognizes on its balance sheet the underfunded status of its defined benefit retirement plans 
measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and the benefit obligations. The benefit 
obligation is the projected benefit obligation in the case of the non-contributory defmed benefit pension plan and 
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HOVENSA L.L.C, 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

the projected post-retrremenl benefit obligation for the post-retkement medical plan, The Company recognizes 
the net changes in the plan assets and benefit obhgations of its defined benefit retkement plans in the year in 
which such changes occur. 

Prior service costs and gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the benefit obtigation or the 
market value of assets are amortized over the average remaining ser%'ice period of active employees. 

The determination of the obligations and expenses related to these plans are based on several actuarial 
assumptions, the most significant of which relate lo the discount rate for measuring the present value of future 
plan obligations; expected long-term rates of relum on plan assets and rate of future increases in compensation 
levels. These assumptions represent estimates made by the Company, some of which can be affected by external 
factors. 

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 27, 2012. 

2. Asset Impairment and Refinery Shutdown Related Charges 

On January 18, 2012, HOVENSA announced the decision lo shut down ils refinery operations after recently 
experiencing substantial operating losses due to global economic conditions and competitive disadvantages 
versus other refiners. Such losses were incurred despite efforts to improve operating performance by reducing 
refining capacity to 350,000 from 500,000 barrels per day in the first half of 2011. Operating losses were also 
projected to continue. The Company prepared an impakment analysis as of December 31, 2011, which indicated 
that undiscounted future cash flows would not recover the carrying value of its assets. As a result, the Company 
recorded an impakment charge of $1,900,349 representing the difference between the carrying value and the 
estimated fair market value of property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2011. Estimated fak value was 
determined based on discounted future cash flows (a Level 3 fair value measure). In addition, the Company 
recorded other chai'ges related to the decision to shut down the refinery totaling $172,251, including recognition 
of legally required employee and contractor severance costs and a reduction in carrying value of warehouse 
inventory and other assets. 

3. Future Refinery Shutdown Expenditures 

The Company is expected lo incur substantial additional refinery shutdown costs in excess of amounts that 
can be accrued at December 31, 2011 under US GAAP, including costs related to the cleaning and preservation 
of refinery process equipment and tanks, tank bottom sludge disposal, enhanced employee and contractor 
severance and benefits, eslknated losses on long-term contracts and other costs. After liquidation of currenl 
assets and liabUities, the Company estimates total future cash funding of approximately $900,000 wUl be 
required to settle all obligations, with the substantial majority to be incurred in 2012. 

4. Related Party Transactions 

During 2011, HOVENSA received financial support from its members by delaying the normal timing of 
payments to PDVSA for crude oil purchases, as well as accelerating payments from Hess for refined product 
sales. At December 31, 2011, interest bearmg financial support from both members totaling $654,000 is recorded 
as a current liability in the balance sheet. 

Through the shutdown of refinhig operations, the Company had long-term crude oil supply agreements with 
Pefroleum Marketing International ("Pefromar") a subsidiary of PDVSA, under which Petromar agreed to sell to 
HOVENSA a monthly average of 155,000 barrels per day of Mesa crude oU and 115,000 barrels per day of 
Merey crude oil. The Company also had a product sales agreement with Hess and Petromar that required Hess 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

and Petromar each to purchase after any sales of refined products by HOVENSA to third parties, 50% of 
HOVENSA's gasoline, distUlate, residual fuel and other products at market prices, 

A summary of all material transactions between the Company, its members and affiliates follows: 

2011 2010 21)09 

Sale of petroleum products: 
Hess $3,805,821 $4,307,112 $3,658,885 
PDVSA 3,937,571 4,254,761 3,753,201 

Purchases of cmde oil and producls: 
Hess 709,570 607,04€ 529,529 
PDVSA 6,412,491 6,214,869 5.198,735 

Administi'ative service agreement fee paid to Hess 4,018 6,481 6,686 
Marine revenues received from PDVSA and Hess 567 911 1,854 
Bareboat charter of lugs and barges paid to HOVIC 2,873 3.161 3,415 

5. Inventories 

Inventories as of December 31 were as follows: 

2011 2010 

Crude oU $ 183,345 $ 261,130 
Refined and other finished producls 657,914 670,684 
Less LIFO adjustmenl (734,177) (759,818) 

107,082 171,996 
Materials and supplies 52,512 88,496 

Total $ 159,594 $ 260,492 

During 2011 and 2010, a reduction of inventory quantities resulted in a liquidation of LIFO inventories 
carried at below market costs, which decreased net operating losses by approximately $268,397 and $110,432 
respectively. During 2012, the Company intends to liquidate hs remaining crude oil, refined and other finished 
products inventory. 

6. Tax Exempt Revenue Bonds and Other Long-term Debt 

Outstanding borrowings at December 31 consist ofthe foUowing: 

2011 2010 

General Purpose Revolving Credit Facility $ — $350,000 
Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued in 2002) al 6.50% 126,753 126,753 
Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued in 2003) at 6.125% 74,175 74,175 
Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued in 20O4) at 5.875% 50,660 50,660 
Tax-exempt revenue bonds (issued m 2007) at 4.70% 104,095 104,095 

Ttrtal long-term debt $355,683 $705,683 

On January 23. 2012, the Company commenced a cash tender offer for any and aU of the $355,683 
outstanding tax-exempt revenue bonds. The terms of the tender offer include a purchase price at par value, plus 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

accrued but unpaid interest up to the purchase date, subject lo the terras of the offering document. See Note 10, 
Subsequent Event, forthe results ofthe lender. 

HOVENSA had a 5-year $400,000 revolving credit facihty until December 30, 2011, when it repaid 
outstanding borrowings and terminated the revolving credit facility. There were $350,000 of outstanding 
borrowings on this facUily at December 31, 2010. The agreement was collateralized by the physical assets and 
certain material contracts of the Company. 

7. Environmental Matters 

In 2011, the Company signed a Consent Decree with the U.S. Envkonmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
which among other things requires the Company to install equipment and implement additional operating 
procedures to reduce emissions over the next 10 years. The cost of installing this equipment is expected to be 
approximately $700,000. Since the refining facilities will be shut down in 2012, with subsequent operation as an 
oil storage terminal, the Company believes it will not be required to make material expenditures as outlined in 
the Consent Decree. Under the terms of the Consent Decree, the Company paid a penalty of $5,375 in 2011. 

In the normal course of hs business, the Company records liabiUties for future environmental remediation 
expenditures when such environmental obligations are probable and reasonably estimable. 

The Company is requked to provide financial assurance to the EPA in connection with various forms of 
environmental compUance. The requked financial assurance totals approximately $48,000 at December 31, 2011 
and must be met by establishing a trust fund, posting a letter of credit or similar measures. If the Company is 
unable to fulfill ils financial assurance requkements, il anticipates its members wiU provide the necessary 
support. 

8. Contingencies 

The Company is subject to loss contingencies with respect to various lawsuits, claims and other 
proceedings, including environmental matters. A liabihty is recognized in the Company's financial statements 
when it is probable a loss has been incurred and the amouni can be reasonably estimated. If the risk of loss is 
probable, but the amouni cannot be reasonably estimated or the risk of loss is only reasonably possible, a IiabUity 
is not accrued; however, the Company discloses the nature of those contingencies. In management's opinion, 
based upon currently known facts and circumstances, the outcome of such loss contingencies will nol have a 
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 
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NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS - (Continued) 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

9. Retirement Plans 

The Company has a funded non-contributory, defined benefit pension plan for substantially all of its 
employees. The plan provides defmed benefits based on years of service and final average salary. At 
December 31, 2011, the actuarial assumptions for the determination of the projected benefit obligation reflect the 
pending refinery shutdown. The non-contributory defmed benefit pension plan will remain in place and meet 
future obligations in accordance with terms of the plan, but terminated employees will cease to earn service 
toward future benefits. 

The following table reconciles the projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets and shows the 
funded status of the pension plan: 

2011 2010 

Reconciliation of projected benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation al January 1 $116,572 $100,703 
Service costs 9,243 8,964 
Inlerest costs 6,373 5,683 
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,403) 3,057 
Benefit payments (2,218) (1,835) 

Projected benefit obligation al December 31 128,567 116,572 

Reconcihation of fak value of plan assets: 
Fak value of plan assets at January 1 72,400 50,971 
Actual return on plan assets 1,809 7,444 
Employer contributions 12,760 15,820 
Benefit payments (2,218) (1,835) 

Fak value of plan assets atDecember31 84,751 72,400 

Funded status (plan assets less benefit obligation) (43,816) (44,172) 
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 36,367 36,049 

Net amount recognized $ (7,449) $ (8,123) 

The accumulated benefit obligation was $124,769 at December 31, 2011 and $93,208 at December 31, 
2010. 

Components of funded pension expense consist of the following: 

2011 2010 2009 

Service cost $ 9,243 $ 8,964 $ 7,133 
Interest cost 6,373 5,684 4,493 
Expected return on plan assets (5,427) (4,095) (3,180) 
Amortization of umecognized net actuarial losses 1,896 1,944 2,937 

Net periodic benefit cost $12,085 $12,497 $11,383 
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